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SUBJECT INDEX   

 

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Section 115 - Review-  power of review is to be 

exercised sparingly on the ground of error apparent on the face of the record - 

the error should be such as can be unveiled on mere looking at the record, 

without entering into the long drawn process of reasoning - held, that there was 

no error apparent on the face of the record - the plea that order is illegal can be 

taken by way of filing appeal before the Appellate Court and not by filing the 

review petition.      

Title: Nirmla and others  Vs. Financial Commissioner (Appeals) and Ors.  

       (Page-434  )  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 -Order 20 Rule 5 - Code of Criminal 

Procedure , 1973 - Section 354 -Judgment - Magistrate awarding maintenance @ 

Rs. 1500/ - per month which was reduced by Additional Sessions Judge to Rs. 

1200/ - by saying  that Rs. 1500/ - per month appeared to be on higher side and 

keeping in view the facts in totality Rs. 1200/ - per month was an appropriate 

maintenance - held, that the Learned Additional Sessions Judge had not given 

any reason to reduce the maintenance - it is the duty of the judge to disclose the 

reasons to make it known that there was due application of mind.    

Title: Kesari Devi Vs. Karam Singh Chandel       

       (Page- 256 ) 

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 227 - The prosecutrix filed an FIR 

stating that she had gone to the hospital along with her son - The accused was 

on night duty - The prosecutrix was asked to sit in the Doctorõs duty room- The 

accused offered tea to the prosecutrix - the prosecutrix  felt giddiness after taking 

tea - The accused gave her injection and raped her - She became pregnant - 

Charge sheet filed but no charge was framed by the learned Additional Sessions 

Judge against the accused for the offences punishable under Section 376 (2) (d) 

and 506 IPC  ð revision was filed against the order framing charge -held that the 

allegations in the FIR show that the prosecutrix was a consenting party - The 

FIR was filed belatedly and there was no sufficient ground for concluding that 

the accused had committed the offences punishable under Section 376 (2) (d) 

and 506 IPC - Further held that the Court is not to act as a mouthpiece of the 

prosecution but has to sift the evidence in order to find  out whether there was 

sufficient reasons to frame the charge  against the accused - Petition dismissed.  

Title: State of H.P.  Vs. Bhupinder Singh  

       (Page-  274  ) 



II 
 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1908 - Section 374 - Practice and Procedure -In an 

appeal the Appellate Court is duty bound to appreciate the evidence on recor d 

and if two views are possible the benefit of the reasonable doubt has to be 

extended to the accused.  

Title: Joban Dass  Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh  

(Page- 388  ) 

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 378 - Appeal against acquittal - the 

Appellate Cour t should not set aside the judgment of acquittal when two views 

are possible - the Court must come to the conclusion that the view of the Trial 

Court was perverse or otherwise unsustainable - the Court is to see whether any 

inadmissible has been taken into c onsideration and can interfere only when it 

finds so.  

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Chanalu Ram  

        (Page- 368  ) 

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 378 - Appeal against acquittal - the 

Appellate Court should not set aside the judgment of acquittal when two views 

are possible - the Court must come to the conclusion that the view of the Trial 

Court was perverse or otherwise unsustainable - the Court is to see whether any 

inadmissible evidence has been taken into consideration and can interfere  only 

when it finds so.   

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Brij Mohan   

       (Page-  322  ) 

 

 Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 , Section 401 -  Revision against order of 

acquittal - Complainant filed a complaint stating that she saw the accused 

standing at the door of  the cowshed of ôDõ- There was fire inside the cowshed - 

Held that the complainant had made improvements in her statement - She had 

stated in the Ruka that she saw the accused standing at the door of the  

cowshed, whereas she stated in the court that she saw  the accused coming out 

of the cowshed - There was discrepancy regarding time at which the accused 

was seen - There was enmity between the complainant and the accused - 

Independent witnesses were not examined - Cowshed of the father of the 

accused was adjacent  to the cowshed of the ôDõ which would make it unlikely 

that the accused would put cowshed of ôDõ on fire at risk of the cowshed of his 

father - In these circumstances, the acquittal was justified.  

Title: Dharam Singh vs. State of H.P. & Anr.  

        (Page-   279 ) 

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 438 - FIR was registered against 

the petitioner for the commission of offence punishable under Sections 376, 

354 -A, 406, 506 IPC - held, that the Court has to consider the nature and 
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seriousness of offence, character and behavior of the accused, circumstances 

peculiar to the accused, reasonable possibility of securing the presence of the 

accused at the trial and investigation, reasonable apprehension of the witnesses 

being tampered with and  larger interest o f the public and State - further held, 

that the offences of rape were increasing in society and the Court should be 

sensitive while dealing with such cases - the Court has to presume that 

prosecutrix had not consented to the sexual intercourse - the Court sho uld not 

decide whether the offence was committed at the time of granting bail or not 

and it would not be expedient to release the petitioner on bail till the testimony 

of the prosecutrix is recorded in the trial.  

Title: Anil Kumar   Vs. State of H.P.   

 (Page-  385 )  

 
Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section   438 -   An FIR was registered for 

the commission of offence s punishable  under Section 376, 504 and 506 of 

I.P.C. - some recoveries were to be effected, the report from FSL was awaited but 

other  invest igation was complete - Held , that Prosecutrix was aged 35 years and 

as per the allegations the accused had sexua l relations with her for 1 -1 ½ 

years - This shows that the Prosecutrix was a consenting party - No complaint 

was ever made by her to any relative, hence prima facie the allegations against 

the accused did not constitute any offence - Bail granted . 

Title: Mohit Saini Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh  

 (Page- 432 )  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 439 - FIR for the commission of 

offence punishable under Section 304/34 IPC was registered against the 

petitioners - held that while granting bail, the Court has to see the nature and 

gravity of the accusation, severity of the punishment in the case of conviction, 

nature of supporting evidence, reasonable apprehension of tampering of the 

witness or apprehension of threat to the complainant and prima facie evidence 

in support of the charges - offence punishable under Section 304/34 IPC is a 

grave offenc e- petitioner was a habitual offender against whom three cases had 

already been registered and other petitioners had created an atmosphere of fear 

due to which deceased died of heart attack - conduct of the petitioners would 

disentitle them to be released o n bail - petition dismissed.   

Title: Pyara Singh Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh   

 (Page-332)  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 14 - Equal pay for equal work - Petitioner 

claiming that the post of Junior Translator in H.P. State Administrative 

Tribunal is s imilar to the post sanctioned and created in various other 

departments - he is entitled to the pay scale as was being granted in other 

departments - held that while determining parity the Court has to consider 
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factors like the source and mode of recruitment/ appointment, qualifications, 

nature of work, value thereof, responsibilities, reliability, experience, 

confidentiality, functional need, etc. - the similarity of designation or nature of 

work is not sufficient to grant equal pay - the petitioner had not la id any 

foundation to establish that functions, responsibilities and duties of the posts 

were similar - therefore, he is not entitled for the pay equal to the other person.   

Title: The Principal Secretary (Personnel) & another Vs. Pratap Thakur  

        (Page- 314  ) 

 

Constitution of India, 1950 -Article 14 - cannot be used for perpetuating  any 

illegality as it  does not envisage negative equality  - it can only be used when 

equals similarly circumstanced are discriminated without any rational basis.  

Title: Varinder Singh Vs. State of HP & ors  

        (Page-  429 ) 

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Shimla Road Users and Pedestrians 

(Public Safety and Convenience)  Act,  2007 - The purpose of Shimla Road Users 

and Pedestrians (Public Safety and Convenience)  Act is to restore the sanctity 

of the Shimla city - State had renewed 2538 permits for vehicles and 318 

permits were also issued up to 21.8.2014 - however, the names of the permits 

holders and by whom the permits were issued were not specified - State directed 

to furnish the list of the permit holders along with the full particulars and to 

restrict the plying/movement of vehicles without passes - State further directed 

to create more off -street and on -street parking places/parking zones - H.R.T.C. 

is directed to issue the permit to the taxies strictly in terms of the earlier order 

dated 14.10.2011.   

Title: Dharam Pal Thakur  Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh & others  

(Page-  310 ) 

 

 Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - petitioner, a Society, establis hed a 

College for running B. Ed course on regular basis - the inspection was 

conducted and the Inspection Committee pointed out that list of existing 

teaching faculty approved by university,  documents verifying that the salary to 

the teaching staff was bei ng paid through cheques were not submitted and the 

size of multipurpose hall is only 1510.4 sq. feet against 2000 sq. feet as 

required under NCTE norms - petitioner stated that two teachers were appointed 

by H.P. University while remaining were appointed on  ad-hoc basis - size of the 

hall was being increased - affiliation of the institute was cancelled - held, that the 

teachers occupy an important position in the society, therefore, the trainee 

teachers must be given qualitative training and the Training Instit utes should 

possess all the required facilities including well qualified and trained staff - the 

institute had not taken steps to fill up the posts in accordance with 

instructions/guidelines issued by UGC - advertisement was issued in the 
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newspaper but no po sts were filled up - posts were subsequently filled up 

without issuing a fresh advertisement and thus, appointment was not proper.  

Title: Ramanujam Royal College of Education Vs. National Council for Teacher 

Education and others  

        (Page- 343  ) 

 

Consti tution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Practice and Procedure - the 

petitioner approaching the Court is bound to come with clean hands - if a 

litigant tries to pollute stream of justice by resorting to falsehood or by making 

false statement, he is not entitled to any relief.  

Title: Ramanujam Royal College of Education Vs. National Council for Teacher 

Education and others  

        (Page- 343 ) 

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - The Petitioner, a School Managing 

Committee, filed a writ petition against the t ransfer of Respondent No. 3 with 

the prayer to set aside the same - held, that the matter of transfer and posting 

are purely administrative matters and the Court should not interfere with them 

unless the decision is arbitrary, discriminatory, malafide or ac tuated with bias - 

The Government has unfettered power to effect transfer and to decide as to 

how, when, where and why a particular employee is required to be posted - the 

courts should not substitute their own decision in transfer -the aggrieved person 

should approach the higher authorities than rushing to the courts.  

Title: School Managing Committee, Government High School, Mahog, Tehsil 

Theog, District Shimla vs. State of H.P. & Anr.  

      (Page- 396 )  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - The Peti tioner applied for the job 

under the policy of project affected area - No job was offered to him, 

consequently he filed a writ petition - The petition was disposed of with the 

direction to the Deputy Commissioner to look into the representation made by 

the p etitioner - The petitioner was called by the Deputy Commissioner and 

representatives of the company were asked to look into the matter, however, the 

claim of the petitioner was rejected on the ground that he was offered the post 

of Supervisor and he absente d- held, that as per the attendance register the 

petitioner was appointed as Supervisor - However, the petitioner absented giving 

rise to an inference of voluntarily abandonment of service - Petition dismissed.  

Title:  Sunil Kumar Negi vs. State of H.P. and Ors.  

      (Page- 416  ) 

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - The Petitioners working as 

Fishermen had challenged the order of the State Government providing 

Matriculation as minimum qualification for promotion to the post of Fisheries 
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Field Assistants - According to the petitioners there was no qualification in the 

un -amended 1986 Rules for promotion - Nature of duty of Field Assistants and 

Fishermen were similar, and the order of the State Government providing for 

Matriculation as qualificatio n was wrong, arbitrary - Held that framing of Rules 

prescribing the mode of selection including the qualification for a particular 

post is within the domain of the Executive/ Rule making authority - Courts and 

Tribunals cannot prescribe the qualification nor  can they interfere with the 

qualification prescribed by the employer - Courts cannot direct the authority to 

make appointment by relaxing the rules - Since the petitioners are not eligible as 

per the rules therefore, the petition is not maintainable.  

Title:  Pawan Kumar and others  Vs. State of HP and another       

        (Page-447  ) 

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - The Petitioner, a postgraduate in 

Hindi, was appointed as Lecturer in a private College - The State Government 

decided to take over the College- The services of the petitioner were taken over 

as Lecturer School cadre, while the petitioner claimed that his services should 

have been taken over as Lecturer College cadre - Held that as per the 

notification the services of only those qualified t eachers could have been taken 

over who had been appointed one year prior to the issuance of notification - 

Since, the petitioner had put in five months of service; therefore, his services 

could not have been taken over in terms of notification -petition dism issed.  

Title: Varinder Singh vs. State of H.P. and others      

        (Page-429)  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 -  Petitioners and one ôKõ appeared 

before the Interview Board for the post of Anganwari worker - ôKõ was given 

appointment - Petitioner  filed an appeal before the Deputy Commissioner who 

held that neither the petitioner nor ôKõ was eligible for appointment and directed 

to conduct fresh interviews - An appeal was preferred before the Deputy 

Commissioner and the post was given to one ôSõ- Petitioner preferred a writ 

petition - The matter was remanded to the Deputy Commissioner who called for 

the report of the Naib Tehsildar and rejected the appeal filed by the petitioner - 

Further appeal preferred before the Deputy Commissioner was also reject ed- 

The petitioner filed a writ petition before the Honõble High Court, which was 

allowed and the selection was quashed - ôSõ filed an LPA against the order of the 

Honõble High Court- Held that Petitioner had not even laid any claim to the post 

before the S ub - Divisional Magistrate and she had staked her claim to the post 

before the Honõble High Court for the first time- the fact that the petitioner had 

not laid any claim to the post earlier would show that she had abandoned her 

right and she could not have raised the claim for the first time in the writ 

petition.  

Title: Smt. Sukanya Devi Vs. Smt. Karmi Devi &ors . 



VII 
 

(Page- 403  ) 

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 -The High Court has jurisdiction to 

quash the decision or orders of Tribunals and statutory a uthorities passed in 

violation of the principles of natural justice - The High Court cannot convert 

itself into a court of appeal and cannot examine the correctness of the decisions 

and decide what is the proper view to be taken or order to be made - it cann ot 

substitute its order in place of the order of the tribunal or authority, unless the 

order is shown to be passed on no evidence.  

 Title: Smt. Sukanya Devi Vs. Smt. Karmi Devi &ors . 

        (Page-403  ) 

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226, 25, 26, 48 , 48A, 51A - Prevention of 

Cruelty of Animals Act, 1960  ð The animals sacrifice is not essential part of 

Hindu religion and is contrary to the basic rights of animal, hence broad 

directions issued prohibiting animal and birds sacrifices in temples and publi c 

places . 

Title: Ramesh Sharma  Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh and others  

        (Page-  493 ) 

  

H.P. Excise Act, 2011 - Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 457 - 

Police had recovered 175 boxes of IMFL during the search of the house of 

Sanjeev Kumar - no permit was produced by him - he contended that the liquor 

was being transported from ôKehar Wine Agency L-1 to L-14 Didwin - the vehicle 

went out of order  at Chowki Kankri - petitioner stored liquor in his house and 

approached the authorities to obtain fresh authorization regarding  

transportation  of the liquor - held, that there was no evidence regarding the 

transportation of the liquor to its destination - petitioner could have made an 

alternative arrangement for transportation of the liquor, but he stored the liquor 

without any permit and authorization - however, liquor should not be allowed to 

be stored in the police Station - therefore, liquor was ordered to be sold by way 

of public auction and sale proceeds were  directed to be deposited in the 

treasury.  

Title: Sanjeev Kumar  Vs. State of H.P . 

    (Page- 269 ) 

 

Indian Evidence Act,1872 - Section 3 - Appreciation of evidence - the facts can 

be proved by the testimon y of a single witness - conviction can be sustained on 

the solitary evidence of the witness in a criminal case if it inspires confidence - 

the law of evidence does not require any particular number of witnesses . 

Title:  State of H.P. Vs. Krishan Kumar  

(Page- 458 ) 
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Indian Evidence Act, 1872 - Section 3 - Appreciation of evidence - 

contradiction - testimony of the prosecution witness was recorded after 

sufficient gap of time - minor contradictions are bound to come in the 

statements due to lapse of time.   

Title:  Sta te of H.P. vs. Krishan Kumar  

         (Page- 458  )  

 

Indian Evidence Act, 1872 - Section 3 - Appreciation of evidence - 

circumstantial evidence - in case of circumstantial evidence, prosecution is 

under legal obligation to prove the circumstances from which th e conclusion of 

guilt is to be drawn - the circumstances should be conclusive in nature - they 

should be consistent only with the hypothesis of guilt and inconsistent with 

innocence of the accused -circumstances should exclude the possibility of guilt 

of any person other than the accused.   

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Chanalu Ram  

        (Page-368 ) 

 

Indian Evidence Act, 1872 - Section 3 - Proved- Court must guard against the 

danger of allowing conjecture or suspicion to take place of legal proof - 

suspi cion howsoever strong cannot take the place of proof.    

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Chanalu Ram  

        (Page- 368  ) 

  

Indian Evidence Act, 1872 - Section 24 - Extra Judicial Confession - Confession 

in criminal cases should be voluntary in nature and  should be free from any 

pressure - when the witnesses had not stated that the confession was voluntary, 

confession should not be believed.   

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Chanalu Ram  

        (Page- 368  )  

  

Indian Evidence Act, 1872 - Section 27 - As p er prosecution case, a stone was 

recovered on the basis of disclosure statement made by the accused - however, 

neither the finger prints of the accused nor the blood of the deceased was found 

upon the stone - held, that the recovery is not sufficient to impl icate the 

accused.   

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Chanalu Ram  

        (Page- 368  ) 

    

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 302 - Deceased had gone to a Village to 

attend the marriage, where he had a quarrel with the accused - wife of the 

deceased went to the house of PW -1 after 2 -3 days of the quarrel who told her 

that accused and deceased had visited her home - deceased had also not joined 
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his duty - a Panchayat was called where the accused had made an extra judicial 

confession - matter was reported to police - the accused and deceased were last 

seen together on 9.7.2006 - FIR was lodged on 12.7.2006 - dead body was also 

fou nd on 12.7.2006 - held that, the last seen theory comes into play only when 

time gap between the point of time when the accused and deceased were seen 

together and when the dead body of deceased is found is so small that 

possibility of any person other than  the accused being the author of crime 

becomes impossible - the time gap between 9.7.2006 and 12.7.2006 was large 

and the last seen theory cannot be applied.    

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Chanalu Ram  

        (Page- 368  ) 

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 302 -  Deceased went towards the pond 

where accused were sitting - all the accused asked the deceased ô son how are 

youõ- deceased objected to the same as he was elder to them, on which accused 

abused and tried to assault the deceased - deceased was re scued by the persons 

present at the spot - when the deceased tried to leave the pond the accused 

came and gave a blow with Khukri due to which he died - held, that accused 

had provoked the deceased without any reason -when the deceased had tried to 

leave the pond, accused came from behind and gave a blow with the sharp 

edged weapon on the back of the deceased - accused was conscious of the 

weapon he was using and the part of the body where the blow was inflicted was 

vital - his conduct in running away from the s pot revealed his intention - case 

falls within Section 300 and the accused was rightly convicted for the 

commission of offence punishable under Section 302 IPC.  

Title: Suren Pal Vs. State of H.P.  

       (Page- 420  ) 

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 307, 325, 323, 365 read with Section 34 - 

Complainant,  his father  and brother were present in a  Truck - a Jeep bearing  

registration No. HP -24A -762 came in which accused were present -accused  

asked the complainant to come near the Jeep, when the complainant went ne ar 

the Jeep, the accused forcibly dragged  him inside the jeep - jeep was driven for 

some distance, the accused gave beatings to the complainant and one of the 

accused threat ened the complainant with knife -the complainant was thrown 

out of  the Jeep and he s ustained fracture in his leg - The accused were 

acquitted by the learned Trial Court - An appeal was preferred against the order 

of Trial Court - Held that, the complainant had failed to raise hue and cry when 

he was being forcibly dragged towards Jeep which would suggest that he had  

voluntarily gone in the Jeep  to accompany  the accused - The complainant had 

further failed to disclose  to  the PW -3 the reasons for sustaining the fracture in 

his leg which shows that a false story was invented by the complaina nt to  

implicate the accused - PW-7 had deposed  what was narrated to him by another 



X 
 

witness who was not examined and his testimony would be  hearsay - PW-9 had 

not supported the prosecution version, therefore, in these circumstances, the 

conclusion of Trial Court t hat the Pro secution had failed to prove its  case 

beyond reasonable doubt was sustainable ð Appeal dismissed.  

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh  Vs. Rakesh Kumar  and another  

        (Page-295 ) 

 

 Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 376 -  Prosecutrix, a student o f 5th class, 

was raped by the accused - pregnancy test was found to be positive, but the 

prosecutrix had spontaneous abortion -  the prosecutrix stated before the Court 

that accused had not done anything to her - she admitted in her cross -

examination that she  was making a tutored version - her mother also stated that 

prosecutrix  had not disclosed to her that accused had raped her - her father  

also denied the prosecution version - medical examination did not support the 

prosecution version - held, that the Trial Court had rightly acquitted the 

accused.  

 Title: State of H.P. Vs. Brij Mohan  

        (Page- 322  ) 

 

Indian Penal Code,1860 - Sections 420, 467, 468, 471 and 120 -B- As per 

prosecution case, the accused had forged a will to grab the property of the 

deceased- deceased had also executed a sale deed - report of Director Finger 

Print Phillaur proved that thumb impression on the sale deed and Will did not 

tally, which clearly proved that Will was forged - Sale deed was duly proved by 

the Registration Clerk and by a ttesting witness - Document Writer stated that 

the executant was identified by the accused - held, that Trial Court had rightly 

convicted the accused.   

Title:  State of H.P. Vs. Krishan Kumar  

(Page- 458 ) 

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section  498 -A, 306 read with  Section 34 -  The 

deceased was married to accused and  the accused ill -treated the deceased for 

her shortcomings in performing the household chores   and for  not bringing 

sufficient dowry -she commi tted suicide by jumping into a  well, the accused 

were acquitt ed by learned Trial Court and an appeal was preferred against the 

order of acquittal - Held that, no specific allegations  of cruelty constituted 

instigation to the deceased to commit the suicide were proved - Father of the 

deceased had deposed about generali zed complaints made to him by his 

deceased daughter, no time or other details were given - He also deposed that 

the deceased and her husband had stayed in his house during Kala Mahina 

and Karwachauth, which shows that the relationships were not sour - PW-1 h ad 

not narrated the incident of ill -treatment to any person - PW-3 and PW -4 also 

made generalized allegations and had not given any specific detail - Testimony of 
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PW-5 that the deceased had told him  that  she would not return to her 

matrimonial home as she wa s being ill -treated cannot be accepted as it was not 

deposed by PW -2- In these circumstances, the conclusion of the Trial Court 

that the Prosecution had failed to prove its case beyond reasonable doubt was 

duly supported by evidence - Appeal dismissed . 

Title: State of Himachal PradeshVs. Sanjay Kumar & Others  
        (Page-  471 ) 

 

Land Acquisition Act, 1894 , Section 18 - Land of the petitioners was acquired 

for setting up Army Transit Camp ð The claimants had not led any evidence 

that they had raised orch ard , danga and breast walls on the acquired land - 

Average price of the land as per the sale deed was Rs.10,425/ - per biswa in 

respect of small pieces of land, hence after necessary deduction of 40% the 

average value would come to 6,255/ - per biswa and by g ranting appreciation @ 

10% from 1991, the value would come to 7,505/ - per biswa . 

Title: Union of India  Vs. Chhering Tobden & ors  

(Page ð303  ) 

 

Land Acquisition Act, 1894 , Section 18 -Land was acquired for the 

construction of Transit Camp - As per sale deed , the land measuring 2 biswas 

was sold for a sum of Rs.15,000, which shows that the market value of the land 

was Rs.7 ,500 per biswa - Another sale deed  proved that 3 biswas land was sold 

for Rs. 55,000, - the average value on the basis of these two transacti ons would 

be Rs. 14,730 ð 40% deduction is required to be made as the land sold was  in  

small parcels.  

Title: Union of India  Vs. Chhering Tobden & ors  

(Page ð303  ) 

 

Limitation Act, 1963 - Section 5 - Trial Court dissolved the marriage of the 

parties by decree of divorce dated 09.01.2013 - an appeal was preferred against 

the decree, which was delayed by 181 days - an application for condonation of 

delay was filed on the ground that petitioner w as exploring the possibilities of 

an out of Court settlement  leading to delay - held, that the party seeking 

condonation of the delay has to show sufficient cause for condonation of  delay - 

day to day delay is required to be explained to succeed in an applic ation for 

condonation of delay - petitioner had not disclosed any  particulars as to when, 

where and in whose presence or with whose  help she had made efforts to re -

concile with her husband - no prayer was ever made regarding the settlement of 

the dispute be fore trial court - no efforts were made for conciliation during the 

pendency of the divorce petition before the Trial Court - hence, reason advanced 

by the petitioner that the delay occurred due to settlement efforts could not be 

accepted.  

Title: Bala Devi  Vs. Virender Singh  
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       (Page- 252  ) 

 

Motor Vehicle Act, 1988 - Section 166 - Claimant sustained permanent 

disability to the extent of 30% qua his right lower limb - claimant was 

undergoing training as dental technician -  his income taken as Rs. 4,000/ - per  

month - taking the loss  of the earning capacity as 30%,  the loss of income was 

taken as Rs. 1 ,000/ - per  month - he was aged 23 years at the time of accident - 

applying the multiplier of 15,  compensation of Rs. 1,80,000/ - was awarded to 

the petitioner.   

Title: Dinesh Kumar Vs. Yashpal and others  

(Page- 282  ) 

Motor Vehicle Act, 1988 - Section 166 - Mahindra Pick up hit the motorcycle 

due to which the claimant who was travelling as pillion rider sustained injury - 

held, that Mahindra Pick up falls within the d efinition of  Light Motor Vehicle as 

gross unladen weight of the vehicle is below 7500 kilograms - the driver had  a 

valid and effective driving licence to drive the same - no endorsement of PSV was 

required - it was also not pleaded by Insurer that accident had taken place due 

to the reason that driver of the vehicle was competent to drive one kind of 

vehicle and he was driving a different  kind of vehicle which caused  the accident, 

therefore, Insurance Company was rightly held liable.  

Title: National Insuranc e Company Limited Vs. Parshotam Lal & others   

        (Page-  285 ) 

 

Motor Vehicle Act, 1988 - Section 166 - The deceased was drawing Rs.18,443/ - 

as salary ð Tribunal had taken the income of deceased as Rs.10,495/ - which 

was his carry home salary - held, that the Tribunal erred in taking the carry 

home salary as the income of the deceased - deduction made towards GPF and 

other subscriptions were part of the income ð Taking the salary as Rs.18,400/ - 

and after deducting 1/3 rd  of the salary, loss of dependency is ta ken as 12,300/ - 

after applying the multiplier 12 the compensation was enhanced to Rs.  

17,71,200/ - with interest.  

Title : Neelam Nadda and another  vs. Narender Singh and others  

                         (Page- 608  ) 

 

Motor Vehicle Act, 1988 - Section 166 - Motor Accident Claims Tribunal 

awarded compensation to the extent of Rs.11,5000/ - with interest @ 7.5% per 

annum from the date of  claim petition till realization - The Tribunal had held 

that the Driver was liable and the accident was outcome o f contributory 

negligence ð held, that the compensation was adequate and cannot be said to 

be excessive, hence appeal dismissed.  

Title:  Prakash Chand and Anr. Vs. Himachal Pradesh Road Transport 

Corporation and Ors.  

        (Page- 492  ) 
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Motor Vehicle Ac t, 1988 - Section 166 - The claimants pleaded that the 

deceased had hired the vehicle for carrying the vegetables to be sold at Junga 

and to bring the household goods - vehicle owner had not disputed these facts ð 

The Insurance Company pleaded that the decease d was travelling as a 

gratuitous passenger - however, no evidence was led to prove this fact - Owner 

admitted in his evidence that the deceased had hired the vehicle and was 

travelling as a owner of goods - Held , that the person who had hired the vehicle 

for transporting the goods cannot be said to be travelling as a gratuitous 

passenger and Insurance company is bound to satisfy the award . 

Title: Naresh Verma Vs. The New India Assurance Company Ltd. & others  

(Page ð 483 ) 

 

Motor Vehicle Act, 1988 - Section 166 - The deceased was a Manager of 

Dhauladhar Public Education Society - his salary was Rs. 17 ,500/ - per month - 

Claimants are three in number, therefore 1/4 th  of the amount is to be deducted 

towards personal expenses of the deceased, hence the loss of dependency would 

be Rs. 13,000 per month - Age of the deceased was 49 years and therefore, the 

multiplier of 13 would be applicable and the claimants would be entitled for 

compensation of Rs.  20,28,000/ - towards loss of dependency,  Rs. 2,000/ - 

towards f uneral expenses , Rs. 5, 000/ - toward loss of con sortium  and  Rs. 

2,500/ - towards loss of estate . 

Title: New I ndia Assurance Company Limited  Vs. Smt. Kiran Sharma & others  

(Page ð 603 ) 

 

Motor Vehicle Act, 1988 - Section 166 - Motor Accident Claims Tribunal 

deducting GPF subscription of Rs.  4,000/ -, HRA of Rs.  200/ -, FTA of Rs.  75/ - 

and GIS of Rs.  30/ - while assessing the loss of income - Age of the deceased was 

51 years and the Motor Accident Claims Tribunal had applied the multiplier of 

7- Held that gross salary was taken to be taken into consideration and 

multiplier of 9 was to be applied, therefore, the claimants are entitled to 

compensation of Rs.  6000/ - X 12 X 9= 6, 48,000/ -, Rs.2,000/ - towards 

expenses on the obsequies , Rs.  2,500/ - towards loss of esta te and Rs.5,000/ - 

towards loss o f consortium . 

Title: Sudesh Kumari & others  Vs. Ramesh Kumar & others                  

(Page ð  599 ) 

 

NDPS Act, 1985 - Section 20 - Accused found in possession of 2.350 Kgs. of 

charas - case of the prosecution is that the poli ce party was present at the spot 

in connection of investigation of a theft case, when the accused was 

apprehended at 8 A.M. - PW-1 deposed that the accused in theft case was 

apprehended at 4:00  A.M and was sent to police Station before 7:00 A.M - held, 

that when the accused in a theft case was apprehended at 4:00 A.M and was 
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sent to police station at 7:00 A.M - there was no justification for  the police to 

remain at the spot and this casts a doubt in the genesis of the prosecution 

version - further, there are co ntradictions in the testimonies of the police 

officials - police had only associated the victim in the theft case - other 

independent witnesses were available but were not associated - the date was 

over-written - these circumstances, make the prosecution case doubtful.    

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Mehboob Khan  

 (Page- 264 ) 

 

N.D.P.S. Act, 1985 - Section 20 - Accused were found in possession of 4 kgs of 

charas - there were contradictions in the testimonies of the prosecution 

witnesses regarding the manner of arrival at the spot - independent witness had 

turned hostile - other police officials who accompanied the police party  were not 

examined - there were contradictions regarding the manner of arrival - the 

version of the police party that motorcycle was seen f rom the distance was 

contradicted by the site plan - held, that in these circumstances, accused were 

entitled to acquittal.    

Title: Joban Dass  Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh  

         (Page- 388  ) 

 

NDPS Act, 1985 - Section 50 - the contraband was recovered fro m the bag and 

not from the person of the accused - held that  in such case  Section 50 was not 

applicable.  

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Mehboob Khan  

 (Page- 264  ) 

 

N.D.P.S. Act, 1985 - Section 57 - PW-10 stated  that the case property was 

handed over to PW -9- he further admitted that it had come in investigation that 

case property was produced before PW -6 who denied the same - case property 

was not re -sealed prior to its deposit with MHC - there is contradiction re garding 

the date of the deposit of the case property in the laboratory - held, that in these 

circumstances, the possibility of tampering with the case property could not be 

ruled out.  

Title: Joban Dass  Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh  

         (Page-  388 ) 

  

Protection of Women from Domestic Violence Act, 2005 - Section 12 - 

Husband has a legal duty to maintain his wife and the children - he cannot 

shun from this duty -further  held that  maintenance has to be awarded from the 

date of the application and  it  can be a warded from the date of the order only in 

exceptional cases where there is fault of the applicant.  

Title: Kesari Devi Vs. Karam Singh Chandel  

      (Page- 256 ) 
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Procedure - Non-mentioning of a provision of law does not invalidate an order.   

Title: Kesari D evi Vs. Karam Singh Chandel  

      (Page-256   ) 

 

Protection of Women from Domestic Violence Act, 2005 - Section 12 - The 

marriage between the parties was solemnized on 28.05.2006 - the child was 

born on 4.6.2007 - the husband casted  aspersions on the character  of the wife -

he administered beating to her and maltreated her for not bringing dowry - Held, 

that the husband was working as tailor, he was also an agriculturist - His 

income could not be held to be less than Rs. 5,000/ - per month - The wife had 

to leave her matrimonial home due to maltreatment by her husband - The 

matter was also reported to the Police and she had to go the Court for custody 

of her son, therefore, under these circumstances the maintenance of Rs.  1500/ - 

per month and compensation of Rs. 5,000/ - cannot be said to be excessive.  

Title: Balmohan  vs. Kunta Devi  

      (Page- 271 ) 

 

Service Law - Selection - Institute had issued an advertisement for the 

appointment of the posts of the teacher, but no posts were filled up - 

subsequently, teachers were appoi nted from the person who had applied 

earlier - held, that the life -span of an advertisement had come to an end and the 

posts could not be filled up without a  proper  fresh advertisement - appointments 

made by the Institute were back door appointments.  

Title: Ramanujam Royal College of Education Vs. National Council for Teacher 

Education and others  

    (Page- 343 ) 

 

Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section   38 -  The  plaintiff filed a suit for  seeking 

permanent prohibitory injunction restraining the de fendants  from raising 

construction over the suit land with the allegations that there was  a path on the 

same and defendants had no right to stop the path or to raise construction  

thereon  ð Held that the  suit  land was recorded as Abadi Deh in the Revenue 

record, therefor e, all the villages had a right over the  suit  land - Defendants had 

a right so possess the  suit  land as a n Abadi Deh - The raising  of construction by 

the defendants was not proved to  be over  and above the  area in excess of their 

share i n the Abadi Deh - The plaintiff had failed to prove the exact location 

where the actual or threatened invasion of their right was committed - Thus, the 

plai ntiff had failed to proved his  case. 

Title: Mohd. Rashid  Vs. Gulsher & Others 

        (Page- 479 ) 
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BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE DHARAM CHAND CHAUDHARY, J. 

Bala Devi        .......Petitioner  

     Vs.  

Virender Singh  ...Respondent  

          CMP(M) No. 11976 of 2014  

          Decided on: 9.9.2014  

 

 

Limitation Act, 1963 - Section 5 - Trial Court dissolved the marriage of the parties 

by decree of divorce dated 09.01.2013 - an appeal was preferred agai nst the 

decree, which was delayed by 181 days - an application for condonation of delay 

was filed on the ground that petitioner was exploring the possibilities of an out of 

Court settlement leading to delay - held, that the party seeking condonation of the 

delay has to show sufficient cause for condonation of delay - day to day delay is 

required to be explained to succeed in an application for condonation of delay - 

petitioner had not disclosed any  particulars as to when, where and in whose 

presence or with wh ose help she had made efforts to re -concile with her husband - 

no prayer was ever made regarding the settlement of the dispute before trial court - 

no efforts were made for conciliation during the pendency of the divorce petition 

before the Trial Court - henc e, reason advanced by the petitioner that the delay 

occurred due to settlement efforts could not be accepted.           (Para- 7 to 8)  

Cases referred:  

P.K. Ramachandran Vs. State of Kerala and others, AIR 1998, Supreme Court, 

2276  

Union of India Vs. Brij Lal and Prabhu Dayal and others, AIR 1999 Rajasthan, 

216  

Collector, Land Acquisition, Anantnag and another Vs. Mst. Katiji and others, AIR 

1987 SC, 1353  

For the petitioner:    Mr. Ashwani Sharma, Advocate.  

For the respondent:   Mr. Ajay Kumar, Senior Advoc ate with Mr. Dheeraj.K. 

Vashisth, Advocate.  

  

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Dharam Chand Chaudhary, Judge.  (Oral)    

 Parties to the present lis are husband and wife.  They 

solemnized marriage on 19 th  October, 2001 as per Hindu Rites and Ceremonies.  

One female child is born to them out of this wedlock.  Respondent -husband was 

residing in Housing Board Colony at Dharamshala along with his mother and 

three unmarried sisters at the time of marriage.  Two  brothers of the 
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respondent -husband are residing separately.  The family arranged the marriage 

with all enthusiasm, hopes and expectations for long and happy married life to 

both of them, however, the behavior of the petitioner allegedly became 

indifferent  with the family and intolerable. She started behaving with her 

husband and other members of his family indifferently.  She was working as 

Anganwari worker at village Lanj Tehsil and District Kangra and left 

matrimonial house for that place without any inf ormation to the respondent.  

She allegedly started quarreling with old mother of the respondent and also his 

sisters.  She allegedly made complaints against her husband to the police and 

also the Women Cell.  She leveled allegations qua his chastity and ma de the 

imputations that he had relations with his sisters and also called him 

womenizer having relations with other ladies. They both, therefore, started living 

separately since 2002 i.e. after about one year of marriage.  The petitioner and 

her minor daug hter have also been awarded maintenance allowance being paid 

to them by the respondent. The respondent has also made available her rented 

accommodation at Dharamshala where she is residing with her daughter.  

2 .  The strained relations between the two led in filing petition 

under Section 13(1) (ia) of the Hindu Marriage Act for dissolution of marriage by 

a decree of divorce on the ground of cruelty.  Learned District Judge, Kangra at 

Dharamshala after holding full trial has arrived at a conclusion that the 

petitioner has treated the respondent with cruelty.  Consequently, dissolved the 

marriage by a decree of divorce dated 09.01.2013, under challenge in the main 

appeal.  

3.  The appeal is barred by limitation, as there is delay of 181 

days in filing the same.  This application has been filed for condonation of delay 

so occurred in filing the appeal. The only ground on which the delay has been 

sought to be condoned is that she was bonafidely exploring the possibilities of 

an outside Court settlement, keeping the  decision of filing the appeal in 

abeyance and it is due to this reason, the delay has occurred in filing the 

appeal.  

4.  In reply, the stand taken by the respondent -husband is that 

after the institution of the litigation and after the decision of the divorce 

petition, the petitioner never made any endeavour to sort out the dispute 

amicably.  It has, therefore, been submitted that the grounds she raised for 

condonation of delay are absolutely wrong, false and baseless and not sufficient 

to constitute òsufficient causeó required to be shown for condonation of delay. 

5.  Learned counsel representing the petitioner has argued that 

the decree of divorce passed against the petitioner is not only harsh and 

oppressive but also contrary to the evidence proved and  as such, not legally 

sustainable.  As regards, the delay occurred in filing the main appeal, according 

to learned counsel, the petitioner instead of filing the appeal against the decree 
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made all possible efforts to settle the dispute with the respondent a micably.  

However, when efforts so made by her failed, she decided to file the appeal.    

6.  Learned counsel for the respondent -husband while repelling 

the submissions so made has submitted that the application does not disclose 

any ground warranting the c ondonation of delay of an inordinate delay of 181 

days, as according to him, the petitioner never made any effort to settle the 

dispute amicably after the decree of divorce passed by learned District Judge 

and even during the pendency of the petition also.   On merits, it is submitted 

that there is no likelihood of the petitioner to succeed in the appeal as 

respondent has successfully pleaded and proved the cruel treatment she meted 

out to him.  

7.  The present is a case where there is delay of 181 days 

occurr ed in filing the appeal against the judgment and decree passed by learned 

District Judge, Kangra at Dharamshala on 09.01.2013. It is well settled that a 

party seeking the condonation of delay has to show sufficient cause leading to 

the delay so occurred. A dditionally, in order to succeed in an application under 

Section 5 of the Limitation Act the day -to-day delay is required to be explained.  

The Honõble Apex Court in P.K. Ramachandran  versus State of Kerala and 

others, AIR 1998, Supreme Court, 2276  has hel d that the law of limitation 

may harshly affect a particular party, but it has to be applied with all rigour 

when the statute so prescribe and the Courts have no power to extend the 

period of limitation on equitable grounds.  The High Court of Rajasthan in  

Union of India  versus Brij Lal and Prabhu Dayal and others, AIR 1999 

Rajasthan, 216  has also held that a party seeking condonation of delay must  

place before Court facts constituting ôsufficient causeõ failing which the delay 

cannot be condoned.  The Hon õble Apex Court in Collector, Land Acquisition, 

Anantnag and another  versus Mst. Katiji and others, AIR 1987 SC, 1353  

has further held that the expression ôsufficient causeõ implied by the legislature 

is adequately elastic to enable the Courts to apply the  law in a meaningful 

manner, which subserves the ends of justice.  

8.  Now adverting to the explanation as set forth in the 

application qua condonation of delay as occurred in filing the appeal in this 

case,  according to the petitioner, after obtaining the  certified copy of judgment 

and decree on 28 th  February, 2013, with a view to avoid multiplicity of litigation 

and also to live in peace and harmony, she made efforts to sort out the matter 

amicably, however, it is on account of indifferent attitude of her  husband, 

amicable settlement could not be arrived at and that it is for this reason she 

failed to file the appeal within the period of limitation. As noticed, at the very 

out set the respondent -husband has denied any such endeavour to resolve the 

issue am icably ever made by the petitioner after the decision of the divorce 

petition and even during the pendency thereof also.  The stand of the 

respondent -husband seems to be nearer to the factual position because the 
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petitioner -wife has not disclosed any parti culars as to when, where and in 

whose presence or with the help of whom she made efforts to re -concile the 

controversy amicably with her husband, the respondent.  Not only this but the 

trial Court record reveals that no prayer was ever made on her behalf q ua 

amicable settlement of the dispute.  As a matter of fact, conciliation was never 

tried between the parties during the pendency of the divorce petition in the trial 

Court.  True it is that keeping in view the dispute matrimonial, this Court 

deemed it app ropriate to try conciliation on the previous date, however, failed, 

as the respondent -husband had a grouse against the petitioner that since she 

started torturing him by leveling false allegations after about six months of the 

marriage and even complained the matter to the police as well as Women Cell 

and also the Women Commission, therefore, according to him there was no 

scope of re -union.  The petitioner wife, no doubt, shown her readiness and 

willingness to join his company, but since the respondent -husb and was not 

prepared to live in her company, the efforts to re -concile the matter so made 

failed.  Any how, it is difficult to believe that the petitioner -wife was prevented 

from filing the appeal in this Court well within the period of limitation, as she 

was interested to re -concile the controversy amicably.  

9 . I have gone through the voluminous record including the 

evidence produced by the parties on both sides.  As a matter of fact, present is a 

case contested hotly by the parties on both sides.  The re spondent -husband has 

examined nine witnesses including his two sisters, neighbours, taxi driver, 

milkman and also the employees of the bank.  The petitioner -wife has also 

examined six witnesses including herself.  The allegations qua chastity of the 

respon dent -husband including his relations with his own sisters are 

substantiated from the statements of the witnesses the respondent -husband 

examined.  Even his own sisters while in the witness box have also stated that 

respondent was leveling the allegations t hat their brother has illicit relations 

with them.  The witnesses have also deposed in so many words qua the 

quarrelsome nature of the petitioner and her indifferent and intolerable 

behaviour with the respondent and other members of the family.  The 

petiti oner -wife, no doubt, while in the witness box has denied she having leveled 

allegations against the chastity of her husband or having leveled allegations qua 

his relations with his own sisters, however, the witnesses she examined neither 

could deny nor adm it such allegations being leveled by the petitioner against 

her husband, as according to them, it is not known that she was doubting 

chastity of her husband and leveling allegations that he has illicit relations with 

his own sisters. Therefore, on apprecia tion of the evidence available on record, 

in my opinion, there is no likelihood of the petitioner to succeed in the main 

appeal even on merit also.  

10 . Having regard to the given facts and circumstances and also 

the material available on record, the petit ioner has failed to explain the delay of 
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181 days as occurred in filing the appeal.  On the other hand, on the expiry of 

the period of limitation prescribed for filing the appeal, a valuable right is 

accrued in favour of the respondent -husband, which canno t be taken away 

when the petitioner has failed to show sufficient cause warranting the 

condonation of delay. The application is, therefore, dismissed.  Consequently, 

the appeal and other application(s), if any, shall also stand dismissed being time 

barred.  

 

**********************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE TARLOK SINGH CHAUHAN, J. 

 

Cr. MMO No. 80 of 2014 a/w  

Cr.MMO No. 195 of 2014      

Date of decision :  11.9.2014  

____________________________________________________________ 

1. Cr.MMO No. 80 of 2014   

     Smt. Kesari Devi     éPetitioner/Complainant. 

 Vs. 

     Sh. Karam Singh Chandel   éRespondent.  

 

     For the petitioner   :   Mr. G.S. Rathour, Advocate.  

     For the respondent   :   Mr. Y.P.Sood, Advocate.   

 

2. Cr.MMO No. 195 of  2014  

    Sh. Karam Singh Chandel   éPetitioner 

 Vs.  

    Smt. Kesari Devi     éRespondent. 

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 -Order 20 Rule 5 - Code of Criminal Procedure , 

1973 - Section 354 -Judgment - Magistrate awarding maintenance @ Rs. 1500/ - 

per month which  was reduced by Additional Sessions Judge to Rs. 1200/ - by 

saying that Rs. 1500/ - per month appeared to be on higher side and keeping in 

view the facts in totality Rs. 1200/ - per month was an appropriate maintenance - 

held, that the Learned Additional Sessi ons Judge had not given any reason to 

reduce the maintenance - it is the duty of the judge to disclose the reasons to 

make it known that there was due application of mind. (Para -9) 

Protection of Women from Domestic Violence Act, 2005 - Section 12 - Husband 

has a legal duty to maintain his wife and the children - he cannot shun from this 

duty -further held that maintenance has to be awarded from the date of the 
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application and it can be awarded from the date of the order only in exceptional 

cases where there is fault of the applicant.     (Para -11) 

Procedure - Non-mentioning of a provision of law does not invalidate an order.              

(Para-13) 

 

Cases referred:  

Ravi Yashwant Bhoir Vs. District Collector, Raigad and others (2012) 4 SCC 407  

P.K. Palanisamy Vs. N. Arumugham and another (2009) 9 SCC 173  

For the petitioner  : Mr. Y. P. Sood, Advocate.  

For the respondent  : Mr. G.S. Rathour, Advocate.   

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:   

 

Tarlok Singh Chauhan, Judge  (Oral)  

Cr.MMO No. 80 of 2014:  

 The complainant Kesari Devi has filed the present petition 

under Section 482 Cr.P.C. read with Section 227 of the Constitution of India 

praying therein for modification of the order passed by learned Additional Sessions 

Judge, Shiml a whereby he not only reduced the maintenance in her favour from 

Rs.1500/ - to Rs.1200/ - per month and instead of granting the same from the date 

of application, granted the same from the date of the order i.e. 31.8.2013.  

2.  In an application under Section  12 of the Domestic Violence 

Act, the complainant alleged herself to be the legally wedded wife of the 

respondent and out of the said wedlock, two daughters were born. It was further 

averred that the complainant was an illiterate lady and a traditional bac kground. 

It is further claimed that the respondent established illicit relations with one Smt. 

Vidya Devi, but the complainant was forced to remain silent and lateron the 

respondent got marriage to said Vidya Devi and thereafter started harassing and 

tortu ring the complainant to the extent that she was even made to sleep in the 

cow-shed. Due to such torture, the complainant was forced to leave the 

matrimonial house.  The respondent is stated to be the retired Kanungo and 

receiving a pension of about Rs.15,0 00/ - per month and was also having orchard 

and huge landed property out of which he was earning about Rs.25,00,000/ - per 

year. While on the other hand, the complainant was old lady suffering from 

various ailments and accordingly prayed for interim maintena nce of Rs.10,000/ -. 

3.  The respondent contested the claim by denying the marriage 

and he also denied that the parties had cohabited as husband and wife upto 

October, 2010. His case was that in the year 1950 the complainant was brought 
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at home by his parent s in his absence according to the local custom prevailing in 

the area at the relevant time and no marriage ceremony took place between them. 

However, the birth of the two daughters out of cohabitation was not denied. It was 

alleged that the complainant use d to go her parents house every week, after 

leaving the old parents of the respondent which resulted in the strained 

relationship between the parties which ultimately culminated into the dissolution 

of the relationship.  Thereafter, the respondent had perf ormed legal and valid 

marriage with Vidya Devi. Lastly, it was denied that the respondent was earning 

Rs.25,00,000/ - per year and his monthly  pension is  Rs.15,000/ -. It was 

submitted that he is receiving a pension of about Rs.7,000/ - per month and had 

no other source of income.  

Cr.MMO No. 195 of 2014:  

4 . The husband, who is the respondent in the original complaint, 

has preferred this petition praying therein for setting aside the order passed by the 

learned Magistrate and the judgment passed by the learn ed Additional Sessions 

Judge (I), Shimla whereby the maintenance has been granted to the complainant.  

5.  It is contended that there was a customary divorce between 

the parties more than 54 years ago and thereafter the petitioner got remarried and 

therefore , the complainant was not entitled to any maintenance. It is further 

contended that no order for grant of maintenance could be passed as the 

respondent had never made any prayer for seeking such relief by filing an 

appropriate application as required under  the law. It was contended that specific 

provisions under the Protection of Women from Domestic Violence Act, 2005 (for 

short ôActõ) for seeking interim maintenance under Section 23 of the Act. Even the 

notice of the application  for interim maintenance  h as to be served upon  the 

opposite party as per the rules  framed under the Act and since there was  no 

application for grant of interim maintenance preferred by the 

respondent/complainant, therefore, the order awarding maintenance on this 

ground alone was  required to be set -aside.  

6.  I have heard the learned counsel for the parties and gone 

through the records carefully.  

7 . Once the respondent admits the birth of two daughters from 

the cohabitation between the parties, the only question required to be dete rmined 

at this stage is regarding legality of the order passed by the learned Additional 

Sessions Judge in so far as it relates to grant of maintenance. A bare perusal of 

the order shows that there is virtually no reasoning as to on what basis the 

learned Additional Sessions Judge reduced the maintenance from Rs.1500/ - to 

Rs.1200/ - and at the same time modified the order of the learned Magistrate by 

directing the payment of maintenance from the date of order instead of from the 

date of filing of the applica tion.  
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8.  The learned Additional Sessions Judge vide judgment dated 

31.8.2013 has modified the order of the learned trial Magistrate by making the 

following observations:  

ò13.éééThe applicantõs case is that respondent is earning about  

Rs.25,00,000/ - from all sources whereas case of the respondent is 

that he is earning Rs.7,000/ - per month and he has to look after 

himself and his family members. In view of the facts and 

circumstances of the case, Rs.1500/ - appears to be on the higher and 

keeping in view the facts in totality Rs.1200/ - per month is 

appropriate maintenance as interim relief. Accordingly, the appeal is 

partly allowed and the impugned order dated 15.12.2011 is required 

to be modified to this extent and my findings on this point is partly in 

favour of the appellant.  

Final Order:  

 In view of the forgoing discussion and the reasons mentioned, 

the appeal is partly allowed and the impugned order is modified to the extent that 

the applicant is entitled for the relief of interim mainten ance of Rs.1200/ - from the 

date of order of this Court. Appeal stands disposed of. Memo of costs be prepared 

accordingly.ó 

9.  I am afraid that the order passed by the learned Additional 

Sessions Judge can now withstand judicial scrutiny as it is devoid of any reasons. 

It is a settled legal proposition that not only administrative but also judicial orders 

must be supported by reas ons recorded in it. Thus, while deciding an issue, the 

Court is bound to give reasons for its conclusion. It is the duty and obligation on 

the part of the Court to record reasons while disposing of the case. The hallmark 

of order and exercise of judicial p ower by a judicial forum is for the forum to 

disclose its reasons by itself and giving of reasons has always been insisted upon 

as one of the fundamentals of sound administration of justice delivery system, to 

make it known that there had been proper and d ue application of mind to the 

issue before the court and also as an essential requisite of the principles of 

natural justice. The giving of reasons for a decision is an essential attribute of 

judicial and judicious disposal of a matter before courts, and w hich is the only 

indication to know about the manner and quality of exercise undertaken, as also 

the fact that the court concerned had really applied its mind.  

10 . In Ravi Yashwant Bhoir Vs. District Collector, Raigad and 

others (2012) 4 SCC 407 wherein t he importance of recording of reasons in 

administrative and judicial matters was set out in the following terms:  

  òRecording of reasons:   

38.   It is a settled proposition of law that even in administrative 
matters, the reasons should be recorded as it is incumbent upon the 
authorities to pass a speaking and reasoned order.  
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39.  In Kumari Shrilekha Vidyarthi etc. etc. v. State of U.P. & Ors., 
(1991) 1 SCC 212, this Court has observed as under: (SCC p. 243, 
para 36)  

 ò36é.."Every State action may be informed by reason and if 
follows that an act un -informed by reason is arbitrary, the rule of law 
contemplates governance by law and not by humour, whim or caprice 
of the men to whom the governance is entrusted for the time being. It 
is the trite law that "be you ever so high, the laws are above you." This 
is what a man in power must remember always."  

40.  In L.I.C. of India & Anr. v. Consumer Education and Research 
Centre & Ors., (1995) 5 SCC 482, this Court observed that the State or 
its instrumentality m ust not take any irrelevant or irrational factor into 
consideration or appear arbitrary in its decision. "Duty to act fairly" is 
part of fair procedure envisaged under Articles 14 and 21. Every 
activity of the public authority or those under public duty mu st be 
received and guided by the public interest. A similar view has been 
reiterated by this Court in Union of India v. M.L. Capoor & Ors., (1973) 
2 SCC 836; and Mahesh Chandra v. Regional Manager, U.P. Financial 
Corporation & Ors., (1993) 2 SCC 279.  

41.  In State of West Bengal v. Atul Krishna Shaw & Anr., 1991 
Supp (1) SC 414,  this Court observed that: (SCC p.421, para 7)  

 "7. é..Giving of reasons is an essential element of 
administration of justice. A right to reason is, therefore, an 
indispensable pa rt of sound system of judicial review."  

42.  In S.N. Mukherjee v. Union of India, (1990) 4 SCC 594, it has 
been held that the object underlying the rules of natural justice is to 
prevent miscarriage of justice and secure fair play in action. The 
expanding horizon of the principles of natural justice provides for 
requirement to record reasons as it is now regarded as one of the 
principles of natural justice, and it was held in the above case that 
except in cases where the requirement to record reasons is exp ressly 
or by necessary implication dispensed with, the authority must record 
reasons for its decision.  

43.   In Krishna Swami v. Union of India & Ors., (1992) 4 SCC 605, 
this Court observed that the rule of law requires that any action or 
decision of a stat utory or public authority must be founded on the 
reason stated in the order or borne -out from the record. The Court 
further observed: (SCC p. 637, para 47)  

 "47ééReasons are the links between the material, the 
foundation for their erection and the actual c onclusions. They would 
also demonstrate how the mind of the maker was activated and 
actuated and their rational nexus and synthesis with the facts 
considered and the conclusions reached. Lest it would be arbitrary, 
unfair and unjust, violating Article 14 o r unfair procedure offending 
Article 21."  
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44.  This Court while deciding the issue in Sant Lal Gupta & Ors. v. 
Modern Co -operative Group Housing Society Ltd. & Ors., (2010) 13 
SCC 336, placing reliance on its various earlier judgments held as 
under (SCC pp . 345 -46, para 27):  

 "27. It is a settled legal proposition that not only administrative 
but also judicial order must be supported by reasons, recorded in it. 
Thus, while deciding an issue, the Court is bound to give reasons for 
its conclusion. It is the duty and obligation on the part of the Court to 
record reasons while disposing of the case. The hallmark of order and 
exercise of judicial power by a judicial forum is for the forum to 
disclose its reasons by itself and giving of reasons has always been 
insisted upon as one of the fundamentals of sound administration of 
the justice - delivery system, to make it known that there had been 
proper and due application of mind to the issue before the Court and 
also as an essential requisite of the principles of n atural justice.  

 ô3éé.."The giving of reasons for a decision is an essential 
attribute of judicial and judicious disposal of a matter before Courts, 
and which is the only indication to know about the manner and 
quality of exercise undertaken, as also the fact that the Cour t 
concerned had really applied its mind.õ*  

 The reason is the heartbeat of every conclusion. It introduces 
clarity in an order and without the same, the order becomes lifeless. 
Reasons substitute subjectivity with objectivity. The absence of 
reasons rende rs an order indefensible/unsustainable particularly 
when the order is subject to further challenge before a higher forum. 
Recording of reasons is principle of natural justice and every judicial 
order must be supported by reasons recorded in writing. It ens ures 
transparency and fairness in decision making. The person who is 
adversely affected must know why his application has been rejected."  

45.  In Institute of Chartered Accountants of India v. L.K. Ratna & 
Ors., (1986) 4 SCC 537, this Court held that on ch arge of misconduct 
the authority holding the inquiry must record reasons for reaching its 
conclusion and record clear findings. The Court further held: (SCC p. 
558, para 30)  

 ò30ééIn fairness and justice, the member is entitled to know 
why he has been foun d guilty. The case can be so serious that it can 
attract the harsh penalties provided by the Act. Moreover, the member 
has been given a right of appeal to the High Court under S. 22 A of the 
Act. The exercise his right of appeal effectively he must know th e basis 
on which the Council has found him guilty. We have already pointed 
out that a finding by the Council is the first determinative finding on 
the guilt of the member. It is a finding by a Tribunal of first instance. 
The conclusion of the Disciplinary Committee does not enjoy the status 
of a "finding". Moreover, the reasons contained in the report by the 
Disciplinary Committee for its conclusion may or may not constitute 
the basis of the finding rendered by the Council. The Council must, 
therefore, stat e the reasons for its finding".  
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46.  The emphasis on recording reason is that if the decision reveals 
the `inscrutable face of the sphinx', it can be its silence, render it 
virtually impossible for the courts to perform their appellate function or 
exercise  the power of judicial review in adjudging the validity of the 
decision. Right to reason is an indispensable part of a sound judicial 
system, reasons at least sufficient to indicate an application of mind of 
the authority before the court. Another rational e is that the affected 
party can know why the decision has gone against him. One of the 
salutary requirements of natural justice is spelling out reasons for the 
order made. In other words, a speaking out, the inscrutable face of the 
sphinx is ordinarily in congruous with a judicial or quasi -judicial 
performance.  

11.    Even on merits, I find no justifiable reasons whereby the 
amount of maintenance could have been reduced from Rs.1500/ - to       

Rs.1200/ - and that too from the date of the order i.e. 15.12.201 1 instead of the 
date of application. The respondent admittedly is a retired Kanungo and it is not 
denied by him that he is receiving pension. Therefore, the orders of Rs.1500/ - 
cannot in any case termed to be excessive that too only on the ground that the  
husband has to òlook -after himself and his family members ó. The impugned order 
does not even spell out as to who are the other òfamily membersó. The husband 
otherwise cannot shun his liability of maintaining the complainant and two 
daughters who too are h is family members. He not only owes a moral but a legal 
obligation to maintain them. There is no reason assigned as to why the 
maintenance has only been allowed from the date of the order. It is only in 
exceptional circumstances that an order of maintenanc e can be made from the 
date of the order that too where the delay or fault is attributable to the 
complainant. In all other cases, normally accepted practice is that the 
maintenance is required to be granted/awarded from the date of application.  

12 .   Learned counsel for the respondent would then contend that 
since there was no separate application claiming maintenance, therefore, the 
maintenance could not have been granted to the complainant.  I cannot agree with 
such submission. Admittedly, in the applica tion under Section 12 of the Act 
preferred by the complainant, the complainant had specifically claimed interim 
maintenance. The mere fact that there were specific provisions contained in the 
Act and Rules with respect to grant of interim maintenance canno t be a ground for 
refusal to award interim maintenance especially once when the same is admittedly 
claimed in the main petition. Only on account of the fact that a separate 
application for grant of interim maintenance has  not been preferred, in my view, 
cannot be a ground to hold the complainant to be not entitled to the grant of 
maintenance or hold that the order passed thereupon would be a nullity.  

13 .   It is a well settled principle of law that mentioning of a wrong 
provision or non -mentioning of a pr ovision of law does not invalidate an order if 
the court and/or statutory authority had the requisite jurisdiction therefor. It is 
further well settled that if an authority has a power under the law merely because 
while exercising that power the source of power is not specifically referred to or a 
reference is made to a wrong provision of law, that by itself does not vitiate the 
exercise of power so long as the power does exist and can be traced to a source 
available in law.  
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14 .    The aforesaid  position of law has been succinctly  dealt with 
by the Honõble Supreme Court in P.K. Palanisamy vs. N. Arumugham and 
another (2009) 9 SCC 173  wherein it has been held as under:  

ò26.  A contention has been raised that the applications filed by the 
appellant herein h aving regard to the decisions of the Madras High 
Court could not have been entertained which were filed under Section 
148 of the Code.  

27.  Section 148 of the Code is a general provision and Section 149 
thereof is special. The first application should have  been filed in terms 
of Section 149 of the code. Once the court granted time for payment of 
deficit court fee within the period specified therefor, it would have 
been possible to extend the same by the court in exercise of its power 
under Section 148 of th e Code. Only because a wrong provision was 
mentioned by the appellant, the same, in our opinion, by itself would 
not be a ground to hold that the application was not maintainable or 
that the order passed thereon would be a nullity.It is a well settled 
prin ciple of law that mentioning of a wrong provision or non -
mentioning of a provision does not invalidate an order if the court 
and/or statutory authority had the requisite jurisdiction therefor.  

28.  In Ram Sunder Ram v. Union of India & Ors. (2007) 13 SCC 
255, it was held: (SCC pp. 260 -61, para 19)  

 "19.......It appears that the competent authority has wrongly 
quoted Section 20 in the order of discharge whereas, in fact, the 
order of discharge has to be read having been passed under 
Section 22 of the Army Act.  

 ô9. It is well settled that if an authority has a power under the 
law merely because while exercising that power the source of 
power is not specifically referred to or a reference is made to a 
wrong provision of law, that by itself does not vitiate the exercise of 
power so long as the power doe s exist and can be traced to a 
source available in law [see N. Mani v. Sangeetha Theatre and Ors. 
(2004) 12 SCC 278] SCC p. 280, para 9).  

  Thus, quoting of wrong provision of Section 20 in the order of 
discharge of the appellant by the competent authority  does not 
take away the jurisdiction of the authority under Section 22 of the 
Army Act. Therefore, the order of discharge of the appellant from 
the army service cannot be vitiated on this sole ground as 
contended by the Learned Counsel for the appellant."  

29.  In N. Mani v. Sangeetha Theatres & Ors. [(2004) 12 SCC 278], it 
is stated: (SCC p. 280, para 9)  

 "9. It is well settled that if an authority has a power under the 
law merely because while exercising that power the source of 
power is not specifically re ferred to or a reference is made to a 
wrong provision of law, that by itself does not vitiate the exercise of 
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power so long as the power does exist and can be traced to a 
source available in law."  

15 .   In view of foregoing discussion, I find merit in the petition 
preferred by the complainant being Cr.MMO No. 80 of 2014 and accordingly, the 
judgment passed by learned Additional Sessions Judge -I, Shimla in Criminal 
Appeal No. 28 -S/10 of 2012 dated 31.8.2013 is set -aside and the order passed by 
the learned tr ial Magistrate dated 15.12.2011 is affirmed. Resultantly, Cr.MMO 
No. 195 of 2014 is dismissed.  

16 .   Before parting, it may be observed that the observations made 
hereinabove, are solely for the purpose of adjudication of these petitions only and 
shall hav e no bearing on the merits of the main case. Both the petitions stand 
disposed of on above terms, so also the pending applications, if any.  

 

   **********************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE RAJIV SHARMA, J. & HONõBLE MR. 

JUSTICE SURESHWAR THAKUR, J.  

           State of Himachal Pradesh.  éAppellant. 

                     Vs.  

            Mehboob Khan.    éRespondent 

 Criminal Appeal No. 763/2002  

 Reserved on: 11.9.2014  

 Decided on: 15.9.2014  

  

NDPS Act, 1985 - Section 50 - the contraband was recovered from the bag and not 

from the person of the accused - held that in such case Section 50 was not 

applicable.                (Para -12) 

NDPS Act, 1985 - Section 20 - Accused found in possession of 2.350 Kgs. of 

charas - case of the prosecution is that t he police party was present at the spot in 

connection of investigation of a theft case, when the accused was apprehended at 

8 A.M. - PW-1 deposed that the accused in theft case was apprehended at 4:00 

A.M and was sent to police Station before 7:00 A.M - held , that when the accused 

in a theft case was apprehended at 4:00 A.M and was sent to police station at 7:00 

A.M - there was no justification for the police to remain at the spot and this casts a 

doubt in the genesis of the prosecution version - further, there  are contradictions 

in the testimonies of the police officials - police had only associated the victim in 

the theft case - other independent witnesses were available but were not 

associated - the date was over -written - these circumstances, make the prosecutio n 

case doubtful.  (Para-13) 

For the Appellant:     Mr. Ashok Chaudhary, Addl. A.G.  

For the Respondent:    Mr. Praneet Gupta, Advocate.  
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 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Justice Rajiv Sharma, Judge  

 This appeal is instituted against the judgment dated 

11.10.2002 rendered by the Sessions Judge, Chamba Division, Chamba in 

Sessions Trial No. 8 of 2002 whereby the respondent -accused (hereinafter referred 

to as the òaccusedó for convenience sake), who was charged with and tried for 

offence pun ishable under section 20 of the Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic 

Substances Act, 1985 has been acquitted.  

2 . Case of the prosecution, in a nutshell, is that on 30.10.2001 

at about 8.00 A.M. at Mahu Nullah bridge within the jurisdiction of Police Station, 

Ki llar, accused was found in conscious possession of 2 kgs 350 grams of charas. 

Police investigated the case and the challan was put up in the court after 

completing all the codal formalities.  

3.  Prosecution examined as many as seven witnesses in all to 

pr ove its case against the accused. Statement of accused under Section 313 

Cr.P.C. was recorded. He denied the case of the prosecution in entirety. Learned 

trial Court acquitted the accused.  Hence, the present appeal.  

4.  Mr. Ashok Chaudhary, learned Additional Advocate General 

has vehemently argued that the prosecution has proved its case against the 

accused.  

5.  Mr. Praneet Gupta, learned counsel for the accused, has 

supported the judgment rendered by the trial court.  

6.  We have heard the learned coun sel for the parties and have 

gone through the record carefully.  

7.   PW-1 Devi Saran has deposed that police was present in 

Mahu Nullah in connection with investigation of theft case.  He was also present.  

One person was coming from Killar side.  He was c arrying a bag.  On seeing the 

police party, he got perplexed.  He was caught hold of by the police.  Police asked 

the accused what was being carried in the bag.  Accused told that there is nothing 

in the bag.  Police searched the bag.  Charas was found in the shape of Golas  and 

Batties . It weighed 2 kgs 350 grams.  Two samples of 20 grams each were taken 

out separately for the purpose of analysis.  Thereafter, remaining bulk Charas was 

sealed in the same manner in which it was recovered. The bag was also se aled 

alongwith two samples of Charas in separate parcels. He signed all the three 

parcels.  Charas was taken into possession alongwith samples vide memo Ex.PA.  

The seal after use was given to him.  The sample was retained by the police. In his 

cross -exami nation, he has deposed that the theft in his house took place on 

29.10.2001 in the evening. His suitcase was stolen.  It contained golden 
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ornaments and also Rs. 5,000/ -. The thief was caught by the police in the 

morning of 30.10.2001 at Mahu Nullah. He alo ngwith police remained standing in 

the Nullah during whole of the night.  Name of thief was Roop Lal. When they saw 

accused coming from Killar side, thief Roop Lal was already with them. The stolen 

property was recovered.  He reported the matter of theft o n the night of 

29.10.2001 at Police Station, Killar.  He requested the police to lay Nakka at Mahu 

Nullah because that was the only path.  They left Killar at about 9.00 P.M. on 

29.10.2001 in police vehicle.  Accused was found coming from Killar side at ab out 

8.00 A.M. on 30.10.2001.  Thief Roop Lal was apprehended by the police at about 

4.00 A.M. on the intervening night of 29/30.10.2001.  After 4.00 A.M., the police 

was completing the proceedings of theft case.  They were standing on the road 

besides the bridge.  Accused was seen by the police from a distance of about 50 

feet.  Accused was caught by Head Constable Tilak Singh, Suresh Kumar and 

Inspector.  Thief Roop Lal was coming on foot when the accused was apprehended 

by the police.  Roop Lal was sent t o Police Station, Killar before 7.00 A.M.  He was 

sent on foot to the Police Station.  He did not know the names of police officials, 

who took Roop Lal to the Police Station.  When the accused was apprehended, 

there were only four police officials.  There was none else except these persons.  

Thereafter, the accused was taken to the Police Station.  Weights and scale were 

brought by the two police officials.  He has also deposed that village Thamoh is 

located at a distance of less than half KM from Mahu Null ah.  Purthi Police Post 

was at a distance of about 30 -35 KMs from Mahu Nullah.  Police Station, Killar 

was located at a distance of 100 meters from the main road.  Mahu Nullah was 

about 1 KM from Police Station, Killar.  

8 . PW-2 Tilak Singh has also deposed  the manner in which 

accused was apprehended, search was carried and the sealing process was 

completed on the spot.  He took rukka Ex.PE to the Deputy Superintendent of 

Police, on the basis of which formal FIR Ex.PF was registered. In his cross -

examination , he has deposed that on 29.10.2001, accused under section 380 of 

the Indian Penal Code, was apprehended at about 6 ð 6.30 A.M.  Accused was 

seen by him at a distance of 100 meters from the spot.  Accused started running 

away when he saw the police party.  At the time of apprehension of accused, four 

police officials were present at Mahu Nullah. The weights and scale were brought 

by Head Constable Suresh Kumar. Mahu Nullah was situated at a distance of 10 

minutes walk from Bazaar Killar.  Accused was search ed by Inspector Bikram 

Singh.  

9.  PW-3 R.G. Negi has deposed that on the evening of 

30.10.2001, Inspector Bikram Singh produced one bulk parcel of Charas and two 

sealed samples of charas sealed with seal ôMõ for the purpose of resealing the 

same. He reseale d all the three parcels after putting new clothes on the bulk and 

two sample parcels.  Thereafter, he affixed his own seal having impression ôIõ on 

the bulk sealed parcel and two samples parcels. He also retained the sample of 
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seal used by him on a separat e cloth. The seal after use was retained by him. In 

his cross -examination, he has deposed that Mahu Nullah was located on 

motorable road. It took about five minutes to reach Police Station, Killar from 

Mahu Nullah by light vehicle. The case property was pr oduced before him at about 

4.00 P.M.  

10.  PW-4 Kuldeep Kumar has deposed that in the evening of 

30.10.2001, Inspector Bikram Singh deposited three sealed parcels resealed with 

seal having impression ôIõ alongwith specimen of seal Ex.PB and Ex.PJ.  He 

entere d the same in the Malkhana register.  On 14.11.2001, one sample was 

handed over to HHC Tilak Singh vide RC No. 30/2001 for depositing the same in 

C.T.L. Kandaghat alongwith specimen of seal and docket etc.  Tilak Singh after 

depositing the sealed sample of  charas and specimen seal impression returned the 

RC to him.  

11 . PW-5 Bikram Singh has deposed the manner in which 

accused was apprehended on 30.10.2001 at about 8.00 A.M. and search and 

sampling process was completed on the spot.  He prepared rukka.  He s ent rukka 

Ex.PE to Police Station to the Supervisory officer.   The parcels were resealed by 

the Deputy Superintendent of Police.  In his cross -examination, he has admitted 

that accused of theft case Roop Lal was apprehended by him at 4.00 A.M. on 

30.10.20 01 and was produced before the C.J.M. Kullu on 1.11.2001 for transit 

remand. After obtaining transit remand, he was produced before the Judicial 

Magistrate, Chamba on 2.11.2001.  Rukka was sent by him to Police Station, 

Killar through Tilak Singh at about 8.15 A.M.   They remained at the spot from 

29.10.2001 night to 30.10.2001 at about 4.00 P.M.  

12.  Learned trial court has acquitted the accused for non -

compliance of section 50 of the Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act, 

1985.  Since the contrab and was recovered from the bag and not from the person 

of accused section 50 was not applicable.  However, we have gone through the 

entire evidence to see whether the prosecution has proved its case against the 

accused.   

13 . PW-1 Devi Saran has deposed th at accused Roop Lal was 

apprehended at 4.00 A.M. on the intervening night of 29/30.10.2001.  Accused 

Roop Lal was sent to Police Station, Killar before 7.00 A.M.   Accused was 

apprehended at 8.00 A.M. on 30.10.2001.  According to PW -5 Bikram Singh, 

accused  of theft case Roop Lal was apprehended at 4.00 A.M. on 30.10.2001.  

When accused Roop Lal was apprehended at 4.00 A.M. as per the version of PW -1 

Devi Saran and PW -5 Bikram Singh, there was no occasion for the police to 

remain on the spot till 8.00 A.M.  PW-1 Devi Saran, in his cross -examination, has 

deposed that weight and scales were brought by two police officials.  PW -2 Tilak 

Singh has deposed that weights and scale were brought by Suresh Kumar.  PW -7 

Prem Lal has deposed that Suresh Kumar had come to his shop at 8.00 A.M. on 
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30 th  October.  There is variance in the statements of PW -1 Devi Saran, PW -2 Tilak 

Singh and PW -7 Prem Lal.  According to PW -1 Devi Saran two police officials had 

brought the weight and scales whereas PW -2 Tilak Singh and PW -7 Prem Lal have 

deposed that Suresh Kumar had gone to bring weights and scale.  The fact of the 

matter is that constable Suresh Kumar has not been examined by the 

prosecution.  PW -1 Devi Saran has lodged FIR under section 380 of the Indian 

Penal Code on 29.10.200 1.  The nakka was laid at the instance of PW -1 Devi 

Saran.  He remained with the police throughout night.  His valuables were stolen.  

He was rather victim.  He cannot be termed as independent witness.  The 

prosecution has not examined any independent witn ess other than PW -1 Devi 

Saran.  According to PW -1 Devi Saran, village Thamoh was located at a distance of 

less than half kilometer from Mahu Nullah. As per statement of PW -2 Tilak Singh, 

Mahu Nullah was situated at a distance of 10 minutes walk from the m ain Bazaar.  

Vehicles used to ply on the road where the accused was allegedly apprehended.  

The weights and scale were brought from PW -7 Prem Lal on 30 th  October at 8.00 

A.M.  Thus, the Bazaar was opened and the independent witnesses were available 

and des pite that independent witnesses were not associated during the 

investigation of the case.  There is also over writing on Ex.PN.  ò12.11.2014 ó has 

been erased by applying white fluid and ò30.10.2001 ó has been mentioned 

therein. According to PW -1 Devi Saran,  they left Killar at about 9.00 P.M. on 

29.10.2001 and thief Roop Lal was apprehended at about 4.00 A.M. on the 

intervening night of 29/30.10.2001.  The police officials remained on the spot 

between 3.00 P.M. to 4.00 P.M.  He was also present.  Court quest ion was put to 

him, to which he replied that the police officials and he did not take tea and 

eatables etc. between 8.00 A.M. to 4.00 P.M. except water, which was available on 

the spot. PW -5 Bikram Singh has also deposed that the accused of theft case was 

arrested at 4.00 A.M. and produced before the Chief Judicial Magistrate, Kullu on 

1.11.2001.  Accused was arrested at 3.00 P.M. on 30.10.2001.  They remained on 

the spot from 29.10.2001 night to 30.10.2001 at about 4.00 P.M.  It is not 

believable that the police party which has left for Killar on 29.10.2001 at 9.00 

P.M. would remain on the spot till 30.10.2001 upto 4.00 P.M.  It also casts doubt 

on the version of the prosecution story.  The prosecution has failed to prove that 

contraband was recovered from the exclusive and conscious possession of the 

accused.  

14.  Accordingly, in view of the analysis and discussion made 

hereinabove, the prosecution has failed to prove its case against the accused 

beyond reasonable doubt for offence under section 20 of the N arcotic Drugs and 

Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985.  

15.   Consequently, the appeal is dismissed.  

 *************************************************  
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BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE DHARAM CHAND CHAUDHARY, J. 

Sanjeev Kumar  ......Petitioner  

        Vs.  

State of H.P. é...Respondent  

 

Cr.MMO No. 190 of 2014  

Decided on: 17.09.2014  

 

H.P. Excise Act, 2011 - Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 457 - Police 

had recovered 175 boxes of IMFL during the search of the house of Sanjeev 

Kumar - no permit was produced by him - he contended that the liquor was being 

transported from ôKehar Wine Agency L-1 to L -14 Didwin - the vehicle went out of 

order  at Chowki Kankri - petitioner stored liquor in his house and approached the 

authorities to obtain fresh authorization regarding transportation of the liquor - 

held, that there was no evidence regarding the transportation of the liquor to its 

destination - petitioner could have made an alternative arrangement for 

transportation of the liquor, but he stored the liquor without any permit and 

authorization - however, liquor should not be allowed to be stored in the police 

Station - therefore, liquor was ordered to be sold by way of public auction and sale 

proceeds were directed to be deposited in the treasury.           (Para - 4 to 6)  

Case referred:  

Sunderbhai A mbalal Desai Vs. State of Gujarat, (2002) 10 Supreme Court Cases 

283  

 

For the petitioner:    Mr. N.K. Thak ur, Senior Advocate with Mr. Rahul 

Verma, Advocate.  

For the respondent:   Mr. D.S. Nainta, Mr. Virender Verma and Mr. Rupinder 

Singh, Addl. A.Gs.  

  

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Dharam Chand Chaudhary, Judge.  (Oral)    

 Complaint is that both Courts below without appreciating 

the given facts and circumstances and material available on record in its right 

perspective have refused to release 175 boxes of Indian made foreign liquor, 

seized by the State CID/Vigilance Unit, Bharari Distric t Shimla during the 

course of search of the house of Sanjeev Kumar, petitioner herein, on 22 nd  

March, 2014 at 5.30 p.m.  
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2.  Admittedly, search of the house of accused -petitioner 

Sanjeev Kumar was conducted on an information received by the State 

CID/Vigila nce Unit, Bharari District Shimla on 22 nd  March, 2014 at 5.30 p.m.  

175 boxes of Indian made foreign liquor were recovered by the police from the 

house.  On asking, the accused -petitioner failed to produce any permit and 

authorization to store the same in his house.  The liquor so recovered, therefore, 

was seized and taken into possession.  The same was entrusted to the Station 

House Officer, Hamipur for safe custody in the Malkhana.   

3.  The stand of the accused -petitioner to justify the storage of 

the rec overed liquor in the house is that the same while being transported from 

ôKehar Wine Agency L-1  to L -14 Didwin, the vehicle went out of order at place 

namely Chowki Kankri, a place none else but the own village of the accused -

petitioner. Instead of making  alternative arrangements there and then to 

transport the liquor to its destination, the accused -petitioner allegedly stored 

the same in his house situate there and himself allegedly approached the 

authorities in the Department of Excise and Taxation to ob tain fresh 

authorization qua its transportation to the destination i.e. L -14 Didwin.   

4.  Both Courts below have rightly appreciated the material 

available on record qua the vehicle being went out of order.  As a matter of fact, 

no plausible and reasonable  explanation to arrive at a conclusion even prima -

facie that it so happen while the liquor was being transported to its destination 

is produced by the accused -petitioner.  As already pointed out, the accused -

petitioner could have made an alternative arrang ement there and then to 

transport the liquor in question to its destination, because the permit qua its 

transportation issued by the competent authority was valid up to 21 st March, 

2014 mid night.  There is no explanation as to why such a course has not be en 

resorted to.  Surprisingly enough, the vehicle went out of order at village Chowki 

Kankari, the native place of the accused -petitioner.  This also speaks in plenty 

qua the genuineness and authenticity of the plea so raised.  Both Courts below, 

therefore , have not committed any illegality or irregularity by not releasing the 

liquor to the accused -petitioner as prima -facie the same was stored without any 

permit and authorization by him in his house.  

5.  Learned counsel representing the accused -petitioner h as 

placed reliance on the judgment of the Apex Court in Sunderbhai Ambalal 

Desai versus State of Gujarat, (2002) 10 Supreme Court Cases 283 : 

ò19. For articles such as seized liquor also, prompt action should 

be taken in disposing of it after preparing nece ssary panchnama.  

If sample is required to be taken, sample may be kept properly 

after sending it to the Chemical Analyser, if required.  But in no 

case, large quantity of liquor should be stored at the police station.  

No purpose is served by such storing .ó 
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6 . As per ratio of this judgment the seized articles, particularly 

liquor in huge quantity should not be allowed to keep/store in the police station 

indefinitely and for a long time and after taking samples from the recovered 

liquor and sending the same  to Chemical Analyser, no purpose is likely to be 

served by storing the same in the Police Station.  In this case the liquor cannot 

be released to the accused -petitioner because he failed to produce the permit 

and authorization issued by the competent auth ority qua its storage, that too, 

in his house.  The same, however, can be ordered to put to auction by the 

Incharge, State CID/Vigilance Unit, Bharari District Shimla under the 

supervision of Supervisory Officer (Deputy Superintendent of Police, Hamirpur) 

and the Station House Officer, Police Station, Sadar, Hamirpur in the presence 

of the Assistant Commissioner, Excise and Taxation Department, Hamirpur or 

his nominee.   

7.  This petition is, therefore, disposed of with a direction to the 

Incharge, State CID /Vigilance Unit, Bharari District Shimla under the 

supervision of Supervisory Officer (Deputy Superintendent of Police, Hamirpur) 

and the Station House Officer, Police Station, Sadar, Hamirpur in the presence 

of the Assistant Commissioner, Excise and Taxat ion Department, Hamirpur or 

his nominee to dispose of within one month from the date of production of a 

copy of this judgment, the seized liquor i.e. 175 boxes of Indian made foreign 

liquor as per the inventory prepared in the present of Assistant Commissi oner, 

Excise and Taxation Department, Hamirpur or his nominee in an open auction 

to be attended to by the contractors authorized to run liquor vends in District 

Hamirpur by the Excise and Taxation Department.  The sale proceeds be 

deposited in the trial Co urt.  The liberty is reserved to the accused -petitioner to 

approach the trial Court for release thereof by filing appropriate application, 

which shall be considered and decided in accordance with law.   

8.  The petition stands disposed of accordingly so als o, the 

pending application(s), if any.   

 

 ************************************  

   

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE RAJIV SHARMA, J. 

Balmohan   ééPetitioner. 
       Vs.  

Smt. Kunta Devi  éé.Respondent. 
 
Cr. Revision No. 268 of 2014  

Decided on:   September 18, 2014  
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Protection of Women from Domestic Violence Act, 2005 - Section 12 - The 

marriage between the parties was solemnized on 28.05.2006 - the child was born 

on 4.6.2007 - the husband casted aspersions on the character of the wife -he 

administered beating to her and maltreated her for not bringing dowry - Held, that 

the husband was working as tailor, he was also an agriculturist - His income could 

not be held to be less than Rs. 5,000/ - per month - The wife had to leave her 

matrimonial home due to maltreatment by her hus band - The matter was also 

reported to the Police and she had to go the Court for custody of her son, 

therefore, under these circumstances the maintenance of Rs. 1500/ - per month 

and compensation of Rs. 5,000/ - cannot be said to be excessive.         (Para ð 10) 

For the petitioner:   Mr. Jeevesh Sharma, Advocate.  

For the respondent:   None.  

                     The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

Justice  Rajiv Sharma, J.  

  Cr.M.P.(M) No. 854 of 2014.  

  Heard.  In view of the grounds taken in the application, which is duly 

supported by the affidavit and in the interest of justice, the delay in filing the 

Revision Petition is condoned.  The Registry is directed to register the Criminal 

Revision Petition.  The application is disposed of.  

  Cr. Re vision No. 268 of 2014.    

2.   This Criminal Revision Petition is directed against the judgment 

dated 10.12.2013,  rendered by the learned Sessions Judge, Sirmaur at Nahan, 

H.P., in Criminal Appeal No. 99 -Cr.A/10 of 2011.  

3.   Key facts, necessary for the a djudication of this Criminal Revision 

are that the marriage between the petitioner and the respondent was solemnized 

on 28.5.2006.  A male child was born on 4.6.2007.  The respondent filed an 

application under Section 12 of the Protection of Women from Dom estic Violence 

Act, 2005, against the petitioner.  According to the averments contained in the 

application, the petitioner was casting aspersions at the character of the 

respondent.  She was administered beatings by the petitioner.  She was also 

maltreated  for not bringing sufficient dowry.  The petitioner was not allowing her 

to meet with her parents.  The application was contested by the petitioner.  

According to the petitioner, it is the respondent, who has left the matrimonial 

house without any reason.  According to him, the compromise was arrived at 

between the parties on 28.3.2009, whereby the respondent had undertaken to 

accompany him.  However, she had only lived with him for 2 -3 days.  The learned 

Judicial Magistrate (Ist class), Rajgarh, framed the  issues and allowed the 

application preferred by the respondent.  The petitioner was restrained from 

indulging in any act of domestic violence against the respondent.  She was held 
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entitled for maintenance allowance of Rs. 1500/ - per month from the date of  filing 

of the application.  She was also granted compensation of Rs. 10,000/ - on 

26.8.2011.   

4.   The petitioner feeling aggrieved by the order dated 26.8.2011, filed 

appeal before the learned Sessions Judge, Sirmaur at Nahan.  The learned 

Sessions  Judge , Sirmaur at Nahan partly allowed the appeal by reducing the 

amount of compensation from 10,000/ - to Rs. 5000/ -.  The rest of the order 

passed by the learned Judicial Magistrate (Ist class), Rajgarh, dated 26.8.2011 

was upheld.  It is, in these circumstanc es, the present petition has been filed.   

5.   Mr. Jeevesh Sharma, has vehemently argued that both the Courtsõ 

below have not correctly appreciated the evidence.  He also contended that the 

respondent has contracted second marriage.  Lastly, it was contend ed that the 

income of his client was very meagre.   

6.   I have heard Mr. Jeevesh Sharma, Advocate, for the petitioner and 

gone through the pleadings carefully.   

7.   The marriage between the parties was solemnized on 28.5.2006.  

They have been blessed with  a son on 4.6.2007.  The respondent has appeared as 

PW-1.  According to her, the behavior of the petitioner for two years after the 

marriage was good.  The petitioner was a Tailor.  Her sister -in -law started residing 

with them.  Both of them started maltre ating her.  The petitioner closed the shop 

and left the respondent at her parentsõ house.  He came to take her back in the 

month of September and she accompanied him but petitioner and his family 

members administered beatings to her and she was saved by on e Raksha Devi 

and Kiran.  They were called to the Police Station.  The petitioner has contracted 

second marriage.  PW -2, mother of the respondent has supported the version of 

the respondent.  According to her, the respondent was maltreated.  She was 

subjec ted to leave the matrimonial house.  She was sent to petitionerõs house but 

was administered beatings.  The matter was also reported at Police Post 

Nohradhar.  The petitioner was doing tailoring work and was also an agriculturist.   

8.   The petitioner has also appeared as a witness.  According to him, the 

matter was compromised.  After compromise, the respondent came for only one 

day and thereafter left the house.  He was ready and willing to take her alongwith 

their son back.  He was working on the land of  his father and was an agriculturist.  

He has to bear the expenses towards the maintenance of his parents.  He admitted 

that the parents of the respondent had reported the matter against him at Police 

Station Nohradhar.  He has also admitted that the respo ndent had to obtain a 

search warrant from the Court to get the custody of her child.  He denied that his 

income was Rs.10 -12000/ - per month. He admitted it to be Rs.3,000/ - per month.  

9.   Mr. Jeevesh Sharma, learned counsel has also argued that the 

parties  have obtained divorce by way of customary deed.  The parties are Hindus.  
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The divorce can only be under Hindu Law. Learned counsel has also drawn the 

attention of the Court to Annexure P -5, application, dated 6.4.2013, whereby the 

petitioner wanted to pla ce on record the birth certificate of a child.  The 

respondent has filed detailed reply to the same on 26.7.2013.  The application was 

rejected by the learned Sessions Judge, Sirmaur at Nahan, on 10.12.2013.  

10.   What emerges from the facts enumerated, he reinabove, is that the 

relation between the parties remained cordial for a period of two years.  

Thereafter, the petitioner started maltreating the respondent.  She was given 

beatings.  She was forced to leave the matrimonial house and was also forced to 

go to the Court to get the custody of the child.  She has not contracted the second 

marriage rather the respondent has deposed in her statement that the petitioner 

was living with one Satya Devi.  The petitioner is working as a Tailor. He is also an 

agricul turist. The learned Courtsõ below have rightly come to the conclusion that 

the income of the petitioner could not be less than Rs. 5,000/ -.  The respondent 

has only been held entitled to a sum of Rs.1500/ - per month, towards 

maintenance. The learned Sessio ns Judge, Sirmaur at Nahan, has already 

reduced the amount of compensation from Rs.10,000/ - to Rs.5,000/ -. The 

respondent had to leave the matrimonial house due to the maltreatment meted 

out to her.  She has not left the house voluntarily.  The matter was also reported 

at Police Post Nohradhar.  Thus, there is no merit in the contentions raised by Mr. 

Jeevesh Sharma, learned counsel for the petitioner, that the respondent is 

habitual of filing complaints. She has been forced to file complaints against her 

husband initially at Police Post Nohradhar.  She has to go to the Court to get the 

custody of her son.  The petitioner has not led any clinching evidence to establish 

that the respondent has contracted second marriage.  

11.   Accordingly, there is no merit in  the petition and the same is 

dismissed. Pending applications if any are also disposed of.  

 

**********************************************    

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE RAJIV SHARMA, J. 

 

State of H.P.   ééPetitioner. 

 Vs. 

Bhupinder Singh  éé.Respondent. 

          Cr. Revision No. 62 of 2008  
Decided on:  September 18, 2014  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 227 - The prosecutrix filed an FIR 

stating that she had gone to the hospital along with her son - The accused was on 
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night duty - The prosecutrix was asked to sit in the Doctorõs duty room- The 

accused offered tea to the prosecutrix - the prosecutrix felt giddiness after taking 

tea - The accused gave her injection and raped her - She became pregnant - Charge 

sheet filed but no charge was framed by the learned Additional Sessions Judge 

against the accused for the offences punishable under Section 376 (2)(d) and 506 

IPC ð revision was filed against the order framing charge -held that the allegations 

in the FIR show that the prosecutrix was a consenting par ty - The FIR was filed 

belatedly and there was no sufficient ground for concluding that the accused had 

committed the offences punishable under Section 376 (2) (d) and 506 IPC - Further 

held that the Court is not to act as a mouthpiece of the prosecution but  has to sift 

the evidence in order to find out whether there was sufficient reasons to frame the 

charge against the accused - Petition dismissed.               (Para ð 4,5 & 8)  

Cases Referred:  

State of Bihar vrs. Ramesh Singh, (1977) 4 SCC 39  

Union of India vrs. Prafulla Kumar Samal and another, (1979) 3 SCC 4  

Dilawar Bsalu Kurane vrs. State of Maharashtra, (2002) 2 SCC 135  

Sushil Ansal vrs. State,  2002 Cri. L.J. 1369  

 

For the petitioner:   Mr. R.P. Singh, Asstt. Advocate General.  

For the respondent:   Mr. J.R.Poswal and Mr. Tarlok Jamwal, Advocates.  

The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Justice  Rajiv Sharma, J.  

 

  This Criminal Revision Petition is instituted against the 

judgment/order dated 7.1.2008,  rendered by the learned Sessions Judge, 

Bilaspur, H.P., in Sessions Trial No. 42 of 2006.  

2.   Key facts, necessary for the adjudication of this Criminal Revision 

are that FIR No. 60 of 2005 dated 1.4.2005 was registered at Police Station 

Ghumarwin, on the basis of application filed by the prose cutrix.  According to the 

case of the prosecution, the prosecutrix had gone to Ghumarwin hospital in the 

year 2004 for routine check up alongwith her husband.  They got acquaintance 

with the doctor (hereinafter referred to as the accused).  The accused cal led them 

to his house and in consequence thereof, they visited the house of doctor on 

13.5.2004.  Both the families started visiting each others house.  The prosecutrix 

suffered from Typhoid.  She went to the hospital alongwith her son.  The accused 

was on  night duty.  He asked them to sit in the Doctorsõ duty room.  After 

arranging the tea, the accused went away.  When she took the tea, she started 

feeling giddiness.  She enquired from the accused as to what was happening, he 

told that it was due to weakne ss.  The accused gave her two injections and she did 
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not know what happened thereafter.  When she got up, she found her Salwar kept 

on one side and blood was on the bed sheet of the hospital.  The underwear of the 

accused was stained with blood.  On that d ay, she was undergoing menstrual 

course.  Thereafter, the accused kept on having sex with her at different places 

including hotels and Rest Houses.  She became pregnant.  She went to the 

hospital for aborting the pregnancy.  Although the prosecutrix asked the accused 

to have Court marriage with her but on the advice of the Advocates, he told that if 

he solemnizes second marriage, he would be suspended.   

3.   The case was investigated by the police.  Various documents were 

taken into possession.  The challan  was put up in the Court of Addl. C.J.M., 

Ghumarwin on 3.12.2005.  The learned Addl. C.J.M., Ghumarwin, committed the 

matter to the learned Sessions Judge, Bilaspur, vide order dated 1.11.2006.  The 

matter came up before the learned Sessions Judge for fram ing of charge.  The 

learned Addl. Sessions Judge, after sifting the entire evidence did not frame any 

charge against the accused under Section 376(2)(d) and 506 IPC, on the basis of 

FIR No. 60 of 2005.   

4.   I have gone through the records of the case incl uding FIR dated 

1.4.2005.  It is not mentioned in the FIR as to on which date, month or year, the 

accused had committed rape on the victim.  According to the averments contained 

in the FIR, the accused was having regular sex with her.  She was rather 

consenting party.  She infact wanted to marry with the accused.  However, the 

accused had declined to marry her.   

5.   It cannot be believed that a woman would go to the hospital suffering 

from Typhoid at night.  She should have gone with her husband and not wi th her 

child aged 11 years.  The events started unfolding from the year 2004.  However, 

the FIR was registered only on 1.4.2005.  The prosecutrix has not even mentioned 

the date when she visited the Ghumarwin hospital for the first time.  The learned 

Sessions Judge, Bilaspur, has rightly come to the conclusion that the prosecutrix 

was consenting party to the alleged acts of sexual intercourse with the accused.  

The prosecutrix and the accused both were married.  There were no probable 

grounds for presuming that the accused had committed offence under Section 376 

(2)(d) and 506 IPC.  He was rightly discharged of the offence vide impugned order 

date 7.1.2008.  The version of the prosecutrix does not inspire confidence at all.   

6.   Their lordshipsõ of the Honõble Supreme Court in the case of State of 

Bihar vrs. Ramesh Singh, reported in (1977) 4 SCC 39,  have laid down the 

following test and considerations while ordering discharge of the accused or to 

proceed with the trial as under:  

ò5. In Nirmaljit Singh Hoon  vrs. State of West Bengal ñShelat, J. 

delivering the judgment on behalf of the majority of the Court 

referred at page 79 of the report to the earlier decisions of this Court 

in Chandra Deo Singh v. Prokash Chandra Bose ð where this Court 
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was held to have l aid down with reference to the similar provisions 

contained in Sections 202 and 203 of the Code of Criminal 

Procedure, 1898 òthat the test was whether there was sufficient 

ground for proceeding and not whether there was sufficient ground 

for conviction, an d observed that where there was prima facie 

evidence, even though the person charged of an offence in the 

complaint might have a defence, the matter had to be left to be 

decided by the appropriate forum at the appropriate stage and issue 

of a process could  not be refusedó.  Illustratively, Shelat, J., further 

added òUnless, therefore, the Magistrate finds that the evidence led 

before him is self -contradictory, or intrinsically untrustworthy, 

process cannot be refused if that evidence makes out a prima facie  

caseó. 

 
7.   Their lordshipsõ of the Honõble Supreme Court in the case of Union 

of India vrs. Prafulla Kumar Samal and another,  reported in  (1979) 3 SCC 

4,  have explained the scope and ambit of Section 227 Cr.P.C. as under:  

ò10. Thus, on a consideration of the authorities mentioned above, 
the following principles emerge:  

(1) That the Judge while considering the question of framing 
the charges under Section 227 of the Code has the undoubted 
power to sift and weigh the evidence for the limited purpose of 
finding out whether or not a prima facie case against the 
accused has been made out;  

(2) Where the materials placed before the Court disclose grave 
suspicion against the accused which has not been properly 
explained the Court will be fully justified in fram ing a charge 
and proceeding with the trial.  

(3) The test of determine a prima facie case would naturally 
depend upon the facts of each case and it is difficult to lay 
down a rule of universal application. By and large however if 
two views are equally possi ble and the Judge is satisfied that 
the evidence produced before him while giving rise to some 
suspicion but not grave suspicion against the accused, he will 
be fully within his right to discharge the accused.  

(4) That in exercising his jurisdiction under Section 227 of the 
Code the Judge which under the present Code is a senior and 
experienced Court cannot act merely as a Post -Office or a 
mouth -piece of the prosecution, but has to consider the broad 
probabilities of the case, the total effect of the eviden ce and 
the documents produced before the Court, any basic 
infirmities appearing in the case and so on. This however does 
not mean that the Judge should make a roving enquiry into 
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the pros and cons of the matter and weigh the evidence as if 
he was conductin g a trial.ó 

 

8.   Their lordshipsõ of the Honõble Supreme Court in the case of Dilawar 

Bsalu Kurane vrs. State of Maharashtra,  reported in (2002) 2 SCC 135,  have 

held that the function of the Judge, while exercising power under Section 227 

Cr.P.C., is not to act as a post office or a mouthpiece of the prosecution but has 

the undoubted power to sift  and weigh the evidence for the limited purpose of 

finding ou t whether or not a prima facie case against the accused has been made 

out.  When two views are equally possible and the Judge is satisfied that the 

evidence produced before him while giving rise to some suspicion but not grave 

suspicion against the accused , he can discharge the accused.  Their lordshipsõ 

have held as under:  

ò12. Now the next question is whether a prima facie case has been 
made out against the appellant. In exercising powers under Sec. 227 
of the Code of Criminal Procedure, the settled posit ion of law is that 
the Judge while considering the question of framing the charges 
under the said section has the undoubted power to sift and weigh 
the evidence for the limited purpose of finding out whether or not a 
prima facie case against the accused ha s been made out; where the 
materials placed before the Court disclose grave suspicion against 
the accused which has not been properly explained the Court will be 
fully justified in framing a charge and proceeding with the trial; by 
and large if two views a re equally possible and the Judge is satisfied 
that the evidence produced before him while giving rise to some 
suspicion but not grave suspicion against the accused, he will be 
fully justified to discharge the accused, and in exercising jurisdiction 
under Sec. 227 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, the Judge cannot 
act merely as a post office or a mouthpiece of the prosecution, but 
has to consider the broad probabilities of the case, the total effect of 
the evidence and the documents produced before the Cou rt but 
should not make a roving enquiry into the pros and cons of the 
matter and weigh the evidence as if he was conducting a trial. [See 
Union of India vs. Prafulla Kumar Samal & Anr., (1979 3 SCC 5)].ó 

9.  The Delhi High Court in the case of Sushil Ansal  vrs. State,  

reported in  2002 Cri. L.J. 1369,  held that the order for discharge is permissible 

only in those cases where the Court is satisfied that there are no chances of 

conviction of accused and trial would be an exercise in futility.  In the instan t 

case, after sifting through the evidence, there are no chances of conviction of the 

accused.  The Court is not to weigh the evidence adduced before the trial Court 

but is to sift the evidence to find out prima facie case against the accused.  In 

those ca ses, where it appears to the Court that the continuation of the 

proceedings would result in futility, the same should be closed.   
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10.   Accordingly, there is no merit in the present revision petition, the 

same is dismissed, so also the pending application( s), if any.  

 **********************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE RAJIV SHARMA, J. 

 

Dharam Singh  ééPetitioner. 

 Vs.  

State of H.P & anr.      éé.Respondents. 

    Cr. Revision No. 73 of 2005.  

      Reserved on:  September 12, 2014.  

                    Decided on:   September 19, 2014  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 , Section 401 -  Revision against order of 

acquittal - Complainant filed a complaint stating that she saw the accused 

standing at the door of the cowshed of ôDõ- There was f ire inside the cowshed - Held 

that the complainant had made improvements in her statement - She had stated in 

the Ruka that she saw the accused standing at the door of the  cowshed, whereas 

she stated in the court that she saw the accused coming out of the c owshed - 

There was discrepancy regarding time at which the accused was seen - There was 

enmity between the complainant and the accused - Independent witnesses were 

not examined - Cowshed of the father of the accused was adjacent to the cowshed 

of the ôDõ which would make it unlikely that the accused would put cowshed of ôDõ 

on fire at risk of the cowshed of his father - In these circumstances, the acquittal 

was justified.                                      (Para ð 16 to 20)  

 

 For the petitioner:   Mr. Subhash Sh arma, Advocate.  

For the respondents:   Mr. Parmod Thakur, Addl. AG for respondent No. 1.  

 Mr. Dushyant Dadwal, Advocate, for respondent No. 2.  

              The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

Justice  Rajiv Sharma, J.  

  This Criminal Revision is instituted against the judgment rendered 

by the learned Addl. Sessions Judge, Ghumarwin, Distt. Bilaspur, H.P., in 

Sessions Trial No. 26/7 of 2004/2003, dated 25.11.2004, whereby respondent No. 

2 (hereinafter referred to as the ac cused), who was charged with and tried for 

offence under Section 436 IPC, has been acquitted.   

2.   The case of the prosecution, in a nut shell, is that on  
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26.11.2002 at about 8:45 AM, Smt. Jai Dei (PW -1), resident of Ropa Ghulater, 

went to her cowshed.  She saw the accused standing at the door of the cowshed of 

Dharam Singh.  There was fire inside the cowshed.  In the meantime, Smt. Banti 

Devi, wife of Sadda Ram, came there and started extinguishing the fire.  Smt. Jai 

Dei raised an alarm and called the c o-villagers for help.  The villagers came on the 

spot.  They extinguished the fire.  The petitioner Dharam Singh was employed at 

Shimla.  He informed the police at Police Station, Ghumarwin on telephone that 

his cow shed has been set on fire at Ghumarwin.  The police went to the spot.  The 

statement of PW -1 Jai Dei was recorded vide Ext. PA under Section 154 Cr.P.C.  

FIR Ext. PW -8/A was registered under Section 436 IPC.  The police investigated 

the matter and challan was put up after completing all the coda l formalities.  

3.   The prosecution has examined as many as 10 witnesses to prove its 

case.  The statement of the accused under Section 313 Cr.P.C. was recorded.   The 

accused has denied the case of the prosecution.  The learned Addl. Sessions 

Judge, Ghuma rwin, on 25.11.2004 acquitted the accused, hence this revision 

petition.  

 5.   I have heard learned counsel for both the sides and gone through the 

judgment and record very carefully.  

6.   PW-1, Smt. Jai Dei testified that on 26.11.2002 at about 8:45 AM 

when she went to the cowshed the accused Chaman Lal was coming  out of the 

cow shed of Dharam Singh.  Smoke was rising from inside the cow shed of 

Dharam Singh.  She shouted for help.  The co -villagers reached the spot including 

her mother -in -law, Shankar Dass and Tulsi Ram.   They brought the buffaloes out 

of the cow shed of Dharam Singh.   

7.   PW-2, Shankar Dass testified that on 26.11.2002 when he reached 

his house after fetching water from  the water tap, he saw cowshed of Dharam 

Singh burning and villagers extinguishing the fire.  He went to the spot.  Jai Dei 

(PW-1) was saying that the cowshed was set on fire by the accused Chaman Lal.   

Banti Devi, mother of the accused was also at the sp ot and was also extinguishing 

the fire.   

8.   PW-3, Sundari Devi is the mother -in -law of Jai Dei, PW -1.  She also 

deposed that on 26.11.2002, she went to the spot at about 9:15 AM.  She also saw 

the accused coming out of the cowshed of Dharam Singh.  There  was fire inside 

the cowshed of Dharam Singh.  She cried for help.   Jai Dei and Dila Ram were 

present there.  Thereafter, villagers came and extinguished the fire.  She also 

stated that the accused Chaman Lal had set on fire the cowshed and threatened 

the m earlier.  She admitted in her cross -examination that her family was not 

having good terms with the family of the accused due to litigation.   

9.   PW-4, Kamla Devi is the wife of Dharam Singh.  She deposed that on 

26.11.2002, she had brought buffaloes out  of the cowshed at about 8:00 AM and 
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had tethered the same in the courtyard and thereafter she went to jungle.  She 

heard noise when she was on her way to jungle.  She came back and saw that 

several persons were extinguishing the fire in the cowshed.  Jai Dei and her 

mother -in -law Sundri told her that the cowshed was set on fire by the accused.  

10.   PW-5, Dharam Singh deposed that on 26.11.2002 at about 12:45 

PM, he received message on telephone from his son that his cowshed in the village 

has been set on fire by the accused.  Thereafter, he informed the police on 

telephone.  He came to the village on 27.11.2002.   

11.   PW-6, Dila Ram is the brother -in -law of Dharam Singh.  He deposed 

that he went to the house of Dharam Singh.  Nobody was in the house.  He went 

towards the cowshed of Dharam Singh and saw the accused coming out from the 

cowshed.  There was fire inside the cowshed.  He stated that 35 -40 big bundles of 

grass were kept in the courtyard.  These were put on fire by the accused.   

12.   PW-7, Sher S ingh is the brother of Dharam Singh.  He stated that on 

30.11.2002, when he was coming to his village from Bilaspur, he was attacked by 

the accused Chaman Lal, his father and one Tulsi Ram with ôdaratõ and dandas .  

The accused and his family was inimical t owards them and due to enmity the 

accused had set the cowshed of Dharam Singh on fire.   

13.   PW-8, ASI Ashok Kumar recorded F.I.R. Ext. PW -8/A on the basis of 

statement Ext. PA.  

14.   PW-9, Constable Daulat Ram is a formal witness.  

15.   PW-10, ASI Ram Das s testified that on 26.11.2002 after receiving a 

telephonic message, he went to the spot.  He recorded the statement of Jai Dei 

Ext. PA under Section 154 Cr.P.C.  FIR was registered.  He prepared the site plan.  

He also took pictures Ext. P -3 to P -10.   

16 .  According to PW -1, Jai Dei, she went to her cowshed at about 8:45 

AM and saw the accused coming out of the cowshed of Dharam Singh.  However, 

she has made improvement in her statement.  In Ext. PA ôrukka õ, it is stated that 

she saw the accused standing on the door of the cowshed.  PW -3, Sundri Devi 

testified that she went to the spot at about 9:15 AM.  She saw accused coming out 

of the cowshed of Dharam Singh and there was fire inside the cowshed.  According 

to Jai Dei (PW -1), the incident took place at about 8:45 AM but according to PW -3 

Sundri Devi, it happened at 9:15 AM.  If the accused had set the cowshed on fire 

at 8:45 AM, there was no occasion to the accused to come out at 9:15 AM from the 

cowshed.   

17.   PW-3 Sundri Devi, mother -in -law of Jai Dei  (PW-1) has also admitted 

that her family was not having good terms with the family of the accused due to 

litigation.  According to PW -1 Jai Dei, co -villagers had come to put off the fire.  

However, PW -2 Shankar Dass, testified that the accused and his mot her Banti 
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were also extinguishing the fire.  PW -4, Kamla Devi is the interested witness.  She 

was not present on the spot.  She was told by PW -1, Jai Dei and her mother -in -

law (PW-3) Sundri, about the incident.  PW -6, Dila Ram is the brother -in -law of 

Dhar am Singh.  According to him, the accused has also put on fire the grass.  It 

was not at all the case of the prosecution.   

18.   It has come on record that the cowshed of the father of the accused 

Sh. Sadda Ram and of Dharam Singh were adjoining.  The accus ed was not 

supposed to put on fire the cowshed adjoining to his fatherõs cowshed, knowing 

fully that the fire would also engulf his fatherõs cowshed.  According to PW-4 

Kamla Devi, she had already taken the cattle out of the cowshed at 8:00 AM.  

However, P W-1 Jai Dei deposed that she, with the help of other co -villagers, had 

brought the buffaloes of Dharam Singh out of the cowshed.   

19.   According to PW -1 Jai Dei, she was first to reach the spot.  However, 

PW-6, Dila Ram deposed that he went to the spot fi rst of all and saw the accused 

coming out of the cowshed.  PW -1 Jai Dei, has not deposed that PW -6 Dila Ram, 

was already on the spot before her.  Moreover, in case PW -6, Dila Ram had 

reached the spot, his name was bound to be recorded in the statement of P W-1 Jai 

Dei, Ext. PA.   

20.   The prosecution has only examined the closely related witnesses of 

the petitioner.  The prosecution has not examined Pradhan or Up -Pradhan of the 

Gram Panchayat, though they were available on the spot.  PW -1, Jai Dei is sister -

in -law of Dharam Singh while PW -3, Sundri Devi is also from the family of 

Dharam Singh.  PW -4, Kamla Devi is the wife of Dharam Singh.  PW -6, Dila Ram 

is brother -in -law of Dharam Singh.  It has also come on record that there was 

litigation between the fami ly of Dharam Singh and the father of the accused, 

Sadda Ram.   

21.   The prosecution has miserably failed to prove that the accused has 

put the cowshed on fire.  There are major contradictions and discrepancies in the 

statements of the prosecution witnesses .  They do not inspire any confidence.  The 

trial Court has correctly appreciated the evidence available on record.  This Court 

is not inclined to interfere with the well reasoned judgment of the trial Court.  The 

Revision Petition is accordingly dismissed .   

 **********************************************  

 

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. 

Dinesh Kumar            é..Appellant. 

       Vs.  

Yashpal and others  éRespondents. 

     FAO (MVA) No. 97 of  2007.  
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     Date of decision: 19.09.2014.  

 

Motor Vehicle Act, 1988 - Section 166 - Claimant sustained permanent disability 
to the extent of 30% qua his right lower limb - claimant was undergoing training as 
dental technician -  his income taken as Rs. 4,000/ - per month - taking the loss of 
the earning c apacity as 30%, the loss of income was taken as Rs. 1,000/ - per 
month - he was aged 23 years at the time of accident - applying the multiplier of 
15, compensation of Rs. 1,80,000/ - was awarded to the petitioner.    (Para 8 to 11)  

 

Cases referred:  

Sarla Verma  Vs. Delhi Road Transport  Corporation AIR 2009 SC 3104  

Reshma Kumari & ors Vs. Madan Mohan & anr. AIR 2013 SCW 3120  

 

For the appellant:   Mr.Dinesh Bhanot,  Advocate.  

For  the respondents:  Mr.Narender Sharma, Advocate, for respondents No. 1 

and 2.  

Mr. B.M. Chauhan, Advocate, for respondent No. 3.  

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered  

 

Mansoor Ahmad Mir, Chief Justice, (Oral).  

 The challenge in this appeal is to the award dated 9.6.2006, 

passed by the Motor Accident Claims Tribunal -II Solan,  H.P, for short òThe 

Tribunaló  in MAC Petition No. 27-NL/2 of 2003 titled  Dinesh Kumar vs. Yashpal 

and others, whereby compensation to the tune of Rs.1,03,500/ - came to be 

awarded in favour of the claimant and against respondents No. 1 and 3, 

hereinafter  referred to as òthe impugned awardó, for short, on the grounds taken 

in the memo of appeal.   

2.  The owner/insured, driver and insurer have not questioned 

the impugned award on any ground, thus, it has attained finality, so far as it 

relates to them.  

3.  The claimant has questioned the impugned award on the 

ground of adequacy of compensation.  In the given circumstances, I deem it 

proper not to discuss and return findings on issues No. 1 and 3, are upheld.  

4.  Issue No.2. Admittedly, the claimant became vict im of a 

vehicular accident which was caused by driver, namely,  Kumari Alka Chaudhary -

respondent No. 2 herein while driving maruti car bearing registration No. PUC -

0007 rashly and negligently at Mohali Bazar, hit  the motorcycle NO. PB -07-H-

5921, on which the claimant was travelling as pillion rider. The claimant 
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sustained injuries, was shifted to hospital where he remained admitted from 

11.3.2003 to 15.3.2003.  

5.  The claimant has examined Dr. P.D. Sharma, Medical 

Superintendent and Chairman Handicapped Boa rd, DH Solan who proved the 

disability certificate Ext. PW4/A, issued by the Medical Board.  He stated that as 

per disability certificate Ext. PW4/A the petitioner has sustained permanent 

disability to the extent of 30% qua his right lower limb. In cross -examination he 

stated that this 30% disability is qua particular portion of the body and not in 

relation to the entire body. Therefore, from the statement of this witness, coupled 

with the permanent disability certificate Ext.PW4/A, the claimant has proved that 

he sustained 30% permanent disability qua his lower right limb in the said 

accident.  

6.  While going through the statement made by the doctor, one 

comes to an inescapable conclusion that the claimant has suffered 30% disability 

which has affected his earning capacity. The Tribunal has granted compensation 

under the head òloss of past and future income and general damagesó as 

Rs.50,000/ - which is too meager. The Tribunal has also awarded Rs.20,000/ - 

each under the heads ò Pain and sufferingsó and òloss of amenities of lifeó which is 

adequate.  The learned counsel for the petitioner has not disputed the impugned 

award so far as it relates to pain and sufferings and loss of amenities of life.  

7.  Thus, the only question is whether the amount awarded 

under the head òloss of past and future income and general damagesó is adequate. 

I am of the considered view that it is too meager for the following reasons.  

8.  The claimant was undergoing training as dental technician, 

has become a dental technician, who has be en rendered disabled, lost future 

prospects of earning and virtually, his life has become miserable, has to undergo 

pain and suffering throughout his life, his physical frame is shattered and his 

matrimonial life also stands affected.  

9.  By making guesswo rk, it can be held that he was earning 

Rs.4000/ - per month and lost 30% of his earning capacity, thus has lost earning 

capacity to the tune of Rs.1000/ - per month, at least.  

10 . Admittedly, the claimant was 23 years of age at the time of the 

accident. The  multiplier of ò15ó was applicable as per the Schedule appended to 

the Act read with the judgment of the apex Court delivered in  Sarla Verma 

versus Delhi Road Transport  Corporation, reported in  AIR 2009 SC 3104 , 

upheld in Reshma Kumari & ors vs. Madan Mo han & anr. reported in  2013 AIR 

SCW 3120.  

11.  Viewed thus, it is hereby held that the claimant is entitled to 

compensation under the head òloss of incomeó to the tune of Rs.1000x12= 

12000x15 = Rs.1,80,000/ - with interest @ 7.5 % per annum,  from today.  
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12 .  The amount of Rs.50,000/ - has been awarded by the Tribunal 

under the head òloss of past and future income and general damagesó. The said 

amount was to be awarded only under the head ògeneral damagesó and is 

accordingly awarded under the said head.  

13.  The insurer -respondent No. 3 is directed to deposit the 

enhanced amount of Rs.,1,80,000/ -  alongwith interest @7.5% per annum, within 

six weeks from today and on deposit, the same shall be released in favour of the 

claimant through payeesõ account cheque.  

14.  Having said so, the compensation is enhanced and impugned 

award is modified, as indicated above.  

15.  The appeal stands disposed of accordingly. Send down the 

record, forthwith.   

 *********************************  

 

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD, C.J.  

 

National Insurance Company Limited  éAppellant. 

      Vs.  

Parshotam Lal & others    éRespondents. 

 

     FAO No.            38 of 2011  

     Decided on:   19.09.2014  

Motor Vehicle Act, 1988 - Section 166 - Mahindra Pick up hit the motorcycle due 

to which the claimant who was travelling as pillion rider sustained injury - held, 

that Mahindra Pick up falls within the definition of  Light Motor Vehicle as gross 

unladen weight of the vehicle is below  7500 kilograms - the driver had a valid and 

effective driving licence to drive the same - no endorsement of PSV was required - it 

was also not pleaded by Insurer that accident had taken place due to the reason 

that driver of the vehicle was competent to dri ve one kind of vehicle and he was 

driving a different kind of vehicle which caused the accident, therefore, Insurance 

Company was rightly held liable.        (Para -23, 24 and 27)  

Cases referred:  

Chairman, Rajasthan State Road Transport Corporation & ors. Vs. Smt. Santosh 

& Ors., 2013 AIR SCW 2791  

National Insurance Company Ltd. Vs. Annappa Irappa Nesaria & Ors.,  2008 AIR 

SCW 906  

National Insurance Co. Ltd. Vs. Swaran Singh and others, AIR 2004 Supreme 

Court 1531  
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For the appellant:              Ms. Devyani  Sharma, Advocate.  

For the respondents:  Mr. Sanjay Jaswal, Advocate, for respondent       No. 1.  

Mr. Rahul Mahajan, Advocate, for respondents No. 2 

and 3.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Mansoor Ahmad Mir, Chief Justice  (Oral)    

  This appeal is directed against the judgment and order, dated 

4 th  September, 2010, made by the Motor Accident Claims Tribunal (I) Kangra at 

Dharamshala, H.P., (hereinafter referred to as òthe Tribunaló) in M.A.C.P. No. 28-

N/II -2008, titled as Purshottam Lal versus Kamal Kishore Sharma and others, 

whereby compensation to  the tune of ` 2,94,620/ - with interest @ 9% per annum 

from the date of institution of the petition till deposit of the amount and the costs 

assessed at ` 2000/ -  came to be awarded in favour of the claimant -injured and 

against the insurer (hereinafter ref erred to as òthe impugned awardó) on the 

grounds taken in the memo of appeal.  

Brief facts:  

2.   The claimant -injured being victim of the motor vehicular 

accident, which was caused by the driver, namely Shri Kamal Kishore, on 18 th  

April, 2007, at about 11.50  a.m., near bridge at Khhajan, while driving the 

vehicle, Mahindra Pick up, bearing registration No. HP -68-0622, rashly and 

negligently, hit the same with the motor cycle on which the claimant -injured was 

travelling as a pillion rider, sustained injuries, was taken to Nurpur hospital, 

remained bed ridden for three months at Nurpur and for 23 days at Pathankot, 

filed claim petition before the Tribunal for grant of compensation to the tune of                   

` 4,83,509/ - as per the break -ups given in the cl aim petition.  

3.   The claim petition was resisted by the owner -insured, the 

driver and the insurer on the grounds taken in the memo of objections.  

4.   The following issues were framed by the Tribunal on 23 rd  

April, 2009:  

ò1.  Whether the accident took plac e due to rash and negligent 

driving of vehicle No. HP -68-0622 by respondent No. 1 as alleged? 

OPP 

2.  If issue No. 1 is proved in affirmative, to what amount of 

compensation the petitioner is entitled to and from whom? OPP  

3.  Whether the present petition  is not maintainable as alleged? 

OPR 
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4.  Whether the petitioner has suppressed the true facts from the 

Tribunal as alleged? OPR  

5.  Whether the driver of the vehicle in question was not holding a 

valid and effective driving licence at the time of the accid ent? OPR-3 

6.  Whether the petition is collusive as  alleged?  OPR-3 

7.  Whether the vehicle was being plied in violation of terms and 

conditions of the insurance policy as alleged?  OPR-3 

8.  Whether the petition is bad for non joinder of necessary 

partie s? OPR-3 

9.  Whether there was contributory negligence in causing the 

accident as alleged?  OPR-3 

10.  Whether the petitioner was travelling as gratuitous passenger 

as alleged? OPR -3 

11.  Relief.ó 

5.   The parties have led the evidence in support of their c ase. The 

Tribunal, after scanning the evidence, oral as well as documentary, held the 

claimants entitled to compensation and saddled the appellant -insurer with 

liability.  

6.   The injured -claimant, the owner -insured and the driver have 

not questioned the im pugned award, thus, has attained finality so far it relates to 

them.  

7 .  The appellant -insurer has questioned the impugned award to 

the extent whereby findings have been returned by the Tribunal saddling it with 

liability.  

8.     I deem it proper not to dis cuss the findings returned by the 

Tribunal on issue No.1. However, there is ample evidence on the file led by the 

claimant to the effect that the driver of the offending vehicle had driven the 

offending vehicle rashly and negligently and had caused the acc ident.  

9.    The findings returned by the Tribunal on issues No. 3, 4, 6 

and 8 to 10 are not in dispute.  Thus, the findings returned on these issues are 

upheld.   

10.    Issues No. 2, 5 and 7 are interlinked, therefore, I deem it 

proper to determine all these issues together.  

11 .   The onus to prove issues No. 5 and 7 was on the appellant -

insurer, has failed to prove the same.  Thus, the same have been decided against 

the appellant -insurer.   
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12 .   I have gone through the record read with the impugned awa rd 

and am of the considered view that the Tribunal has rightly decided issues No. 5 

and 7 against the appellant -insurer for the following reasons:  

13 .   I deem it proper to reproduce the definitions of òdriving 

licenceó, òlight motor vehicleó, òprivate service vehicleó and òtransport vehicleó as 

contained in Sections 2 (10), 2 (21), 2(35) and 2 (47), respectively, of the MV Act 

herein:  

ò2. é.............. 

(10) òdriving licenceó means the licence issued by a competent 

authority under Chapter II authorising the person specified therein to 

drive, otherwise than a learner, a motor vehicle or a motor vehicle of 

any specified class or description.  

  xxx   xxx   xxx 

(21) light motor vehicleó means a transport vehicle or omnibus the 

gross vehicle weight of either o f which or a motor car or tractor or road -

roller the unladen weight of any of which, does not exceed 7,500 

kilograms.  

  xxx   xxx   xxx 

(35) òpublic service vehicleó means any motor vehicle used or adapted 

to be used for the carriage of passengers for hire  or reward, and 

includes a maxicab, a motorcab, contract carriage, and stage carriage.  

  xxx   xxx   xxx 

(47) òtransport vehicleó means a public service vehicle, a goods 

carriage , an educational institution bus or a private service vehicle.ó 

14 .   Section  2 (21) of the MV Act provides that a òlight motor 

vehicleó means a transport vehicle or omnibus, the gross vehicle weight of either of 

which or a motor car or tractor or road roller the unladen weight of any of which, 

does not exceed 7500 kilograms.  Sect ion  2  (35)  of  the  MV  Act gives the 

definition of a òpublic service vehicleó, which means any vehicle, which is used or 

allowed to be used for the carriage of passengers for hire or reward and includes a 

maxicab, a motorcab, contract carriage and stag e carriage.  It does not include 

light motor vehicle (LMV).  Section 2 (47) of the MV Act defines a òtransport 

vehicleó.  It means a public service vehicle, a goods carriage, an educational 

institution bus or a private service vehicle.  

15 .   At the cost of  repetition, definition of òlight motor vehicleó 

includes the words òtransport vehicleó also.  Thus, the definition, as given, 

mandates the òlight motor vehicleó is itself a òtransport vehicleó, whereas the 

definitions of other vehicles are contained in Se ctions 2(14), 2 (16), 2 (17), 2 (18), 2 
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(22), 2 (23) 2 (24), 2 (25), 2 (26), 2 (27), 2 (28) and 2 (29) of the MV Act.  In these 

definitions, the words òtransport vehicleó are neither used nor included and that is 

the reason, the definition of òtransport vehicleó is given in Section 2 (47) of the MV 

Act.  

16 .   In this backdrop, we have to go through Section 3 and Section 

10 of the MV Act.  It is apt to reproduce Section 3 of the Act herein:  

ò3.  Necessity for driving licence. - (1) No person shall drive a 

motor vehicle in any public place unless he holds an effective driving 

licence issued to him authorising him to drive the vehicle; and no 

person shall so drive a transport vehicle [other than a motor cab or 

motor cycle hired for his own use or rented under a ny scheme made 

under sub -section (2) of section 75] unless his driving licence 

specifically entitles him so to do.  

(2)  The conditions subject to which sub -section (1) shall not apply 

to a person receiving instructions in driving a motor vehicle shall be 

such as may be prescribed by the Central Government.ó 

17 .   It mandates that the driver should have the licence to drive a 

particular kind of vehicle and it must contain endorsement for driving a transport 

vehicle.  In this section, the words òlight motor vehicleó are not recorded.  Meaning 

thereby, this section is to be read with the definition of other vehicles including 

the definition given in Section 2 (47) of the MV Act except the definition given in 

Section 2 (21) of the MV Act for the reason that Sect ion 2 (21) of the MV Act 

provides, as discussed hereinabove, that it includes transport vehicle also.   

18 .  My this view is supported by Section 10 of the MV Act, which 

reads as under:  

ò10. Form and contents of licences to drive.  -  (1) Every learner's 

licence and driving licence, except a driving licence issued under 

section 18, shall be in such form and shall contain such information as 

may be prescribed by the Central Government.  

(2) A learner's licence or, as the case may be, driving licence shall also 

be expressed as entitling the holder to drive a motor vehicle of one or 

more of the following cases, namely: - 

(a) motor cycle without gear;  

(b) motor cycle with gear;  

(c) invalid carriage;  

(d) light motor vehicle;  

(e) transport v ehicle;  
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(i) road -roller;  

(j) motor vehicle of a specified description.ó 

19 .   Section 10 (2) (d) of the MV Act contains òlight motor vehicleó 

and Section 10 (2) (e) of the MV Act, which was substituted in terms of 

amendment of 1994, class of the vehicles specified in clauses (e) to (h) before 

amendment stand deleted and the definition of the òtransport vehicleó stands 

inserted. So, the words òtransport vehicleó used in Section 3 of the MV Act are to 

be read viz -a-viz other vehicles, definitions of which ar e given and discussed 

hereinabove.  

20 .  A Division Bench of the High Court of Jammu and Kashmir at 

Srinagar, of which I (Justice Mansoor Ahmad Mir, Chief Justice) was a member, in 

a case titled as National Insurance Co. Ltd. versus Muhammad Sidiq Kuchey & 

ors., being  LPA No. 180 of 2002, decided on  27 th  September, 2007, has 

discussed this issue and held that a driver having licence to drive  òLMVó requires 

no òPSVó endorsement.  It is apt to reproduce the relevant portion of the judgment 

herein:  

òThe question now arises as to whether the driver who possessed 

driving licence for driving abovementioned vehicles, could he drive a 

passenger vehicle?  The answer, I find, in the judgment passed by this 

court in case titled National Insurance Co. Ltd. Vs. Irfan Sid iq Bhat, 

2004 (II) SLJ 623, wherein it is held that Light Motor Vehicle includes 

transport vehicle and transport vehicle includes public service vehicle 

and public service vehicle includes any motor vehicle used or deemed 

to be used for carriage of passeng ers.  Further held, that the 

authorization of having PSV endorsement in terms of Rule 41 (a) of the 

Rules is not required in the given circumstances.  It is profitable to 

reproduce paras 13 and 17 of the judgement hereunder: - 

ò13. A combined reading of the above provisions leaves no room for 

doubt that by virtue of licence, about which there is no dispute, both 

Showkat Ahamd and Zahoor Ahmad were competent in terms of 

section 3 of the Motor Vehicles Act to drive a public service vehicle 

without any PSV endo rsement and express authorization in terms of 

rule 4(1)(a) of the State Rules.  In other words, the requirement of the 

State Rules stood satisfied.  

é......................................... 

17. In the case of Mohammad Aslam Khan (CIMA no. 87 of 2002) 

Peerzada Noor -ud -Din appearing as witness on behalf of Regional 

Transport Officer did say on recall for further examination that PSV 

endorsement on the licence of Zahoor Ahmad was fake. In our opinion, 

the fact that the PSV endorsement on the licence was fake is not at all 
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material,  for, even if the claim is considered on the premise that there 

was no PSV endorsement on the licence, for the reasons stated above, 

it would not materially affect the claim.  By virtue of òC to Eó licence 

Showkat Ahmad was competen t to drive a passenger vehicle.  In fact, 

there is no separate definition of passenger vehicle or passenger 

service vehicle in the Motor Vehicles Act.  They come within the ambit 

of public service vehicle under section 2(35).  A holder of driving 

licence w ith respect to òlight Motor Vehicleó is thus competent to drive 

any motor vehicle used or adapted to be used for carriage of 

passengers i.e. a public service vehicle.ó 

In the given circumstances of the case PSV endorsement was not 

required at all.ó 

21 .   The purpose of mandate of Sections 2 and 3 of the MV Act 

came up for consideration before the Apex Court in a case titled as Chairman, 

Rajasthan State Road Transport Corporation & ors. versus Smt. Santosh & 

Ors., reported in 2013 AIR SCW 2791, and after exa mining the various 

provisions of the MV Act held that  Section  3 of the Act casts an obligation on the 

driver to hold an effective driving licence for the type of vehicle, which he intends 

to drive.  It is apt to reproduce paras 19 and 23 of the judgment herein:  

ò19. Section 2(2) of the Act defines articulated vehicle which means a 
motor vehicle to which a semi -trailer is attached; Section 2(34) defines 
public place; Section 2(44) defines 'tractor' as a motor vehicle which is 
not itself constructed to carr y any load; Section 2(46) defines `trailer' 
which means any vehicle, other than a semi - trailer and a side -car, 
drawn or intended to be drawn by a motor vehicle. Section 3 of the Act 
provides for necessity for driving license; Section 5 provides for 
respon sibility of owners of the vehicle for contravention of Sections 3 
and 4; Section 6 provides for restrictions on the holding of driving 
license; Section 56 provides for compulsion for having certificate of 
fitness for transport vehicles; Section 59 empowers  the State to fix the 
age limit of the vehicles; Section 66 provides for necessity for permits 
to ply any vehicle for any commercial purpose; Section 67 empowers 
the State to control road transport; Section 112 provides for limits of 
speed; Sections 133 an d 134 imposes a duty on the owners and the 
drivers of the vehicles in case  of accident and injury to a person; 
Section 146 provides that no person shall use any vehicle at a public 
place unless the vehicle is insured. In addition thereto, the Motor 
Vehicl e Taxation Act provides for imposition of passenger tax and road 
tax etc.  

20. é....................... 

21. é...................... 

22. é..................... 
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23. Section 3 of the Act casts an obligation on a driver to hold an 
effective driving license for the type of vehicle which he intends to 
drive. Section 10 of the Act enables the Central Government to 
prescribe forms of driving licenses for various categories of vehicles 
mentioned in sub -section (2) of the said Section. The definition clause 
in Section  2 of the Act defines various categories of vehicles which are 
covered in broad types mentioned in sub -section (2) of Section 10. 
They are 'goods carriage', 'heavy goods vehicle', 'heavy passenger 
motor vehicle', 'invalid carriage', 'light motor vehicle', 'maxi -cab', 
'medium goods vehicle', 'medium passenger motor vehicle', 'motor -cab', 
'motorcycle', 'omnibus', 'private service vehicle', 'semi - trailer', 'tourist 
vehicle', 'tractor', 'trailer' and 'transport vehicle'.ó 

22 .     The Apex Court in another case  titled as National Insurance 

Company Ltd. versus Annappa Irappa Nesaria & Ors.,  reported in  2008 AIR 

SCW 906, has also discussed the purpose of amendments, which were made in 

the year 1994 and the definitions of 'light motor vehicle', 'medium goods vehicle' 

and the necessity of having a driving licence.  It is apt to reproduce paras 8, 14 

and 16 of the judgment herein:  

ò8. Mr. S.N. Bhat, learned counsel appearing on behalf of the 

respondents, on the other hand, submitted that the contention raised 

herein by the appellant has neither been raised before the Tribunal 

nor before the High Court. In any event, it was urged, that keeping in 

view the definition of the 'light motor vehicle' as contained in Section 

2(21) of the Motor vehicles Act, 1988 ('Act' f or short), a light goods 

carriage would come within the purview thereof.  

A 'light goods carriage' having not been defined in the Act, the 
definition of the 'light motor vehicle' clearly  indicates  that  it  takes  
within  its umbrage, both a transport ve hicle and a non -transport 
vehicle.  

Strong reliance has been placed in this behalf by the learned counsel 
in Ashok Gangadhar Maratha vs. Oriental Insurance Company Ltd., 
[1999 (6) SCC 620].  

9. é.................. 

10. é............... 

11. é............... 

12. é.............. 

13. é.............. 

14. Rule 14 prescribes for filing of an application in Form 4, for 
a licence to drive a motor vehicle, categorizing the same in nine 
types of vehicles.  

Clause (e) provides for 'Transport vehicle' which has been substituted 
by G.S.R. 221(E) with effect from 28.3.2001. Before the amendment in 
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2001, the entries medium goods vehicle and heavy goods vehicle 
existed which have been substituted by transport vehi cle. As noticed 
hereinbefore, Light Motor Vehicles also found place therein.  

15. é.......................... 

16. From what has been noticed hereinbefore, it is evident that 
'transport vehicle' has now been substituted for 'medium goods vehicle' 
and 'heavy goods vehicle'. The light motor vehicle continued, at the 
relevant point of time, to cover both, 'light passenger carriage vehicle' 
and 'light goods carriage vehicle'.  

A driver who had a valid licence to drive a light motor vehicle, 
therefore, was authori sed to drive a light goods vehicle as well.ó 

23 .  Having glance of the above discussions, I hold that the 

endorsement of PSV was not required. The offending vehicle -Mahindra Pick Up 

falls within the definition of Light Motor Vehicle, as given in Section 2 (21) of the 

MV Act, for the reason that the gross unladen weight of the vehicle is below 7500 

kilograms and the driver was having valid and effective driving licence to drive the 

same.  

24 .  It is not a case of the insurer that the accident was due to the 

reason that the driver of the offending vehicle was competent to drive one kind of 

the vehicle and was found driving different kind of vehicle, which was the cause of 

the accident.  

25 .  The Apex Court in a case titled as National Insurance Co. 

Ltd. versus S waran Singh and others, reported in  AIR 2004 Supreme Court 

1531, held that it has to be pleaded and proved that the driver was having licence 

to drive one kind of vehicle, was found driving another kind of vehicle and that 

was the cause of accident.  If no  such plea is taken, that cannot be a ground for 

discharging the insurer.  It is apt to reproduce para 84 of the judgment herein:  

ò84. Section 3 of the Act casts an obligation on a driver to hold an 
effective driving licence for the type of  vehicle which he intends to 
drive. Section 10 of the Act enables Central Government to prescribe 
forms of driving licences for various categories of vehicles mentioned in 
sub -section (2) of said section. The various types of vehicles described 
for which a driver may obt ain a licence for one or more of them are (a) 
Motorcycles without gear, (b) motorcycle with gear, (c) invalid carriage, 
(d) light motor vehicle, (e) transport vehicle, (f) road roller and (g) motor 
vehicle of other specified description. The definition cla use in Section 2 
of the Act defines various categories of vehicles which are covered in 
broad types mentioned in sub -section (2) of Section 10. They are 
`goods carriage', `heavy -goods vehicle', `heavy passenger motor -
vehicle', `invalid carriage', `light mo tor -vehicle', `maxi -cab', `motorcycle', 
`omnibus', `private service vehicle'. In claims for compensation for 
accidents, various kinds of breaches with regard to the conditions of 
driving licences arise for consideration before the Tribunal. A person 
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possessing a driving licence for `motorcycle without gear', for which he 
has no licence. Cases may also arise where a holder of driving licence 
for `light motor vehicle' is found to be driving a `maxi -cab', `motor -cab' 
or `omnibus' for which he has no licence. In each case on evidence led 
before the tribunal, a decision has to be taken whether the fact of the 
driver possessing licence for one type of vehicle but found driving 
another type of vehicle, was the main  or  contributory  cause  of  
accident. If on fac ts, it is found that accident was caused solely 
because of some other unforeseen or intervening causes like 
mechanical failures and similar other causes having no nexus with 
driver not possessing requisite type of licence, the insurer will not be 
allowed t o avoid its liability merely for technical breach of conditions 
concerning driving licence.  

                     (Emphasis added)ó 

26 .   In the said judgment, the Apex Court has also laid down 

principles, how can insurer avoid its liability.  It is apt to reproduce relevant 

portion of para 105 of the judgment in Swaran Singh's case (supra):  

ò105. ..................... 

(i)  .........................  

(ii) ........................  

(iii) The breach of policy condition e.g. disqualification of driver or 

invalid driving licence of the driver, as contained in sub -section (2) (a) 

(ii) of Section 149, have to be proved to have been committed by the 

insured for avoiding liability by the insurer.  Mere absence, fake or 

invalid driving licence or disqualification of the  driver for driving at the 

relevant time, are not in themselves defences available  to  the  insurer  

against either the insured or the third parties.  To avoid its liability 

towards insured, the insurer has to prove that the insured was guilty 

of negligen ce and failed to exercise reasonable care in the matter of 

fulfilling the condition of the policy regarding use of vehicles by duly 

licensed driver or one who was not disqualified to drive at the relevant 

time.  

(iv) The insurance companies are, however, wi th a view to avoid their 

liability, must not only establish the available defence(s) raised in the 

said proceedings but must also establish 'breach' on the part of the 

owner of the vehicle; the burden of proof wherefore would be on them.  

(v)............... ..........  

(vi) Even where the insurer is able to prove breach on the part of the 

insured concerning the policy condition regarding holding of a valid 

licence by the driver or his qualification to drive during the relevant 

period, the insurer would not be allowed to avoid its liability towards 
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insured unless the said breach or breaches on the condition of driving 

licence is/are so fundamental as are found to have contributed to the 

cause  of  the  accident.  The Tribunals in interpreting the policy 

conditions would ap ply òthe rule of main purposeó and the concept of 

òfundamental breachó to allow defences available to the insured under 

Section 149 (2) of the Act.ó   

27.   Applying the test, it was for the insurer to prove that the 

owner -insured has committed willful brea ch, which it has failed to do so.  

Accordingly, the Tribunal has rightly saddled the appellant -insurer with liability.  

28.   Learned counsel for the appellant -insurer has strenuously 

argued that the compensation awarded is excessive.  The insurer cannot pre ss 

such a ground.  However, I have gone through the impugned award.  The 

compensation awarded is just, cannot be said to be excessive in any way.   

29.   Viewed thus, findings returned by the Tribunal on issues No. 

2, 5 and 7 are upheld.  

30.   Having glance of the above discussions, the impugned award 

merits to be upheld and the appeal merits to be dismissed.  Accordingly, the 

impugned award is upheld and the appeal is dismissed alongwith all pending 

applications.  

31.   Send down the record after placing copy of the judgment on 

Tribunal's file.  

 

  ****************************************  

    

BEFORE  HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE RAJIV SHARMA, J. AND HONõBLE MR. 

JUSTICE SURESHWAR THAKUR, J.  

  

State of Himachal Pradesh   é..Appellant.   

 Vs. 

Rakesh Kumar  and another  é..Respondents.  

Cr. Appeal No. 330 of 2008  

      Reserved on:  12.9.2014  

      Decided on :  19.9.2014     

The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 307, 325, 323, 365 read with Section 34 - 

Complainant, his father and brother were present in a Truck - a Jeep bearing 

registration No. HP -24A -762 came in which accused were present -accused asked 
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the complainant to come near the Jeep, when the compla inant went near the 

Jeep, the accused forcibly dragged him inside the jeep - jeep was driven for some 

distance, the accused gave beatings to the complainant and one of the accused 

threatened the complainant with knife -the complainant was thrown out of the 

Jeep and he sustained fracture in his leg - The accused were acquitted by the 

learned Trial Court - An appeal was preferred against the order of Trial Court - Held 

that, the complainant had failed to raise hue and cry when he was being forcibly 

dragged toward s Jeep which would suggest that he had voluntarily gone in the 

Jeep to accompany the accused - The complainant had further failed to disclose to 

the PW -3 the reasons for sustaining the fracture in his leg which shows that a 

false story was invented by the c omplainant to implicate the accused - PW-7 had 

deposed what was narrated to him by another witness who was not examined and 

his testimony would be hearsay - PW-9 had not supported the prosecution version, 

therefore, in these circumstances, the conclusion of Trial Court that the 

Prosecution had failed to prove its case beyond reasonable doubt was sustainable ð 

Appeal dismissed.                                                            (Para- 18 to 21)  

For the Appellant:  Mr.  Parmod Thakur, Additional Advocate   

            General.   

For the Respondents:  Mr. Sanjeev Bhushan, Advocate, for    

            respondent No. 1.  

Mr. T.S Chauhan, Advocate, for respondent No.2.   

The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

Sureshwar Thakur , Judge  

  The instant appeal, is, directed by the State, against the impugned 

judgment, rendered on 16.1.2008, by the learned Sessions Judge, Bilaspur, in, 

Sessions trial No. 32 of 2004, whereby, the learned trial Court acquitted the 

accused/respondents for theirs having commit ted offence punishable under 

Sections 307, 325, 323, 365 read with Section 34 IPC.  

2.   Brief facts of the case, are, that, in the year 2002, the complainant 

was the second driver on truck No. HPU -1505, of which, one Shri Baldev Singh 

was the first driver.     On 26.3.2002 the complainant had brought bricks for the 

construction of his house, which he unloaded at about 4.00 p.m. near his house.    

Thereafter he took the truck, in order to bring sand from Galamor (Beri) situated 

near his house.  In the truck, Baldev Singh, his father and brother Dev Raj  were 

also sitting.  When the truck was fully loaded with sand, a jeep bearing 

registration Number HP -24-A 762, came there at about 9.00 p.m. and its 

occupants asked the complainant through Baldev Singh to come to them.   Upon 

this, the complainant went to the jeep, where he was forcibly dragged in it, by the 

accused persons.   Thereafter the accused persons asked the jeep driver to drive 

it, and after some distance, the accused asked the complainant as to why he  
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remains with one Shri Virender and started beating him with fist and leg blows.  

Accused Ranjit Singh has shown to him a knife and threatened him that he would 

be killed.   The owner of the Jeep, Girdhari Lal was also occupying the front seat 

of the jeep.    The accused threw the complainant from the moving jeep near the 

house of one Shri Kanshi Ram, as a result of which, his left leg got fractured and 

he also sustained injuries on right foot.    Thereafter the accused persons again 

came to the place where the complainant had been thrown and gave him beatings 

with fist and leg blows.   On raising the alarm by the complainant, accused ran 

away.   The complainant by dragging himself reached the courtyard of one Shri 

Kanshi Ram.    In the meantime, his father a nd Devi Ram also reached there and 

took him to the Zonal Hospital Bilaspur.  Zonal Hospital Bilaspur intimated the 

police Station, Sadar of the complainant having admitted in hospital in an injured 

condition. On receipt of intimation, ASI  Krishan Chand al ongwith HHC Om 

Prakash rushed to the hospital and recorded the statement of complainant under 

Section 154 Cr.P.C. During the Course of investigation, site plan of the occurrence 

was prepared and jeep was taken into possession.  Blood stained pant of the 

complainant was also taken into possession besides a knife, which had been 

produced by accused Ranjit Singh, after getting its sketch prepared. On 

conclusion of the investigation, into the offences, allegedly committed by the 

accused, final report under Sect ion 173 of the Code of Criminal Procedure was 

prepared and presented in the Court.  

3.   The accused were charged, for, theirs having committed offence 

punishable under Sections 307, 325, 323, 365 read with Section 34 IPC, by the 

learned trial Court, to, wh ich they pleaded not guilty and claimed trial.   

4.   In order to prove its case, the prosecution examined 10 witnesses.  

On closure of prosecution evidence, the statements of accused, under Section 313 

of the Code of Criminal Procedure, were recorded, in, which they pleaded 

innocence and claimed false implication.  They did not choose to lead evidence in 

defence.  

5.    On appraisal of the evidence on record, the learned trial Court, 

returned findings of acquittal in favour of the accused.  

6.   The State of H.P., is, aggrieved by the judgment of acquittal, recorded 

by the learned trial Court, in, favour of  the accused/respondents.  The Learned 

Additional Advocate General has concertedly, and, vigorously contended, that, the 

findings of acquittal, recorded by  the learned trial Court, are, not based on a 

proper appreciation of evidence on record, rather, they are sequelled by gross mis -

appreciation of the material on record.  Hence, he contends that the findings of 

acquittal, be, reversed by this Court, in, exe rcise of its appellate jurisdiction, and, 

be replaced by findings of conviction, and, concomitantly an appropriate sentence, 

be also imposed upon the accused/respondents.  
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7.    On the other hand, the learned defence counsel, has, with 
considerable force and vigour, contended that the findings of acquittal, recorded 
by the Court below, are, based on a mature and balanced appreciation of evidence 
on record, and, do not necessitate interference, rather merit vindication.  

8.   This Court with the able assistance of the learned counsel on either 
side, has, with studied care and incision, evaluated the entire evidence on record.  

9.   The first witness, who stepped into the witness box, in,  proof of the 

prosecution case, is, PW -1, Prakash Chand, who deposes that he is working as 

second Driver in truck bearing registration No. HP -11-1505. Baldev has been 

deposed to be the first driver of the aforesaid vehicle.  He deposes that on 

26.3.2002 br icks were loaded from Ropar to Changer Bhajaun and the same was 

unloaded in the evening at about 4.00 p.m.  near his house.  He further deposes 

that thereafter at Gala Mor the sand was to be loaded in the truck.  His father 

Dhanu Ram, brother Dev Raj and B aldev Singh, the first driver were deposed to be 

present with him in the truck.  After one hour, Baldev and Prakash have been 

deposed to have left for Deoth side and have returned to the place where the sand 

was loaded in the truck, after one and a  half h ours.   At about 9 in the evening a 

vehicle bearing registration No. HP -24A -762 came from deoth side. The said 

vehicle was deposed to have been driven by Bittu.  He deposes that owner of the 

vehicle Girdhari Lal and Bittu were also the occupants of the veh icle.   Roki and 

Ranjit, present in the court, have been deposed to have occupied the vehicle 

bearing registration No. HP -24A-762.  He further deposes that he was called by 

Baldev, truck driver, upon which he went near the vehicle.    Roki and Ranjit have 

been deposed to have forcibly dragged him inside the vehicle and taken him in the 

jeep towards Deoth and started giving beatings to him with fist and leg blows on 

the pretext as to why he had been playing Dandi Dance with Virender.    Accused 

Ranjit is sta ted to have been shown a knife to him and threatened him to do away 

with his life.   He further deposes that he has been thrown out from the moving 

jeep near the house of Kanshi Ram.   In sequel thereto, his leg got fractured.  He 

deposes that the accused came to that place and again gave beatings to him.  On 

raising alarm, the accused persons ran away from the courtyard of Kanshi Ram.  

Kanshi Ram has been deposed to have taken him to the hospital, where his 

statement under Section 154 Cr.P.C comprised in E x. PW-1/A was got recorded, 

which bears his signatures.   The police also took into possession his blood 

stained pant Ex. P -1 under memo Ex. PW -1/B. He has recognized the knife with 

which he was threatened by the accused. In his cross -examination, he admit ted it 

to be correct that he has no personal enmity with the accused and that for this 

reason, there was no reason for them to have taken away his life, when he was 

allegedly thrown from the jeep, at that time when its speed was 60 kms per hour.   

He denie d that a false case has been foisted against the accused at the instance of 

one Shri Devi Ram, Up Pradhan who had contested the election of Gram 

Panchayat for the post of Up -pradhan against accused Rakesh Kumar.  
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10.   PW-2, Dhanu Ram, father of the complai nant, has supported the fact 

that the accused had taken his son in a jeep towards the Deoth side from the 

place where they were loading sand in the truck.   He further deposes that after 

about one hour, he was told by Shri Prakash Chand of village Karyana Ghati that 

his son was lying near the house of Kanshi Ram in an injured condition.  On this 

information, he went there and found his son with fractured leg and foot.   He 

further deposes that his son was taken to the hospital for medical treatment.   He 

fu rther deposes that during investigation, blood stained pant Ex. P -1 of the 

complainant was taken into possession. In his cross -examination, he deposed that 

Shri Prakash Chand resident of Karyana was also one of the occupants of the jeep 

at the relevant tim e.   

11.   PW-3 Kanshi Ram deposes that  about five years ago, at night, he 

heard the cries of the complainant, who was  lying in his court -yard in an injured 

condition and blood was oozing from his leg.   He further deposes that at that time 

the complainan t did not disclose to him as to how his leg got fractured.  He 

further deposes that the people from the village were also assembled in his Court -

yard and complainant was taken to the Zonal Hospital Bilaspur.   He further 

deposes that the complainant did no t utter anything about the accused at that 

time.  He was declared hostile.  Learned PP requested the Court to cross -examine 

this witness. On his being permitted by the Court, this witness was cross -

examined.  During the course of his cross -examination, he admitted that his 

statement was recorded by the police. In his cross -examination by the learned 

defence counsel, he feigns ignorance as to how and under what circumstances, 

the complainant sustained injuries and fracture on his person.  

12.   PW-4 Dr. A.K S harma, deposes that he was posted as Medical Officer 

in Zonal Hospital, Bilaspur in the year 2002. He further deposes that he had 

medically examined the complainant.  He deposes that complainant was brought 

in the hospital by the police with alleged histor y of fight.  In his opinion, injuries 

sustained by the complainant were grievous in nature and can be caused if a 

person is thrown out from a moving vehicle on a hard surface and with the fist 

blows. The weapon used was blunt and probable duration of injur es was within 6 

hours. MLC comprised in Ex. PW -4/A is deposed to have been issued by him, 

which bears his signatures.    

13.   PW-5 Dr. D Bhangal deposes that on examination of X -Ray of the 

complainant, he found that there was evidence of fresh fracture of base of 5 th  

Mata -tarsal bone and fresh fracture of shafts of both bones left tibia and fibula.  

He further deposes that he has issued report comprised in Ex. PW -5/A, which 

bears his signatures.  

14.   PW-6 Tarsem Kumar deposes that  he is an agriculturist a nd jeep 

bearing registration No. HP24 -A-0762 is in the name of his father.  Bittu is 

deposed to be the driver of jeep at the relevant time.   He further deposes that in 
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the year 2002/2003 he was traveling in the jeep in which 2/3 persons were also 

sitting,  one was Ranjit and another was Rocky and third person was not known to 

him.   He further deposes that they went towards Bhajoon where the truck was 

parked and the sand was in process of loading in the said truck.  He further 

deposes that they stayed there  for some time and then another person sat in the 

jeep, whose name is Prakash Chand.  He further deposes that then they came 

near to the house of Chet Ram and they all got down there.  He further deposes 

that thereafter he did not know what has happened.    He was declared hostile and 

on being permitted by the Court he was cross -examined.   During the course of his 

cross -examination he admitted that accused persons were sitting in the jeep on 

26.3.2002 at about 8.00 p.m., but denied that they had any conver sation with the 

complainant  in his presence.  He further admitted that his statement was 

recorded by the police on 27.3.2002 and the same was read over and explained to 

him.  He further deposes that the accused persons are known to him.   He has 

stated it  to be incorrect that the accused persons had forcibly put the complainant 

inside the jeep and started giving beatings to him with fist and leg blows and near 

the house of Kanshi Ram, the complainant had been thrown out from the moving 

jeep.   He also deni ed that accused Ranjit Singh had taken out a knife and 

threatened the complainant with dire consequences.   He further denied the 

portion A to A of his statement made before the Police.   In his cross -examination 

by the learned defence counsel, he deposed that no quarrel had taken place 

between the accused and the complainant in his presence and after dropping the 

complainant, accused and one another person, had gone to their houses.  

15.   PW-7 Shri Dev Raj deposes that he is an agriculturist.   He deposes 

that he was constructing a house at the relevant time when on 26.3.2002, the 

complainant had brought bricks in his truck to his house, which they had un -

loaded.  He further deposes that he alongwith Dhanu Ram, father of the 

complainant and the complainant himself accompanied in the said truck to 

Galamore for loading the concrete.   He further deposes that at that time a jeep 

had stopped near the truck and the accused who were sitting in it had called the 

complainant through Shri Baldev and made the complain ant to sit in the jeep and 

took him away.   He further deposes that thereafter Prakash Chand son of Shri 

Krishnu told that the accused had thrown the complainant from the moving jeep.   

He further deposes that then they went to the place where the complain ant was 

lying in an injured condition and the complainant was then taken to the hospital 

for treatment.  During the course of his cross -examination he admitted that owner 

of the truck, Prakash Chand and the complainant had boarded the jeep and left 

the pla ce where the truck was being loaded with Bajri.  

16.   PW-8 HC Prakash Chand deposes that he was posted as MC in Police 

Sadar, Bilaspur in the year 2002.  He deposes that he was associated in the 

investigation.  He further deposes that on 2.4.2002 Ranjit Si ngh accused had 

come to the police station and handed over him a knife. Memo Ex. PW -8/A was 
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prepared and was signed by him besides him it was also signed by C. Rajesh 

Kumar and accused Ranjit Singh.  He further deposes that knife was put into a 

parcel and was sealed and prior to its sealing, khaka was prepared which is Ex. 

PW-8/B, which bears his signatures as well as of C Rajesh Kumar.   

17.   PW-9 Shri Narinder Kumar deposes that he was the driver of the jeep 

in the year 2002.  He further deposes that he d oes not remember the date and 

month, but it was year 2002, he was going to Kali in the jeep in which Jagat Ram 

and his wife were also sitting.   He further deposes that on having reached Kali, he 

dropped them there and while returning there was a truck par ked two kilometers 

away from Kali towards Bilaspur, which was being loaded with Bajri and sand.  He 

further deposes that there his jeep was stopped and two persons whose names he 

does not remember boarded the jeep.   He further deposes that in his jeep own er 

of the jeep Tarsem Lal alongwith two other persons were also sitting from village 

Kahli.  He further deposes that the accused present in the Court are not the same 

persons, who barded the jeep at Gala More.  He was declared hostile and on being 

permitte d by the Court he was cross -examined.  During the course of his cross -

examination he deposes that his statement was recorded by the Police.   He denied 

that the accused persons were traveling in the jeep.   He further denied that the 

complainant had been f orcibly dragged inside the jeep by the accused and that he 

was given beatings by them.  He further denied that near the house of Kanshi 

Ram the accused kicked out the complainant from the moving jeep and that by 

alighting from it, started giving him beatin gs to him on the road.  

18.   PW-10 ASI Krishan Chand deposes that he had gone to Zonal 

Hospital, Bilaspur on 27.3.2002 to verify the report which was entered in the daily 

diary No. 47/02.  He deposes that in the hospital he recorded the statement of the 

complainant comprised in Ex. PW -1/A, which was sent to the police Station for 

registration of the case.   He further deposes that an application Ex. PW -10/B was 

moved for medical examination of the complainant.  MLC of complainant 

comprised in Ex. PW -4/A was  obtained.  He further deposes that at the instance 

of father of the complainant, he prepared the spot map comprised in Ex. PW -10/C 

from where the accused persons had allegedly abducted the complainant.    He 

further deposes that there he had proceeded to the place where Prakash Chand 

was thrown from the moving jeep near the house of Shri Kanshi Ram and in this 

regard he prepared the site plan comprised in Ex. PW -10/D. The jeep along with 

its documents has been deposed to have taken into possession vide mem o Ex. PW -

3/B.  He further deposes that he had recorded the statement of Kanshi Ram 

comprised in  Ex. PW -3/A  correctly including its portions  from ôAõ to ôAõ to ôDõ to 

ôDõ, similarly statements of Tarsem Kumar mark ôYõ Ex. PW-10/E and that of Shri 

Narende r Kumar Ex. PW -10/F were recorded, correctly including their relevant 

portions.   He further deposes that on 28.3.2002 the complainant handed over to 

him his blood stained pant which was taken into possession vide memo Ex. PW -

1/B.   He further deposes that  knife Ex. P -2 has been deposed to have produced 
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by accused Ranjit Singh, which has been deposed to have taken into possession 

under memo Ex. PW -8/A and Khaka Ex. PW -8/B was prepared.  He denied that 

the statements of the witnesses were not recorded correc tly.  

19.     The prosecution case has been contended to be firmly anchored 

upon the testimony of PW -1, the victim/injured who when in square and 

forthright terms has deposed in tandem with the prosecution version, as such his 

testimony has been contended to be enjoying probative worth.   However, even 

though the testimony of PW -1, does as contended by the learned Additional 

Advocate General communicate a version in unison with the genesis of the 

prosecution story, nonetheless given the fact as comprised in  the cross -

examination of his father and brother of theirs being also present at the apposite 

stage when the accused purportedly forcibly dragged him to the vehicle occupied 

by both the accused, yet, the omission on the part of  the complainant/injured to 

attract the attention of his father and brother present at the stage 

contemporaneous to the occurrence, by raising a loud cry, invites an inference 

that such omission was occasioned by his rather having acquiesced to occupy the 

jeep or his having volitiona lly taken to occupy the jeep in the company of both the 

accused. The effect of the said omission on the part of the complainant/injured to 

draw the attention of his father and brother  in the manner aforesaid though 

present at the site of occurrence for el iciting their intervention for dissuading the 

accused from forcibly dragging him in the jeep, when has been construed to be 

connoting the acquiescence of or conveying the factum of the injured/victim 

having volitionally occupied the vehicle along with the accused, its effect get 

accentuated in the face of PW -2, the father of the complainant having omitted to 

in his examination -in -chief depose in tandem with PW -1.  Further more PW -3 the 

person who proceeded to the courtyard of his house, upon hearing the cri es of the 

injured and saw blood oozing from his legs, has in his examination -in -chief 

deposed the fact that the injured -victim at that stage omitted to disclose to him 

the reasons for his sustaining a fracture of his leg. The effect of the deposition of 

PW-3 in as much, as it comprises the testimony of the person who first saw the 

injured victim, in an injured condition and to whom an immediate disclosure on 

enquiry by PW -3 about the reasons for his sustaining the fracture was to be made, 

when has deposed t hat the victim injured was reticent qua the reasons for his 

having sustained fracture of his leg, voices the fact that, hence, the victim/injured 

has subsequently invented, in sequel to deep premeditation, a false story for 

attributing an incriminatory rol e to the accused, whereas in case a genuine 

incriminatory role was attributable to the accused then an immediate disclosure 

qua it ought to have emanated, at the instance of the injured/victim before PW -3, 

whereas it did not, as a corollary when the victim /injured remained reticent  qua 

the purported incriminatory role of the accused in quick spontaneity of his having 

sustained fracture of his leg, sequels a forthright inference that the incriminatory 

role as ultimately attributed by the injured/victim to t he accused is seeped in 

prevarication.  
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20.   The testimony of  PW -7  though has been pressed into service by the 

learned Additional Advocate General to persuade this Court that it comprises 

evidence of probative worth and potency, however in the face of it , having 

emanated on a reading of his deposition comprised in his examination -in -chief of 

a disclosure qua the occurrence having been narrated to him by Prakash S/o 

Krishnu who however has not been cited as a witness, as such, when he omits to 

render an ey e witness account qua the occurrence, rather unravels an account as 

revealed to him by Prakash, it comprises hearsay evidence, hence, was 

discardable as tenably done by the learned trial Court.  

21.   Preeminently the deposition of PW -9 an eye witness to th e 

occurrence as also a co -occupant of the vehicle, inside which the alleged 

occurrence took place, as also, from which the accused threw out the 

victim/injured, has not lent support to the prosecution version.  The effect of his 

having omitted to lend supp ort the prosecution case or to the genesis of the 

occurrence constrains this Court to conclude that, no succor can be derived by 

the prosecution from the testimony of PW -9.  Consequently, when  the deposition 

of PW-9 comprised the best evidence in proof of  the prosecution version, his 

having turned hostile or his having abstained to give impetus to the prosecution 

version, fillips an inference of the prosecution version coming to be torpedoed, as 

tenably concluded by the learned trial Court. A wholesome ana lysis of the 

evidence on record portrays that the appreciation of evidence as done by the 

learned trial Court does not suffer from any perversity and absurdity nor it can be 

said that the learned trial Court in recording findings of acquittal has committed  

any legal misdemeanor, in as much, as, it having mis -appreciated the evidence on 

record or omitted to appreciate relevant and admissible evidence.  In aftermath 

this Court does not deem it fit and appropriate that the findings of acquittal 

recorded by the  learned trial Court merit inference.    

22.   In view of above discussion, we find no merit in this appeal, which is 

accordingly dismissed, and, the judgment of the learned trial Court is affirmed. 

Record of the learned trial Court be sent back forthwith.  

******************************  

 

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE RAJIV SHARMA, J. 

 

RFA No. 105 of 2007 with RFA Nos. 147, 226, 227, 

230, 232, 233, 237, 238, 239, 241, 243, 244, 326 

of 2007 and RFA No. 64 of 2008.  

       Reserved on: 12.8.2014.  

              Decided on:        19.09.2014.  
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1. RFA No. 105 of 2007.  

Union of India    ééAppellant. 

 Vs. 

Chhering Tobden & ors.   éé.Respondents. 

 

2. RFA No. 147 of 2007  

Union of India    ..Appellant.  

 Vs. 

Mohan Lal & others    ..Respondents.  

 

3.  RFA No. 226 of 20 07  

 Union of India   ..Appellant  

 Vs. 

Lachhi Ram & another   ..Respondents.  

 

4.  RFA No. 227 of 2007  

Union of India    éAppellant 

 Vs. 

 Nathu & another    éRespondents 

 

5.  RFA No. 230 of 2007  

Union of India    ..Appellant  

 Vs. 

Chet Ram & others    ..Respondents  

 

6. RFA No. 232 of 2007  

Union of India    ..Appellant  

 Vs. 

Ved Ram & another   éRespondents 

 

7.  RFA No. 233 of 2007  

Union of India   éAppellant 

 Vs. 

Belu & another   ..Respondents  

 

8.  RFA No. 237 of 2007  

Union of India   éAppellant 
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Tota Ram & another  ..Respondents  

 

9. RFA No. 238 of 2007  

Union of India   ..Appellant  

 Vs. 
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Tape Ram & others   ..Respondents  

 

10. RFA No.239 of 2007  

Union of India   éAppellant 

 Vs. 

Sohan Lal & another  ..Respondents  

 

11. RFA No.241 of 2007  

Union of India   ..Appellant  

 Vs. 

Belu & others   ..Respondents  

 

12. RFA No. 243 of 2007  

Union of India   ..Appellant  

 Vs. 

Tek Ram & others   ..Respondents  

 

13. RFA No. 244 of 2007  

Union of India   ..Appellant  

 Vs. 

Tashi Yangzum & anr.  ..Respondents  

 

14.  RFA No. 326 of 2007  

Union of India   ..Appellant  

 Vs. 

Jeet Ram & others   ..Respondents  

 

15. RFA No. 64 of 2008  

Union of India   ..Appellant  

 Vs. 

Surti Devi & others   ..Respondents  

 

Land Acquisition Act, 1894 , Section 18 - Land of the petitioners was acquired for 

setting up Army Transit C amp ð The claimants had not led any evidence that they 

had raised orchard, danga and breast walls on the acquired land - Average price of 

the land as per the sale deed was Rs.10,425/ - per biswa in respect of small pieces 

of land, hence after necessary deduc tion of 40% the average value would come to 

6,255/ - per biswa and by granting appreciation @ 10% from 1991, the value 

would come to 7,505/ - per biswa.                             (Para ð 11)  

Land Acquisition Act, 1894 , Section 18 -Land was acquired for the c onstruction 

of Transit Camp - As per sale deed, the land measuring 2 biswas was sold for a 

sum of Rs.15,000, which shows that the market value of the land was Rs.7,500 
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per biswa - Another sale deed  proved that 3 biswas land was sold for Rs. 55,000, - 

the av erage value on the basis of these two transactions would be Rs. 14,730 ð 

40% deduction is required to be made as the land sold was in small parcels.  

 (Para ð 12) 

 

 For the appellant(s):  Mr. Sandeep Sharma, Assistant Solicitor General of 

India, in all the appeals.  

For the respondents:  Mr. Sunil Mohan Goel, Advocate for private 

respondents in all the appeals.  

 Mr. Parmod Thakur, addl. AG with Mr. Neeraj K. 

Sharma, Dy. AG for respondents -State in all the 

appeals.   

The following judgment of the Court was del ivered:  

 

Justice  Rajiv Sharma, J.  

  Since common questions of law and facts are involved in these 

appeals, the same were taken up together for disposal by a common judgment.   

2.   The appellants have challenged the award dated 24.3.2005 rendered 

by the learned Addl. District Judge, Fast Track Court, Kullu, H.P. in Reference 

Petition Nos. 63, 62, 90, 79, 56, 69, 74, 53, 83, 93, 77, 104, 88, 71 and 58 of 

2002, respectively.    

3.   Key facts, necessary for the adjudication of these appeals Are that 

the Government of Himachal Pradesh intended to acquire the land for setting up 

of Army Transit Camp.  Notification No. Home (A) F (13) -10/88 dated 23.12.1993 

for Phati Palchan and No. Home (A ) F (13) -10/88 dated 23.12.1993 for Phati 

Barua under Section 4 of the H.P. Land  Acquisition Act, 1894 (hereinafter 

referred to as the Act) were issued.  These were published in Rajpatra, H.P. Extra 

Ordinary, dated 3.1.1994.  Notifications under Sections 6 & 7 of the Act were also 

published in different newspapers.  Notices were also issued to the claimants 

under Section 9 of the Act on 5.11.1996.  The land of the claimants was acquired 

for Phati Palchan as well as in Phati Barua.  The Land Acquisition Col lector made 

a common award dated 24.11.1997 for the land situated in Phati Palchan 

measuring 11 -2-00 bighas and Phati Barua, measuring 371 -9-00 bighas.  The 

market value of the land was worked out by the Land Acquisition Collector as 

under:  

(i)  PHATI PALCH AN: - 

1.  Market value of 11 -3-0 bighas land = ` 10.62 lac;  
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2. Solatium 30% (u/s 23(2) of the Act)= ` 3.186 lac; and  

3.   Payment u/s 23 -1(A) of the Act @ 12% per annum  w.e.f. 
23/12/93 to 23/11/97   = ` 4.9914 lac.  

 

    Total: -  18.7974 lac.  

 

(ii)  PHATI BARUA: - 

1.  Market value of 371 -09-00 bigha land = ` 169.245;  

2.  Solatium 30% of above       =`   50.77350;  

3.  Payment u/s 23 -1(A) w.e.f. 23/12/93   

  To 23/11/97 @ 12% p.a.       = 79.54515.  

 

     Total: -      ` 299.56365.ó 

 

4.   The claimants, feeling aggrieved by the award dated 24.11.1997 filed 

reference petitions on the ground that the market value assessed was low, 

inadequate and un -reasonable.  According to them, the land acquired was 

situated near Manali town.  It was also a djoining Solang Skia Slopes and also Hot 

Springs of Vashist and Nehru Kund were in the vicinity.  It is also gate -way to 

Rohtang pass.  Many offices of GREF and SASE were situated near the acquired 

land.  The market value of the land was not less than 60,0 00/ - per biswa.  There 

were fruit bearing trees on the land.  They have also raised dangas and breast 

walls.   

5.   The appellant(s) contested the reference petitions by filing separate 

replies.  According to them, the compensation awarded by the Land Acqui sition 

Collector was adequate.  The Manali town was 11 kms. away from the acquired 

land.  It has no potential for the tourism.  

6.   The rejoinders were filed by the claimants.  Issues were framed by 

the learned Addl. District Judge, Kullu on 17.1.2003.  Th e learned Addl. District 

Judge, Kullu passed the award on 24.3.2005, whereby the market value of the 

acquired land of Phati Palchan was ` 7505/ - per biswa ( 1,50,100/ - per bigha) and 

of Phati Barua ` 8838/ - per biswa ( ` 1,76,760/ - per bigha) on the date o f 

issuance of the notification under Section 4 of the Act.  The statutory benefits 

were also awarded.  

7.   The appellant(s) have challenged the award dated 24.11.1997.  Mr. 

Sandeep Sharma, Asstt. Solicitor General of India has vehemently argued that the 
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learned Addl. District Judge, Kullu has not taken into consideration the distance 

between the acquired land from the Manali town.  He then contended that the 

assessment could not be made on the basis of small plots.  The assessment was to 

be made on the basi s of classification of the land. He lastly contended that the 

interest was to be ordered from the date of passing of the award by the Reference 

Court.  Mr. Sunil Mohan Goel, Advocate for the private respondents, has 

supported the judgment dated 24.3.2005 o f the learned Addl. District Judge, 

Kullu, H.P.  

8.   I have heard the learned Advocates on both the sides and gone 

through the award dated 24.3.2005 alongwith the record.   

9.   The land of the claimants was acquired by the State Government for 

the construct ion of Transit Camp in Phati Palchan and Phati Barua.  Notification 

under Section 4 of the Act was issued.  Notices under Section 6 & 7 were also 

issued.  The claimants were issued notices under Section 9 of the Act.  Since the 

appellants were not satisfie d with the award made by the Land Acquisition 

Collector on 24.11.1997, references were filed before the learned Addl. District 

Judge, Kullu.   

10.   The claimants have not led any evidence to prove that they have 

raised orchard on the acquired land.  They h ave also not led any evidence that 

they have raised dangas  and breast walls.  The Court would take firstly the 

market value of the acquired land of Phati Palchan.  The notification was issued 

under Section 4 of the Act on 23.12.1993.  PW -3, Kewal Ram has d eposed that the 

acquired land of Phati Palchan adjoin National Highway No. 21.  Phati Vashishat 

also adjoins this Phati.  There is Solang nullah slopes on one side of Rohtang 

Pass.  It is a gateway of Rohtang Pass.  Tourist Resorts are also situated near t he 

acquired land.  According to him, at the relevant time, the value of the acquired 

land was ` 1,00,000/ - per biswa.  PW -2, Jagat Ram deposed that he alongwith 

Rattan and Hetu sold 0 -13-0 bigha land for a sum of ` 1,62,500/ - to Sh. 

Ramanand Sagar vide sal e deed Ext. PW -2/A.  This land is also situated in Phati 

Palchan.  It was sold on 30.4.1991 at the rate of 12,500/ - per biswa.  According to 

sale deed Ext. PW -4/A dated 15.4.1991, the land measuring 2 -17-0 bighas was 

sold for a sum of ` 4,56,000/ - to Raman and Sagar i.e. at the rate of ` 8,000/ - per 

biswa.   

11.   The respondents have relied upon the certified copy of the sale deed 

Ext. RW -1/A dated 16.8.1993.  It was proved by Surat Ram.  According to him, he 

sold 0 -8-0 bighas of land for a sum of ` 15,000/ - to Ramesh in the same Phati.  

Thus, the value of one biswa land comes to ` 1875/ -.  However, he has admitted 

that this land was at some distance from the road.  The acquired land of the 

claimants adjoins the National Highway.  RW -2, Tek Ram has p roved Ext. RW -

2/A.  He has sold 0 -4-0  bighas of land for a consideration of ` 5,000/ - in Phati 

Palchan.  However, this sale deed is of Phati Vashishat and not of Phati Palchan.  
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As far as the  sale transaction Ext. RA is concerned, the same has not been p roved 

in accordance with law.  It is true that sale deeds Ext. PW -2/A and Ext. PW -4/A 

are of small plots of land.  The average price would come to ` 10,425/ - per biswa 

in respect of small pieces of land.  Necessary deduction to the extent of 40% is 

require d to be made and then the average value would come to ` 6255/ - per biswa 

and by granting appreciation in the value of land @ 10% from 1991, it would come 

to ` 7505/ - per biswa for Phati Palchan.   

12.   Now, as far as Phati Barua is concerned, the notificat ion was issued 

under Section 4 of the Act on 23.12.1993.  PW -5 Tikka Ram and PW -6 Lalu Ram 

deposed that the Manali Bazar is on one side and Solang nullah slopes.  The 

acquired land has potential for tourism.  The land is situated on the right bank of 

Solan g nullah and about 1 km. away from Solang -Sarchu Highway.  According to 

them, the market value of the acquired land was ` 1,00,000/ - per biswa, 10 -12 

years ago and now it is ` 1,50,000/ - or 2,00,000/ - .  They have placed reliance 

upon sale deed Ext. PW -1/A  dated 20.12.1993.  According to this sale deed, the 

land measuring 0 -2-0 bighas of land was sold by PW -1 Nathu Ram for a sum of ` 

15,000/ -.  Thus, the market value of the land comes to ` 7500/ - as per sale deed 

Ext. PW -1/A.  The sale has taken place in th e same month in which the 

notification under Section 4 was issued.  The appellants belonging to Phati barua 

have placed strong reliance on Ext. PW -5/A dated 1.2.1992.  It was proved by PW -

5, Tikka Ram.  This sale has taken place in the year 1992.   The lan d measuring 

0-3-0 bighas was sold for ` 55,000/ -. Thus, by giving 10% appreciation in the 

value of land for subsequent two years, the market value comes to ` 21,960/ -.  

The appellants have also placed reliance on sale deeds Ext. RC, Ext. RE and Ext. 

RG.  H owever, neither the vendors nor the vendees have been examined and thus, 

the sale deeds are required to be discarded.  

 13.   Now, as far as Ext. PD is concerned, this notification was issued for 

acquiring land in the year 1997.  It has rightly been discard ed by the learned 

Addl. District Judge, Kullu.  The average value on the basis of transactions Ext. 

PW-1/A and Ext. PW -5/A comes to ` 14,730/ -.  However, 40% deduction is 

required to be made as far as plots of lands in these sale deeds were small.  The 

tot al market value of the acquired land of Phati Barua comes to ` 8838/ - per 

biswa and ` 1,76,760/ - per bigha.  The learned Addl. District Judge has rightly 

assessed the market value of the land taking into consideration the sale deeds and 

by deducting 40% of  the amount by taking into consideration smaller size of the 

plots sold.  The land in question has been acquired for the purpose of setting up 

Transit Camp.  Though, as per the Land Acquisition Collector, the quality and 

classification of the land was bath al dom, bathal charam, banjar kadim/abadi and 

gairmumkin, however, the fact of the matter is that the potentiality of the land 

would remain the same since the land has been acquired for setting up of Army 

Transit Camp.  The land is being put to some use an d thus, there is no illegality 

committed by learned Addl. District Judge, Kullu by assessing the market value of 
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the acquired land in respect of quality/ kism  of the acquired land.  The learned 

Addl. District Judge, Kullu has awarded the interest from the d ate of the 

notification issued under Section 4 of the Act and the claimants were entitled to 

other statutory benefits under the Act.  The learned Addl. District Judge, Kullu, 

has correctly assessed the value of acquired land of Phati Palchan @ ` 7505/ - per  

biswa i.e. ` 1,50,100/ - per bigha and  @ ` 8838/ - per biswa and ` 1,76,700/ - per 

bigha for Phati Barua alongwith the statutory benefits.    

14.   Accordingly, there is no merit in these appeals, the same are 

dismissed.   

**********************  

 

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. & HONõBLE 

MR. JUSTICE TARLOK SINGH CHAUHAN, J.  

 

Dharam Pal Thakur     éPetitioner. 

        Vs.  

State of Himachal Pradesh & others      éRespondents. 

 

     CWPIL No.      10 of 2014  

     Date of Order: 22.09.2014  

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Shimla Road Users and Pedestrians 

(Public Safety and Convenience)  Act,  2007 - The purpose of Shimla Road Users 

and Pedestrians (Public Safety and Convenience)  Act is to restore the sanctity of 

the Shimla city - State had renewed 2538 permits for vehicles and 318 permits 

were also issued up to 21.8.2014 - however, the names of the permits holders and 

by whom the permits were issued were not specified - State directed to furnish the 

list of the permit holders along wit h the full particulars and to restrict the 

plying/movement of vehicles without passes - State further directed to create more 

off-street and on -street parking places/parking zones - H.R.T.C. is directed to issue 

the permit to the taxies strictly in terms of the earlier order dated 14.10.2011.  

          (Para- 2 to 24)  

 

Present:       Mr. Ajay Mohan Goel, Advocate, for the petitioner.  

Mr. Shrawan Dogra, Advocate General, with Mr. Romesh Verma & 

Mr. V.S. Chauhan, Additional Advocate Generals, and Mr. Kush 

Sharma , Deputy Advocate General, for respondents No. 1, 2, 4 and 

5.  

Mr. G.S. Rathore, Advocate, for respondent No. 3.  

Mr. Hamender Chandel, Advocate, for respondent No. 6.  
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 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Mansoor Ahmad Mir, Chief Justice  (Oral)    

  Respondents No. 1 and 3 to 6 have filed replies.  Respondent 

No. 2 has yet to file reply.  Respondent No. 1 has also filed status 

report/compliance report.  

2 .  Keeping in view the fact that public interest is involved, this 

petition was ordered  to be diarized as Public Interest Litigation vide order, dated 

22 nd  July, 2014, and the respondents were directed to file status report(s).  

3 .  In response to direction (a), the respondents have not filed the 

details as to what steps they have taken to co mply with the mandate of the Shimla 

Road Users and Pedestrians (Public Safety and Convenience)  Act,  2007,  

(hereinafter  referred  to  as  òthe  Actó).  The replies filed are vague.  They are 

directed to file the status report(s) indicating as to what me asures they have taken 

to do the needful in terms of the mandate of the Act.  

4 .  In compliance to direction (b), respondent No. 1 has stated 

that 3023 permits have been issued from the year 2008 to 2014 and 2538  have 

been renewed, but has not furnished th e particulars of the permit holders.  

5.   It is also mentioned in the affidavit that the Secretary, Vidhan 

Sabha, is also empowered in terms of the Act/Rules and Regulations to issue 

permits to the Members of the H.P. Legislative Assembly and as per the 

inf ormation, 318 permits have been issued upto 21 st August, 2014.  

6.   It is not known to whom these 318 permits/passes have been 

issued and by whom.  

7 .  In this backdrop, we deem it proper to array Secretary, 

Himachal Pradesh Legislative Assembly as a party -respondent in the array of 

respondents and shall figure as respondent No. 7.  Registry to make necessary 

correction in the cause title.  

8.   Issue notice to newly added respondent No. 7 returnable 

within four weeks.  Mr. Romesh Verma, learned Additional Advo cate General, 

waives notice on behalf of respondent No. 7.  Respondent No. 7 is directed to 

furnish the list of person(s) alongwith full particulars, in whose favour, the said 

318 passes/permits have been granted.  

9.   Respondents No. 1 and 6 are also direc ted to furnish the list 

of the permit holders/pass holders alongwith the full particulars, in whose favour 

the passes/permits have been issued.  
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10 .  Respondents No. 1, 6 and 7 are further directed to file 

affidavits indicating as to whether they have follo wed the mechanism provided 

under Sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Act.  

11 .  In compliance to direction (c), respondent No. 1 has stated 

that CCTV cameras are in place at CTO and Silli Chowk to monitor the entry and 

movement of the unauthorized vehicles, but it d oes not contain the details what 

mechanism they have adopted to prevent/deter the plying/movement of the 

vehicles without passes/permits.  

12 .  In compliance to direction (d), respondent No. 1 has filed the 

compliance report evasively.  It is stated in the reply that the traffic is being 

managed by the police officers/officials, who are manning the traffic 

management/traffic posts and challans have been filed against the violators in 

terms of the mandate of the Act and the rules occupying the field.  

13 .  The proceedings have been drawn in terms of Section 11 of 

the Act read with Section 184 of the Motor Vehicles Act (hereinafter referred to as 

òthe MV Actó).  It is not stated in the reply that how many challans have been 

made so far and what is the mechanism adopted to check unauthorized plying of 

vehicles on restricted/sealed roads and how the mandate of the MV Act/Rules is 

being followed.  

14 .  In compliance to directions (e) and (f), respondent No. 1 has 

not given the details as to how many parking places are in place; how many sites 

for parking places have been identified and what steps have  been  taken  to  

prevent  the  unauthorized  parking.  However, in para (f) of the 

compliance/status report, it has been stated that the Deputy Commissioner, 

Shimla D istrict has declared the road from Cart Road via Cancer Hospital to the 

main gate of IGMC, Shimla and the road leading from Gurudwara (Cart Road) to 

DDU Hospital as òNo Parking Zonesó vide notifications, dated 24th  July, 2014 and 

30 th  July, 2014, respectiv ely, and are manning the same.  The report is silent as to 

what steps have been taken to prevent its fallout and consequences.  

15 .  Respondent No. 6 has stated in para 22 of the reply as to what 

steps they have taken to create more off -street and on -street  parking 

places/parking zones, but what steps they have taken to implement the same and 

what steps they have taken to achieve the mandate of the Act is not forthcoming.  

Respondents No. 1 and 5 have also not stated what steps they have taken to 

comply with  directions (e) and (f).  

16 .  Mr. Ajay Mohan Goel, learned counsel for the petitioner, has 

stated at the Bar that the respondents have taken steps to control and regulate 

the ingress and egress to IGMC Hospital without any hindrance, but that has 

resulted in traffic jamming and illegal parking near IGMC main gate towards 
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Manchanda Clinic and Lakkar Bazar and has prayed that the respondents be 

directed to do the needful.  Respondents to take appropriate steps.  

17 .  In compliance to direction (g), respondent No. 5 has stated in 

the reply that the HRTC Taxis, though are being run on the sealed/restricted 

roads in terms of the directions passed by this Court on 14 th  October, 2011, in 

CWP No. 1916 of 2009 and CWP No. 7784 of 2010, but the drivers/owners of the 

said taxis are misusing the same and have created havoc in the entire Shimla;  the 

taxis are being driven dangerously at high speed; the pedestrians are not in a 

position to walk and  have also sought intervention of this Court.  

18 .  Respondent No. 1 has sta ted in para 19 of the reply that 

HRTC has outsourced the taxi services to the private operators.  Respondents No. 

1 and 3 to 5 to report as to whether that action is in terms of the mandate of the 

Act and order, dated 14 th  October, 2011 (supra) made by thi s Court and whether 

any leave was sought from this Court to that extent.  

19 .  Respondents No. 1 and 3 to 5 are further directed to restrict 

the use of the said HRTC Taxis strictly in terms of  order dated 14 th  October, 2011 

(supra), copy of which is also m ade part of the file and mention whereof has been 

made in para 2 (g) of the reply filed by respondent No. 4, read with the provisions 

of the Act.   

20 .  The purpose of granting permission to ply the HRTC taxis is 

contained in the order (supra) read with th e Act, but appears to have been 

misused.  Respondents to indicate what steps they have taken to prevent their 

misuse.  

21 .  Respondent No. 1 has also stated in the reply that there is no 

need and justification to review the existing permits and re -issue the  same.  

22 .  It appears that the residents, who are residing in and around 

the prohibited/restricted/sealed area, have also been granted the permits/passes.  

The respondents are directed to file status report to the effect as to whether the 

said permits/pas ses has been granted strictly in terms of the Act; whether any 

permit/pass has been granted to any such resident who is not now residing there 

and has  shifted to any other place and whether the permit holders/pass holders, 

though not  residing  within  th e  limits  of sealed/restricted roads, are parking 

their vehicles in the said areas and are performing their job/running the business 

in the nearby market etc.  

23 .  We have also perused the news paper cutting, dated 9 th  

September, 2014, submitted by the le arned counsel for the petitioner, in terms of 

which new permits have been granted to ply the HRTC taxis on 34 new routes by 

the HRTC authorities.  Respondents No. 3 and 5 to file separate affidavits 

containing the full details as to how many permits have b een granted to whom 

and who has to ply the said taxis and whether outsourcing is permissible.  
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24 .  We deem it proper to record herein that the aim and object of 

the Act is to restore the sanctity of the Shimla City and the sole of the Act is how 

to preserv e and maintain the beauty of the City.  

25 .  Having glance of the above discussions, we deem it proper to 

direct the respondents to file fresh report(s) in terms of order, dated 22 nd  July, 

2014 read with the directions made hereinabove.  Any deviation shal l be seriously 

viewed.  

26 .  List on 27 th  October, 2014. Copy dasti.   

 

  ***********************************  

 

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. & HONõBLE 

MR. JUSTICE TARLOK SINGH CHAUHAN, J.  

 

The Principal Secretary (Personnel) & another   éAppellants. 

       Vs.  

Pratap Thak ur                              éRespondent. 

 

  LPA No.         11 of 2012  

  Reserved on: 16.09.201  

  Decided on:    22.09.2014  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 14 - Equal pay for equal work - Petitioner 
claiming that the post of Junior Translator in H.P. State Administrative Tribunal 
is similar to the post sanctioned and created in various other departments - he is 
entitled to the pay scale as was being gran ted in other departments - held that 
while determining parity the Court has to consider factors like the source and 
mode of recruitment/appointment, qualifications, nature of work, value thereof, 
responsibilities, reliability, experience, confidentiality, f unctional need, etc. - the 
similarity of designation or nature of work is not sufficient to grant equal pay - the 
petitioner had not laid any foundation to establish that functions, responsibilities 
and duties of the posts were similar - therefore, he is no t entitled for the pay equal 
to the other person.       (Para-11 to 21)  

Cases referred:  

Hukum Chand Gupta Vs. Director General, Indian Council of Agricultural 

Research and others, (2012) 12 Supreme Court Cases 666  

State of Madhya Pradesh and others Vs. Rame sh Chandra Bajpai, (2009) 13 

Supreme Court Cases 635  

Steel Authority of India Limited and others Vs. Dibyendu Battacharya, (2011) 11 

Supreme Court Cases  122  
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Union Territory Administration, Chandigarh and others Vs. Manju  Mathur and 

another, (2011) 2 Supr eme Court Cases 452  

State of Punjab  & Anr. Vs. Surjit Singh & Ors., 2009 AIR SCW 6759  

New Delhi Municipal Council Vs. Pan Singh & Ors.,  2007 AIR SCW 1705  

State of Haryana and others Vs. Charanjit Singh and others etc., AIR 2006 

Supreme Court 161  

 

For the appellants:            Mr. Shrawan Dogra, Advocate General, with Mr. 

Romesh Verma, Additional Advocate General, and Mr. 

J.K. Verma & Mr. Kush Sharma, Deputy Advocate 

Generals.  

 

For the respondent:    Mr. M.L. Sharma, Advocate.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Mansoor Ahmad Mir, Chief Justice   

  This Letters Patent Appeal is directed against the judgment 

and order, dated 24 th  February, 2011, made by the learned Single Judge in CWP 

(T) No. 7679 of 2008, titled as Pratap Thaku r versus State of Himachal Pradesh 

and others, whereby the writ petition filed by the writ petitioner -respondent herein 

came to be allowed (hereinafter referred to as òthe impugned judgmentó), on the 

grounds taken in the memo of appeal.  

2.   The writ petiti oner -respondent invoked the jurisdiction of the 

H.P. State Administrative Tribunal in terms of Section 19 of the Administrative 

Tribunals Act, 1985, by the medium of Original Application No. 829 of 2001, 

seeking quashment of Annexure A -10 and directing the  writ respondents -

appellants to grant pay scale of Rs.4400 -7000 with effect from 1 st January, 1996 

with all consequential benefits and interest @ 15% per annum to the writ 

petitioner, who was holding the post of Junior Translator in the erstwhile H.P. 

Stat e Administrative Tribunal, on the averments contained in the said petition.  

After abolition of the H.P. State Administrative Tribunal, was transferred to this 

Court,  came  to  be  diarized  as CWP (T) No. 7679 of 2008.  

3.   Precisely, the case of the writ  petitioner was that he was 

appointed as Junior Translator  on 16 th  May, 1995 in the pay scale of Rs.950 -

1800 (Annexure A -1), was confirmed on the said post with effect from 1 st March, 

1998 vide Annexure A -2, was promoted as Senior Translator with effect f rom 15 th  

December, 1998 in terms of Annexure A -3. 

4.   The writ petitioner has laid the foundation of his case on the 

ground that the posts created/ sanctioned in the H.P. State Administrative 

Tribunal are similar to the posts sanctioned and created in vari ous departments of 
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the State of Himachal Pradesh especially, Himachal Pradesh Secretariat, 

Governor's Secretariat and Himachal Pradesh Vidhan Sabha Secretariat.  The post 

of Junior translator was sanctioned in the cadre of H.P. State Administrative 

Tribuna l in the grade of Rs.400 -600, was revised to Rs.950 -1800/1200 -2100 with 

effect from 1 st  January, 1986, and the post was at par with the Junior Translator 

in the Himachal Pradesh Vidhan Sabha Secretariat because same pay scale was 

admissible in Vidhan Sabha  also and essential qualifications for appointment were 

also similar.   The pay scales were revised in terms of notifications, dated 20 th  

January, 1998 (Annexure A -6) and dated 1 st September, 1996 (Annexure A -7), but 

the pay scale of Junior Translator in t he H.P. State Administrative Tribunal was 

not revised and in order to have parity, the H.P. State Administrative Tribunal 

made a proposal for revising the pay scale of Junior Translators from Rs. 950 -

1800/1200 -2100 (pre -revised) to Rs.4400 -7000.  However, the writ respondents -

State have rejected the same vide Annexure A -10.  

5 .  The writ respondents have resisted the petition on the 

grounds taken in the respective memo of objections. Writ respondents No. 1 and 2 

have filed joint reply and writ respondent No.  3 has filed separate reply.  

6.   Writ respondents No.1 and 2 have specifically pleaded that the 

case was examined by the Government and it was found that there is no parity 

and accordingly, the prayer was rejected.  It is apt to reproduce para 6 (iv), 6 (v ) (b) 

and 6 (v) (e) of the reply filed by writ respondents No. 1 and 2 herein:  

òPara-6 é......... 

(iv) Admitted to the extent that a request was received from R.No. 3 to 

re-revise the pay scale of the post of Junior Translator from 3120 -5160 

to Rs. 4400 -7000 w.e.f. 1.1.1996 which was not agreed to by the 

Govt. as there was no parity in the matter of pay scale of the posts of 

Junior Translator in H.P. Administrative Tribunal and Himachal 

Pradesh Vidhan Sabha.  

 (v) é.................. 

(a) é.................. 

(b) As submitted against para 6 (ii) above the post of Junior Translator 

in H.P. Vidhan Sabha has been allowed the pay scale of Rs. 4400 -

7000 w.e.f. 1.1.1996 on Punjab pattern.  The same has rightly been 

denied to the applicant as this post does not exist in the counter -part 

Department in Punjab and  accordingly  he  has  been allowed the 

revised pay scale of Rs. 3120 -5160 as per general conversion table 

issued by the Finance Department vide letter No. Fin(PR)B(7) -1/98 

dated 9.1.1998 (Annexure R -1). 

(c) é....................  
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(d) é.................... 

(e) It is not correct that the duties and responsibilities of the post of 

Junior Translator are higher than those of Clerk.  Both of these 

categories have been placed in identical pay scales since 1978 i.e. Rs. 

400 -600 revised to Rs. 950 -1800 w.e.f. 1.1.1986.  As regards 

qualifications the same are prescribed taking into account the nature 

of job of a particular post.ó 

7 .  Writ respondent No.3 though has made recommendation for 

grant of the said grade but has not  given the details how the two posts are similar 

and whether the functions, duties and responsibilities of the Junior Translators at 

Himachal Pradesh State Administrative Tribunal and Himachal Pradesh Vidhan 

Sabha are similar and are performing as such.  

8 .  The Writ Court, after examining the pleadings, passed the 

impugned judgment, which, on the face of it, is not in accordance with law, needs 

to be set aside for the following reasons:  

9.   The writ petitioner has based his case on the foundation that 

the post of Junior Translator in the Himachal Pradesh State Administrative 

Tribunal was equivalent to the post of Junior Translator in the Himachal Pradesh 

Vidhan Sabha, had sought relief on tha t ground and, thereafter, they pleaded that 

they are entitled to that grade.   

10 .  The Writ Court/learned Single Judge has not marshalled out 

the facts and merits of the case read with the                               office 

orders/notifications to the e ffect whether the duties and responsibilities of the writ 

petitioner were similar to that of the Junior Translator in the Himachal Pradesh 

Vidhan Sabha in order to determine the claim of parity.  

11 .    The Apex Court in Hukum Chand Gupta Vs. Director 

Gener al, Indian Council of Agricultural Research and others, reported in 

(2012) 12 Supreme Court Cases 666, held as to how parity can be claimed or 

granted.  It is apt to reproduce relevant portion of para 20 of the judgment herein:  

20. é............. There cannot be straitjacket formula for holding 

that two posts having the same nomenclature would have to be 

given the same pay scale.  Prescription of pay scales on 

particular posts is a very complex exercise.  It requires 

assessment of the nature and quality of the duties performed 

and the responsibilities shouldered by the incumbents on 

different posts.  Even though, the two posts may be referred to 

by the same name, it would not lead to the necessary inference 

that the posts are identical in every manner.  Thes e are matters 

to be assessed by expert bodies like the employer or the Pay 

Commission. Neither the Central Administrative Tribunal nor a 
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writ court would normally venture to substitute its own opinion 

for the opinions rendered by the experts.  The Tribunal  or the 

writ court would lack the necessary expertise to undertake the 

complex exercise of equation of posts or the pay scales.ó 

12.    The Apex Court in another case titled as State of Madhya 

Pradesh and others Vs. Ramesh Chandra Bajpai, reported in  (2009)  13 

Supreme Court Cases 635, held that the Court has to consider factors like the 

source and mode of recruitment/appointment, qualifications, nature of work, 

value thereof, responsibilities, reliability, experience, confidentiality, functional 

need, etc.  It is apt to reproduce para 15 of the judgment herein:  

ò15. In our view, the approach adopted by the learned Single Judge 

and the Division Bench is clearly erroneous.  It is well settled that the 

doctrine of equal pay for equal work can be invoked only when the 

employees are similarly situated.  Similarity in the designation or 

nature or quantum of work is not determinative of quality in the matter 

of pay scales.  The court has to consider the factors like the source 

and mode of recruitment/appointment, qualifications, the nature of 

work, the value thereof, responsibilities, reliability, experience, 

confidentiality, functional need, etc.  In other words, the quality clause 

can be invoked in the matter of pay scales only when there is 

wholesale identity be tween the holds of two posts.ó  

13 .   The Apex Court in the case titled as Steel Authority of India 

Limited and others Vs. Dibyendu Battacharya, reported in   (2011)   11   

Supreme   Court   Cases   122,    has    discussed   the development of law and 

the  judgments made by the Apex Court right from the year 1968, in paras 18 to 

29 of the judgment.  It is apt to reproduce paras 30, 31 and 33 of the judgment 

herein:  

30. In view of the above, the law on the issue can be summarised to 
the effect that parity of  pay can be claimed by invoking the provisions 
of Articles 14 and 39(d) of the Constitution of India by establishing 
that the eligibility, mode of selection/recruitment, nature and quality of 
work and duties and effort, reliability, confidentiality, dexter ity, 
functional need and responsibilities and status of both the posts are 
identical. The functions may be the same but the skills and 
responsibilities may be really and substantially different. The other 
post may not require any higher qualification, seni ority or other like 
factors. Granting parity in pay scales depends upon the comparative 
evaluation of job and equation of posts. The person claiming parity, 
must plead necessary averments and prove that all things are equal 
between the concerned posts. Suc h a complex issue cannot be 
adjudicated by evaluating the affidavits filed by the parties.  

31. The onus to establish the discrimination by the employer lies on 
the person claiming the parity of pay. The expert committee has to 
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decide such issues, as the f ixation of pay scales etc. falls within the 
exclusive domain of the executive. So long as the value judgment of 
those who are responsible for administration   i.e. service conditions 
etc., is found to be bonafide, reasonable, and on intelligible criteria 
which has a rational nexus of objective of differentiation, such 
differentiation will not amount to discrimination. It is not prohibited in 
law to have two grades of posts in the same cadre. Thus, the 
nomenclature of a post may not be the sole determinative  factor. The 
courts in exercise of their limited power of judicial review can only 
examine whether the decision of the State authorities is rational and 
just or prejudicial to a particular set of employees. The court has to 
keep in mind that a mere differe nce in service conditions does not 
amount to discrimination. Unless there is complete and wholesale/ 
wholesome identity between the two posts they should not be treated 
as equivalent and the Court should avoid applying the principle of 
equal pay for equal work.  

32. é.............  

33. By the impugned order, the respondent has not been granted the 
post in Grade E -1 but salary equivalent to that of Shri B.V. Prabhakar 
has been granted to the Respondent. The order itself is mutually 
inconsistent and contradict ory.              The representation of the 
respondent had been for waiving the criteria meaning thereby that the 
respondent sought a relaxation in the eligibility criteria for the post in 
Grade E -1. It is evident from the representation itself that the 
respondent never possessed the eligibility for the post of Grade E -1. 
The Law does not prohibit an employer to have different grade of posts 
in two different units owned by him. Every unit is an independent 
entity for the purpose of making recruitment of mos t of its employees. 
The respondent had not been appointed in centralised services of the 
company.  

14 .  The Apex Court in Union Territory Administration, 

Chandigarh and others Vs. Manju Mathur and another, reported in  (2011) 2 

Supreme Court Cases 452, held  that similarity of designation or nature or 

quantum of work is not determinative of entitlement to equality in pay scales.  

15 .    The Apex Court in the case titled as State of Punjab  & Anr. 

Vs. Surjit Singh & Ors., reported in  2009 AIR SCW 6759, has discussed the 

development of law right from the year 1960 till 2009.  It is apt to reproduce para 

30 of the judgment herein:  

ò30. Mr. Swarup may or may not be entirely correct in 

projecting three purported different views of this Court having 

regard to the  accepted principle of law that ratio of a decision 

must be culled out from reading it in its entirety and not from a 

part thereof.  It is no longer in doubt or dispute that grant of the 

benefit of the doctrine of 'equal pay for equal work' depends 

upon a large number of factors including equal work, equal 
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value, source and manner of appointment, equal identity of 

group and wholesale or complete identity.ó 

16 .   It would also be profitable to reproduce para 13 of the 

judgment rendered by the Apex Court in New Delhi Municipal Council Vs. Pan 

Singh & Ors.,  reported in  2007 AIR SCW 1705, herein:  

ò13. They, thus, formed a class by themselves.  A cut-off date having 

been fixed by the Tribunal, those who were thus not similarly situated, 

were to be treated to have  formed a different class.  They could not be 

treated alike with the others.  The High Court, unfortunately, has not 

considered this aspect of the matter.ó 

17 .   The Apex Court in a case titled as State of Haryana and 

others Vs. Charanjit Singh and others etc. etc., reported in  AIR 2006 

Supreme Court 161, held that the principle of 'equal pay for equal work' has no 

mechanical application in every case.  It is apt to reproduce para 17 of the 

judgment herein:  

ò17. Having considered the authorities and the sub missions we are of 

the view that the authorities in the cases of Jasmer Singh, Tilak Raj, 

Orissa University of Agriculture & Technology and Tarun K. Roy lay 

down the correct law. Undoubtedly, the doctrine of "equal pay for 

equal work" is not an abstract do ctrine and is capable of being 

enforced in a Court of law. But equal pay must be for equal work of 

equal value. The principle of "equal pay for equal work" has no 

mechanical application in every case. Article 14 permits reasonable 

classification based on q ualities or characteristics of persons recruited 

and grouped together, as against those who were left out. Of course, 

the qualities or characteristics must have a reasonable relation to the 

object sought to be achieved. In service matters, merit or experie nce 

can be a proper basis for classification for the purposes of pay in order 

to promote efficiency in administration. A higher pay scale to avoid 

stagnation or resultant frustration for lack of promotional avenues is 

also an acceptable reason for pay diff erentiation. The very fact that 

the person has not gone through the process of recruitment may itself, 

in certain cases, make a difference. If the educational qualifications 

are different, then also the doctrine may have no application. Even 

though persons  may do the same work, their quality of work may 

differ. Where persons are selected by a Selection Committee on the 

basis of merit with due regard to seniority a higher pay scale granted 

to such persons who are evaluated by competent authority cannot be 

challenged. A classification based on difference in educational 

qualifications justifies a difference in pay scales. A mere nomenclature 

designating a person as say a carpenter or a craftsman is not enough 

to come to the conclusion that he is doing the same work as another 
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carpenter or craftsman in regular service. The quality of work which is 

produced may be different and even the nature of work assigned may 

be different. It is not just a comparison of physical activity. The 

application of the principle of " equal pay for equal work" requires 

consideration of various dimensions of a given job. The accuracy 

required and the dexterity that the job may entail may differ from job 

to job. It cannot be judged by the mere volume of work.  There may be 

qualitative dif ference as regards reliability and responsibility. 

Functions may be the same but the responsibilities made a difference. 

Thus normally the applicability of this principle must be left to be 

evaluated and determined by an expert body. These are not matters 

where a writ court can lightly interfere. Normally a party claiming 

equal pay for equal work should be required to raise a dispute in this 

regards. In any event the party who claims equal pay for equal work 

has to make necessary averments and prove that al l things are equal. 

Thus, before any direction can be issued by a Court, the Court must 

first see that there are necessary averments and there is a proof. If the 

High Court, is on basis of material placed before it, convinced that 

there was equal work of e qual quality and all other relevant factors 

are fulfilled it may direct payment of equal pay from the date of the 

filing of the respective Writ Petition. In all these cases, we find that the 

High Court has blindly proceeded on the basis that the doctrine o f 

equal pay for equal work applies without examining any relevant 

factors.ó 

18 .   A Division Bench of this Court in a case titled as Roshan Lal 

Vs. Hon'ble High Court of Himachal Pradesh and another, being  CWP No. 873 

of 1993, decided on 27 th  October, 1994 , held that even if a post of one cadre is 

created in two departments and different pay scales are granted, that cannot be a 

ground to claim parity.  In order to claim parity, the writ petitioners have to 

indicate that their jobs, duties, responsibilities and functions are similar.  In this 

case, the Court has examined whether the post of Book Binder sanctioned in the 

High Court and Secretariat of the State Government and in other departments are 

entitled to same pay scale?  No doubt, the post of Book Binde r was created in all 

these departments, but it was held that it is for the writ petitioner to plead and 

prove that he was performing the same type of work and responsibilities and other 

factors are similar.  This Court, after discussing all facts and facto rs, rejected the 

plea for grant of parity and the writ petition was dismissed.  It is apt to reproduce 

relevant portion of the judgment herein:  

òHaving heard the learned counsel for the petitioner, we find no 

justification in the submission.  It is too muc h of the employee of the 

High Court to claim that the High Court should be equated with the 

Printing and Stationery Department of the State Government. Even on 
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the basis of job, there would be no similarity. The Printing and 

Stationery Department would hav e continuous and different varieties 

of work needing a different type of Book -Binder than the Book -Binder 

in the High Court.ó    

19 .   A similar question has also arisen in a recent case     titled as 

Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board Vs. Rajinder Upadhaya & others, 

being  LPA No. 51 of 2009, decided on  11 th  September,  2014,  and  after  

discussing  the  law, it has been held by this Court that in order to claim parity, 

the writ petitioner has to indicate that their functions, responsibilities and the 

duties are similar.  It is apt to reproduce para 30 of the judgment herein:  

ò30. It was for the writ petitioners to plead, marshal and prove that 

they were performing the similar duties as the Circ le Scale 

Superintendent was performing and the duties, which are being 

performed by the Law Officer Grade -I are being performed by them 

also.ó 

20 .   Viewed thus, the writ petitioner has failed to carve out a case 

for grant of parity.   

21 .   In view of the  above discussions, the learned Single Judge has 

fallen in error in allowing the writ petition and quashing the decision of the State 

in rejecting the writ petitioner's claim vide Annexure A -10.  

22 .  Having glance of the above discussions, the impugned 

jud gment merits to be set aside.  Accordingly, the appeal is allowed, the impugned 

judgment is set aside and the writ petition is dismissed.   Pending applications, if 

any, are also disposed of.  

 

  ***********************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SANJAY KAROL, J. & HONõBLE MR. 

JUSTICE P.S. RANA, J.  

State of H.P.     .é.Appellant. 

     Vs.  

Brij Mohan @ Biju S/o Sh Lokpal.  é..Respondent. 

 

    Cr. Appeal No. 482 of  2008.  

    Judgment reserved on:28.07.2014  

    Date of Decision: 22.09.2014  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 376 -  Prosecutrix, a student of 5th class, was 

raped by the accused - pregnancy test was found to be positive, but the 
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prosecutrix had spontaneous abortion -  the prosecutrix stated before the Court 

that accused had not done anything to her - she admitted in her cross -

examination that she was making a tutored version - her mother also stated that 

prosecutrix  had not disclosed to her that accused had raped her - her father  also 

denied the prosecution version - medical examination  did not support the 

prosecution version - held, that the Trial Court had rightly acquitted the accused.  

         (Para 11 to 15)  

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 378 - Appeal against acquittal - the 

Appellate Court should not set aside the judgment of acquittal when two views are 

possible - the Court must come to the conclusion that the view of the Trial Court 

was perverse or otherwise unsustainable - the Court is to see whether any 

inadmissible evidence has been taken into consideration and can interf ere only 

when it finds so.      (Para 16 ) 
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 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

P.S.Rana, Judge.  

 Present appeal is filed against the judgment passed by learned 

Additional Sessions Judge Shimla HP in Sess ions Trial No. 23 -R/7 of 2007 titled 

State of HP Vs. Brij Mohan decided on 19.4.2008.  

BRIEF FACTS OF THE PROSECUTION CASE:  

2.  Brief facts of the case as alleged by prosecution are that on 

dated 4.11.2006 and 6.11.2006 at Khauni rivulet accused namely Bri j Mohan 

committed rape upon prosecutrix. It is further alleged by prosecution that on the 

aforesaid date, time and place the accused also intimidated the prosecutrix and 

threatened her that he would kill the prosecutrix if the prosecutrix disclose the 

fact um of rape to her parents. It is further alleged by prosecution that prosecutrix 

was the student of 5 th  class and was studying in Sawarna High School. It is 

further alleged by prosecution that accused used to tease the prosecutrix. It is 

further alleged by  prosecution that prosecutrix did not menstruate and her 

mother inquired to know from her the reason upon which prosecutrix disclosed 

that accused committed rape upon her. It is further alleged by prosecution that 

MLC Ext PW5/A was conducted and pregnancy test of the prosecutrix was found 

positive. It is alleged by prosecution that prosecutrix had spontaneous abortion. 

The clothes of the prosecutrix were took into possession vide memo Ext PW1/B. It 

is further alleged by prosecution that site plans Ext PW11/ A, Ext PW11/B and 

Ext PW11/D were prepared by the Investigating Officer. It is alleged by 

prosecution that birth certificate of the prosecutrix was also obtained vide memo 

Ext PW11/E. It is further alleged by prosecution that the copies of the admission 

and withdrawal register Ext PC and Ext PD and copy of attendance register Ext 

PH were also obtained. It is further alleged by prosecution that sample of hairs of 

prosecutrix and accused were took into possession. It is further alleged by 

prosecution that rep ort of Forensic Science Laboratory is Ext PW11/G. It is 

further alleged by prosecution that the hairs of the accused and prosecutrix were 

sent to Forensic Science Laboratory Junga.  Accused did not plead guilty and 

claimed trial.  

3 .   The prosecution exami ned as many as eleven witnesses in 

support of its case:    

Sr.No.  Name of Witness  

PW1 Jagriti  

PW2 Smt.Bhagpatti  
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PW3 Sh Onkar Chand  

PW4 Sh Deepak  

PW5 Dr. Usha Darcho  

PW6 Dr.Sumeet Attri  

PW7 Ms. Dayawanti  

PW8 Sh Sanjeev Kumar C.No.1272  

PW9 Sh Sanjeev Kumar C.No.198  

PW10 Sh Rustam Alli  

PW11 Sh Ram Rattan  

 

4 .  Prosecution also produced following piece of documentary 

evidence in support of its case: -    

Sr.No. Description:  

Ext. PW1/A  Copy of FIR  

Ext. PW1/B  Recovery memo of Salwar and Shirt.  

Ext. PW5/A  MLC of prosecutrix.  

Ext. PW5/B  Copy of application moved to M.O.  

Ext. PW5/C  Copy of application moved to M.O.  

Ext. PW5/D  MLC of prosecutrix.  

Ext. PW6/A  Copy of application moved to M.O.  

Ext. PW6/B  MLC of Brij Mohan accused  

Ext. PW10/A  Statement of Bhagmati u/s 161, 

Cr.P.C.  

Ext. PA Copy of family Registrar  

Ext. PB  Birth certificate of prosecutrix.  

Ext. PC Copy of admission and  withdrawal 

register of Govt. Primary School, 

Chanderpur.  

Ext. PD Copy of admission and withdrawal 

register  of Govt. primary School, 

Sarswatinagar.  
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Ext. PE  Birth certificate of prosecutrix.  

Ext. PF Copy of family Register.  

Ext. PG Birth certificate of Brij Mohan 

accused.  

Ext. PH  Copy of attendance register.  

Ext. PJ   Copy of attendance register  

Ext. PW11/A  Site plan  

Ext. PW11/B  Site plan  

Ext. PW11/C  Seal impression  

Ext. PW11/D  Site plan  

Ext. PW11/E  Seizure memo  

Ext. PW11/F  Seizure memo  

Ext. PW11/G  FSL report  

Ext. PW11/H  Statement of Bhagwati u/s 161  

Cr.P.C. 

Ext. PW11/J  Statement of Deepak Kumar u/s 161 

Cr.P.C. 

Ext. PW11/K  Statement of Onkar u/s 161,Cr.P.C.  

 

5.   The statement of accused was also recorded under Section 

313 Cr.P.C. Accused did not examine any defence witness. Learned trial Court 

acquitted the accused qua charge under Section 376 IPC.   

6.  Feeling aggrieved against the judgment passed by learned 

Tri al Court appellant filed present appeal.  

7.  We have heard learned Additional Advocate General appearing 

on behalf of the appellant and learned Advocate appearing on behalf of respondent 

and also gone through the entire record carefully.  

8.  Question that a rises for determination before us is whether 

learned trial Court did not properly appreciate oral as well as documentary 

evidence placed on record and whether learned trial Court had committed 

miscarriage of justice.  

ORAL EVIDENCE ADDUCED BY PROSECUTION:  
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9.  PW1 prosecutrix has stated that in the year 2006 she was 

student of 5 th  class in primary school Sawarna. She has stated that accused did 

not do anything to her. She has thereafter stated that in the year 2006 accused 

present in Court took her forcibly t o a river and committed rape upon her. She 

has stated that accused also threaten her to kill her in case she disclosed the 

incident to her parents. She has stated that when she did not menstruate her 

mother enquired reason and thereafter prosecutrix told h er mother about the rape 

committed by accused. She has stated that she did not disclose the factum of rape 

earlier to her mother because she was afraid due to threatening given by accused. 

She has stated that she was medically examined. She has stated that  investigating 

agency took into possession her school uniform vide memo Ext. PW1/B. She has 

identified her salwar Ext P1 and shirt Ext P2 which were took into possession. She 

has denied suggestion that accused did not commit rape upon her.  

9.1  PW2 Smt Bha gpatti has stated that prosecutrix is her 

daughter. She has stated that one year ago prosecutrix told her that Vicky and 

accused Biju present in Court intercepted prosecutrix when she was going to 

school. She has stated that Vicky and accused Biju used to catch her by her arm. 

She denied suggestion that prosecutrix told her that she was raped by Vicky and 

accused Biju. She denied suggestion that prosecutrix told her that due to fear 

prosecutrix did not disclose the name of the accused earlier. She denied 

su ggestion that in order to save the accused she has resiled from her earlier 

statement. She admitted that accused belongs to well to do family and accused 

has sufficient property.  

9.2  PW3 Onkar Chand has stated that prosecutrix is his 

daughter. He has stat ed that on dated 7.11.2006 he and his wife took prosecutrix 

to police station Jubbal. He has stated that he does not know what the 

prosecutrix told to police officials. He has denied suggestion that prosecutrix was 

raped by Vicky and accused Biju. He has a dmitted that miscarriage took place to 

the prosecutrix. He denied suggestion that in order to save accused he has resiled 

from his earlier statement. Accused had given statement that he has no objection 

if copy of family register, copies of admission and w ithdrawal register based on 

school record and birth certificate issued by Panchayat Secretary and copy of 

attendance register of school are read in evidence. In view of the statement of 

accused learned Public Prosecutor tendered family register Ext PA, bir th certificate 

Ext PB, copies of admission and withdrawal registers Ext PC and Ext PD, birth 

certificate Ext PE, copy of family register of accused Ext PF, birth certificate of 

accused Ext PG and copies of school attendance register Ext PH and PJ.  

9.3.  PW4 Deepak  has stated that police officials showed him some 

clothes. He has stated that clothes belong to prosecutrix. He has stated that police 

obtained his signature on a paper. He has stated that prosecutrix did not explain 

anything to the police in his p resence. He has denied suggestion that in order to 

save the accused he has resiled from his earlier statement.  
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9.4  PW5 Dr.Usha Darcho has stated that she was posted as 

Medical Officer in Civil Hospital Jubbal since January 2005. She has stated that 

on dat ed 7.11.2006 prosecutrix was brought to her by lady constable Dayawanti 

with the alleged history of sexual assault. She has stated that prosecutrix 

narrated the sexual assault committed upon her on dated 4.11.2006 and 

6.11.2006 by Vicky and accused Biju. S he has stated that prosecutrix had taken 

bath after sexual assault. She has stated that urination and defecation  habits 

were normal. She has stated that on examination of the prosecutrix she was 

conscious and well oriented to place person and time. She has  stated that gait was 

normal and other secondary sexual organs were also normal. She has stated that 

vaginal orifice admitted one finger. She has stated that prosecutrix was advised for 

urine test for determination of pregnancy. She has stated that pregnan cy test of 

prosecutrix was found positive. She has stated that as per test report sperm was 

not found. She has stated that there were recent signs of vaginal penetration. She 

has stated that pubic hair, vaginal smear slides and underwear were kept 

preserve d and handed over to police official for chemical examination. She has 

stated that as per chemical examiner no semen/blood was found over the 

samples. She has stated that she issued MLC Ext PW5/A which bears her 

signature. She has stated that again police moved an application to conduct 

medical examination of the prosecutrix. She has stated that prosecutrix fell down 

when she was lifting basket of dung and after some time spontaneous vaginal 

bleeding started. She has stated that prosecutrix had sustained sp ontaneous 

abortion. She has stated that she issued MLC Ext PW5/D. She has stated that 

spermatozoa could be detected in the vagina within three hours from the 

intercourse and dead spermatozoa could be detected in the vagina for 3/4 days. 

She has stated that  as per FSL report no spermatozoa alive or dead were found.  

9.5  PW6 Dr.Sumeet Atri has stated that he was posted as Medical 

Officer in CHC Sarswati Nagar since August 2006. He has stated that police 

moved an application for medical examination of accused.  He has stated that he 

examined the accused and issued MLC Ext.PW6/A. He has stated that accused 

was capable of performing sexual act. He has stated that he took samples as 

mentioned in MLC Ext PW6/B and the same were handed over to investigating 

agency fo r forwarding the same to Forensic Science Laboratory.  

9.6  PW7 Constable Dayawanti has stated that she was posted as 

constable in Police Station Jubbal since 27.9.2004. She has stated that on dated 

7.11.2006 she took prosecutrix to Civil Hospital Jubbal fo r medical examination. 

She has stated that after medical examination two parcels and an envelope were 

handed over to her and she deposited the parcels and envelope to MHC Jubbal.  

 9.7  PW8 Constable Sanjeev Kumar has stated that he was posted 

as Constable in police station Jubbal since 4.6.2006. He has stated that on dated 

12.11.2006 MHC police station Jubbal handed over to him sixteen parcels and 

three envelopes duly sealed vide RC No. 65/2006 for being carried to FSL Junga 
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which he deposited at FSL Junga in the same condition on dated 13.6.2006. He 

has stated that case property was not tampered while it remained in his custody.  

9.8  PW9 HC Sanjeev Kumar has stated that he was posted as 

MHC in police station Jubbal since March 2006 till October 2007. He has  stated 

that on dated 7.11.2006 lady constable Dayawanti deposited with him two parcels 

and an envelope sealed with seal JH. He has stated that on dated 12.11.2006 he 

handed over all the parcels and envelopes to Constable Sanjeev Kumar for being 

carried to  FSL Junga vide RC No. 65/2006. He has stated that on dated 

16.11.2006 constable Sanjeev Kumar returned to him the RC on which he had 

obtained receipt. He has stated that case property was not tampered with so long 

it remained in his custody.  

9.9  PW10 Rus tam Alli has stated that he was posted as Incharge 

in police post Swarswati Nagar from May 2006 to April 2007. He has stated that 

on dated 8.11.2006 the file was handed over to him for investigation. He has 

stated that investigation pertains mainly to Hari sh alias Vicky who is not accused 

in present case. He has stated that he obtained birth certificates of accused Brij 

Mohan and prosecutrix. He has stated that he recorded the statements of 

Panchayat secretary and school teachers under Section 161 Cr PC. He  has stated 

that prosecutrix was medically examined on dated 6.1.2007 at Jubbal. He has 

stated that on dated 8.1.2007 he recorded supplementary statements of 

prosecutrix and her parents. He has stated that statement of Bhagpati Ext 

PW10/A was recorded as p er version given by her. He denied suggestion that he 

recorded the statement Ext PW10/A according to his own version. He denied 

suggestion that it came in his investigation that accused Brij Mohan was not 

connected with the offence.  

 9.10  PW11 Ram Rattan has stated that he was posted as 

Inspector/SHO in police station Jubbal since 2006 to 2007. He has stated that on 

dated 7.11.2006 prosecutrix arrived at police station along with her parents and 

lodged FIR Ext PW1/A. He has stated that prosecutrix was sent  to Civil Hospital 

Jubbal for medical examination and MLC Ext PW5/A was obtained. He has stated 

that he prepared site plan Ext PW11/A as per location shown by prosecutrix. He 

has stated that prosecutrix also produced clothes which were took into possession  

vide memo Ext PW1/B. He has stated that he also prepared site plan Ext PW11/D 

and also obtained birth certificate of the prosecutrix from gram panchayat vide 

memo Ext PW11/E. He has stated that school leaving certificate of prosecutrix 

was obtained from p rimary school Sawara which was took into possession vide 

memo Ext PW11/F. He has stated that report of FSL is Ext PW11/G. He has 

stated that he recorded the statements of the prosecution witnesses as per their 

versions. He denied suggestion that no report was lodged in police station. He 

denied suggestion that he recorded the statements of the prosecution witnesses as 

per his own version. He has stated that he obtained signatures of the witnesses 
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upon blank papers.  He denied suggestion that accused has bee n falsely 

implicated in the present case.  

10.  Submission of learned Additional Advocate General appearing 

on behalf of the appellant that  testimony of  prosecutrix has not been properly 

appreciated by learned trial Court and further submission of learned  Addl. 

Advocate General that accused be convicted on the testimony of prosecutrix is 

rejected being devoid of any force for the reason hereinafter mentioned. Court has 

carefully perused the testimony of the prosecutrix. It is well settled law that 

testimon y of the witness should be read as a whole and should not be read in 

isolation. After careful perusal of the testimony of the prosecutrix as a whole we 

are of the opinion that it is not expedient in the ends of justice to convict the 

accused on the testimo ny of prosecutrix.  

(A) Testimony of the prosecutrix did not inspire confidence of the Court due to 

contradictory statement in examination in  chief and cross examination.  

11 . We have perused the testimony of prosecutrix carefully. 

Prosecutrix has specifica lly stated in examination in chief when she appeared 

before learned trial court that accused Brij Mohan and Vicky did not do anything 

to her. Prosecutrix has also stated in her cross examination that she has given 

tutored statement and not the truth versio n. In view of the admission of the 

prosecutrix that she is giving tutored version and not the truth version it is not 

expedient in the ends of justice to convict the accused. We hold that testimony of 

prosecutrix did not inspire confidence of Court.   

(B) Testimony of PW2 Smt Bhagpatti mother of the prosecutrix  is also fatal to the 

prosecution case.   

12.  Even PW2 Smt Bhagpatti mother of the prosecutrix did not 

support the prosecution case. PW2 has stated in positive manner when she 

appeared before learned t rial Court that prosecutrix did not narrate the incident of 

rape. PW2 Smt Bhagpatti has specifically stated in positive manner that 

prosecutrix did not disclose to her that Vicky and Biju have raped her. She has 

also stated in positive manner that prosecut rix did not locate the place where 

prosecutrix was raped. She has also stated that prosecutrix does not know the 

meaning of rape. In view of the above stated facts it is held that the testimony of 

PW2 Smt Bhagpatti mother of the prosecutrix is also fatal t o the prosecution case 

and same also did not inspire confidence of Court.  

(C) Testimony of PW3 Onkar Chand father of the prosecutrix is also fatal to the 

prosecution .   

13.  PW3 Onkar Chand has specifically stated in positive manner 

that he does not know w hat the prosecutrix told to the investigating agency. He 

has denied suggestion that prosecutrix informed his wife about the rape 

committed by Vicky and accused Biju.  Even PW3 Onkar Chand father of the 
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prosecutrix did not support the case of the prosecutio n as alleged by the 

prosecution. PW3 was declared hostile by the prosecution and he was cross 

examined at length but no incriminating  evidence  against the accused came after 

lengthy cross examination of the father of prosecutrix by prosecution. Hence it is  

held that testimony of PW3 Onkar Chand is also fatal to the prosecution case. As 

per prosecution story the incident took place on dated 4.11.2006 and 6.11.2006 

and medical examination of the prosecutrix was conducted on dated 7.11.2006 

and in the MLC repo rt the age of the prosecutrix has been shown as 17 years. The 

accused was also medically examined on dated 8.11.2006 and as per MLC report 

Ext PW6/B the age of accused Brij Mohan has been shown as 18 years.    

(D) FSL report placed on record has also becom e fatal to the prosecution case.  

14 . As per chemical analyst report Ext PW11/G the blood and 

semen were not found upon pubic hair, vaginal slide, underwear, shirt and salwar 

of the prosecutrix and also upon the shirt and pubic hair of the accused.  

(E) MLC  certificate of prosecutrix ruled out presence of dead or alive spermatozoa 

in the vagina of the prosecutrix which is  fatal to the prosecution case .  

15.  It is the case of the prosecution that rape was committed upon 

the prosecutrix on dated 4.11.2006 and 6.11.2006 by accused person. It is proved 

on record that prosecutrix was medically examined on dated 7.11.2006 at 2.40 PM 

by Dr. Usha Darcho Medical Officer who was posted at Civil Hospital Jubbal. PW5 

Dr Usha Darcho has stated in positive manner when she appeared in witness box 

that as per FSL report no spermatozoa alive or dead were found in the vaginal 

swab of the prosecutrix. PW5 Dr Usha Darcho has specifically stated that alive 

spermatozoa could be detected in the vaginal swab for three hours after 

int ercourse and dead spermatozoa could be detected for about 3/4 days. 

Prosecutrix was examined on the next day of the alleged sexual intercourse and 

no dead spermatozoa were found in the vaginal swab of the prosecutrix which is 

fatal to the prosecution case.   

16.  It is well settled principle of law that vested right accrued in 

favour of the accused with the judgment of acquittal by learned trial Court. (See 

(2013) 2 SCC 89 titled Mookkiah and another Vs. State . See 2011 (11) SCC 

666 titled State of Rajashthan  Vs. Talevar and another . See  AIR 2012 SC 

(Supp) 78 titled Surendra Vs. State of Rajasthan . See 2012 (1) SCC 602 titled 

State of Rajasthan Vs. Shera Ram @ Vishnu Dutt ). It is well settled principle of 

law (i) That appellate Court should not ordinarily set  aside a judgment of acquittal 

in a case where two views are possible though the view of the appellate Court may 

be more probable. (ii) That while dealing with a judgment of acquittal the appellate 

Court must consider entire evidence on record so as to arr ive at a finding as to 

whether views of learned trial Court are perverse or otherwise unsustainable (iii) 

That appellate Court is entitled to consider whether in arriving at a finding of fact, 

learned trial Court failed to take into consideration any admis sible fact (iv) That 
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learned trial court took into consideration in admissible evidence. (See AIR 1974 

SC 2165  titled Balak Ram and another Vs. State of UP , See  (2002) 3 SCC 57  

titled Allarakha K. Mansuri Vs. State of Gujarat , See  (2003) 1 SCC 398 titl ed 

Raghunath Vs. State of Haryana , See AIR 2007 SC 3075 State of U.P Vs. Ram 

Veer Singh and others ,  See  AIR 2008 SC 2066, (2008) 11 SCC 186 S.Rama 

Krishna Vs. S.Rami Raddy (D) by his LRs. & others . Sambhaji Hindurao 

Deshmukh and others Vs. State of Mahar ashtra , See   (2009)  10 SCC 206 

titled Arulvelu and another Vs. State ,  See (2009) 16 SCC 98 titled Perla 

Somasekhara Reddy and others Vs. State of A.P , See:(2010) 2 SCC 445  titled 

Ram Singh @ Chhaju Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh ). It was held in case 

reported in (2005) 9 SCC 765 titled Anjlus  Dungdung Vs  State of Jharkhand   

that suspicion however strong cannot take place of proof. It was held in case 

reported in  (2010) 11 SCC 423 titled Nanhar Vs. State of Haryana  that 

prosecution must stand or fall on  its own leg and it cannot derive any strength 

from the weakness of defence. Also See (1984) 4 SCC 116 titled Sharad 

Birdhichand Sarda Vs. State of Maharashtra ). It was held in case reported in 

AIR 1979 SC 1382 titled State (Delhi Administration) Vs. Gulza rilal Tandon  

that moral conviction however strong cannot amount to legal conviction 

sustainable in law. (See AIR 1984 SC 1622 titled Sharad Birdhichand Sarda 

Vs. State of Maharashtra . See AIR 1983 SC 906 titled Bhugdomal Gangaram 

and others etc Vs. The Sta te of Gujarat . Also See AIR 1985 SC 1224 titled 

State of UP Vs. Sukhbasi and others )         

17.  In view of the above stated facts the judgment passed by 

learned trial Court is affirmed and appeal filed by appellant -State is dismissed. 

Benefit of doubt is given to accused in the present case keeping in view the entire 

facts and circumstances of the present case.  All pending application(s) if any are 

also disposed of.  

 ********************************  

  BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE TARLOK SINGH CHAUHAN, J. 

Pyara Singh      éPetitioner  

   Vs.  

State of Himachal Pradesh   éRespondent 

 

Cr.M.P.(M) Nos. 1058 of 2014 a/w Ors.  

Reserved on: 19.9.2014  

Date of Decision: 23.09.2014.  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 439 - FIR for the commission of 

offence punis hable under Section 304/34 IPC was registered against the 

petitioners - held that while granting bail, the Court has to see the nature and 

gravity of the accusation, severity of the punishment in the case of conviction, 
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nature of supporting evidence, reason able apprehension of tampering of the 

witness or apprehension of threat to the complainant and prima facie evidence in 

support of the charges - offence punishable under Section 304/34 IPC is a grave 

offence - petitioner was a habitual offender against whom t hree cases had already 

been registered and other petitioners had created an atmosphere of fear due to 

which deceased died of heart attack - conduct of the petitioners would disentitle 

them to be released on bail - petition dismissed.                       (Para - 8 & 9)  

 

Cases referred:  

Govind Sagar Vs. State of H.P. 2014 (2) Him.L.R., 1127  

State of Maharashtra Vs. Captain Buddhikota Subha Rao, AIR 1989 SC 2299  

Kalyan Chandra Sarkar Vs. Rajesh Ranjan alias Pappu Yadav and another, AIR 

2004 SC 1866  

 

For the Peti tioner(s):  Mr.Ramakant Sharma, Advocate.              

For the Respondent:  Mr.Virender Kumar Verma, Additional Advocate  

General with Ms.Parul Negi, Deputy Advocate General.  

ASI Mohar Singh, I.O. Police Station, Paonta Sahib in 

person.    

          

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Justice Tarlok Singh Chauhan J.    

 The petitioners have approached this Court for grant of bail in 

respect of FIR No. 213 of 2014, dated 6.6.2014 registered at Police Station Paonta 

Sahib, District Sirmour u nder Section 304/34 I.P.C.   

2.   Notice of the petitions was given to the State.  Today the 

Additional Advocate General has filed the status report and also produced the 

records of the investigation.  Mr. Virender Kumar Verma, learned Additional 

Advocate G eneral has strenuously argued that the accused Pyara Singh is a 

habitual offender, against whom three cases have already been registered on 

different occasions and taking into consideration his criminal history, he should 

not be enlarged on bail.  In so fa r as the other co -petitioners are concerned, it has 

been claimed that despite being fully aware of the fact that the deceased Inder Pal 

Singh was a heart patient, yet they not only physically assaulted him, but created 

an atmosphere, full of threat and fea r, resulting in his death due to heart attack.   

3.   The prosecution case in brief is that on 6.6.2014 police 

received information from 108 Ambulance service that an injured has been taken 

to Civil Hospital, Paonta Sahib, who had been beaten up.  As such, the police 
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visited Civil Hospital, Paonta Sahib, where Gurinder Pal Singh gave statement 

under Section 154 Cr.P.C. to ASP (P), IPS, Sh.Rohit Malpani, wherein he stated 

that he was a transporter and having two brothers.  Inder Pal Singh was the eldest 

while  Harpreet Singh was the younger brother.  His brother Inder Pal Singh was a 

heart  patient  for  the  last  one and half years and was under treatment at 

Patiala and Mulana M.M. Hospital.  He was having a truck Tata 407 No. H.P -63-

4108. His brother Harpree t Singh had gone to Truck Union, Taruwala for 

collecting money.  His elder brother Inder Pal Singh had to take Rs.10,000/ - from 

Pyara Singh and his sons. On 6.6.2014 his brother Harpreet Singh called Inder 

Pal Singh in the office of the Union for settling the accounts and accordingly he 

along with Inder Pal Singh visited the office of Truck Union, Taruwala on their 

motorcycle.  At about 1 Oõclock Pyara Singh and his both sons started hurling 

abuses to Inder Pal Singh and the accused Avtar Singh alias Goldy tried to inflict 

a blow upon Inder Pal Singh. He told the accused not to hit his brother Inder Pal 

Singh and specifically informed them that he was a heart patient and therefore, no 

force should be used against him, but the accused persons paid no heed to this 

and started giving beatings to Inder Pal Singh with fist blows, who fell down on the 

floor and become unconscious. Virender, Bachiter and his younger brother 

Harpreet Singh tried to give some water to Inder Pal Singh, but he did not respond 

and was im mediately taken to hospital, while the accused ran away from the spot.   

The Medical Officer declared Inder Pal Singh dead and as such, this case came to 

be registered against the accused under Section 304/34 I.P.C.  

4.   Sh. Ramakant Sharma, learned counse l for the petitioners 

strenuously argued that the provisions of Section 304 I.P.C. would not attract to 

the facts of the present case, especially when the deceased admittedly died of 

myocardial infarction and not because of the beatings given by the accuse d.  

Further stated that taking the prosecution story as it is, it cannot be said that the 

petitioners had committed injuries to kill the deceased, in fact the petitioners had 

not even inflicted any injury on the person of the deceased, which is further 

cor roborated by the medical evidence.   He would also contend that no recoveries 

are required to be effected and the petitioners are unnecessarily languishing in the 

jail since 6.6.2014.   He would also contend that the bail is the rule while jail is 

the exce ption and would further place reliance on the judgment of this Court in 

Govind Sagar Vs. State of H.P. 2014 (2) Him.L.R., 1127 , wherein this Court 

has held as under: - 

ò5.     What probably has been over -looked by Mr. Verma is the fact 

that the object of bail is only to secure the appearance of the accused 

person at the time of trial by granting reasonable amount of bail. 

Therefore, the object of bail is neither punitive nor pre ventative. At 

this stage deprivation of liberty will have to be considered a 

punishment, unless of course, the presence of the accused person 

cannot be secured. The Courts owe more than verbal respect to the 
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principle that punishment begins after convictio n, and that every 

man is deemed to be innocent until duly tried and duly found guilty.   

Even otherwise, the law with regard to bail is now well settled. As 

early as in the year 1978, the Honõble Supreme Court in Gurcharan 

Singh vs. State (Delhi Administra tion) (1978) 1 SCC 118  laid the 

following criteria for grant of bail:  

"22.  In other non -bailable cases the Court will exercise its 

judicial discretion in favour of granting bail subject to sub - 

section (3) of Section 437 CrPC if it deems necessary to act  under 

it. Unless exceptional circumstances are brought to the notice of 

the Court which may defeat proper investigation and a fair trial, 

the Court will not decline to grant bail to a person who is not 

accused of an offence punishable with death or impris onment for 

life. It is also clear that when an accused is brought before the 

Court of a Magistrate with the allegation against him of an 

offence punishable with death or imprisonment for life, he has 

ordinarily no option in the matter but to refuse bail su bject, 

however, to the first proviso to Section 437(1) CrPC and in a case 

where the Magistrate entertains a reasonable belief on the 

materials that the accused has not been guilty of such an offence. 

This will, however, be an extraordinary occasion since t here will 

be some materials at the stage of initial arrest, for the accusation 

or for strong suspicion of commission by the person of such an 

offence.  

******  

24.       Section 439(1) CrPC of the new Code, on the other hand, 

confers special powers on the Hig h Court or the Court of Session 

in respect of bail. Unlike under Section 437(1) there is no ban 

imposed under Section 439(1), CrPC against granting of bail by 

the High Court or the Court of Session to persons accused of an 

offence punishable with death or imprisonment for life. It is, 

however, legitimate to suppose that the High Court or the Court 

of Session will be approached by an accused only after he has 

failed before the Magistrate and after the investigation has 

progressed throwing light on the eviden ce and circumstances 

implicating the accused. Even so, the High Court or the Court of 

Session will have to exercise its judicial discretion in considering 

the question of granting of bail under Section 439(1) CrPC of the 

new Code. The overriding considerat ions in granting bail to which 

we adverted to earlier and which are common both in the case of 

Section 437(1) and Section 439(1) CrPC of the new Code are the 

nature and gravity of the circumstances in which the offence is 
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committed; the position and the st atus of the accused with 

reference to the victim and the witnesses; the likelihood, of the 

accused fleeing from justice; of repeating the offence; of 

jeopardising his own life being faced with a grim prospect of 

possible conviction in the case; of tamperin g with witnesses; the 

history of the case as well as of its investigation and other 

relevant grounds which, in view of so many valuable factors, 

cannot be exhaustively set out."  

6.    The Honõble Apex Court in Prasanta Kumar Sarkar versus 

Ashish Chatterje e and another, (2010) 14 SCC 496 , has laid 

down the following principles to be kept in mind, while deciding 

petition for bail:  

(i)  whether there is any prima facie or reasonable ground to believe 

that the accused had committed the offence;  

(ii)  nature and gravity of the accusation;  

(iii)  severity of the punishment in the event of conviction;  

(iv)  danger of the accused absconding or fleeing, if released on bail;  

(v)  character, behaviour, means, position and standing of the 

accused;  

(vi)  ikelihood  of the offence being repeated;  

(vii)  reasonable apprehension of the witnesses being influenced; and  

(viii) danger, of course, of justice being thwarted by grant of bail.  

7.  Thereafter, in a detailed judgment, the Honõble Supreme Court in  

Siddharam S atlingappa Mhetre versus State of Maharashtra 

and others, (2011) 1 SCC 694 , while relying upon its decision 

rendered by its Constitution Bench in Gurbaksh Singh Sibbia vs. 

State of Punjab, (1980) 2 SCC 565, laid down the following 

parameters for grant of b ail: -  

ò111. No inflexible guidelines or straitjacket formula can be provided 

for grant or refusal of anticipatory bail. We are clearly of the view 

that no attempt should be made to provide rigid and inflexible 

guidelines in this respect because all circum stances and situations 

of future cannot be clearly visualized for the grant or refusal of 

anticipatory bail. In consonance with the legislative intention the 

grant or refusal of anticipatory bail should necessarily depend on 

facts and circumstances of each  case. As aptly observed in the 

Constitution Bench decision in Sibbia's case (supra) that the High 

Court or the Court of Sessions to exercise their jurisdiction under 

section 438 Cr.P.C. by a wise and careful use of their discretion 

which by their long tra ining and experience they are ideally suited to 
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do. In any event, this is the legislative mandate which we are bound 

to respect and honour.  

112.  The following factors and parameters can be taken into 

consideration while dealing with the anticipatory bail:   

(i)  The nature and gravity of the accusation and the exact role of the 

accused must be properly comprehended before arrest is made;  

(ii) The antecedents of the applicant including the fact as to whether 

the accused has previously undergone imprisonment  on conviction 

by a Court in respect of any cognizable offence;  

(iii)  The possibility of the applicant to flee from justice;  

(iv)  The possibility of the accused's likelihood to repeat similar or the 

other offences.  

(v)  Where the accusations have been  made only with the object of 

injuring or humiliating the applicant by arresting him or her.  

(vi)  Impact of grant of anticipatory bail particularly in cases of large 

magnitude affecting a very large number of people.  

(vii)  The courts must evaluate the entire available material against 

the accused very carefully. The court must also clearly comprehend 

the exact role of the accused in the case. The cases in which accused 

is implicated with the help of sections 34 and 14 9 of the Indian Penal 

Code, the court should consider with even greater care and caution 

because over implication in the cases is a matter of common 

knowledge and concern;  

(viii) While considering the prayer for grant of anticipatory bail, a 

balance has t o be struck between two factors namely, no prejudice 

should be caused to the free, fair and full investigation and there 

should be prevention of harassment, humiliation and unjustified 

detention of the accused;  

(ix) The court to consider reasonable appreh ension of tampering of 

the witness or apprehension of threat to the complainant;  

(x)  Frivolity in prosecution should always be considered and it is 

only the element of genuineness that shall have to be considered in 

the matter of grant of bail and in the  event of there being some doubt 

as to the genuineness of the prosecution, in the normal course of 

events, the accused is entitled to an order of bail.  

113. Arrest should be the last option and it should be restricted to 

those exceptional cases where arre sting the accused is imperative in 

the facts and circumstances of that case. The court must carefully 

examine the entire available record and particularly the allegations 

which have been directly attributed to the accused and these 



338 
 

allegations are corrobor ated by other material and circumstances on 

record.  

114.  These are some of the factors which should be taken into 

consideration while deciding the anticipatory bail applications. These 

factors are by no means exhaustive but they are only illustrative in 

nature because it is difficult to clearly visualize all situations and 

circumstances in which a person may pray for anticipatory bail. If a 

wise discretion is exercised by the Judge concerned, after 

consideration of entire material on record then most of th e 

grievances in favour of grant of or refusal of bail will be taken care of. 

The legislature in its wisdom has entrusted the power to exercise this 

jurisdiction only to the judges of the superior courts. In consonance 

with the legislative intention we shou ld accept the fact that the 

discretion would be properly exercised. In any event, the option of 

approaching the superior court against the court of Sessions or the 

High Court is always available.ó                                    (Emphasis 

supplied)  

8.   In Sanjay Chandra vs. Central Bureau of Investigation 

(2012) 1 SCC 40 , the Honõble Supreme Court made the following 

pertinent observations in paras 21, 22, 23, and 40 as under: -  

ò21. In bail applications, generally, it has been laid down from the 

earlie st times that the object of bail is to secure the appearance of 

the accused person at his trial by reasonable amount of bail. The 

object of bail is neither punitive nor preventative. Deprivation of 

liberty must be considered a punishment, unless it is requ ired to 

ensure that an accused person will stand his trial when called upon. 

The courts owe more than verbal respect to the principle that 

punishment begins after conviction, and that every man is deemed to 

be innocent until duly tried and duly found guilt y. 

22.  From the earliest times, it was appreciated that detention in 

custody pending completion of trial could be a cause of great 

hardship. From time to time, necessity demands that some un -

convicted persons should be held in custody pending trial to secu re 

their attendance at the trial but in such cases, `necessity' is the 

operative test. In this country, it would be quite contrary to the 

concept of personal liberty enshrined in the Constitution that any 

person should be punished in respect of any matter,  upon which, he 

has not been convicted or that in any circumstances, he should be 

deprived of his liberty upon only the belief that he will tamper with 

the witnesses if left at liberty, save in the most extraordinary 

circumstances.  
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23.  Apart from the ques tion of prevention being the object of a 

refusal of bail, one must not lose sight of the fact that any 

imprisonment before conviction has a substantial punitive content 

and it would be improper for any Court to refuse bail as a mark of 

disapproval of forme r conduct whether the accused has been 

convicted for it or not or to refuse bail to an un -convicted person for 

the purpose of giving him a taste of imprisonment as a lesson.  

40.  The grant or refusal to grant bail lies within the discretion of 

the Court. Th e grant or denial is regulated, to a large extent, by the 

facts and circumstances of each particular case. But at the same 

time, right to bail is not to be denied merely because of the 

sentiments of the community against the accused. The primary 

purposes o f bail in a criminal case are to relieve the accused of 

imprisonment, to relieve the State of the burden of keeping him, 

pending the trial, and at the same time, to keep the accused 

constructively in the custody of the Court, whether before or after 

convic tion, to assure that he will submit to the jurisdiction of the 

Court and be in attendance thereon whenever his presence is 

required.ó  

5.    On the other hand, learned Additional Advocate General has 

seriously opposed this application by contending that it was on account of the 

beatings and the threat perception created by the bail petitioners that the 

deceased died of myocardial infarction.  He further contended that the learned 

Sessions Judge, Sirmour had vide a detailed order running into 14 pages rejecte d 

the bail application and since there was no changed circumstances, the 

petitioners could not be permitted to file successive bail applications and for this 

purpose relied upon the following observations of Honõble Supreme Court in State 

of Maharashtra Vs . Captain Buddhikota Subha Rao, AIR 1989 SC 2299 : 

ò7. Liberty occupies a place of pride in our socio-political order.  And 

who knew the value of liberty more than the founding fathers of our 

Constitution whose liberty was curtailed time and again under 

Dra conian laws by the colonial rules. That is why they provided in 

Article 21 of the Constitution that no person shall be deprived of his 

personal liberty except according the procedure established by law.  

It follows therefore that the personal liberty of an  individual can be 

curbed by procedure established by law. The Code of Criminal 

Procedure, 1973, is one such procedural law.  That law permits 

curtailment of liberty of anti -social and anti -national elements.  

Article 22 casts certain obligations on the au thorities in the event of 

arrest of an individual accused of the commission of a crime against 

society or the Nation. In cases of undertrials charged with the 

commission of an offence the court is generally called upon to decide 
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whether to release him on b ail or to commit him to jail.  This 

decision has to be made, mainly in non -bailable cases, having regard 

to the nature of the crime, the circumstances in which it was 

committed, the background of the accused, the possibility of his 

jumping bail, the impact  that his release may make on the 

prosecution witnesses, its impact on society and the possibility of 

retribution, etc. In the present case the successive bail applications 

preferred by the respondent were rejected on merits having regard to 

the gravity of  the offence alleged to have been committed.  One such 

application No. 36 of 1989 was rejected by Suresj, J. himself.  

Undeterred the respondent went on preferring successive 

applications for bail.  All such pending bail -applications were 

rejected by Puran ik, J. by a common order on 6 th  June, 1989.  

Unfortunately, Puranik, J. was not aware of the pendency of yet 

another bail application No. 995/89 otherwise he would have 

disposed if of by the very same common Order.  Before the ink was 

dry on Puranik, J.õs order, it was upturned by the impugned order.  

It is not as if the court passing the impugned order was not aware of 

the decision of Puranik, J.; in fact there is a reference to the same in 

the impugned order.  Could this be done in the absence of new fact s 

and changed circumstances?  What is important to realize is that in 

Criminal Application No. 375 of 1989, the respondent had made an 

identical request as is obvious from one of the prayers (extracted 

earlier) made therein.  Once that application was reje cted there was 

no question of granting a similar prayer.  That is virtually overruling 

the earlier decision without there being a change in the fact -

situation.  And, when we speak of change, we mean a substantial 

one which has a direct impact on the earlie r decision and not merely 

cosmetic changes which are of little or no consequence.  Between the 

two orders there was a gap of only two days and it is nobodyõs case 

that during these two days drastic changes had taken place 

necessitating the release of the r espondent on bail.  Judicial 

discipline, propriety and comity demanded that the impugned order 

should not have been passed reversing all earlier orders including 

the one rendered by Puranik, J. only a couple of days before, in the 

absence of any substantia l change in the fact -situation.  In such 

cases it is necessary to act with restraint and circumspection so that 

the process of the Court is not abused by a litigant and an 

impression does not gain ground that the litigant has either 

successfully avoided on e judge or selected another to secure an order 

which had hitherto eluded him.  IN such a situation the proper 

course, we think, is to direct that the matter be placed before the 

same learned judge who disposed of the earlier applications.  Such a 
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practice or convention would prevent abuse of the process of court 

inasmuch as it will prevent an impression being created that a 

litigant is avoiding or selecting a court to secure an order to his 

liking.  Such a practice would also discourage the filing of succes sive 

bail applications without change of circumstances.  Such a practice 

if adopted would be conducive to judicial discipline and would also 

save the Courtõs time as a judge familiar with the facts would be able 

to dispose of the subsequent application wit h dispatch.  It will also 

result in consistency.  In this view that we take we are forfitied by 

the observations of this Court in paragraph 5 of the judgment in 

Shahzad Hasan Khan V. Ishtiaq Hasan Khan, (1987)2 SCC 684: (AIR 

1987 SC 1613).  For the above r easons we are of the view that there 

was no justification for passing the impugned order in the absence of 

a substantial change in the fact -situation.  That is what prompted 

Shetty. J. to describe the impugned order as ôa bit out of the 

ordinaryõ.  Judicial restraint demands that we say no more.ó                            

 On the same preposition he placed reliance on the following observations of 

Honõble Supreme Court in Kalyan Chandra Sarkar Vs. Rajesh Ranjan alias 

Pappu Yadav and another, AIR 2004 SC 18 66 : 

ò14.  We have already noticed from the arguments of learned 

counsel for the appellant that the present accused had earlier made 

seven applications for grant of bail which were rejected by the High 

Court and some such rejections have been affirmed by th is Court 

also.  It is seen from the records when the seventh application for 

grant of bail was allowed by the High Court, the same was 

challenged before this Court and this Court accepted the said 

challenge by allowing the appeal filed by the Union of Indi a and 

another and cancelled the bail granted by the High Court as per the 

order of this Court made in Criminal Appeal No. 745/2001 dated 

25 th  July, 2001.  While cancelling the said bail this Court specifically 

held that the fact that the present accused wa s in custody for more 

than one year (at that time) and the further fact that while rejecting 

an earlier application, the High Court had given liberty to renew the 

bail application in future, were not grounds envisaged under Section 

437(1)(1) of the Code.  This Court also in specific terms held that 

condition laid down under Section 437(1)(1) is sine qua non for 

granting bail even under Section 439 of the Code.  In the impugned 

order it is noticed that the High Court has given the period of 

incarceration alr eady undergone by the accused and the 

unlikelihood of trial concluding in the near future as grounds 

sufficient to enlarge the accused on bail, in spite of the fact that the 

accused stands charged of offences punishable with life 
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imprisonment or even death  penalty.  In such cases, in our opinion, 

the mere fact that the accused has undergone certain period of 

incarceration  (three years in this case) by itself would not entitle the 

accused to being enlarged on bail, nor the fact that the trial is not 

likely to be concluded in the near future either by itself or coupled 

with the period of incarceration would be sufficient for enlarging the 

appellant on bail when the gravity of the offence alleged is severe and 

there are allegations of tampering with the witnes ses by the accused 

during the period he was on bail.  

20.  Before concluding, we must note though an accused has a 

right to make successive applications for grant of bail the Court 

entertaining such subsequent bail applications has a duty to 

consider the reasons and grounds on which the earlier bail 

applications were rejected.  In such cases, the Court also has a duty 

to record what are the fresh grounds which persuade it to take a 

view different from the one taken in the earlier applications.  IN the 

impu gned order we do not see any such fresh ground recorded by 

the High Court while granting bail.  It also failed to take into 

consideration that at least on four occasions order refusing bail has 

been affirmed by this Court and subsequently when the High Cou rt 

did not grant bail, this Court by its order dated 26 th  July, 2000 

cancelled the said bail by a reasoned order.  From the impugned 

order, we do not notice any indication of the fact that the High Court 

took note of the grounds which persuaded this Court to cancel the 

bail.  Such approach of the High Court, in our opinion, is violative of 

the principle of binding nature of judgments of superior Court 

rendered in a lis between the same parties, and in effect tends to 

ignore and thereby render ineffective th e principles enunciated 

therein which have a binding character.   

21.  For the reason stated above, we are of the considered opinion 

that the High Court was not justified in granting bail to the first 

respondent on the ground that he has been in custody for  a period of 

3½ years or that there is no likelihood of the trial being concluded in 

the near future, without taking into consideration the other factors 

referred to hereinabove in this judgment of ours.ó 

6.   I have given my deep and thoughtful considerati on to the 

arguments raised by the respective parties.   

7.   The following factors are required to be considered before 

granting bail:  

(i)  nature of accusation and severity of punishment in case of 

conviction and nature of supporting evidence;  
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(ii) reason able apprehension of tampering of the witnesses or 

apprehension of threat to the complainant;  

(iii) and prima facie satisfaction of the court in support of the charge.  

Any order dehors  of such reasons suffers from non -application of mind.  

8.  Now, in cas e the nature of accusation is seen, it cannot be 

denied that the bail petitioners have been charged under Section 304/34 IPC, 

which is a grave offence punishable with life imprisonment. Moreover, the records 

of the investigation and past history and conduc t of the petitioners, particularly of 

Avtar Singh does not convince this Court that in the event of release of the 

petitioners on bail, they would not violate the conditions of bail and it cannot be 

said with certainty that they will not tamper with the ev idence or threaten or 

dissuade the prosecution witnesses and at this stage the records of the 

investigation further reveal that there is sufficient material available in support of 

the charge against the bail petitioners.  

9.   Mr. Ramakant Sharma, learned counsel for the bail 

petitioners would then strenuously argued that no recovery is required to be 

effected since the investigation is complete and no fruitful purpose would be 

served in case the petitioners are kept in judicial lockup, as they are languish ing 

there for the last more than three months. I am afraid that looking into the 

seriousness of the allegations against the bail -petitioners, they cannot be enlarged 

on bail even on this ground.   

10.   For the aforesaid reasons, I find no merit in these ba il 

petitions and the same are accordingly dismissed.  However, it is made clear that 

the observations made in this order are solely for the purpose of deciding these 

petitions and nothing contained in this order shall be construed as an expression 

of opini on on any of the issues of facts or law arising for the decision in the main 

case.  The learned trial Court shall decide the case uninfluenced by any 

observations made in this order.   Petitions stand disposed of.  

 

  **************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE TARLOK SINGH CHAUHAN, J. 

Ramanujam Royal College of Education             éPetitioner. 

              Vs.  

National Council for Teacher Education and others    ..Respondents.  

 

    CWP No. 9508 of 2013  

    Judgment reserved on : 8.9.2014  

    Date of decision: 23.09.2014.  
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Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - petitioner, a Society, established a 

College for running B. Ed course on regular basis - the inspection was conducted 

and the Inspection Committee pointed out that list of  existing teaching faculty 

approved by university,  documents verifying that the salary to the teaching staff 

was being paid through cheques were not submitted and the size of multipurpose 

hall is only 1510.4 sq. feet against 2000 sq. feet as required unde r NCTE norms - 

petitioner stated that two teachers were appointed by H.P. University while 

remaining were appointed on ad -hoc basis - size of the hall was being increased - 

affiliation of the institute was cancelled - held, that the teachers occupy an 

importan t position in the society, therefore, the trainee teachers must be given 

qualitative training and the Training Institutes should possess all the required 

facilities including well qualified and trained staff - the institute had not taken 

steps to fill up th e posts in accordance with instructions/guidelines issued by 

UGC- advertisement was issued in the newspaper but no posts were filled up - 

posts were subsequently filled up without issuing a fresh advertisement and thus, 

appointment was not proper.  (Para -19  to 31)  

Service Law - Selection - Institute had issued an advertisement for the 

appointment of the posts of the teacher, but no posts were filled up - subsequently, 

teachers were appointed from the person who had applied earlier - held, that the 

life -span of a n advertisement had come to an end and the posts could not be filled 

up without a proper fresh advertisement - appointments made by the Institute 

were back door appointments.                       (Para-32) 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Practice and Procedure - the petitioner 

approaching the Court is bound to come with clean hands - if a litigant tries to 

pollute stream of justice by resorting to falsehood or by making false statement, 

he is not entitled to any relief.  (Para-36) 

Cases referred:  

Andh ra Kesari Education Society Vs. Director of School Education and Ors, AIR 

1989, SC 183  

Ram Sukh and others Vs. State of Rajasthan and others, 1990 SC 592  

Dental Council of India Vs. Subharti K.K.B. Charitable Trust (2001) 5 SCC 486,  

Rohit Singhal and other s Vs. Principal, Jawahar N. Vidyalaya and others, (2003) 1 

SCC 687  

Manager, Nirmala Senior Secondary School Vs. N.I. Khan, (2003) 12 SCC 84  

Visveswaraya Technological University and another Vs. Krishnaendu Halder and 

others (2011) 3 Scale 359  

Delhi Develop ment Horticulture Employeesõ Union Vs. Delhi Administration, Delhi 

and others, AIR 1992, SC, 789  

Indian Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Vs. Workmen, Indian Drugs & 

Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (2007) 1 SCC 408  
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M. P. State Coop. Bank Ltd., Bhopal Vs. Nanuram Yadav and  Others (2007) 8 SCC 

264  

Ramjas Foundation and another Vs. Union of India and others (2010) 14 SCC 38  

 

For the  Petitioner  :  Mr.  Ramakant Sharma, Advocate.   

For the  Respondents   :   Mr. Sanjeev Bhushan, Advocate, for respondents   No. 

1 and 2.  

Mr. J.L.Bhardwaj, Advocate, for respondent No.3.  

  

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Tarlok Singh Chauhan, Judge   

 By medium of this writ petition, the petitioner has claimed the 
following substantive reliefs:  

ò(i)   That the order dated 30 .10.2013 at Annexure P -12 passed by 
the respondent No.1 whereby the appeal preferred by the petitioner 
has been rejected, may kindly be quashed and set -aside.  

(ii) That the order dated 29.12.2012 at Annexure P -10 issued by 
the respondent No.2, whereby the recognition of the petitioner 
institution òRamanujam Royal College of Educationó for B.Ed course 
has been withdrawn may kindly be quashed and set -aside and the 
respondents may further be directed to restore the recognition of the 
petitioner institution for B.Ed course in the interest of justice.ó  

2 . The petitioner is a Society registered under the Societies 
Registration Act, who established a College for running B.E d course on regular 
basis with an intake of 100 seats, pursuant to the ôNo Objection Certificateõ (for 
short ôNOCõ) issued by the Government of Himachal Pradesh. It is claimed that 
after obtaining NOC from the State Government, the petitioner got recogniti on for 
its College from the Northern Regional Committee of National Council for Teacher 
Education, Jaipur  (for short ôNCTEõ) and the College is affiliated with the 
H.P.University.  

3.  The petitioner sought permission from NCTE for shifting the 
premises of  the College from village Mangal to its new campus at village Samloh, 
Tehsil Arki, District Solan, H.P. vide letter dated 23.8.2006. The inspection 
committee constituted by NCTE inspected the institution in the new campus and 
granted permission at the new site vide letter dated 18.8.2010. However, the 
respondent No.1 on 3.8.2012 issued a show cause notice pointing out the 
following discrepancies:  

ò*   The institution has not submitted the list of existing teaching 
faculty approved by affiliating university ; 
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* The documents verifying that the salary to the teaching faculty 
is being paid either through cheques or bank transfer has not been 
submitted.  

* Size of multipurpose hall is only 1510.4 sq.feet against 2000 
sq.feet as required under NCTE norms.ó 

 4.  In response to the queries raised by respondent No.1, the 
petitioner replied vide letter dated 14.9.2012 in the following manner:  

òTo 

The Regional Director,  

Northern Council for Teacher Education,  

20/198, Kaveri Pata Near Mansarover Stadium,  

Mansarover, Jaipur -302020.  

 

Subject: Reply of notice under Section 14 (1) of the NCTE  Act.  

 

Ref:    Your office letter No. F.NRC/NCTE/201 st meeting/HP -
77/2012/29156 dated 17 August, 2012. File No. : HP -177.  

 

Respected Sir,  

 

 With profound regards, in reference to the pre said letter of your 
esteemed office I want to put some facts for your kind consideration.  

1. The college has appointed six Lecturers as faculty for the B.Ed., 
two are approved by H.P. University whereas four are appointed on 
adhoc basis.  

List of existing teacher attached   (Annexure -I) 

2. The salary to the staff is being disbursed through cheque.  

Certificate from bank manager is attached (Annexure -II) 

3. The size of multipurpose hall has been increased by expanding 
it to 2000 sq.ft. The map of building is attach ed.(Annexure -III) 

     Therefore, your esteemed goodself is requested to please take the 
decision in favour of the institution and oblige.  

 Thanking you,  

             Yours faithfully,  

  Sd/ -     Sd/ - 

 Chairman,         President,  

                   Managing Committee,         Managing Committee,  

          Ramanujam Royal College  Ramanujam Royal Group of                                  
of Education, H.P. 177.  Institutes. ó 

   

5 .  Vide another letter dated 14.9.2012 the following 
information appears to have been imparted to respondent No.2 by the petitioner: - 

  òTo 

   The Regional Director,  

   Northern Council for Teacher Education,  
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   20/198, Kaveri Pata Near Mansarover Stadium,  

   Mansarover, Jaipur -302020.  

 

 Subject:  Grant of Permission for two months.  

 

Ref:    Your office letter No. F.NRC/NCTE/201 st meeting/HP -
177/2012/29156 dated 17 August, 2012. File No. : HP -177.  

 

Respected Sir,  

 

 With profound regard, in reference to the pre said letter of your 
esteemed office I want to put some facts for your kind consideration.  

 

1. The college has appointed six Lecturer as faculty for the B.Ed., 
two are approved by H.P. University whereas four are appointed on 
adhoc basis. We have also send a request to the Dean, College 
Developing Committ ee Himachal Pradesh University, Shimla for 
supplying the panel to conduct  interview, so it is on the H.P.U., Shimla  
whenever they supply the panel.  

List of existing teacher attached              (Annexure -I) 

2. The salary to the staff is being disbursed th rough cheque.  

Certificate of bank manager is attached                  (Annexure -II) 

3. Size of multipurpose hall  is 1510.4 sq.feet against 2000 sq.feet 
as required under NCTE norms. We have started construction work to 
increase the size of multipurpose hall  to 2000 sq. feet it will took 
minimum two months to complete.  

      Therefore, your esteemed goodself is requested to grant us 
permission for two months to complete the above mentioned 
compliance  for taking final decision in favour of the institution an d 
oblige.  

 

 Thanking you,  

 

          Yours faithfully,  

 

     Sd/ -  

  Chairman, Managing Committee,  

   Ramanujam Royal College of   

          Education, H.P. 177.ó   

6.  Vide order dated 29.12.2012, the respondent No.1 withdrew 
the recognition of the petitioner -institution for B.Ed course by according the 
following reasons:  

 òéééé..AND WHEREAS, the case of the institution was considered 
by the NRC in its 201 st meeting held from July 12 th to 15 th, 2012 and 
the Committee decided that show cause notice un der Section 17 of 
NCTE Act, 1993 be issued to the institution. Accordingly, a show 
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cause notice was issued to the institution on 17.08.2012 on the 
following points: - 

¶ The institution has not submitted the list of existing teaching 
faculty approved by affili ating university.  

¶ The documents verifying that the salary to the teaching faculty is 
being paid either through cheques or bank transfer has not been 
submitted.  

¶ Size of multipurpose hall is only 1510.4 sq. feet against 2000 
sq.feet as required under NCTE no rms.  

AND WHEREAS, the reply dated 14.09.2012 submitted by the 
institution in response to the show cause notice in the NRC office on 
24.09.2012 was placed before the NRC in its 207 th meeting held from 
November 27 th to 30 th, 2012 and the Committee decided th at the 
recognition for the said course be withdrawal under provision of 
clause 17 of the NCTE Act, 1993 from the next following academic 
session. FDRs if submitted by the institution be returned on the 
following grounds: - 

In the reply to Show Cause Notice, the institution has submitted its 
reply dated 14.09.2012 is received on 24.09.2012. As per the letter ð  

(a) The institution itself accepted that only two lecturers for B.Ed. 
course are approved by the H.P. University, wherea s post of one 
Principal and five lecturers not approved by the affiliating university 
as per the NCTE norms and regulations, 2009.  

(b) Proof of size of multipurpose hall has not submitted.  

NOW THEREFORE, in exercise of the powers vested under Section 17 
(1) of NCTE Act, 2009, the Northern Regional Committee hereby 
withdraw the above recognition granted to Ramanujam Royal College 
of Education, Village Mangal, P.O. Kandhar, Distt. Solan -171102, 
Himachal Pradesh for 100 seats  in the B.Ed. Course on the grounds 
mentioned above with effect from the end of the academic session next 
following the date of communication of this order.  

If the institution is not satisfied by the above order they can prefer an 
appeal to the Council (NCTE, New Delhi) in terms of Sections  18 of 
NCTE Act, 1993 within 60 days from the date of this order. The 
guidelines of appeal are enclosed herewith.ó 

7 . An appeal was thereafter preferred by the petitioner which 
was dismissed as time barred vide order dated 30.10.2013.  

8.  The petitioner now  claims that once it had removed all the 
shortcomings and brought the same to the notice of respondent No.1, therefore, 
there was no question of respondent No.1 having withdrawn the affiliation.  

9.  In reply filed by respondent No.1, preliminary objection w as 
taken to the effect that the petitioner had not approached the Court with clean 
hands and had virtually tried to mislead the Court. It has further been stated that 
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the writ petition was liable to be dismissed on account of concealment of facts 
alone. It  was further claimed that matters of recognition of the institutes are 
guided by the regulations which are required to be strictly adhered to. It is further 
averred that the petitioner -institute had advertised seven posts of Lecturers in 
Education and one post of Principal in the Tribune on 30.12.2012 and the 
meeting of the Selection Committee duly constituted by the Himachal Pradesh 
University took place on 18.3.2013. As per the proceedings of Selection Committee 
in response to advertisement, 17 candidates  had applied for the post of Lecturer 
while none had applied for the post of Principal. After scrutiny, it was found that 
only one candidate was eligible while the rest were ineligible. However, even the 
eligible candidate did not attend the interview.  

10 . The petitionerõs thereafter did not issue any fresh 
advertisement and on the basis of the same advertisement which had already been 
exhausted, another Selection Committee meeting was convened on 18.6.2013 

wherein again reference of 17 candidates was give n and now five candidates had 
been shown to have been selected. It is claimed that this aspect of the matter 
could not be explained by the petitioner and, therefore, was required to be 
enquired into and even the role of the H.P. University was required to be probed.  

11.  In rejoinder to the aforesaid averments and in order to justify 
its stand of having appointed Lecturer on the basis of the advertisement, the 
petitioner has made the following averments:  

òéééThe respondents have failed to appreciate that when the more 
approved lecturers were required, the requisition was given to the 
University for constitution of the Selection Committee by nominating 
subject experts and Vice Chancellor, nominee and on that count, the 
selections were awaited. Since the instit ution was shifted from 
existing infrastructure to the new infrastructure, wherein the size of 
multi purpose hall was somewhat deficient and the deficiency was 
immediately removed, have also been ignored to be considered by the 
respondents. Pursuant to the advertisement issued by the petitioner 
institution in the Tribune of 30.12.2012, five eligible candidates were 
selected by the Selection Committee constituted by the University on 
18.6.2013. Notably, the Selection Committee was duly constituted as 
per norm s of the H.P. University on the nomination of subject experts 
and Vice Chancellor nominee before making the selection on 
18.6.2013. The deficiencies as pointed out while withdrawing the 
recognition of the petitioner institution have duly been removed and 
fully eligible and qualified Principal is on the rolls, however, Selection 
Committee for his regular appointment has not been constituted by the 
University because of withdrawal of recognition by the respondents, 
however, he is fully eligible and qualified for regular appointment, as 
such.ó 

12 . The matter came up for consideration before this Court on 
2.7.2014 when after noticing the aforesaid discrepancies, this Court passed a 
detailed order directing the petitioner to file an affidavit explaining these 
dis crepancies.  



350 
 

13 . In compliance to the aforesaid order, the petitioner filed its 
affidavit, the relevant portion whereof reads as follows:  

ò3.  That an advertisement was issued in the daily newspaper the 
Tribune on 30.12.2012 requiring staff in the college vide notice issued 
at Annexure A -1. 

4. That on the request of the petitioner at Annexure A -2, the panel 
of experts and V.C. nominee was supplied to the petitioner college at 
Annexure A -3 (colly). Needless to state that one of the V.C. nominee 
Professor S.K. Garg was changed, with the change of the guard, hence 
at the request of the petitioner, for supply of his substitute, Professor 
R.S.Chauhan was nominated as such on 04.03.2013.  

5. That pursuant to the advertisement at Annexure A -1, 17 
candidates appli ed for the post of the lecturer/Assistant Professor, but 
none for the post of Principal, up till 17.04.2013. A list of the 
applicants is at Annexure A -4.  

6. That vide notification dated 29.05.2012 issued by the H.P. 
University, the requirement of possessi ng NET qualification was 
dispensed with and as such M.Ed. & M.Phil in Education were made 
eligible for appointment to the post of Lecturer/Assistant Professor. 
Since requisite number of M.Ed. & M.Phil candidates had become 
available, hence the petitioner p roceeded with the conducting of the 
interviews for the post of lecturer/Assistant Professor and accordingly 
the V.C. nominee and subject expert etc. were called for 18.04.2013.  

7. That the selection committee conducted the interview on 
18.04.2013, wherein  none of the candidates appeared in the 
interview, was found eligible, although one of the candidate Sh. Param 
Jeet Singh Dhaliwal was eligible, yet he had not appeared in the 
interview. In fact, the exemption granted by the H.P. University vide 
notificati on dated 29.05.2012, dispensing with the requirement of 
NET, had been turned down by the UGC but the said factum was not 
in the notice of petitioner and in view of that, mere M. Ed. & M. Phil 
passed candidates were not eligible for the post of Lecturer/Ass istant 
Professor and they were rightly held ineligible  by the selection 
committee. The notification dated 29.05.2012 is not available with the 
petitioner but the same finds mention in the corrigendum issued by the 
H.P.University at Annexure P -5. A copy of  the proceedings of the 
Selection Committee dated 18.04.2013 is at Annexure A -6. 

8. That in the advertisement issued at Annexure    A -1, since there 
was no last date fixed for inviting applications for the posts in 
question, hence more candidates continued  applying and when 
requisite number of NET qualified candidates became available for the 
post of lecturers/Assistant Professor, the petitioner again constituted 
the selection committee and invited the V.C. nominee and subject 
expert for conducting the inte rviews again, which were held on 
18.06.2013, wherein there was no candidate for the post of Principal 
but requisite number of Lecturers/Assistant Professor were 
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recommended for appointment. A copy of the proceedings held on 
18.06.2013, is brought on record  as Annexure A -7. The list of the 
candidates who were the applicants after previous interview up -till 
18.06.2013 is brought on record as Annexure A -8.ó 

14.  Subsequently, when the matter came up for consideration 
before this Court on 11.7.2014, the followin g order was passed:  

òIt is not disputed that College had advertised one post of Principal 

and seven posts of Lecturers in Education in newspaper òThe Tribuneó 

in its edition dated 30th December 2012. In response whereof, 17 

candidates had applied for the p ost of lecturers and one had applied 

for the post of Principal. After scrutiny of academic record of the 

candidates, the college found that one candidate Sh. Paramjit Singh 

Dhaliwal was eligible while the rest of the 16 candidates were in -

eligible. Even Sh . Paramjit Singh Dhaliwal did not appear in the said 

interview. Thus the life and purpose of the advertisement came to an 

end on the basis of the interviews fixed for 18.4.2013 and in such 

circumstances, a fresh advertisement was required to be issued 

call ing upon all the eligible candidates to apply for the posts in 

question. The petitioner did not resort to said procedure, which 

constrained this court to pass the following order on 2.7.2014:  

òThe perusal of document, Annexure P-13, dated 18.4.2013 at page  32 

of the paper book shows that the following statement has been 

recorded therein:  

òééThe college had advertised one post of Principal and seven posts 

of Lecturers in Education in the newspaper namely the Tribune dated 

30.12.2012. In response to the advertisements Seventeen candidates 

have applied for the post of lecturers and none applied for the post of 

Principal. After scrutiny of academic record of the candidates, it was 

found that only one candidate Paramjit Singh Dhaliwal was eligible, 

rest of t he sixteen candidates were ineligible. However Shri Paramjit 

Singh Dhariwal didnõt appear in the interview.ó 

Thereafter another document annexed with the writ petition Annexure 

P-13 dated 19.6.2013, contains the following statement:  

òé.The College had advertised one post of Principal and seven posts 

of Lecturers in Education in the newspaper namely òThe Tribuneó 

dated 30.12.2012. In response to the advertisements Seventeen 

candidates have applied for the post of lecturers and none applied for 

the post of Pr incipal. On the basis of academic records of the 

candidates and their performance following candidates were selected 

for appointment of Lecturers on regular basis on UGC scale:  

1. Teaching of Life Science : Mr. Atul Thakur S/o Sh. Bir Singh Thakur  
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2. Teach ing of Social Science :Mr. Kashmir Singh S/o Sh. Behmi Singh  

3. Teaching of English : Mr. Mohinder Singh S/o Sh. Braham Dass  

4. Foundation Courses : Ms. Nidhi Awasthi D/o Sh. J.K. Mahindroo  

5. Teaching of Social Science : Mr. Kanwal Preet Singh S/o Sh. Ran dhir Singhó. 

The learned counsel for the respondents has rightly pointed out that 

pursuant to the advertisement dated 30.12.2012, 17 candidates 

appeared and none of them were found eligible save and except only 

one candidate Paramjit Singh Dhaliwal, who di d not appear in the 

interview. Then how in the proceedings recorded on 19.6.2013 it has 

been stated that pursuant to this very advertisement dated 

30.12.2012, 17 candidates applied for the post of Lecturers and none 

applied for the post of Principal. In th is meeting it has been further 

recorded that on the basis of the academic records of the candidates 

and their performance, the following candidates out of the above 17 

candidates were selected for appointment of Lecturers on regular 

basis on UGC scale.  

ò1. Teaching of Life Science : Mr. Atul Thakur S/o Sh. Bir Singh Thakur  

2. Teaching of Social Science : Mr. Kashmir Singh S/o . Sh. Behmi Singh  

3. Teaching of English : Mr. Mohinder Singh S/o . Sh. Braham Dass  

4. Foundation Courses : Ms. Nidhi Awasthi D/o Sh.  J.K.Mahindroo  

5. Teaching of Social Science : Mr. Kanwal Preet Singh S/o Sh. Randhir Singhó. 

Once the candidature of 17 candidates was considered earlier on 

18.4.2013 as finds recorded in those proceedings and none was found 

so eligible, then how and in w hat circumstances now out of 17 

candidates, 5 candidates have been selected for appointment as 

Lecturers, is not forthcoming. The petitioner shall file an affidavit 

explaining this position within one week. List on 11.7.2014 . On that 

date, the original rec ords of the proceedings be also made available to 

this Court.ó 

In compliance to the aforesaid order, the petitioner has produced the 

original record and filed an affidavit, wherein in paragraph -8, the 

following averments have been made: - 

ò8. That in the advertisement issued at annexure   A -1, since there 

was no last date fixed for inviting applications for the posts in 

question, hence more candidates continued applying and when 

requisite Number of NET qualified candidates became available for the 

post of le cturers/Assistant professor, the petitioner again constituted 

the selection committee and invited the VC nominee and subject expert 
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for conducting the interviews again, which were held on 18.6.2013, 

wherein there was no candidate for the post of principal but requisite 

Number of Lecturers/ Assistant Professor were recommended for 

appointment. A copy of the proceedings held on 18.6.2013, is brought 

on record as Annexure A -7. The list of the candidates who were the 

applicants after previous interview up till 18.6.2013 is brought on 

record as Annexure A -8.ó 

The explanation offered by the petitioner is not at all satisfactory. 

There is no explanation as to whether the external examiners deputed 

by the University in terms of letter dated 5.1.2013 had been apprise d 

of the aforesaid fact and if apprised whether they had applied their 

mind and made the subsequent recommendations.  

A bare perusal of the proceedings of the Selection Committee, which 

met on 18.6.2013 as reflected in the document Annexure P -13 dated 

19.6. 2013 shows that out of six nominees, there were five nominees 

from the University, who appeared to have signed the proceedings on 

doted lines.  

Taking into consideration the seriousness of the issue, the Himachal 

Pradesh University through its Registrar is impleaded as party and 

arrayed as respondent No. 3 to this petition, as admittedly it is on the 

basis of the recommendations made by the representatives of the 

University that appointments have been made. Mr. J.L. Bhardwaj, 

Advocate waives service of notic e on behalf of respondent No. 3. The 

respondent No. 3 to file a detail affidavit explaining its position before 

the next date of hearing. The desirability of issuing notice to the 

members of the Selection Committee would be considered after the 

aforesaid a ffidavit is filed by the Registrar of the University.  

List on 25.7.2014.ó 

15 . In compliance to the aforesaid order dated 11.7.2014, 
Professor Rajinder Singh Chauhan, presently working as Pro -Vice Chancellor, H.P. 
University, filed his affidavit, the relevant portion whereof reads as follows:  

 ò1. That the duly constituted selection committee in terms of the 
provisions of Ordinance 38.5 (B)  d has conducted interview on 
18.04.2013 and found only one candidate i.e. Sh. Paramjit Singh 
eligible. However, he did not appear on the said date of interview.  

2. That the Chairman of the Selection Committee who is either the 
President of the Governing Body of the College or his nominee finalized 
the date for conducting the interviews for the appointment of teachin g 
faculty on 18.06.2013 and since the Vice Chancellor of the University 
had appointed the nominees and subject experts to participate in the 
counseling process for appointment of teaching faculty, the members 
visited the Petitionerõs college on 18.06.2013 and conducted the 
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interviews for the appointment of teaching faculty. After perusal of the 
applications submitted by the candidates, the eligible candidates were 
selected as teaching faculty out of list of the candidates who had 
applied for the post of Ass istant Professor which is annexed herewith 
as Annexure R -1. As per the qualifications prescribed by the National 
Council for Teacher Education and University Grants Commission, five 
candidates who appeared in the interview on 18.06.2013 were 
selected. It i s submitted that due to inadvertence, the Selection 
Committee who were the nominees and subject experts as appointed 
by the Vice -Chancellor of the University could not notice that they had 
earlier conducted interviews on 18.04.2013 on the basis of 
advertis ement dated 30.12.2012 nor the said fact was brought into 
notice by the nominee of the petitioner college who otherwise were 
aware that the interviews on the basis of the advertisement dated 
30.12.2012 cannot be conducted again. However, it is submitted th at 
so far the selection is made by the Selection Committee who were the 
nominees and subject experts of the Vice -Chancellor of University have 
selected the candidates who were having the requisite minimum 
eligibility required for holding the post of Assist ant Professor 
(Education). To demonstrate that the persons who had earlier applied 
and were not eligible  is clear from the Annexure A -4 appended by the 
petitioner college while filing the compliance affidavit dated 
09.07.2014 in compliance to the order da ted 02.07.2014 passed by 
the Honõble Court. 

3. That the role and responsibility of the Selection Committee is to 
interview the eligible candidates who appear for interview before the 
Selection Committee. The legality and propriety of the procedure is to 
be seen by the management of the college administration and the 
Chairman of the Selection Committee i.e. Chairperson/President of the 
Management Committee who had produced a list of candidates before 
the Selection Committee. Further, it is to be stated that the Selection 
Committee is to judge suitability of candidates for the post and to 
make recommendations to the appointing authority in order of merit.ó 

16 . A counter affidavit to the affidavit of Sh. Rajinder Singh 
Chauhan was filed by the petitioner wherei n it was stated that the petitioner was 
unaware of the fact that on the basis of the advertisement dated 30.12.2012, no 
fresh interview could be conducted and this fact was not even brought to its notice 
by the members of the Selection Committee. The relev ant portion of his affidavit, 
reads as follows:  

 òPara-2: That the contents of this para of the affidavit to the extent it 
has been alleged that the petitioner, who was aware that the 
interviews on the basis of advertisement dated 30.12.2012 could not 
be conducted again, had not brought the fact to the notice of the 
members of the Selection Committee, are wrong and are hence denied. 
The fact remains that the petitioner was not aware of this technicality 
that the interview could not be conducted again on the  same 
advertisement. He was under bonafide belief that since no candidate 
appeared in the earlier interview fixed for 18.04.2014 and 
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subsequently eligible qualified candidates had become available 
hence the second interview was conducted on 18.06.2014. He has not 
concealed anything deliberately and none of the selected candidates 
has been given any sort of favour and only fully qualified and eligible 
candidates have been selected by the Selection Committee. It is 
humbly submitted that the petitioner has not  got any undue gain by 
holding interview on the same advertisement and he has not done 
anything intentionally or willfully or with malafide intention to mislead 
the University. He be not may to suffer for his bonafide mistake/lack 
of due diligence as he ha s conducted the second interview on the 
same advertisement, under the bonafide impression that first 
interview had not led into any conclusive result and there was no 
expressed or any contrary instructions of the respondent -University in 
this behalf. Howev er, now a fresh advertisement has been issued on 
02.08.2014 in the daily news paper at Annexure A -10 annexed 
herewith for making fresh selection for the posts in question. The 
petitioner has also requested the respondent University for providing 
Panel for conducting interview to the post of Principal as well as 
Lecturer vide Annexure A -11 through registered post, the receipt of the 
same is placed on record at Annexure A -12.ó  

17 . It is to be borne in mind that the teachers occupy a very 
pivotal position in our society. They are shaping the future of our children. 
Teachers are instrumental in moulding the character of students, and would be of 
immense help to students to unearth their hidden talents. Such being the 
importance of teachers, the trainees must be  given qualitative training and the 
Training Institutes should possess all the required facilities including well 
qualified and trained staff.  

18 . In Andhra Kesari Education Society v. Director of School 
Education and Ors, AIR 1989, SC 183 , the Honõble Supreme Court recognized 
the importance of education for B.Ed., pointing out that, as those persons have to 
handle tiny tods, therefore, Teacher alone could bring out their skills and 
intellectual activities. He is the engine of the educational system. He is a superb 
instrument in awakening the children to cultural values. He must possess 
potentiality to deliver enlightened service to the society. His quality should be 
such as could inspire and motivate into action to the benefiter. He must keep 
himself abreas t of ever -changing communities. He is not to perform in wooden and 
unimaginative way; he must eliminate unwarranted tendencies and attitudes and 
infuse noveliar and national ideas in younger generation; and his involvement in 
national integration is more i mportant; indeed, indispensable.  

19.  In Ram Sukh and others vs. State of Rajasthan and 

others, 1990 SC 592 , the Honõble Supreme Court did not permit the untrained 
Teachers to teach the children, observing that they require proper handling by 
well -trained Teachers.  

20.  In Dental Council of India v. Subharti K.K.B. Charitable 

Trust (2001) 5 SCC 486,  the Supreme Court expressed its deep concern over the 
emergence of education shops without adhering to the norms. It was held:  
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ò12.  At present, there is tremendous change in social values and 
environment. Some persons consider nothing wrong in commercializing 
education. Still however, private institutions cannot be permitted to 
have educational shops in the country. Therefore, there are statutory 
prohibiti ons for establishing and administering educational institution 
without prior permission or approval by the authority concerned. On 
occasions, the authorities concerned, for various reasons, fail to 
discharge their function in accordance with the statutory provisions, 
rules and regulations. In some cases, because of the zeal to establish 
such educational institution by persons having means to do so, 
approach the authorities, but because of red tapism or for extraneous 
reasons, such permissions are not grante d or are delayed. As against 
this, it has been pointed out that instead of charitable institutions, 
persons having means, considering the demands of the market rush 
for establishing technical educational institutions including medical 
college or dental col lege as a commercial venture with the sole object 
of earning profits and/or for some other purpose. Such institutions fail 
to observe the norms prescribed under the Act or the Regulations and 
exploit the situation because of the ever -increasing demand for such 
institutions.ó 

òIt is equality true that unless there are proper educational facilities 
in the society, it would be difficult to meet with the requirements of 
younger generation who have keen desire to acquire knowledge and 
education to compete in the  global marketé..Since ages our culture 
and civilization have recognized that education is one of the pious 
obligation of the Societyé. It is for us to preserve that rich heritage 
of our culture of transcending the education continuously 
unpolluted.ó  

21 . In Rohit Singhal and others Vs. Principal, Jawahar N. 

Vidyalaya and others, (2003) 1 SCC 687  the Honõble Supreme Court expressed 
its great concern regarding children education, observing that òChildren are not 
only the future citizens but also the future o f the earth. Elders in general, and 
parents and teachers in particular, owe a responsibility for taking care of the well -
being and welfare of the children. The world shall be a better or worse place to live 
according to how we treat the children today. Edu cation is an investment made by 
the nation in its children for harvesting a future crop of responsible adults 
productive of a well functioning Society. However, children are vulnerable. They 
need to be valued, nurtured, caressed and protected.ó 

22 . In Mana ger, Nirmala Senior Secondary School Vs. N.I. 

Khan, (2003) 12 SCC 84 , the Supreme Court indicated the role of teachers thus: - 

 òA teacher affects eternity. He can never tell where his 
influence stops; said Henry Adam. Any educational institution for its 
growth and acceptability to a large measure depends upon the 
quality of teachers.  

2.  Educational institutions are temples of learning. The virtues of 
human intelligence are mastered and harmonized by education. 
Where there is complete harmony between the tea cher and the 
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taught, where the teacher imparts and the student receives, where 
there is complete dedication of the teacher and the taught in 
learning, where there is discipline between the teacher and the 
taught, where both are worshippers of learning, no discord or 
challenge will arise. An educational institution runs smoothly when 
the teacher and the taught are engaged in the common ideal of 
pursuit of knowledge. It is, therefore, manifest that the appointment 
of teachers is an important part in education al institutions. The 
qualifications and the character of the teachers are really important.ó 

23 . In Visveswaraya Technological University and another vs. 
Krishnaendu Halder and others (2011) 3 Scale 359 , while approving the 
fixation of criteria higher than  those fixed by All India Council for Teacher 
Education, Supreme Court made a reference about the mushrooming of Private 
Institutions in Teacher Education. The observation reads thus: - 

 ò11. The primary reason for seats remaining vacant in a State, is the 
mushrooming of private institutions in higher education. This is so 
in several States in regard to teachers training institutions, dental 
colleges or engineering colleges. The second reason is certain 
disciplines going out of favour with students because t hey are 
considered to be no longer promising or attractive for future career 
prospects. The third reason is the bad reputation acquired by some 
institutions due to lack of infrastructure, bad faculty and indifferent 
teaching . Fixing of higher standards, ma rginally higher than the 
minimum, is seldom the reason for seats in some colleges remaining 
vacant or unfilled during a particular year. Therefore, a student 
whose marks fall short of the eligibility criteria fixed by the 
State/University, or any college w hich admits such students directly 
under the management quota, cannot contend that the admission of 
students found qualified under the criteria fixed by AICTE, should be 
approved even if they do not fulfill the higher eligibility criteria fixed 
by the Stat e/University.ó    

24 . Importance of education was highlighted by Division Bench of 
this Court, (of which I was author) in Surinder Kumar and others vs. State of 
Himachal Pradesh and others , CWP No. 409 of 2014, wherein the following 
observations from the j udgment delivered by the High Court of Jammu and 
Kashmir by Justice Mansoor Ahmad Mir (as his Lordship then was) in OWP No. 
674 of 2010 titled Khursheed Ahmad Sheikh & Ors. vs. State of others  decided 
on 6.6.2012, was relied upon which reads as under:  

ò21.  The importance of education has been highlighted in a 

judgment delivered by the High Court of Jammu and Kashmir by one 

of us ( Honõble the Acting Chief Justice) in OWP No.674 of 2010 titled 

Khursheed Ahmad Sheikh & Ors. versus State of Others, along w ith 

connected matters, decided on 06.06.2012, wherein the need for 

quality education has been emphasized in the following manner: - 

ò24)  At the very outset let us advert to the essence of word 

ôEducationõ being the foundation of all the writ petitions. The 
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purpose of essence of education is a basis for foundation of nation, 

thus while establishing Universaties or Centres outside State, 

necessary requirements of the enactments/ Acts/Rules and 

Regulations are to be followed. Any institution established or run  to 

dehors of rules virtually amounts to demolishing the society. The 

Regulations, Acts, Rules, applicable serve the interests of students, 

teachers and the public at large. Their role is of paramount 

importance; the good education aims at to preserve harm ony among 

affiliated institution.ó 

ò35.   Before proceeding further on the issue, the purpose and 

concept of Education be reminiscent:  

The dictionary meaning of Education is learning; to gain knowledge. 

The petitioners, like all those people who pursue and  are in search of 

particular knowledge, have a propensity to become the torch bearers 

only if the same is pursued and accomplished in a very fair; 

transparent and legal manner; but if the degrees, as in the case in 

hand, are provided like a street commodit y the fate of the future can 

just be anticipated.  

36.   This court would not hesitate even to say that if the objection 

regarding the sanctity of petitioners degrees would not have been 

raised by the respondents, the probability was that they would have 

made their entry on different posts, again meant for imparting 

education, and the same would have resulted in generational 

waywardness, for, a candle cannot light another unless it continues 

to burn its own flame.ó 

25 . A Division Bench of this Court, (of whi ch I was author) in CWP 
No. 7688 of 2013  titled H -Private Universities Management Association (H -PUMA) 
vs. State of H.P. decided on 23.7.2014, was dealing with the right of private 
universities to make admission  to various technical courses in the instit ution 
dehors the rules wherein it was held that right to establish an educational 
institution was not a business or trade, given solely for the profit making since the 
establishment of educational institutions bears a clear charitable purpose. The 
establis hment of these institutions has a direct relation with the public interest in 
creating such institutions because this relationship between the public interest 
and private freedom determines the nature of public controls which can be 

permitted to be permiss ible. This Court also upheld the right of the State to act as 
a regulator to maintain academic standard. The following observations from the 
judgment deserve to be taken note of:  

ò20. In view of the various pronouncements of the Honõble Supreme 

Court, it c an safely be concluded that in a right to establish an 

institution, inherent is the right to administer the same which is 

protected as part of the freedom of occupation under Article 19 (1) 

(g). Equally, at the same time, it has to be remembered that this 
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right is not a business or a trade, given solely for the profit making 

since the establishment of educational institutions bears a clear 

charitable purpose. The establishment of these institutions has a 

direct relation with the public interest in creating such institutions 

because this relationship between the public interest and private 

freedom determines the nature of public controls which can be 

permitted to be òpermissibleó. Even the petitioners concede that they 

have established the institutions to ens ure good quality education 

and would not permit the standard of excellence to fall below the 

standard as may be prescribed by the State Government. The 

petitioners also conceded that the State makes it mandatory for 

them to maintain the standard of excelle nce in professional 

institutions. Thus, ensuring that admissions policies are based on 

merit, it is crucial for the State to act as a regulator. No doubt, this 

may have some effect on the autonomy of the private unaided 

institution but that would not mean that their freedom under Article 

19 (1) (g) has in any manner been violated. The freedom 

contemplated under Article 19 (1) (g) does not imply or even suggest 

that the State cannot regulate educational institutions in the larger 

public interest nor it be su ggested that under Article 19 (1) (g), only 

insignificant and trivial matters can be regulated by the State. 

Therefore, what clearly emerges is that the autonomy granted to 

private unaided institutions cannot restrict the Stateõs authority and 

duty to regu late academic standards. On the other hand, it must be 

taken to be equally settled that the Stateõs authority cannot 

obliterate or unduly compromise these institutionsõ autonomy. In 

fact it is in matters of ensuring academic standards that the balance 

necessarily tilts in favour of the State taking into consideration the 

public interest and the responsibility of the State to ensure the 

maintenance of higher standards of education.  

23. The State has power to regulate academic excellence particularly 

in matte rs of admissions to the institutions and, therefore, is 

competent to prescribe merit based admission processes for creating 

uniform admission process through CET. Any prayer for seeking 

dilution or even questioning the authority of the State to act an 

regu lator is totally ill -founded in view of the various judicial 

pronouncements, particularly in Visveswaraiah Technological 

University and another vs. Krishnendu Halder and others (2011) 4 

SCC 606 and reiterated in Mahatma Gandhi University and another 

vs. Ji kku Paul and others (2011) 15 SCC 242.ó 

26 . This Court in CWP No.2609 of 2014 titled Miss Kiran Bala and 
others vs. Himachal Pradesh University and others, decided on 28.8.2014 was 
ceased of a matter wherein the University without advertising the number of  seats 
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available for Ph.D. programme in Biotechnology, had granted permission to 
certain students in a manner which by no standards could be said to be fair or 
transparent, which constrained this Court to make the following observations:  

ò9. From the above , it is not understandable how the University in 

this era still claims that it is not mandatory to notify or advertise the 

number of seats available for Ph. D. Program. The respondents - 

University in its overzealousness to contest the petition have gone t o 

the extent of making the averments which can only be termed to be 

preposterous when it claims that petitioner had remained in the 

University for almost four long years and could not feign ignorance 

about the process of enrollment/admission under the Ph.D . Program 

in Biotechnology and about the past practice of Ph.D. enrollment. Is 

it to suggest that Ph.D. program offered by the University meant for 

the former students of the University, because it is only then they 

alone, who would have personal knowledge  regarding òprocess of 

enrollment/admission under the Ph.D. Program in Biotechnologyó. 

The respondents should have avoided leveling uncalled for 

allegations against the petitioners, which otherwise have nothing to 

do with the admissions of the Ph.D. progra m.  

10.  The Honõble Supreme Court has clearly spelt out in a catena 

of decisions that criteria for selection in such like course has to be 

merit alone. In fact, merit, fairness and transparency are the ethos of 

the process for admission to such courses. It  will be a travesty of 

justice if the rule of merit is defeated by inefficiency, inaccuracy or 

improper methods of admission. There cannot be any circumstance 

where the rule of merit can be compromised.  

11.  From the facts of the present case, it is evident that not only 

the merit has been a causality, the respondents have failed to 

observe and oversee that procedure adopted is fair and transparent. 

It has been the consistent view of the Honõble Supreme Court that 

merit alone is the criteria for such admission and circumvention of 

merit is not only impermissible but is also abuse of the process of 

law. [ See: Priya Gupta vs. State of Chhattisgarh (2012) 7 SCC 433, 

Harshali vs. State of Maharashtra (2005) 13 SCC  464, Pradeep Jain 

vs. Union of India (1984) 3 SCC 654, Shrawan Kumar vs. DG of 

Health Services 1993 Supp. (1) SCC 632, Preeti Srivastava vs. State 

of M.P. (1999) 7 SCC 120, Guru Nanak Dev University vs. Saumil 

Garg (2005) 13 SCC 749 and AIIMS Studentsõ Union vs. AIIMS 

(2002) 1 SCC 428].  

12.  This court cannot ignore the fact that these admissions relate 

to Ph.D. courses, where there is throughout competition and the 

entire life of a student depends on his/ her admission to this course. 
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Higher the competiti on, greater is the duty on the part of the 

authorities concerned to act with utmost caution to ensure 

transparency and fairness. It is one of the primary obligations of the 

University to see that a candidate of higher merit is not denied seat 

to the approp riate course and the same is not offered to a lesser 

meritorious candidate. There is no gain saying that the process of 

admission is a cumbersome task for the authorities but that per se 

cannot be a ground for compromising merit. The authorities 

concerned are expected to perform certain functions which must be 

performed in a fair and proper manner.  

13.  The essence of the judgement rendered by the Honõble 

Supreme Court dealing with these kind of issues is to nurture 

discipline, fairness and transparency in the selection and admission 

process and to avoid prejudice to any of the stakeholder. It is 

expected that the authorities would be perfect/ fair and transparent 

in the discharge of their duties. The Honõble Supreme Court has in 

fact held that a candidate w ho adopts mal -practices in collusion with 

the authorities or otherwise for seeking admission and if their 

admissions are found to be irregular or faulty in law by the courts, 

they shall normally be held responsible for paying compensation to 

such other can didates who have been denied admission as a result 

of admission of the wrong candidates. The law requires adherence to 

certain protocol in the process of selection and grant of admission, 

so that none should be able to circumvent or trounce this process 

wi th or without an ulterior motive.  

14.  The courts are duty bound to ensure that the litigation 

relating to academic courses particularly professional courses, 

should not be generated for want of will on the part of stakeholder to 

follow the process of sele ction and admission fairly, transparently 

and without any exploitation. The court cannot lose sight of the fact 

that career of more meritorious student is at stake. These are the 

matters relating to adherence to the rule of merit and when its 

breach is com plained of, the judiciary may be expected to deal with 

such grievance preferentially and efficiently. [See : Asha vs. Pt. B.D. 

Sharma University of Health Sciences and others (2012) 7 SCC 389 ] . 

15.  The respondents - University cannot be permitted to give 

admission to students in an arbitrary and nepotistic manner. The 

methodology adopted and the manner in which the admissions were 

given to respondents No. 3 to 5 leaves no doubt in the mind of this 

court that this process was neither fair nor transparent. I t is 

required to ensure that arbitrariness and discrimination does not 
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creep into the process of selection and equal opportunity is ensured 

to all eligible candidates in a just and fair manner.  

16.  The maxim boni judicis est causas litium dirimere places an 

obligation upon the court to ensure that it resolves the causes of 

litigation, so that litigation can be prevented by removing the cause 

of litigation itself.ó 

27 . Coming back to the facts of the case, it is not disputed that 
the vacancies of Principle and other Lecturers in the petitioner -College were 
required to be filled up after proper advertisement by the Selection Committee 
strictly in accordance with the latest guidelines/instructions of the University 
Grants Commission Regulations on minimum qual ifications for appointment of 
teachers and other academic staff in the University and Colleges as circulated by 

the UGC vide  communication No.F.3 -1/2009 dated 28.6.2010 and further 
adopted by the University for implementation in the colleges affiliated to  it and 
circulated by the University vide Notification No. 3 -5/78 -HPU (Genl.) Vol. IV dated 
9 th  July, 2010. The aforesaid procedure has been prescribed by the respondent -
University and informed to the petitioner vide letter dated 15.1.2013.  

28 . Clause 6.0. 0 of the UGC Regulations deals with the selection 
procedure which reads as under:  

ò6.0.0 SELECTION PROCEDURES:   

6.0.1  The overall selection procedure shall incorporate transparent, 
objective and credible methodology of analysis of the merits and 
credentia ls of the applicants based on weightages given to the 
performance of the candidate in different relevant dimensions and 
his/her performance on a scoring system proforma, based on the 
Academic Performance Indicators (API) as provided in this 
Regulations in Tables I to IX of Appendix III.  

 3.1.0    The Direct recruitment to the posts of Assistant Professors, 
Associate Professors and Professors in the Universities and Colleges 
shall be on the basis of merit through all India advertisement and 
selections by the duly constituted Selection Committees as per the 
guidelines prescribed under these Regulations to be incorporated 
under the Statutes/Ordinances of the concerned university. The 
composition of such committees should be as prescribed by the UGC 
in these Regu lations.ó  

29 . It was also not in dispute that the petitioner -institute had 

advertised seven posts of Lecturers in Education and one post of Principal in the 
newspaper (Tribune) on 30.12.2012, pursuant to which meeting of the Selection 
Committee duly const ituted in terms of the UGC Regulations as adopted by the 
respondent -University took place on 18.3.2013. Admittedly, no posts pursuant to 
this advertisement had been filled up. The petitioner then resorted to a novel  
method of filling up of the vacancies w hereby no fresh advertisement was issued 
and the petitioner convened meeting of the Selection Committee on 18.6.2013 on 
the basis of the applications received as per the old advertisement dated 
30.12.2012.  
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30 . Even the Selection Committee, which comprises of     six 
members, out of whom, one is the direct nominee of the Principal, two V.C. 
Nominee, while two others are subject matter expert and the sixth member is 
deputed by the University representing the SC/ST/OBC/Women etc., did not care 
to    ensure tha t there was fairness and transparency in filling up of the posts in 
question.  The least what was expected from the Selection Committee was to 
ensure that the posts in questions are filled up after issuance of proper 
advertisement giving an opportunity to all the eligible candidates to apply.  The 
petitioner institution which admittedly recognized by the University was bound to 
ensure that the doctrine of a quality and non -discrimination as mandated by 
Article 14 of the Constitution of India was not violate d.  

31 . The petitioner institute was further required to ensure that 
the posts in question are filled up after issuing advertisement giving wide publicity 
and thereafter to ensure that there was a proper competition amongst the 

qualified persons after foll owing due process of selection under the relevant Rules.  

32 .  As observed earlier, since the life -span of an advertisement 
have come to an end, therefore, it can be conveniently held that there was no 
advertisement whatsoever issued by the petitioner when it sought to fill up the 
posts on the basis of the Selection Committee meeting convened on 18.6.2013. 
The appointments made by the petitioner -institute are nothing but back door and, 
therefore, the appointments are total a nullity.  

33 . The Honõble Supreme Court has deprecated the tendency of 
appointment of even dai ly waged labourers without advertisement and termed 
these appointments as back door and in violation of Article 16 of the Constitution 
of India (Refer: Delhi Development Horticulture Employeesõ Union Vs. Delhi 
Administration, Delhi and others, AIR 1992, SC , 789). While in the case in 
hand, we are dealing with a case where the posts of Principle and Lecturers has 
been sought to be filled up without there being any proper advertisement or rather 
where there was no advertisement in the eyes of law.  

34 . It is settled law that appointments made without following 
proper procedure under the Rules/Government Circulars/University Circulars 
and without advertisement or inviting of applications from the open market, is 
flagrant and breach of the Articles 14 and 16 of the Constitution of India (Refer: 
Indian Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Vs. Workmen, Indian Drugs & 

Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (2007) 1 SCC 408) .  

35 . In M. P. State Coop. Bank Ltd., Bhopal Vs. Nanuram 
Yadav and Others (2007) 8 SCC 264, the Honõble Supreme Court laid down 
following principles to be followed in the matters of public appointments:  

ò24.  It is clear that in the matter of public appointments, the 
following principles  are to be followed:  

(1) The appointments made without following the appropriate 
procedure  under the rules/government circulars and without 
advertisement or inviting applications from the open market would 
amount to breach of Articles 14 and 16 of the Constitution of India.  

(2) Regularisation cannot be a mode of appointment.  
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(3) An appointment made in violation of the mandatory provisions 
of the statute and in particular, ignoring the minimum educational 
qualification and other essential qualification would be wholly illegal. 
Such illegality cannot be cured by taking recourse to r egularisation.  

(4) Those who come by back door should go through that door.  

(5) No regularisation is permissible in exercise of the statutory 
power conferred under Article 162 of the Constitution of India if the 
appointments have been made in contravention of the  statutory 
rules.  

(6) The Court should not exercise its jurisdiction on misplaced 
sympathy.  

(7) If the mischief played is so widespread and all pervasive 

affecting the result, so as to make it difficult to pick out the persons 
who have been unlawfully benefited or  wrongfully deprived of their 
selection, it will neither be possible nor necessary to issue individual 
show cause notice to each selectee. The only way out would be to 
cancel the whole selection.  

(8) When the entire selection is stinking, conceived in fraud an d 
delivered in deceit, individual innocence has no place and the entire 
selection has to be set aside.ó 

36 . Now reverting back to the petition, the petitioner was duty 
bound to have approached the court with clean hands and tendency of 
unscrupulous litigan ts who do not have any respect for truth and who try to 
pollute stream of justice by resorting to falsehood or by making misstatement or 
by suppressing facts which have bearing on adjudication of the issue(s) arising in 
the case has to be eschewed. A litig ant who does not come to the Court with clean 
hands is not entitled to be heard on the merits of his grievances and, in such case, 
such person is not entitled to any relief from a judicial forums. This was so held 
by the Honõble Supreme Court in Ramjas Fou ndation and another vs. Union of 
India and others (2010) 14 SCC 38  in the following terms:  

ò21. The principle that a person who does not come to the Court with 
clean hands is not entitled to be heard on the merits of his grievance 
and, in any case, such pe rson is not entitled to any relief is 
applicable not only to the petitions filed under Articles 32, 226 and 
136 of the Constitution but also to the cases instituted in others 
courts and judicial forums. The object underlying the principle is 
that every Cou rt is not only entitled but is duty bound to protect 

itself from unscrupulous litigants who do not have any respect for 
truth and who try to pollute the stream of justice by resorting to 
falsehood or by making misstatement or by suppressing facts which 
hav e bearing on adjudication of the issue(s) arising in the case.  

22. In Dalglish v. Jarvie (1850) 2 Mac. & G. 231 at page 238, Lord 
Langdale and Rolfe B. observed: (ER p.89)  

 "It is the duty of a party asking for an injunction to bring 
under the notice of t he Court all facts material to the determination 
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of his right to that injunction; and it is no excuse for him to say that 
he was not aware of the importance of any fact which he has omitted 
to bring forward.ó  

23.  In Castelli v. Cook (1849) 7 Hare, 89, pa e 94 Wigram V.C. 
stated the rule in the following words:  (ER p.38)  

 "éé.a plaintiff applying ex parte comes é.under a contract 
with the Court that he will state the whole case fully and fairly to the 
Court. If he fails to do that, and the Court finds, whe n other party 
applies to dissolve the injunction, that any material fact has been 
suppressed or not property brought forward, the plaintiff is told the 
Court will not decide on the merits, and that, as he has broken faith 
with the Court, the injunction mus t go."  

24. In Republic of Peru v. Dreyfus Brothers & Company 55 L.T. 802 

at page 803, Kay J. held as under:  

 "I have always maintained, and I think it most important to 

maintain most strictly, the rule that, in ex parte applications to this 

Court, the ut most good faith must be observed. If there is an 

important misstatement, speaking for myself, I have never hesitated, 

and never shall hesitate until the rule is altered, to discharge the 

order at once, so as to impress upon all persons who are suitors in 

this Court the importance of dealing in good faith in the Court when 

ex parte applications are made."  

25.  The same rule was restated by Scrutton L., J in R. v. 
Kensington Income Tax Commissioner (1917) 1 K.B. 486. The facts 
of that case were that in April , 1916, the General Commissioners for 
the Purposes of the Income Tax Acts for the district of Kensington 
made an additional assessment upon the applicant for the year 
ending April 5, 1913, in respect of profits arising from foreign 
possessions. On May 16, 1916, the applicant obtained a rule nisi 
directed to the Commissioners calling upon them to show cause why 
a writ of prohibition should not be awarded to prohibit them from 
proceeding upon the assessment upon the ground that the applicant 
was not a subject  of the King nor resident within the United 
Kingdom and had not been in the United Kingdom, except for 
temporary purposes, nor with any view or intent of establishing her 
residence therein, nor for a period equal to six months in any one 
year. In the affid avit on which the rule was obtained the applicant 

stated that she was a French subject and resident in France and was 
not and had not been a subject of the United Kingdom nor a resident 
in the United Kingdom; that during the year ending April 5, 1913, 
she was in the United Kingdom for temporary purposes on visits for 
sixty -eight days; that she spent about twenty of these days in 
London at her brother's house, 213, King's Road, Chelsea, generally 
in company with other guests of her brother; that she was also  in the 
United Kingdom during the year ending April 5, 1914, for temporary 
purposes on visits, and spent part of the time at 213, King's Road 
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aforesaid; and that since the month of November, 1914, she had not 
been in the United Kingdom.  

26.  From the affi davits filed on behalf of the Commissioners and 
of the surveyor of taxes, who showed cause against the rule nisi, and 
from the affidavit of the applicant in reply, it appeared that in 
February, 1909, a leasehold house, 213, King's Road, Chelsea, had 
been t aken in the name of the applicant's brother. The purchase -
money for the lease of the house and the furniture amounted to 
4000, and this was paid by the applicant out of her own money. The 
accounts of household expenses were paid by the brother and 
subseque ntly adjusted between him and the applicant. The 
Divisional Court without dealing with the merits of the case 
discharged the rule on the ground that the applicant had suppressed 
or misrepresented the facts material to her application. The 
Divisional Court observed that the Court, for its own protection is 
entitled to say "we refuse this writ of prohibition without going into 
the merits of the case on the ground of the conduct of the applicant 
in bringing the case before us".  

27.  On appeal, Lord Cozens -Har dy M.R. and Warrington L.J. 
approved the view taken by the Divisional Court. Scrutton L.,J. who 
agreed that the appeal should be dismissed observed:  

 "ééand it has been for many years the rule of the Court, and 

one which it is of the greatest importance t o maintain, that when an 

applicant comes to the Court to obtain relief on an ex parte 

statement he should make a full and fair disclosure of all the 

material facts - facts, not law. He must not misstate the law if he can 

help it - the court is supposed to know the law. But it knows nothing 

about the facts, and the applicant must state fully and fairly the 

facts, and the penalty by which the Court enforces that obligation is 

that if it finds out that the facts have not been fully and fairly stated 

to it, the  Court will set aside any action which it has taken on the 

faith of the imperfect statement."  

28.  The abovenoted rules have been applied by this Court in large 
number of cases for declining relief to a party whose conduct is 
blameworthy and who has not a pproached the Court with clean 
hands - Hari Narain v. Badri Das AIR  1963 SC 1558, Welcome Hotel 
v. State of A.P. (1983) 4 SCC 575, G. Narayanaswamy Reddy v. 
Government of Karnataka (1991) 3 SCC 261, S.P. Chengalvaraya 
Naidu v. Jagannath  (1994) 1 SCC 1, A.V. Papayya Sastry v. 
Government of A.P.  (2007) 4 SCC 221, Prestige Lights Limited v. SBI 
(2007) 8 SCC 449 , Sunil Poddar v. Union Bank of India  (2008) 2 SCC 
326, K.D. Sharma v. SAIL (2008) 12 SCC 481, G. Jayashree v. 
Bhagwandas S. Patel  (2009) 3 SCC 141 and Dalip Singh v. State of 
U.P. (2010) 2 SCC 114.  

29.  In the last mentioned judgment, the Court lamented on the 
increase in the number of cases in which the parties have tried to 
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misuse the process of Court by making false and/or misleading 
statements or by suppressing the relevant facts or by trying to 
mislead the Court in passing order in their favour and observed: 
(Dalip Singh case (2010) 2 SCC 114, SCC pp.116 -17, paras 1 -2)  

 "1. For many centuries Indian society cherished two basic 

values of life i.e. "satya" (truth) and "ahimsa" (non -violence). Mahavir, 

Gautam Buddha and Mahatma Gandhi guided the people to ingrain 

these values in their daily life. Truth constituted an integral  part of 

the justice -delivery system which was in vogue in the pre -

Independence era and the people used to feel proud to tell truth in 

the courts irrespective of the consequences. However, post -

Independence period has seen drastic changes in our value syst em. 

The materialism has overshadowed the old ethos and the quest for 

personal gain has become so intense that those involved in litigation 

do not hesitate to take shelter of falsehood, misrepresentation and 

suppression of facts in the court proceedings.  

 2. In the last 40 years, a new creed of litigants has cropped 

up. Those who belong to this creed do not have any respect for truth. 

They shamelessly resort to falsehood and unethical means for 

achieving their goals. In order to meet the challenge posed by this 

new creed of litigants, the courts have, from time to time, evolved 

new rules and it is now well established that a litigant, who attempts 

to pollute the stream of justice or who touches the pure fountain of 

justice with tainted hands, is not entitled  to any relief, interim or 

final."  

                 (emphasis supplied)  

30.  In our view, the appellants are not entitled to any relief 

because despite strong indictment by this Court in Ramjas 

Foundation  v. Union of India, the y deliberately refrained from 

mentioning details of the cases instituted by them in respect of the 

land situated at Sadhora Khurd and rejection of their claim for 

exemption under clause (d) of notification dated 13.11.1959 by the 

High Court and this Court.ó  

37 . The petitioner is not so naïve to feign ignorance regarding 

mode, manner and procedure of recruitment and selection after all it is running a 
professional college. But surprisingly still it has tried to justify the illegal 
app ointments made (paragraph 16 supra).  

38 . The petition deserves to be dismissed not only it lacks merit, 
but also because the petitioner has not approached this Court with clean hands. 
Accordingly, the present petition is dismissed, so also the pending appl ication(s) if 
any. The parties are left to bear their own costs.  
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 ****************************************  

 

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SANJAY KAROL, J. & HONõBLE MR. 

JUSTICE P.S. RANA, J.  

State of Himachal Pradesh     é..Appellant.  

 Vs. 

Chanalu Ram alias  Kuber S/o Shri Mela Ram & Ors. éRespondents.  

 

   Cr. Appeal No. 416 of 2008  

    Judgment reserved on: 5.8.2014  

      Date of Decision: 23.09.2014.  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 302 - Deceased had gone to a Village to attend 

the marriage, where he had a quarrel with the accused - wife of the deceased went 

to the house of PW -1 after 2 -3 days of the quarrel who told her that accused and 

deceased had visited her home - deceased had also not joined his duty - a 

Panchayat was called where the accused had made an extra judicial confession - 

matter was reported to police - the accused and deceased were last seen together 

on 9.7.2006 - FIR was lodged on 12.7.2006 - dead body was also fou nd on 

12.7.2006 - held that, the last seen theory comes into play only when time gap 

between the point of time when the accused and deceased were seen together and 

when the dead body of deceased is found is so small that possibility of any person 

other than  the accused being the author of crime becomes impossible - the time 

gap between 9.7.2006 and 12.7.2006 was large and the last seen theory cannot be 

applied.   (Para-11) 

Indian Evidence Act, 1872 - Section 3 - Appreciation of evidence - circumstantial 

evidence - in case of circumstantial evidence, prosecution is under legal obligation 

to prove the circumstances from which the conclusion of guilt is to be drawn - the 

circumstances should be conclusive in nature - they should be consistent only 

with the hypothesis of  guilt and inconsistent with innocence of the accused -

circumstances should exclude the possibility of guilt of any person other than the 

accused.  (Para-12) 

Indian Evidence Act, 1872 - Section 24 - Extra Judicial Confession - Confession in 

criminal cases shoul d be voluntary in nature and should be free from any 

pressure - when the witnesses had not stated that the confession was voluntary, 

confession should not be believed.          (Para-14) 

Indian Evidence Act, 1872 - Section 27 - As per prosecution case, a ston e was 

recovered on the basis of disclosure statement made by the accused - however, 

neither the finger prints of the accused nor the blood of the deceased was found 
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upon the stone - held, that the recovery is not sufficient to implicate the accused. 

(Para-15) 

 Indian Evidence Act, 1872 - Section 3 - Proved- Court must guard against the 

danger of allowing conjecture or suspicion to take place of legal proof - suspicion 

howsoever strong cannot take the place of proof.    (Para-18) 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 378 - Appeal against acquittal - the 

Appellate Court should not set aside the judgment of acquittal when two views are 

possible - the Court must come to the conclusion that the view of the Trial Court 

was perverse or otherwise unsustainable - the Cour t is to see whether any 

inadmissible has been taken into consideration and can interfere only when it 

finds so.  
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General with Mr. Vikram Thakur, Deputy  Advocate 

General.  

For the Respondents:  Mr. Ramesh Sharma, Advocate.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

P.S.Rana, J.  

 Present appeal filed against the judgment  passed by learned 

Sessions Judge Chamba Division in Sessions trial No. 12 of 2007 titled State of 

H.P. Vs.  Chanalu Ram @ Kuber and others.  

BRIEF FACTS OF THE PROSECUTION CASE:  

2.  Brief facts of the case as alleged by prosecution are that on 

dated 9.7.20 06 at 10/11 AM at village Maniyoga Pargana Himgiri Tehsil Salooni 

District Chamba accused persons in furtherance of common intention committed 

murder of deceased Desh Raj son of Baldev Ram resident of village Khudri, 

Pargana Pichhla Diur Tehsil Salooni Dis trict Chamba. It is further alleged by 

prosecution that accused persons in furtherance of common intention caused 

disappearance of evidence of murder of said Shri Desh Raj with intention to 

screen themselves from legal punishment. It is further alleged by prosecution that 

on dated 9.7.2006 Desh Raj deceased had gone to village Maniyoga in order to 

attend the marriage from where he had to join his duties. It is also alleged by 

prosecution that in July 2006 there was a marriage of the brother of PW3 Lachho 

Ram in village Manyoga and accused persons being members of the band party 

were also present in said marriage. It is alleged by prosecution that after the 

marriage was over accused persons came to house of PW1 Smt. Nardai wife of 

Gian at about 8/9 PM and sta rted beating the drum/band in their house and 

Desh Raj deceased was also with them at that time. It is further alleged by 

prosecution that to co -accused Pyar Singh put his hand on shoulder of Nardaiõs 

daughter and deceased Desh Raj objected to it and he ga ve a slap to co -accused 

Pyar Singh and thereafter there was a quarrel between the accused persons and 

deceased Desh Raj and PW1 Nardai pacified the matter and thereafter deceased 
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and accused persons left the house of Nardai. It is also alleged by prosecuti on that 

after 2/3 days wife of deceased Desh Raj came to the house of PW1 Nardai and 

asked her as to whether her husband Desh Raj came to her house with accused 

persons. It is further alleged by prosecution that thereafter Nardai told that 

deceased came to  her house and also told that Desh Raj deceased had left her 

house along with accused persons. It is further alleged by prosecution that on 

dated 11.7.2006 PW13 Baldev Ram came to his home in the evening and he 

enquired from the family members about the wh ereabouts of Desh Raj upon 

which he was told that he had gone to attend the marriage from where he would 

go to his duties. It is also alleged by prosecution that thereafter Baldev Ram ran 

up at P.S. Tissa but he was informed that deceased had not joined hi s duties and 

then he went to village Manyoga in order to find out about whereabouts of 

deceased Desh Raj and enquired from Giano of Manyoga who told that deceased 

Desh Raj left to her house along with accused persons. It is further alleged by 

prosecution t hat thereafter Baldev Ram came to his house and called the Pardhan 

and also called 10 -15 other persons where co -accused Kewal had given extra 

judicial confession that he along with other accused persons have killed deceased 

Desh Raj with a blow of stone an d thereafter concealed the dead body of deceased. 

It is further alleged by prosecution that thereafter matter was reported to the 

police  and FIR Ext.PW10/B was registered. It is also alleged by prosecution that 

photographs of dead body were also got click ed and inquest reports Ext.PW11/A 

and Ext.PW11/B were prepared and dead body was sent to Regional Hospital 

Chamba for postmortem through PW9 C. Deep Singh and HHC Kishan Chand. It 

is alleged by prosecution that site plan of spot Ext.PW11/C was prepared and  post 

mortem of deceased was conducted and as per opinion of medical officer cause of 

death was head injury which was caused with a blow of stone Ext.P5. It is further 

alleged by prosecution that as per FSL report there was no evidence of alcohol or 

poison  in the stomach, small intestines, spleen, kidney and blood of the deceased. 

It is further alleged by prosecution that thereafter co -accused Channalu had given 

disclosure statement that he could get recovered the stone with which deceased 

was killed. It is  further alleged by prosecution that as per disclosure statement of 

co-accused Chanalu stone was recovered and same was took into possession vide 

recovery memo Ext.PW11/E. It is further alleged by prosecution that site plan 

Ext.PW11/G and jamabandi Ext.PW6 /C were obtained from PW6 Mohinder Singh 

Patwari vide application Ext.PW6/A and clicked photographs are Ext.PX/1 to 

Ext.PX/8 and negatives of photographs are Ext.PX/9 to Ext.PX/16. It is further 

alleged by prosecution that parcels were deposited with the m alkhana and 

thereafter same were sent for chemical examination vide RC No. 39/06 through C. 

Deep Ram.  

3   Charge was framed against accused persons by learned 

trial Court on dated 28.4.2007 under Section 302 read with Section 34 IPC and 

under Section 201 read with Section 34 IPC.  Accused persons did not plead guilty 

and claimed trial.  
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4.     The prosecution e xamined the following witnesses in 

support of its case: -    

Sr.No.  Name of Witness  

PW1 Smt. Nardai  

PW2 Tara Chand  

PW3 Lachho Ram  

PW4 Mohar Singh  

PW5 Dr. K.P. Singh  

PW6 Mohinder Singh  

PW7 Kuldeep Kumar  

PW8 Chain Singh  

PW9 Deep Kumar  

PW10 HC Ashok Kumar  

PW11 ASI Kaur Chand  

PW12 ASI Mukesh Kumar  

PW13 Baldev Ram  

PW14 Man Singh  

PW15 Somraj  

PW16 Jai Singh  

PW17 Gianu  

 

4.1    Prosecution also produced following piece of 

documentary evidence in support of its case: -    

Sr.No. Description:  

Ex.PW2/A.  Seizure memo of clothes.  

Ex.PW5/A.  Application to Medical Officer for post 

mortem of deceased Desh Raj.  

Ex.PW5/B  FSL report  

Ex.PW5/C  Post mortem report of Desh Raj  

Ex.PW6/A  Application to Tehsildar  
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Ex.PW6/B  Tatima  

Ex.PW6/C  Jamabandi for the years 2002 -03 

Ex.PW8/A  Statement under Section 154 Cr.P.C. 

of Shri Baldev Ram  

Ex.PW10/A  Copy of DD No. 4/12.7.2006  

Ext.PW10/B.  Copy of FIR  

Ex.PW11.A 

and 

Ext.PW11/B  

Inquest reports  

Ex.PW11/C  Site plan.  

Ex.PW11/D  Statement under Section 27 of 

Evidence Act.  

Ext.PW11/E  Seizure memo of stone Ext.P5.  

Ext.PW11/F  Seal impression  

Ext.PW11/G  Site plan  

Ext.PW11/H  Seizure memo of clothes  

Ext.PW11/J  Seal impressions  

Ext.PW11/D 

and Ext.DA  

Statement of Nardai under Section 

161 Cr.P.C. for confrontation 

purpose.  

Ext.PW11/L  FSL report  

Ext.PX-1 to 8  Photographs  

Ext.PX-9 to 

16  

Negatives of photographs  

Ext.P1 to 

Ext.P5  

Shirt, pant of accused Piar Singh, 

shirts of accused Chanalu and stone  

 

5.   Statements of the accused persons were also recorded under 

Section 313 Cr.P.C. They have stated that they are innocent and they have been 

falsely implicated in this case.  Learned trial Court acquitted all the accused by 

way of giving them benefit of doubt .   



374 
 

6.  Feeling aggrieved against the judgment passed by learned 

Trial Court State of H.P. filed present appeal under Section 378 of Code of 

Criminal Procedure.  

7.  We have heard learned Additional Advocate General appearing 

on behalf of the State of H.P. an d learned Advocate appearing on behalf of the 

respondents and also perused the entire record carefully.  

8.  Question that arises for determination before us in this appeal 

is w hether learned trial Court did not properly appreciate oral as well as 

documenta ry evidence placed on record and whether learned trial Court had 

committed miscarriage of justice to the appellant as mentioned in grounds of 

appeals.  

ORAL EVIDENCE ADDUCED BY PROSECUTION:  

9.1.  PW1 Nardai has stated that there was a marriage in July 2006 

of bother of Shri Lachho Ram and accused persons present in Court were 

members of the band party in the marriage ceremony. She has stated that after 

marriage ceremony was over accused came to her house at about 8/9 PM and 

they beat the band in her house. Sh e has stated that deceased Desh Raj was also 

with them at that time. She has stated that thereafter co -accused Pyar Singh put 

his hand on the shoulder of her daughter and deceased Desh Raj objected and 

slapped co -accused Pyar Singh. She has stated that the reafter there was a quarrel 

between the accused persons and deceased Desh Raj and she pacified them. She 

has stated that thereafter all of them left her house including deceased Desh Raj. 

She has further stated that after 2/3 days wife of deceased Desh Raj  came to her 

house and asked her as to whether her husband Desh Raj came to her house with 

accused. She has stated that she informed the wife of deceased Desh Raj that 

Desh Raj had left her house along with accused persons. She has stated that 

accused pers ons remained in her house for half an hour. She has stated that 

when quarrel took place in her house between accused persons and deceased 

Desh Raj there was none except her and her daughter. She has admitted that 

deceased was intoxicated. Self stated that accused persons have also took alcohol 

at that time. She has denied suggestion that deceased Desh Raj had died due to 

fall from hillock. She has denied suggestion that accused persons did not come to 

her house. She has also denied suggestion that there was  no quarrel between 

deceased Desh Raj and accused persons in her house.  

9.2  PW2 Tara Chand has stated that on dated 15.7.2006 he 

brought the clothes of accused Chanalu and Piar Singh from their houses which 

were worn by accused persons and same were took into possession vide seizure 

memo. He has stated that shirt Ext.P1 and pant Ext.P2 belonged to accused Piar 

Singh and further stated that shirt Ext.P3 and pant Ext.P4 belonged to co -

accused Chanalu Ram. He has denied suggestion that he had not gone to the 
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houses of accused persons and has also denied suggestion that he had not 

brought the clothes of co -accused Chanalu and co -accused Piar Singh.  

9.3  PW3 Lachho Ram has stated that there was marriage of his 

younger brother Paras Ram on dated 7.7.2006. He has stated that accused 

persons present in Court were members of the band party. He has stated that 

band party was engaged by him. He has further stated that deceased Desh Raj 

had also attended the marriage. He has stated that Dham (Final function of 

marriage ceremony) was celebrated on dated 9.7.2006. He has stated that 

thereafter he gave ` 1800/ - to accused persons on Dham (Final function of the 

marriage ceremony) and thereafter accused persons left his house. He has stated 

that deceased Desh Raj also accompa nied accused persons and thereafter they 

went to the house of Gianu where they also beat the drum. He has stated that in 

the house of Gianu quarrel took place between accused persons and deceased 

Desh Raj. He has stated that thereafter accused persons and Desh Raj left the 

house of Gianu at about 9/9.30 PM. He has further stated that on dated 

11.7.2006 wife of Desh Raj came to his house and enquired about Desh Raj. He 

has stated that he told her that deceased Desh Raj had left his house with 

accused persons  and went to the house of Gianu on the same day of Dham (Final 

function of marriage). He has stated that thereafter dead body of Desh Raj was 

found in Manyoga on dated 12.7.2006. He has stated that he suspected that 

accused persons have killed Desh Raj. He  has stated that no quarrel took place in 

his presence between accused persons and deceased Desh Raj. He has stated that 

Desh Raj had consumed liquor on that day. He has stated that he does not know 

that deceased Desh Raj had fallen from hillock under the influence of liquor and 

died due to fall.  

9.4   PW4 Mohar Singh has stated that there was a marriage on 

23 rd  Ashad 2006 in the house of Shri Lachho Ram of his brother Shri Paras Ram. 

He has stated that accused persons present in Court were members of band p arty. 

He has stated that accused persons came to his house in order to spend the night 

and they reached at 10 or 11 PM and he provided them bedding and they stayed 

during night in his house. He has stated that wife of deceased Desh Raj came to 

his house in  order to enquire about deceased Desh Raj but he told her that he 

does not know about deceased. He has further stated that thereafter dead body of 

deceased Desh Raj was found in Manyoga hillock. He has stated that he heard 

that Desh Raj was with accused pe rsons. He has stated that he heard that 

accused persons had killed deceased Desh Raj. He has stated that he does not 

know that deceased Desh Raj had consumed liquor. He has stated that he does 

not know that deceased had died due to fall.  

9.5   PW5 Dr. Kulvi nder Pal Singh has stated that he was posted as 

Medical Officer in RH Chamba and further stated that one Desh Raj son of Baldev 

Ram aged 32 years resident of Khudri District Chamba was brought to hospital 

through police docket Ext.PW5/A. He has conducted t he post mortem 
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examination of deceased Desh Raj on dated 13.7.2006 at 11 AM and has also 

observed as under. He has stated that on external appearance deceased was 

about 30 years male well built with black long hair wearing striped T -shirt, blue 

jean, blue underwear and black socks and shoes. He has further stated that his 

rigor mortis was present and entire body and face was studded with maggots. He 

has stated that entire body and face along with both eyes were eaten up by 

maggots. He has stated that no mar k of ligature seen and there was a bruise 2x2 

cms over the left temporal area. He has stated that on examination of cranium 

and spinal cord hematoma was present 3x3 cm below the skin of left temporal 

part of skull with overlying skin having swelling and br uise. He has stated that 

linear fracture 3 cm long over the left temporal bone and brain matter was 

liquefied and were containing shades of liquid blood. He has further stated that 

thorax and abdomen were found normal and on muscles bones  and joints no 

in jury was found. He has stated that cause of death was head injury. He has 

stated that injury was ante -mortem. He has stated that as per perusal of FSL 

report Ext.PW5/B there was no evidence of alcohol or poison in stomach, small 

intestines, spleen, kidney and blood. He has stated that as per opinion the cause 

of death was head injury and he issued post mortem report Ext.PW6/B which is 

in his hand and bears his signatures. He has stated that injury found on head of 

deceased could be caused by stone Ext.P5. H e has stated that injuries mentioned 

in post mortem report could be caused if deceased struck against the hard 

surface.  

9.6  PW6 Mohinder Singh has stated that he is posted as Patwari 

in Patwar Circle Bhanjwar Tehsil Salooni District Chamba for the last mo re than 

three years. He has stated that application Ext.PW6/A was marked to him by 

Tehsildar for conducting the demarcation of place of incident. He has stated that 

he visited the spot on dated 5.9.2006 along with police officials and prepared 

tatime Ext.P W6/B, which is in his hand and bears his signatures and he issued 

copy of jamabandi Ext.PW6/C . He has stated that place of incident falls in 

Khasra No. 330. He has denied suggestion that he has prepared tatima in 

Patwarkhana and also denied suggestion tha t he did not visit the place of 

incident.  

9.7   PW7 Kuldeep Kumar has stated that he is photographer by 

profession and on dated 12.7.2006 he was joined by police in the investigation 

and he clicked photographs Ext.P2 to Ext.P9 and negatives are Ext.P10 to E xt.P17 

and after developing the same were handed over to police officials. He has stated 

that photographs did not bear his signatures. He has denied suggestion that he 

did not click the photographs of the spot.  

9.8  PW8 Chain Singh has stated that on dated 12.7.2006 he was 

present and joined the police investigation. He has stated that ASI Kaur Chand 

P.S. Kihar recorded statement of Baldev Raj as per his version and after making 

endorsement on ruka at Manyoga Phat Ext .PW8/A the same was sent to police 
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station Kihar for registration of case through him on the basis of which FIR was 

registered. He has further stated that after making the endorsement on the FIR in 

red circle the file was handed over to him which he took t o the spot and handed 

over to ASI Kaur Chand. He has denied suggestion that he was not present at the 

spot. He has also denied suggestion that no ruka was given to him.  

9.9  PW9 C. Deep Kumar has stated that prior to his posting at 

Surangani Police Post he  was posted in P.S. Kihar. He has stated that on dated 

12.7.2006 he along with HHC Kishan Chand was deputed to get the dead body of 

deceased Desh Raj post mortem at R.H. Chamba and he got the same post 

mortem at R.H. Chamba and obtained the post mortem rep ort on dated 14.7.2006 

along with viscera and one parcel which were handed over to him by Medical 

Officer who conducted the post mortem. He has stated that post mortem was 

conducted on dated 13.7.2006 and on dated 17.7.2006 MHC Ashok Kumar 

handed over to h im viscera, four parcels and one envelope for being taken to FSL 

Junga vide RC No. 39/2006 which was deposited there by him on dated 

19.7.2006. He has stated that case property was not tampered and after 

depositing the articles with FSL he handed over the RC back to MHC Ashok 

Kumar. He has denied suggestion that he did not take the case property to FSL 

Junga.  

9.10  PW10 HC Ashok Kumar has stated that he remained posted 

as MHC P.S. Kihar from the year 2003 to 2006. He has stated that on dated 

12.7.2006 vide  rapat No. 4 of D.D. Ext.PW10/A, ASI Kaur Chand along with other 

police officials had proceeded to village Sunj where dead body of SPO Desh Raj 

was stated to be lying. He has stated that ASI Kaur Chand sent ruka Ext.PW8/A 

through SPO Chain Singh to P.S. on  the basis of which FIR Ext.PW10/B was 

recorded by him at 8.15 PM which bears his signatures. He has stated that 

thereafter file was sent to spot for further investigation to ASI Kaur Chand and 

further stated that on dated 14.7.2006 HHC Kishan Chand deposi ted viscera duly 

sealed with 11 seals and one parcel with four seals of RH Chamba and one 

envelope which was addressed to FSL Junga. He has stated that he entered the 

same in malkhana register and on dated 15.7.2006 ASI Kaur Chand deposited 

with him three parcels duly sealed with seals ôKõ and ôHõ along with specimen 

seals. He has further stated that on dated 17.7.2006 he sent the aforesaid sealed 

parcels to FSL Junga vide RC No. 39/2006 through C. Deep Kumar for chemical 

analysis. He has stated that case p roperty was not tampered with till it remained 

in his custody. He has denied suggestion that no case property was deposited with 

him. He has denied suggestion that he did not sent the same to FSL Junga.  

9.11  PW11 ASI Kaur Chand has stated that in the year 2006 he 

was posted in P.S. Kihar as ASI/I.O. and on dated 12.7.2006 he along with other 

police officials in order to verify the report No. 4 were present at Manyoga Phat 

where statement of Baldev Ram was recorded. He has stated that statement of 

Baldev was  recorded under Section 154 Cr.P.C. Ext.PW8/A and same was sent to 
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P.S. Kihar for registration of FIR. He has stated that photographs of dead body 

were clicked and inquest reports Ext.PW11/A and Ext.PW11/B were prepared and 

dead body was sent for post mort em through C. Deep Ram and HHC Kishan 

Chand. He has stated that he also prepared site plan of spot Ext.PW11/C and on 

dated 13.7.2006 all four accused persons were arrested. He has further stated 

that thereafter accused persons were produced before Chief Ju dicial Magistrate 

Chamba and five days police remand was obtained. He has stated that on dated 

15.7.2006 accused Chanalu Ram made a disclosure statement Ext.PW11/D in 

presence of witnesses Hoshiar Singh and Maan Singh that he could get recovered 

the stone with which he had killed deceased Desh Raj. He has stated that he had 

given disclosure statement that he hit the stone on head of Desh Raj. He has 

stated that disclosure statement of co -accused Chanalu Ram was reduced into 

writing and thereafter co -accused  Chanalu led the police party to Manyoga Phat 

and located the place where he had concealed the stone. He has stated that as per 

location shown by co -accused Chanalu the stone was recovered but due to rainy 

season the stone was wet and blood stains were was hed away. He has stated that 

stone was took into possession vide memo Ext.PW11/E. He has stated that stone 

is Ext.P5. He has stated that clothes of accused which were worn by accused at 

the time of incident also took into possession. He has stated that clo thes worn by 

accused at the time of incident were washed away. He has stated that clothes of 

co-accused Chanalu are Ext.P3 and Ext.P4 and clothes of co -accused Pyaru are 

Ext.P1 and Ext.P2 and they were took into possession vide seizure memo. He has 

stated that tatima of spot  is Ext.PW6/B and jamabandi is Ext.PW6/C and 

photographs are Ext.PX -1 to Ext.PX -8 and negatives are Ext.PX -9 to Ext.PX -16. 

He has stated that he has also filed application Ext.PW6/A for post mortem of 

deceased. He has stated that after receipt of report from FSL Junga Ext.PW5/B 

and Ext.PW11/L he handed over the case file to SI/SHO Mukesh Kumar. He has 

denied suggestion that as deceased was police officer false case has been filed 

against the accused persons.  

9.12  PW12 ASI Mukesh Kumar has stated that he was posted at 

P.S. Kihar since 2005. He has stated that after completion of investigation and its 

verification he prepared challan and filed before the Court.  

9.13  PW13 Baldev Ram has stated that he is running a hardware 

shop at village  Diur. He has stated that his son Desh Raj was posted as SPO in 

P.S. Tissa and was posted at Himgiri Check post at the relevant time. He has 

stated that on dated 09.07.2006 he had gone to village Manyoga in order to attend 

the marriage. He has stated that from marriage place deceased decided to join his 

duties directly. He has further stated that on dated 11.7.2006 he came to his 

home in the evening and he enquired about deceased Desh Raj upon which he 

was informed that deceased had gone to attend the marri age and from marriage 

place deceased decided to attend his duties. He has stated that thereafter he rang 

up at Police Station Tissa but it was told that deceased had not joined his duties. 
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He has further stated that then he went to village Manyoga in order  to find out 

about whereabouts of Desh Raj and enquired from Giano of village Manyoga who 

told that deceased Desh Raj had left her house with accused persons namely 

Chanalu Ram, Piar Singh, Kewal and Dharam Chand present in Court. He has 

stated that therea fter he came to his house and called Pardhan and other 10 -15 

persons and co -accused Kewal Ram was also called. He has stated that co -

accused Kewal Ram told that he along with co -accused Chanalu Ram, Piar Singh 

and Dharam Chand have killed Desh Raj with blo w of stone and thereafter 

deceased was dragged to Manyoga hillock and was concealed there. He has stated 

that thereafter his dead body was recovered and photographs Ext.P1 to Ext.P8 

clicked and negatives of photographs Ext.P9 to Ext.P16 prepared. He has st ated 

that thereafter dead body of Desh Raj was sent to R.H. Chamba for post mortem 

purpose. He has denied suggestion that deceased used to take alcohol. He has 

denied suggestion that under the influence of liquor deceased fell down from 

hillock and died. H e has denied suggestion that co -accused Kewal did not give any 

extra judicial confession.  

9.14   PW14 Man Singh has stated that on dated 15.7.2006 co -

accused Chanalu @ Kuber had made a disclosure statement Ext.PW11/D that he 

had concealed one stone and he could get it recovered. He has stated that 

thereafter accused led the police party to Manyoga hillock and stone Ext.P5 was 

recovered at the instance of co -accused which was took into possession vide 

seizure memo. He has stated that stone Ext.P5 is the same  which was recovered 

at the instance of co -accused Chanalu. He has stated that clothes of co -accused 

Piar Singh were took into possession. He has denied suggestion that no stone was 

recovered as per disclosure statement given by co -accused and he has also denied 

suggestion that co -accused Chanalu did not give any disclosure statement.  

9.15  PW15 Som Raj has stated that on dated 9.7.2006 his brother 

Desh Raj had gone to attend a marriage in village Manyoga from where he was to 

join his duties at P.S. Tissa. He has stated that after 2/3 days they enquired 

about him from P.S. Tissa and they were told that he had not joined his duties 

and then they enquired about Desh Raj in village Manyoga. He has further stated 

that he came to know that deceased was in the com pany of accused persons and 

it also came to his knowledge that accused were taking liquor during whole day. 

He has stated that deceased and accused persons left the house at about 10 PM. 

He has stated that co -accused Kewal Singh told that Desh Raj was kill ed by 

accused persons in the house and thereafter his dead body was dragged to 

Manyoga hillock. He has stated that he also disclosed that deceased was killed at 

the instance of Tara Chand another SPO. He has stated that he was not present in 

the marriage. He has stated that co -accused Kewal disclosed the above incident to 

them in presence of his father Baldev Ram, Giano, Hans Raj and Satpal etc. He 

has denied suggestion that co -accused Kewal did not disclose anything.  
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9.16   PW16 Jai Singh has stated that on  dated 9.7.2006 he was 

present in a marriage in village Manyoga and accused persons were the members 

of band party in the marriage. He has stated that accused persons teased a girl in 

the marriage and deceased Desh Raj objected to it and quarrel took place . He has 

further stated that accused persons left the marriage house in the evening after 

the marriage was over and deceased Desh Raj also accompanied them to his 

house as he was resident of area of accused persons. He has stated that on dated 

12.7.2006 th ey came to know that deceased Desh Raj was murdered in the night 

of dated 9.7.2006. He has stated that dead body of deceased was found and 

photographs clicked and thereafter dead body was took into possession. He has 

stated that he remained Pardhan of Gram  Panchayat Pichla Diur. He has stated 

that quarrel took place in the house of Gianu. He has denied suggestion that no 

quarrel took place between deceased and accused persons.  He has stated that 

quarrel took place for 10 -15 minutes. He has stated that he a lso pacified the 

accused and deceased. He has stated that dead body was lying open in the said 

hillock. He has denied suggestion that he was not present in the marriage. He has 

denied suggestion that no quarrel took place between deceased and accused 

perso ns.  

9.17  PW17 Gianu has stated that there was marriage in village 

Manyoga in the house of Lachho Ram of his brother Paras Ram. He has stated 

that accused persons present in Court were members of band party in the 

marriage. He has stated that deceased Desh  Raj was also present in the marriage. 

He has stated that co -accused Pyar Singh teased his daughter upon which Desh 

Raj objected and slapped co -accused Pyar Singh but they separated them. He has 

stated that during night accused persons left the marriage ho use and deceased 

Desh Raj also went with them. He has stated that on the fourth day dead body of 

Desh Raj was found in Manyoga hillock in pasture land. He has stated that 

accused did not tease his daughter in his presence. He has stated that deceased 

Desh Raj had also consumed liquor. He has stated that they all took liquor on the 

marriage day including accused persons. He has stated that he does not know 

that deceased Desh Raj  died due to fall on the Manyoga hillock under the 

influence of liquor.  

10.   Statements of accused persons recorded under Section 313 

Cr.P.C. Accused persons have stated that they are innocent and they have been 

falsely implicated in present case. Accused persons did not lead any defence 

evidence.  

(1)Last seen theory not sufficient t o convict accused persons  

11 .  Submission of learned Additional Advocate General appearing 

on behalf of the State that accused persons be convicted on the basis of last seen 

theory in present case is rejected being devoid of any force for the reasons 

here inafter mentioned. It is the case of prosecution that on dated 9.7.2006 the 
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deceased went to village Manyoga to attend the marriage ceremony and thereafter 

he did not come back to his house. It is the story of prosecution that deceased was 

lastly seen in t he company of accused persons on dated 09.07.2006. It is proved 

on record that FIR was recorded on dated 12.7.2006 at 8.15 AM. It is proved on 

record that dead body of deceased was found in the open place on dated 

12.7.2006. It is well settled law that las t seen theory comes into play only when 

time gape between the point of time when accused and deceased were seen 

together and dead body of deceased found is so small that possibility of any 

person other than the accused being the author of crime becomes imp ossible. (See 

AIR 2008SC 2819 titled Kusuma Ankama Rao Vs.  State of A.P.) It is well 

settled law that in order to convict the accused on the concept of last seen theory 

intervention of third person should be ruled out beyond reasonable doubt. In 

present c ase accused persons and deceased were lastly seen together on dated 

9.7.2006 and thereafter dead body of deceased was found in open place on dated 

12.7.2006. We are of the opinion that intervention of possibility of third person 

from dated 9.7.2006 to 12.7 .2006 could not ruled out in present case in the open 

place where dead body of deceased was found. In view of above stated facts we 

hold that it is not expedient in the ends of justice to convict the accused persons 

on last seen theory.  

(2) Circumstantial evidence is not sufficient to convict the accused persons 

in the present case  

12.    Another submission of learned Additional Advocate 

General appearing on behalf of the State that accused be convicted on the basis of 

circumstantial evidence in present case  is rejected being devoid of any force for 

the reasons hereinafter mentioned. In order to convict the accused on the 

circumstantial evidence, the prosecution is under legal obligation to prove (i) That 

circumstances from which conclusion is drawn should be  fully proved (ii) That 

circumstances should be conclusive in nature (iii) That all the facts so established 

should be consistent only with the hypothesis of guilt and inconsistent with 

innocence (iv) That circumstance should, to a moral certainty exclude the 

possibility of guilt of any person other than the accused. (See AIR 1992 SC Court 

2045 titled  State of U.P. Vs.  Dr. Ravindra Prakash Mittal, See AIR 1952 SC 

343 Hanumant Govind Nargundkar and another Vs.  State of Madhya 

Pradesh, See AIR 2010 SC Cour t 762 titled Musheer Khan @ Badshah Khan 

and another Vs.  State of Madhya Pradesh, See AIR 2009 SC 56 titled 

Shivaji @ Dadya Shankar Alhat Vs.  State of Maharashtra, See AIR 1979 

Apex Court 1410 titled State of Maharashtra Vs.  Annappa Bandu 

Kavatage, See AIR 1979 Apex Court 826 titled S.P. Bhatnagar and another 

Vs.  The State of Maharashtra, See AIR 1989 SC 1890 titled Ashok Kumar 

Chatterjee Vs.  State of Madhya Pradesh, See AIR 1992 SC 758 titled 

Sakharam Vs.  State of Madhya Pradesh, See  AIR 1975 SC 241  titled 

Dharm Das Wadhwani Vs.  The State of Uttar Pradesh, See AIR 1954 SC 
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621 titled Bhagat Ram Vs.  State of Punjab.)  It is also well settled law that in 

order to convict the accused in circumstantial evidence five golden principles 

should be proved (i)  That circumstances from which the conclusion of guilt is to be 

drawn should be fully established and the accused must be and not merely may 

be guilty (ii) That facts so established should be consistent only with the 

hypothesis of the guilt of the accused (iii) That circumstances should be of a 

conclusive nature and tendency (iv) That they should exclude every possibility of 

innocence of accused (v) That there must be a chain of evidence so complete as 

not to leave any reasonable ground for the conclusion c onsistent with the 

innocence of the accused and must show that in all human probability the act 

must have been done by the accused. (See 2013 Cri.L.J. 2040, titled Prakash 

Vs.  State of Rajasthan (DB).   

13 .  In present case accused persons were lastly see n in the 

company of deceased on dated 9.7.2006 and thereafter dead body of deceased was 

found in open place on dated 12.7.2006 after a gap of three days and there is no 

evidence on record in order to prove that place where dead body of deceased was 

found r emained non -accessible to any third person. It is well settled law that in an 

open place accessibility of any third person cannot be ruled out. Dead body of 

deceased was found in open place and open place was accessible to third person. 

In present case cir cumstantial evidence is not sufficient to convict the accused 

persons.  

(3) Extra judicial confession of accused person is not sufficient to convict 

the accused persons in present case  

 

14 .  Submission of learned Additional Advocate General appearing 

on beh alf of the State that on the basis of extra judicial confession of co -accused 

Kewal Ram accused persons be convicted is also rejected being devoid of any force 

for the reasons hereinafter mentioned. It is well settled law that there are two 

types of confes sions in Criminal law. (1) Judicial confession (2) Extra judicial 

confession. As per Section 24 of Indian Evidence Act, confession in criminal case 

caused by inducement threat or promise is irrelevant confession. It is well settled 

law that confession in c riminal case should be voluntarily in nature and should be 

free from any pressure. PW13 Baldev Ram when he appeared in witness box did 

not state that co -accused Kewal Ram had given extra judicial confession 

voluntarily. The word ôvoluntarilyõ is missing in testimony of PW13 Baldev Ram 

qua extra judicial confession of co -accused Kewal Ram. In absence of word 

ôvoluntarilyõ qua confession in the testimony of PW13 Baldev Ram it is not 

expedient in the ends of justice to convict the accused persons on the concep t of 

extra judicial confession.  

(4) Disclosure statement given by co -accused Chanalu under Section 27 of 

Indian Evidence Act is not helpful to prosecution in present case  
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 15.  Learned Additional Advocate General appearing on behalf of 

the State submitted that in view of disclosure statement of co -accused Chanalu 

Ram under Section 27 of Indian Evidence Act accused persons be convicted in 

present case is rejected being devoid of any force for the reasons hereinafter 

mentioned. Court has carefully perused the  disclosure statement given by co -

accused Chanalu under Section 27 of Indian Evidence Act. As per Section 27 of 

Indian Evidence Act stone was recovered as per disclosure statement of co -

accused Chanalu. The prosecution story that stone was recovered as per  

disclosure statement of co -accused Chanalu under Section 27 of Indian Evidence 

Act is not connected with weapon of offence because no finger prints of accused 

persons were found upon the stone and no blood of deceased was found upon the 

stone in order to prove beyond reasonable doubt that murder of deceased was 

committed with stone which was recovered at the instance of co -accused Chanalu 

Ram.  

(5) Chemical Analysis report Ext.PW11/L is also not helpful to the 

prosecution  

16.  As per Chemical Analysis repo rt no human blood was found 

upon the stone, shirt of co -accused Piar Singh, pant of co -accused Piar Singh, 

pant of co -accused Chanalu Ram and shirt of co -accused Chanalu Ram. In 

absence of any human blood upon the stone, upon the above stated shirts and 

pants worn by accused persons at the time of incident it is not expedient in the 

ends of justice to convict the accused persons in the present case.  

(6) Photographs placed on record are also not helpful to the prosecution  

 17.  Submission of learned Additional Advocate General appearing 

on behalf of the State that accused persons be convicted on the basis of 

photographs placed on record along with negatives is also rejected being devoid of 

any force for the reasons hereinafter mentioned. We have caref ully perused the 

photographs placed on record along with negatives. Photographs are Ext.PX/1 to 

Ext.PX/8 and negatives are Ext.PX/9 to Ext.PX/18. The photographs placed on 

record proved beyond reasonable doubt that dead body of deceased was found in 

an ope n pasture place which was approachable to the general public. In view of 

the fact that place where dead body was found was approachable to the general 

public it is not expedient in the ends of justice to convict the accused persons 

because in present case possibility of intervention of third person in criminal case 

could not be ruled out. It is not proved on record beyond reasonable doubt by 

prosecution that place where dead body of deceased was found was not 

approachable to any third person except the accu sed persons.  

18 .  Submission of learned Additional Advocate General appearing 

on behalf of the State that as per oral as well as documentary evidence placed on 

record accused persons be convicted in present case is rejected being devoid of 

any force for th e reasons hereinafter mentioned. It is well settled law that 
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suspicion however strong cannot take place of proof.  ( See 2005)9 SCC SC 765 

(DB) titled Anjlus Dungdung Vs.  State of Jharkhand) It is well settled law that 

Court must guard against the danger o f allowing conjecture or suspicion to take 

place of legal proof. (See: AIR 1967 SC 520 titled Charan Singh Vs.  The State 

of UP  See:  AIR 1971 SC 1898  titled (1) Gian Mahtani and (2) Budhoo and 

others Vs.  State of Maharashtra).  It was again held in case  AIR 1979 SC 

1382  titled State (Delhi Administration) Vs.  Gulzarilal Tandon  that 

suspicion however grave cannot take place of proof.  (also see  AIR 1984 SC 1622 

titled Sharad Birdhichand Sarda Vs.  State of Maharashtra , See: AIR 1983 

SC 906  titled Bhugdom al Gangaram and others Vs.  the State of Gujarat  

See:  AIR 1985 SC 1224 titled State of U.P. Vs.  Sukhbasi and others)  It is 

well settled principle of law that if two reasonable conclusions are possible on the 

basis of the evidence on record, the appellat e Court should not disturb the finding 

of acquittal recorded by the learned trial Court. (See (2013)2 SCC 89 titled 

Mookkiah and another Vs.  State  See 2011(11) SCC 666 titled State of 

Rajasthan Vs.  Talevar , See AIR 2012 SC (Supp) 78 titled Surendra Vs.  

State of Rajasthan  , See 2012(1) SCC 602 State of Rajasthan Vs.  Shera 

Ram @ Vishnu Dutta.) It is also well settled principle of law (i) That Appellant 

Court should not ordinarily set aside a judgment of acquittal in a case where two 

views are possible th ough the view of the appellate Court may be more probable. 

(ii) That while dealing with a judgment of acquittal Appellant Court must consider 

entire evidence on record so as to arrive at a finding as to whether views of learned 

trial Court are perverse or otherwise unsustainable. (iii) That Appellate Court is 

entitled to consider whether in arriving at a finding of fact, learned trial Court 

failed to take into consideration any admissible fact (iv) That appellate Court is 

entitled to consider whether in arr iving at findings of fact learned trial Court took 

into consideration non -admissible evidence. (See AIR 1974 SC 2165 titled 

Balak Ram and another Vs.  State of U.P., See (2002)3 SCC 57, titled 

Allarakha K. Mansuri Vs.  State of Gujarat, See (2003)1 SCC 398  

Raghunath Vs.  State of Haryana, See AIR 2007 SC 3075 State of U.P. Vs.  

Ram Veer Singh and others, See AIR 2008 SC 2066 (2008) 11 SCC 186 S. 

Rama Krishna Vs.  S. Rami Raddy (D) by his LRs. & others. Sambhaji 

Hindurao Deshmukh and others Vs.  State of Mah arashtra, (2009)10 SCC 

206 titled Arulvelu and another Vs.  State, (2009)16 SCC 98 Perla 

Somasekhara Reddy and others Vs.  State of A.P. and (2010)2 SCC 445 

titled Ram Singh @ Chhaju Vs.  State of Himachal Pradesh.)  

 19 . In view of above stated facts we h old that judgment passed by 

learned trial Court is in accordance with law and is in accordance with proved 

facts placed on record. Judgment passed by learned trial Court is affirmed. Appeal 

filed by State is dismissed. Pending miscellaneous application(s) if any also stand 

disposed of.  

**********************  
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BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE P.S. RANA, J. 

Anil Kumar        é.Applicant 

     Vs.  

State of H.P.                é.Non-applicant  

 

  Cr.MP(M) No. 1110 of 2014  

  Order Reserved 22.9.2014  

  Date of Order 24.9.2014    

 

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 438 - FIR was registered against the 

petitioner for the commission of offence punishable under Sections 376, 354 -A, 

406, 506 IPC - held, that the Court has to consider the nature and seriousness of 

offence, character and behavior of the accused, circumstances peculiar to the 

accused, reasonable possibility of securing the presence of the accused at the trial 

and investigation, reasonable apprehension of the witnesses being tampered with 

and  larger inter est of the public and State - further held, that the offences of rape 

were increasing in society and the Court should be sensitive while dealing with 

such cases - the Court has to presume that prosecutrix had not consented to the 

sexual intercourse - the Cour t should not decide whether the offence was 

committed at the time of granting bail or not and it would not be expedient to 

release the petitioner on bail till the testimony of the prosecutrix is recorded in the 

trial.  

  

Cases referred:  

Gurcharan Singh Vs. State, AIR 1978 Apex Court 179 DB  

State Vs. Captain Jagjit Singh, 1962 Apex Court 253 Full Bench  

 

For the Applicant:   Ms. Archna Dutt, Advocate.  

For the Non -applicant:  Mr. M.L. Chauhan, Additional Advocate General and 

Mr. Pushpender  Singh Jaswal, Deputy Advocate 

General.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

P.S. Rana, Judge.   

 Present bail application filed under Section 438 of the Code of 

Criminal Procedure 1973 for grant of anticipatory bail in FIR No. 193/14 
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regi stered on 14.9.2014 at Police Station Ghumarwin, Tehsil Ghumarwin, District 

Bilaspur under Section 376, 354 -A, 406, 506 IPC.   

2.  It is pleaded that applicant is innocent and the applicant has 

been falsely implicated in the case.  It is further pleaded tha t any condition 

imposed by the Court will be binding upon the applicant. It is further pleaded that 

investigation is complete and custodial interrogation of the applicant is not 

required. It is further pleaded that the age of the prosecutrix is 35 years an d 

prosecutrix is married woman and is having a son.  It is further pleaded that 

applicant and prosecutrix are known to each other for more than one year.  It is 

further pleaded that allegations for taking Rs.15,00,000/ - (Rupees Fifteen Lacs) 

and commission  of rape are false and prayer for acceptance of the bail application 

sought.  

3.  Per contra police report filed.  As per police report FIR No. 

193/14 dated 14.9.2014 was registered under Section 376, 354A (1), 406 and 506 

IPG registered in Police Station G humarwin, District Bilspur, H.P.   There is recital 

in the police report that prosecutrix was married with Sh. Rajesh Kumar resident 

of Adilabad Andhra Pradesh.  There is further recital in the police report that 

prosecutrix has one son aged 7 years.  Ther e is further recital in the police report 

that applicant brought the prosecutrix to Ghumarwin on the pretext that he would 

marry the prosecutrix.  There is further recital in the police report that prosecutrix 

resided in the house of applicant for three mo nths.  There is further recital in the 

police report that prosecutrix also sold her vehicle and plot and earned 

Rs.15,00,000/ - (Rupees Fifteen Lacs).  There is further recital in police report that 

Rupees Fifteen lacs earned from sale of vehicle and plot b y prosecutrix handed 

over to applicant for preparation of FDR in favour of minor son of prosecutrix.   

There is further recital in the police report that applicant told the prosecutrix that 

he would prepare FD of Rs.15,00,000/ - (Rupees Fifteen Lacs) in the  name of son 

of the prosecutrix.  There is further recital in the police report that when 

prosecutrix enquired about Rs.15,00,000/ - (Rupees Fifteen Lacs) from the 

applicant then applicant told prosecutrix that he had spent Rs.15,00,000/ - 

(Rupees Fifteen La cs) for his personal use. There is further recital in the police 

report that applicant did not prepare the FD in favour of son of the prosecutrix.  

There is further recital in the police that on 11.9.2014 applicant entered into the 

residential house of the  prosecutrix and forcibly committed rape upon her.  After 

registration of the case site plan was prepared and videography of the spot was 

also conducted and bed sheet and torn shirt of the prosecutrix also took into 

possession vide seizure memo.  There is further recital in police report that 

intensive investigation is required qua fifteen lacs of amount from accused.  Prayer 

for rejection of anticipatory bail application sought.   

4.  Court heard learned Advocate appearing on behalf of 

applicant and Court a lso heard learned Additional Advocate General appearing on 

behalf of non -applicant and also perused the entire record carefully.    
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5.  Submission of learned Advocate appearing on behalf of the 

applicant that applicant is innocent and did not commit any off ence cannot be 

decided at this stage.  Same fact will be decided when case will be decided on 

merits by the learned trial Court after giving due opportunity of hearing to both 

the parties to lead evidence in support of their case.  

6.  Another submission of  learned Advocate appearing on behalf 

of the applicant that applicant will abide any condition imposed by the Court and 

on this ground anticipatory bail application be allowed is rejected being devoid of 

merit for the reason hereinafter mentioned.   Follow ing factors are to be 

considered while granting the bail: (i) Nature and seriousness of offence; (ii) 

Character and behavior of accused; (iii) Circumstances peculiar to the accused; 

(iv) Reasonable possibility of securing the presence of the accused at the  trial and 

investigation; (v) Reasonable apprehension of the witnesses being tampered with; 

(vi)  Larger interest of the public and State. ( See AIR 1978 Apex Court 179 DB, 

titled Gurcharan Singh vs. State and also see 1962 Apex Court 253 Full  

Bench titled  State Vs. Captain Jagjit Singh ).  In the present case allegations 

have been leveled against the applicant that the applicant committed offence 

under Section 376, 354 A(1), 406 and 506 IPC.  Offences of rape are increasing in 

the society day by day and off ence of rape is stigma upon the society.  It is well 

settled law that Court should be sensitive while dealing with sexual molestation 

cases. Allegation against the applicant is that on 11.9.2014 applicant forcibly 

entered into the residential house of the prosecutrix and committed rape upon her 

and further allegation against the applicant is that applicant brought the 

prosecutrix from Adilabad Andhra Pradesh on the pretext that he would marry her 

and allegation against the applicant is that applicant commit ted criminal breach 

of trust qua Rs. 15,00,000/ - (Rupees Fifteen Lacs) owned by the prosecutrix. 

Allegations against the applicant are very heinous and grave in nature.  Section 

114 (A) of Indian Evidence Act 1872 was incorporated w.e.f. 3.2.2013. As per 

Section 114 (A) the Court shall presume that prosecutrix did not consent the 

sexual intercourse when prosecutrix states in the Court that she did not consent 

the sexual intercourse. Whether offence of rape was committed or not cannot be 

decided at this stag e and the same fact will be decided by the learned trial Court 

when the testimony of the prosecutrix will be recorded.  Court is of the opinion 

that it is not expedient in the interest of justice to release the applicant on bail till 

the testimony of the p rosecutrix is not recorded during trial of case. Court is also 

of the opinion that if the applicant is released on bail then the interest of the State 

and general public will be adversely affected because investigation is initial stage 

of case.   It is hel d that custodial investigation of the applicant is essential in the 

present case in order to recover rupees fifteen lacs from applicant.   

7.  In view of the above stated facts anticipatory bail application 

is rejected.  My observation made hereinabove is strictly for the purpose of 

deciding the present bail application filed under Section 438 Cr.P.C. and will not 
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affect merits of the case in any  manner.  All pending application(s) if any are also 

disposed of.  

 

 ****************************************  

 

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SANJAY KAROL, J. & HONõBLE MR. 

JUSTICE P.S. RANA, J.  

Joban Dass     ...Appellant.  

        Vs.  

State of Himachal Pradesh    ...Respondent.  

 

   Criminal Appeals No.490 of 2008 a/w Anr.  

   Reserved on  : 16.9.2014  

   Date of Decision :24.09.2014  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1908 - Section 374 - Practice and Procedure -In an 

appeal the Appellate Court is duty bound to appreciate the evidence on record and 

if two views are possible the benefit of the reasonable doubt has to be extended to 

the accused.   (Para-9) 

N.D.P.S. Act, 1985 - Section 20 - Accused were found in possession of 4 kgs of 

charas - there were contradictions in the testimonies of the prosecution witnesses 

regarding the manner of arrival at the spot - independent witness had turned 

hostile - other police officials who accom panied the police party were not 

examined - there were contradictions regarding the manner of arrival - the version 

of the police party that motorcycle was seen from the distance was contradicted by 

the site plan - held, that in these circumstances, accused w ere entitled to 

acquittal.        (Para-10 to 21)  

N.D.P.S. Act, 1985 - Section 57 - PW-10 stated that the case property was handed 

over to PW -9- he further admitted that it had come in investigation that case 

property was produced before PW -6 who denied the same- case property was not 

re-sealed prior to its deposit with MHC - there is contradiction regarding the date 

of the deposit of the case property in the laboratory - held, that in these 

circumstances, the possibility of tampering with the case property cou ld not be 

ruled out.                                                    (Para-21 & 22)  

 

Case referred:  

Lal Mandi Vs. State of W.B., (1995) 3 SCC 603  
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For the Appellants  : Mr. Ajay Kochhar & Mr. Vikas Rathore, Advocates.  

For the Respondent  :  Mr. B.S. Parmar, Mr. Ashok Chaudhary,  Additional 

Advocates General, Mr. Vikram Thakur, Deputy 

Advocate General, and Mr. J.S. Guleria, Assistant 

Advocate General.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sanjay Karol, Judge   

  Since both these appeals arise out of common judgment, 

rendered by the trial Court, they are being decided as such.   

2.    Appellants -convicts Joban Dass and Kumbh, hereinafter referred to 

as the accused, have assailed the judgment dated 28.6.2008/30.6.2008, passed 

by Special Judge , Shimla, Himachal Pradesh, in Sessions Trial No.1 -S/7 of 2008, 

titled as State of H.P. v. Joban Dass and another , whereby they stand convicted of 

the an offence punishable under the provisions of Section 20 read with Section 29 

of the Narcotic Drugs & Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985 (hereinafter referred to 

as the NDPS Act) and sentenced to undergo rigorous imprisonment for a period of 

ten years each and pay fine of Rs.1,00,000/ - each, and in default therefore to 

further undergo rigorous imprisonment for a period of two years.  

3.   It is the case of prosecution that on 21.10.2007 at about 10.30 p.m.,  

police party, comprising of ASI Narinder Singh (PW -10), HHC Kulbhushan (PW -9) 

and HHG Ranu Ram (not examined), left Police Station, Nerwa, in Vehicle No.H P-

01-3346 (Taxi), driven by Jatinder Negi (PW -8), for patrol/Nakabandi duty, 

towards Minus side.  To this effect, Narinder Kumar recorded entry (Ex.PW -10/A) 

in the Daily Diary Register.  At 12.30 -1.00 a.m., police party set up Naka, at a 

place known as Roh ana and checked vehicles for about 4 -5 hours.  On 

22.10.2007, while the police party was on its way back, midway, at 5.30 a.m., 

near Durga Mandir, they noticed a motorcycle coming from the opposite direction.  

Accused Joban Dass, who was driving the motorc ycle, tried to flee away, but 

however, police party apprehended him.  Accused Khumb Dass, who was sitting 

as a pillion rider, was holding a black coloured bag in his lap.  On suspicion that 

the accused might be possessing some contraband substance, Narinde r Singh, 

after informing Khumb Dass of his legal right, obtained consent, vide Memo 

(Ex.PW-8/A), for being searched.  After giving his personal search, Narinder Singh 

conducted search of accused Khumb Dass.  From the bag, police recovered 

Charas, which was  packed in two blue coloured polythene bags.  The contraband 

substance was weighed and found to be 4 kgs.  Two samples of 25 grams each 

were drawn.  Samples as also the remaining bulk parcel were packed and sealed 

with seal impression ôNõ, three in number.  Memo of seal impression (Ex.PW -8/F) 

was prepared; NCB form (Ex.PW -10/B) was filled up in triplicate; contraband 
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substance was taken into possession vide memo (Ex.PW -8/D) alongwith the 

motorcycle.  Original seal was handed over to Jatinder Negi (PW -8).  K ulbhushan 

drove the motorcycle and carried Ruka as also the seized contraband substance to 

the Police Station, for being kept in a safe custody. FIR No.60/07, dated 

22.10.2007 (Ex.PW -1/B), under the provisions of Section 20 of the NDPS Act was 

recorded by Narveer Singh (PW -1), who handed over the file to Kulbhuhan (Pw -9).  

Information to superior Officer was also sent.  Sealed sample was taken by Sadhu 

Ram (PW-4) for being deposited at the FSL, Junga.  Report (Ex.PZ) was obtained 

by the police, which certif ied the contraband substance to be Charas.  As such, 

with the completion of investigation, Narinder Kumar handed over the case file to 

SHO Prem Chand (PW -7), who presented the challan in the Court for trial.  

4.   Both the accused persons were charged for having committed 

an offence punishable under the provisions of Section 20 read with Section 29 of 

the NDPS Act, to which they did not plead guilty and claimed trial.  

5.   In order to establish its case, prosecution examined as many 

as 11 witnesses and sta tements of the accused under provisions of Section 313 of 

the Code of Criminal Procedure were also recorded, in which they took up defence 

of denial and false implication.  

6.   Based on the testimonies of the witnesses and the material on 

record, trial Cou rt convicted the accused of the charged offence and sentenced 

them as aforesaid.  Hence, the present appeal by the accused.  

7.    We have heard learned counsel for the parties and minutely 

examined the record.  

8.   The apex Court in Lal Mandi v. State of W.B., (1995) 3 SCC 

603 , has held that in an appeal against conviction, the appellate Court is duty 

bound to appreciate the evidence on record and if two views are possible on the 

appraisal of evidence, benefit of reasonable doubt has to be given to an accused. 

  

9 .  For proving recovery of the contraband substance from the 

conscious possession of the accused, prosecution heavily relies upon the 

testimonies of Jitender Negi (PW -8), Narinder Singh (PW -10), Kulbhushan (PW -9) 

and on the qu estion of link evidence, reliance is sought on the testimony of Narvir 

Singh (Pw -1) and Sadhu Ram (PW -4). 

10 .   To us, genesis of the prosecution story of having left Police 

Station, Nerwa, on 21.10.2007, in a vehicle, for the purpose of Nakabandi, 

appears  to be false.  Narinder Singh in Memo (Ex. PW -10/A) records that he left 

the Police Station in a private vehicle.  The document does not disclose either the 

type or the number.  Also, name of the driver of the said vehicle is not disclosed.  

The document a lso does not record that police had prior intimation of any illegal 

trafficking of the contraband substance in and around the area and/or that police 
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party left the police Station for detection of such crime. These facts were not 

necessary, but absence the reof, in view of contradictions, major in nature, which 

have emerged on record, acquires significance.  

11 .   In Court, Narinder Singh states that before proceeding from 

the Police Station, vehicle driven by Jitender Negi already stood hired and in the 

sam e, police party left the Police Station for Rohana.  This witness admits that no 

fare was paid to Jatinder Negi.  He tries to explain that Jatinder Negi used to go to 

Rohana daily, for carrying the passengers.  Thus, police party boarded his vehicle.  

Suggestion is that they took lift.  We do not find such version of his to be correct, 

for he forgets that search and seizure operations were not carried out at the time 

when the vehicle was being driven towards Rohana, but on way back.  Why would 

police party,  comprising of three police officials, one of whom is an ASI, seek 

obligation of a private party and that too a taxi driver, has not been explained.  It 

is nobodyõs case that at Rohana, Jitender Negi did not find any passengers, hence 

returned to Nerwa wit h the police party.   

12.   Version of Narinder Singh, we find to have been contradicted 

by other witnesses.  In fact, Kulbhushan (PW -9) has a totally different version to 

narrate.  He states that police party left Police Station, Nerwa on foot and after 

spending about 20 -25 minutes in the Bazaar, vehicle was hired from there.  In 

fact, he goes on to state that at the time when police party left the Police Station, 

there were no plans of hiring any vehicle, hence no entry in that regard was made 

in the reco rd.  He is categorical that vehicle hired was a taxi.  Jatinder Negi 

clarifies that he was called to the Police Station, where police obtained his 

signatures on the documents.  He was neither aware nor made known of contents 

thereof. Thus, this witness con tradicts the version of not only Narinder Singh, but 

also lends credence to the suggestion put by the accused that all documents were 

prepared by the police party, as an afterthought, in the Police Station.  

13.   On this issue, when we examine the testimon y of Jatinder 

Negi, we find that a totally different version, with regard to engagement of the 

vehicle in question has come on record.  Significantly, unambiguously and 

uncontrovertedly, he states that Yudhvir Singh, a wine contractor, had hired his 

taxi.  At about 9.30 p.m., Yudhvir Singh alongwith his partner Bhimta, ASI 

Narinder Singh and Kulbhushan went in the vehicle to Rohana.  Also, it is the 

admitted case of Kulbhushan and Nareinder Singh that at the relevant time 

Yudhvir Singh was a wine contractor  at Nerwa.  

14.   Thus two views have emerged on record, with regard to the 

police party having left Nerwa, rendering the genesis of the prosecution story to be 

doubtful.  

15 .   We further find that on the issue of search and seizure 

operations, two views h ave emerged on record.  Independent witness Jatinder Negi 

was declared hostile and despite extensive cross -examination, he has stuck to his 
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original version that on their return, near the Mandir, Narinder Singh and Yudhvir 

Singh asked him to stop the vehic le, as they saw a bag lying abandoned and none 

was present there.  Also, he clarifies that police party reached Nerwa at about 6 

a.m.  He went home and was called to the Police Station at 11 a.m., where he 

signed certain papers.  Crucially, with regard to presence of Yudhvir Singh, 

testimony of this witness remains uncontroverted.  Now, why would police seek 

obligation of a wine contractor, has not been explained.  The very genesis of the 

prosecution story stands knocked down.  

16.   Further, when we examine  the testimonies of Kulbhushan and 

Narinder Singh, we find them not to be inspiring in confidence and witnesses to be 

reliable and trustworthy.  It is in this backdrop, more so, after Jatinder Negi 

resiled from his original statement, examination of Ranu R am, a police official, 

who allegedly accompanied the police party, became necessary, which was not so 

done.   

17.   Narinder Singh (PW -10) states that on way back, at about 

5.45 a.m., when the police party reached Durga Mandir, they saw one motorcycle 

comi ng from the opposite side.  Seeing the police party, the motorcyclists tried to 

flee away, but was apprehended.  Accused Joban Dass was driving the motorcycle 

and accused Khumb Dass, who was setting as a pillion rider, was holding a black 

coloured bag in h is lap.  On enquiry, accused told that it contained clothes.  He 

got suspicious of the accused possessing some contraband substance, hence 

apprised Khumb Dass of his legal right; got his consent vide memo (Ex.PW -8/A); 

and conducted the search operation.  P rior thereto, he also gave his search.  From 

the person of Khumb Dass, nothing incriminating was found, but however, from 

the bag two blue coloured polythene bags containing Charas were recovered.  The 

same were weighed and found to be 4 kgs.  Two samples of 25 grams each, were 

drawn.  Samples as also bulk parcel were sealed with seal impression ôNõ.  Sample 

impression (Ex. PW -8/D) of the seal was taken and the seal, after use, was handed 

over to Jatinder Negi.  Ruka(Ex.PW -1/A), prepared by him, was taken b y 

Kulbhushan alongwith the contraband substance to the Police Station on the 

motorcycle, which was also sized by the police.  He prepared site plan (Ex. PW -

10/C); arrested the accused after issuing Memos (Ex. PW -10/D and Ex.PW10/E).  

After registration of the FIR, Kulbhushan brought the file back to the spot.  He 

prepared Special Report (Ex. PW -2/A), which was sent to the SDPO, Chopal.  He 

recorded statements of the witnesses as per version so narrated by them.  He tried 

to ascertain the ownership of the ve hicle and got information vide Memo (Ex. PW -

5/A).  The vehicle, i.e. motorcycle No.UA -08G -7342, was registered in the name of 

one Parvesh resident of District Haridwar (UP).  Case file was handed over by him 

to the SHO for presentation of challan.  The exa mination -in -chief part of the 

statement of this witness, in a parrot -like manner, stands corroborated by 

Kulbhushan (PW -9), who adds that he handed over Ruka and the case property, 

alongwith samples of Charas to the MHC.  
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18.   However, when we examine the  cross -examination part of 

their testimonies, we find that there are various contradictions, which in our 

considered view are material, rendering the prosecution case of recovery of the 

contraband substance, from the conscious possession of the accused, to  be 

further doubtful.  Contradiction with regard to police party having left in a vehicle 

already stands dealt with.  Narinder Singh states that from the Police Station, 

police party straightway proceeded towards Rohana and it did not halt anywhere 

on the way.  Now, this version stands materially contradicted by Kulbhushan, 

according to whom police party stopped in the Bazaar at Nerwa for 20 -25 minutes 

and thereafter also stopped at Gumma, a place before Rohana, where also 

checking was done in the Bazaar fo r more than 15 -20 minutes.   

19.   Further, according to Narinder Singh, police party saw the 

motorcycle from a distance of 50 metres, whereas according to Kulbhushan, the 

distance was approximately 200 metres. Contradiction when viewed with 

contemporaneou s record, i.e. spot map (Ex. PW -10/C), acquires significance and 

belies the ocular version of the witnesses.  Also, in the spot map, it be noticed, the 

place where Durga Mandir is situate, there is a blind curve and the vehicle coming 

from Gumma side is no t visible to a person coming from Rohana side.  Narinder 

Singh states that as per the spot, he correctly prepared the site plan.  But then he 

contradicts the same by stating that on the spot, there was no curve and road was 

straight.  Further, Narinder Sin gh states that there was no light near Durga 

Mandir and it was dark at the time when motorcycle was first noticed, and that 

police party stopped the vehicle after the motorcycle was seen.  However, 

Kulbhushan states that at the time when motorcycle came, p olice party had 

alighted from the vehicle, which was stopped at Durga Mandir.  

20.   Intriguingly, we find that no consent of accused Joban Dass 

was sought prior to carrying out search and seizure operations.  This fact stands 

admitted by the police officia ls present on the spot.  But why so? it remains 

unexplained.  Now, if police had apprehension of both the accused carrying the 

contraband substance, and in fact when both of them were searched, then why is 

it that the said accused was not informed of his l egal right, in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 50 of the Act and consent obtained.  In fact, when we look 

into the documents prepared on the spot, we find that in the Memos (Ex.PW -8/A, 

8/B, 8/C & 8/F), there is no reference of accused Joban Dass at all.  These are 

documents pertain to search and seizure operations.  Signatures of Joban Dass 

are there only on seizure Memo (Ex. PW -8/D) and arrest Memo (Ex. PW -10/D), 

execution whereof on the spot, to our mind, appears to be doubtful.  These 

omissions  remain unexplained on record, probablizing the defence of false 

implication, and the accused being taken by the police from the Bus Stand to the 

Police Station, for if both the accused were present together, then their consent 

had to be obtained.  After a ll, Joban Dass was driving the vehicle and police 

suspected both of them of being in possession of the contraband substance.  Also, 
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there is nothing on record to reveal complicity of accused Joban Dass in the crime. 

Hence, presumption of Section 29 of the Act cannot be drawn.  

21.   There is yet another mitigating circumstance in favour of the 

accused persons.  Narinder Singh (PW -10) states that he handed over the case 

property to Kulbhushan (Pw -9).  He admits that it had come in his investigation 

that the case property was produced before Dhaninder Singh (PW -6), who denies 

and states that the same was never presented before him but handed over to the 

MHC. Witness admits not to have resealed the case property in this case.  When 

we examine the testimony of M HC Narveer Singh (PW -1), we find his admission to 

the effect that the case property was not resealed before it was deposited with him, 

which means that after Narinder Singh put his seal impression ôNõ, the same was 

not resealed at the Police Station either  by the SHO or the MHC.  We find that FIR 

(Ex.PW-1/B) is signed by the SHO.  Now, if he was available there, then why is it 

that the case property was not resealed. We find there is major contradiction in 

the testimony of Narinder Singh and Dhaninder Singh , with regard to whom the 

case property was entrusted in the Police Station.  Narinder Singh states that it 

had come in his investigation that the case property stood produced before 

Dhaninder Singh, who categorically states that òit was never presented to me and 

it was handed over to M.H.C.ó.    Possibility of the same being tampered with or 

mixed up cannot be ruled out.  In our considered view, infraction of Section 57 of 

the NDPS Act, in the given facts and circumstances, is fatal.  This we say so, for 

we have doubts as to whether sample analysed by the FSL [vide report (Ex.PZ)] 

pertains to the case in hand or not, for according to Narveer Singh, sample was 

handed over to Sadhu Ram on 23.10.2007 to be deposited at the FSL, Junga.  

Road Certificate (Ex. PW -1/D) reveals the same to have been deposited on 

24.10.2007.  Sadhu Ram is categorical that it was deposited by him in the 

laboratory, the very same day/date on which it was handed over to him, which 

means it was deposited by him on 23.10.2007 itself.  Thu s, which of the witnesses 

has stated the truth is not clear.  Be that as it may, Narveer Singh admits that 

sealed sample (case property) of FIR No.54/2007 dated 26.9.2007 was also sealed 

with seal impression ôNõ.  Thus, to our mind, even by way of link evidence, it 

cannot be said that the prosecution has been able to prove its case, beyond 

reasonable doubt.  Possibility of the sample being mixed up cannot be ruled out 

and there is no explanation as to why the same was not resealed at the Police 

Station.  On  this issue, we must also observe that NCB form (Ex. PW -10/B) also 

does not bear the name or signatures of any police official/Officer official other 

than Narinder Singh.  Simply because the form did not contain a column, where 

the SHO/Incharge was to appe nd his signatures, that fact alone would not render 

the statutory provisions of Section 57 of the NDPS Act to be negatory.  

22.   It has also come in the testimony of Narveer Singh that there 

is no entry of NCB form being deposited alongwith the case proper ty. Significantly, 
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Sadhu Ram does not state NCB form, which was submitted in the laboratory 

pertained to the case in hand.  

23.   In the given facts, we also find that there was no compliance of 

Section 42 of the NDPS Act, for it is the case of Kulbhushan t hat òWhen ASI asked 

the accused Kumb Dass as to what is there in the bag on his reply that there is 

nothing in the bag except the clothes, the ASI told him that you take our search, 

we want to search you.  Then Kumb Dass took search of the police party.  T hen 

the memo qua the same was prepared.ó  It has come in the uncorroborated 

testimony of Kulbhushan that òASI told that he had information of the contraband 

being transported and that is why the kit was takenó. 

24.   We are also doubtful as to whether search and seizure memo 

(Ex. PW-8/D) was prepared prior to the police party having searched the accused.  

25.    There is nothing on record to show that the IO Kit containing 

weights and scale was issued in favour of any one of the police officials.  The 

matter acquires significance, more so when both of them have deposed that the kit 

was having weights of 2 kgs, 1 kg and 50 grams.  If that were so, then how is that 

police party drew two samples of 25 grams each, for it is  not their case either that 

one sample of 50 grams was drawn, which was divided into two and then sealed 

as separate parcels.  

26 .   In the uncorroborated testimony of Jatinder Negi, it has come 

on record that there are houses near the Durga Mandir.  Thus, documents have 

not been prepared correctly.  Also, police has not examined the wine contractor 

present on the spot.  

27 .   Also, we find there is uncorroborated testimony of Jatinder 

Singh to the effect that police party, on return, reached Nerwa at 6 a.m.,  whereas 

according to Narinder Singh, it was at 1.30 p.m.  Significantly, no document to 

such effect was either placed or proved on record.  

28.   In view of the fact that two views have emerged on record, with 

the independent witnesses not supporting the p rosecution and the testimonies of 

police officials being contradictory on material fact and are not supported by any 

corroborative (oral or documentary evidence), in our considered view, in the given 

facts and the circumstances, benefit of doubt has to be given to the accused 

persons.  

29 .   Recovery of motorcycle, in view of the contradictions on 

record, cannot be said to have been conclusively established.  In any case, no 

effort was made by the Investigating agency, after obtaining report (Ex. PW -5/E), 

to  prove that the same stood either entrusted to or sold to any one of the accused 

persons by the original owner.  Testimony of Narinder Singh is evidently clear to 

the effect that none of the accused were owner of the vehicle.  
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30 .   We are not in agreement with the findings of the Court below 

that in the event of prosecution case having been proved through the testimonies 

of Kulbhushan and Narinder Singh, testimony of Jatinder Negi pales into 

significance, in view of our aforesaid discussion, wherein we have  found major and 

material contradictions even in the testimonies of relevant police officials.  

31.   We are also of the view that police, in view of major 

contradictions on record, ought to have linked the accused to the vehicle.  After 

all, through the t estimony of Jatinder Negi, it has come on record that no 

motorcycle was found on the spot, in the manner the prosecution wants the Court 

to believe.  

32.   We are also not in agreement with findings returned by the 

Court below that contradictions in the testimonies of the police officials and the 

documentary evidence are not material, significant or relevant, for we have already 

discussed the genesis of the prosecution case to be doubtful, if not false.  

33 .   Finding of the Court below that there was no r equirement, in 

law or on fact, to comply with the provisions of Section 42, in the given facts and 

the circumstances, is also legally untenable, in view of our aforesaid discussion.  

34.   Thus, findings of conviction and sentence, returned by the 

Court bel ow, cannot be said to be on the basis of any clear, cogent, convincing, 

legal and material piece of evidence, leading to an irresistible conclusion of guilt of 

the accused.    

35.   Hence, for all the aforesaid reasons, the appeal is allowed and 

the judgme nt of conviction and sentence, 28.6.2008/30.6.2008, passed by Special 

Judge, Shimla, Himachal Pradesh, in Sessions Trial No.1 -S/7 of 2008, titled as 

State of H.P. v. Joban Dass and another , is set aside and both the accused persons 

are acquitted of the cha rged offences.  They be released from jail, if not required in 

any other case.  Amount of fine, if deposited by the accused, be refunded to them 

accordingly.  Release warrants be immediately prepared. Appeal stands disposed 

of, so also pending application( s), if any.  

 

  ****************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. & HONõBLE 

MR. JUSTICE TARLOK SINGH CHAUHAN, J.  

 

School Managing Committee, Government  High School, Mahog, Tehsil Theog, 

District Shimla.  éé Petitioner. 

 Vs. 

State of H.P. & anr.    é.. Respondents 
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CWP No. 5512 of 2014 -B 

Judgement reserved on:  22.9.2014  

Date of decision: 24.9.2014  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - The Petitioner, a School Managing 

Committee, filed a writ petition against the transfer of Respondent No. 3 with the 

prayer to set aside the same - held, that the matter of transfer and posting are 

purely administrative matters and the Court should not in terfere with them unless 

the decision is arbitrary, discriminatory, malafide or actuated with bias - The 

Government has unfettered power to effect transfer and to decide as to how, when, 

where and why a particular employee is required to be posted - the cour ts should 

not substitute their own decision in transfer -the aggrieved person should 

approach the higher authorities than rushing to the courts.         (Para-5 and 15)  

 

Cases Referred:  

E.P.Royappa  vs. State of Tamil Nadu (1974) 4 SCC 3  

Shilpi Bose (Mrs.) and others vs. State of Bihar and others 1991 Supp (2) SCC 659   

Union of India and others vs. S.L.Abbas (1993) 4 SCC 357  

State of M.P. and another vs. S.S. Kourav and others (1995) 3 SCC 270  

Union of India and others vs. Ganesh Dass Sin gh 1995 Supp. (3) SCC 214  

 Abani Kanta Ray vs. State of Orissa and others 1995 Supp. (4) SCC 169  

 National Hydroelectric Power Corporation Ltd. vs. Shri Bhagwan and Shiv 

Prakash (2001) 8 SCC 574  

Public Services Tribunal Bar Association vs. State of U.P. a nd another (2003) 4 

SCC 104  

Union of India and others vs. Janardhan Debanath and another (2004) 4 SCC 245  

State of Haryana and others vs. Kashmir Singh and another (2010) 13 SCC 306   

State of U.P. and others  vs. Gobardhan Lal (2004) 11 SCC 402  

 

For the petitioner       : Mr. Sanjeev Bhushan, Advocate.  

 

For the respondents    : Mr. Shrawan Dogra, Advocate General with  Mr. 

V.S.Chauhan, Mr. Romesh Verma, Addl. A.Gs. 

and Mr. J.K. Verma,  Dy. A.G.  for  respondents 

No. 1 and 2.  

  Ms. Sunita Sharma, Advocate,  for respondent 

No.3.  

 

                     The following judgment of the Court was delivered : 
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Tarlok Singh Chauhan, Judge.    

 

 This petitioner has approached this court for grant of following 

substantive relief: - 

  An appropriate writ or order may very kindly be issued and 

order dated  24.7.2014 may kindly be quashed and set aside 

and in the alternative the respondents may kindly be directed 

to immediately provide a substitute as TGT (Non -Medical) in 

Government High School, Mahog, Tehsil Theog, District 

Shimla, H.P. and till that time the respondentNo.3 may not be 

relieved.  

2.  The petitioner claims itself to be a School Managing Committee of 
Government High School, Mahog, constituted under the provisions of Right to 
Edu cation Act.  It is  alleged that the school had only one TGT (Non -Medical) 
respondent No.3, who is teaching about 147 children who are studying 
mathematics from Class 6 th  to  Class 10 th.  In the month of July, the official 
respondents issued transfer order  of respondent No. 3 to a nearby  school,  which 
is around 20 -25 kilometers from the present school.  That school is Middle School, 
which has been recently upgraded.  It is further averred that there are only 6 -7 
children studying in that school and by pos ting respondent No. 3, the career of 
147 children have been put on stake.  It is further claimed that respondent No. 3 
is in hurry to join and therefore her transfer order dated 24.7.2014 be quashed 
and set -aside.  

3.  The official respondents No. 1 and 2 have  filed the reply, wherein  
they have raised preliminary submission to the effect that transfer of an employee 
is not only an incident inherent in the terms of appointment but also implicit as 
an essential condition of service and the transfer policy is in the nature of 
administrative guidelines for regulating transfers and these guidelines cannot 
have the consequence of depriving or denying the competent authority to transfer 
a particular officer/ servant to any place in public interest or in exigencies of 
service and transfer order made even in transgression of administrative guidelines 
cannot be interfered with as they do not confer any legally enforceable right unless 
shown to be vitiated by malafides or having been made in violation of any 
statutory prov ision.  On merits, it is averred that there are seven teachers 
including respondent No. 3 posted in the Mahog school, whereas in Govt. Middle 
School, Annu u/c GSSS Kelvi where respondent No. 3 was ordered to be 

transferred has only one teacher.  It is furt her averred that  transfer of respondent 
No. 3 was to ensure that this newly upgraded school becomes functional.  

4.  Respondent No. 3 filed a separate reply wherein preliminary 
submissions regarding locus -standi, suppression of material facts by the 
petitione r were raised.  On merits, it was averred that respondent had been 
transferred against vacancy as there was no teacher available in Govt. Middle 
School, Annu to teach Class 6 th  to Class 8 th .  The services of respondent were 
required more in that school, as  the students were required to pass the subject of 
math and science.  The vacancy position existing in government high School, Kalvi 
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was placed on record and it was also submitted that it was wrong on behalf of the 
petitioner to contend that there was only  one TGT (Non -medical), because even the 
Head-teacher posted  there is TGT (Non -Medical) and one more teacher TGT 
(Science) was posted there.  It was further contended that transfers and postings 
of teachers were the sole prerogative of the employer and th erefore, the petitioner 
had no locus or cause of action to file and maintain a writ petition.  

 We have heard the learned counsel for the parties and have one 

through the records of the case.   

5.  The law regarding transfer is well settled.  The matters of tr ansfers 
and postings are purely administrative matters and the Courts must not 
ordinarily interfere in such matters  unless and until administrative policy decision 
is arbitrary, discriminatory, malafide or actuated with bias. The Government must 
have free hand in settling the terms of its policies. It must have reasonable play in 

its joints as necessary concomitant for an administrative body in an 
administrative sphere.  It is for the government to decide as to  how, when where 
and why a particular person i s required to be posed so long as the transfer has 
been effected in public interest after taking into consideration the public interest 
as a paramount consideration, it has unfettered power to effect the transfer, 
subject of -course to certain disciplines.  It is for the State to decide as to how, 
when, where and why a particular employee is required to be posted so long, as 
this exercise is undertaken after taking into consideration the administrative 
exigencies and public interest.   

6.  Having observed as abo ve certain binding precedents on the subject 
may be noticed. In E.P.Royappa  vs. State of Tamil Nadu (1974) 4 SCC 3, the 
Honõble Supreme Court held that òthe  government is the best judge to decide how 
to distribute and utilize the services of its employeesó.   

7.  In Shilpi Bose (Mrs.) and others vs. State of Bihar and others 
1991 Supp (2) SCC 659  the Honõble Supreme Court has held to the extent that 
even if the transfer orders have been passed in violation of executive instructions 
or orders even the n courts ordinarily should not interfere with the order  as this 
would amount to interference in the administration which would not be conducive 
to public interest. The Honõble Supreme Court has held: 

 òEven if a transfer order is passed in violation of ex ecutive 

instructions or orders, the courts ordinarily should not interfere with  
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the order instead affected party should approach the higher 

authorities in  the department. If the courts continue to interfere with 

day -to-day transfer orders issued by the government and its 

subordinate authorities, there will be complete chaos in the 

administration which would not be conducive to public interest.ó 

 

8.  In Union of India and others vs. S.L.Abbas (1993) 4 SCC 357, the 
Honõble Supreme Court held that it was for the appropriate authority to decide as 
to who should and where he should be transferred and the court did not sit as an 
appellate authority sitting in judgement over the orders of transfer and the court 
cannot substitute its own judgement for that of the aut hority competent to 
transfer. It was held:  

   ò7.  Who should be transferred where, is a matter for 

the appropriate authority to decide. Unless the order of 

transfer is vitiated by mala fides or is made in violation of 

any statutory provisions, the Court c annot interfere with 

it . While ordering the transfer, there is no doubt, the 

authority must keep in mind the guidelines issued by the 

Government on the subject. Similarly if a person makes 

any representation with respect to his transfer, the 

appropriate au thority must consider the same having 

regard to the exigencies of administration. The guidelines 

say that as far as possible, husband and wife must be 

posted at the same place. The said guideline however 

does not confer upon the Government employee a legal ly 

enforceable right.  

   8.  The jurisdiction of the Central Administrative 

Tribunal is akin to the jurisdiction of the High Court under 

Art. 226 of the Constitution of India in service matters. 

This is evident from a perusal of Art. 323 -A of the 

Constitution. The constraints and norm s which the High 

Court observes while exercising the said jurisdiction 

apply equally to the Tribunal created under Art. 323 -A. 

(We find it all the more surprising that the learned single 

Member who passed the impugned order is a former 

Judge of the High Co urt and is thus aware of the norms 

and constraints of the writ jurisdiction). The 

Administrative Tribunal is not an Appellate Authority 

sitting in judgment over the orders of transfer. It cannot 

substitute its own judgment for that of the authority 

competent to transfer. In this case the Tribunal has 

clearly exceeded its jurisdiction in interfering with the 
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order of transfer. The order of the Tribunal reads as if it 

were sitting in appeal over the order of transfer made by 

the Senior Administrative Officer (competent authority).ó 

 

9.  This position of law was reiterated by the Honõble Supreme Court in 
its subsequent decision in State of M.P. and another vs. S.S. Kourav and others 
(1995) 3 SCC 270 in the following terms: - 

  òThe Courts or Tribunals are not appell ate forums to decide on 

transfer of officers on administrative grounds.  The wheels of 

administration should be allowed to run smoothly and the 

Courts or Tribunals are not expected to interdict the working of 

the administrative system by transferring the o fficers to proper 

places. It is for the administration to take appropriate decision 

and such diecisions shall stand unless they are vitiated either 

by mala fides or by extraneous consideration without any 

factual background foundation.   In this case we hav e seen that 

on the administrative grounds the transfer orders came to be 

issued.  Therefore, we cannot go into the expediency of posting 

an officer at a particular place.ó 

 

10.  Thereafter this has been the settled position of law and repeatedly 
reiterated and restated by the Honõble Supreme Court in  Union of India and 
others vs. Ganesh Dass Singh 1995 Supp. (3) SCC 214, Abani Kanta Ray vs. 

State of Orissa and others 1995 Supp. ( 4) SCC 169, National Hydroelectric 

Power Corporation Ltd. vs. Shri Bhagwan and Shiv Prakash (2001) 8 SCC 
574 and Public Services Tribunal Bar Association vs. State of U.P. and 

another (2003) 4 SCC 104 and  Union of India and others vs. Janardhan 
Debanath and another (2004) 4 SCC 245.  

11.  It is otherwise settled law that matters of transfer are purely 
administrative matters and the Courts must not ordinarily interfere in 
administrative matters and should maintain judicial restraint. The Honõble 
Supreme Court in  State of Haryana and others vs. Kashmir Singh and 

another (2010) 13 SCC 306  held as under:  

ò12. Transfer ordinarily is an incidence of service, and the 

courts should be very reluctant to interfere in transfer orders as 

long as they are not clearly illega l.  In particular, we are of the 

opinion that transfer and postings of policemen must be left in 

the discretion of the State authorities concerned which are in 

the best position to assess the necessities of the administrative 

requirements of the situation.  The administrative authorities 

concerned may be of the opinion that more policemen are 

required in any particular district and/or  another range than in 
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another, depending upon their assessment of the law and order 

situation and/or other considerations. These are purely 

administrative matters, and it is well settled that courts must 

not ordinarily interfere in administrative matters and should 

maintain judicial restraint,  vide Tata Cellular v. Union of India 

(1994) 6 SCC 651.ó 

 

12.  The petitioner is School Man aging committee and has no locus -
standi to file this petition particularly when it has not chosen to approach the 
appropriate authorities.  In no event can the petitioner seek the relief as claimed 
for in the writ petition since the matters of postings and  transfers are essentially 
of an administrative nature.  The courts will not ordinarily interfere and take over 

the reins of administration.   

13.  In State of U.P. and others  vs. Gobardhan Lal (2004) 11 SCC 402 
the Honõble Supreme Court was dealing with a case of transfers, where Division 
Bench of Allahabad High Court after holding that there were disputed questions of 
fact involved as to whether the transfer orders were due to political pressure or 
not, went on to observe as under: -  

 "Hence, in such cases it  is better for the Government servant to 
approach the Chief Secretary, U.P. Government, and this internal 
mechanism will be better for this purpose. The Chief Secretary is a 
very senior Government Officer with sufficient maturity and seniority 
to withstand  political or other extraneous pressure and deal with the 
issue fairly and we are confident that he will do justice in the matter 
to civil servants. This will also avoid or reduce the floodgate of 
litigation of this nature in this Court. As regards Class -I Officers, the 
Civil Service Board shall be constituted for dealing with their transfers 
and postings (as already directed by us above)."  

 

14.  On the question of transfers, the Honõble Supreme Court reiterated 
that a challenge to an order of transfer should no rmally be eschewed and should 
not be countenanced by the courts or tribunals as though they are Appellate 
Authorities over such orders and it was further held  that reasons for this was 
that courts or tribunals cannot substitute their own decisions in the matter of 
transfer for that of competent authorities of the State.  But what is relevant is the 
observations made by the Honõble Supreme Court with respect to the courtsõ 

interference with the orders of transfer. The Honõble Supreme Court observed:-   

 ò9. The very questions involved, as found noticed by the High 
Court in these cases, being disputed questions of facts, there was 
hardly any scope for the High Court to generalise the situations based 
on its own appreciation and understanding of the prevailing  
circumstances as disclosed from some write -ups in journals or 
newspaper reports, conditions of service or rights, which are personal 
to the parties concerned, are to be governed by rules as also the in -
built powers of supervision and control in the hierar chy of the 
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administration of State or any Authority as well as the basic concepts 
and well -recognised powers and jurisdiction inherent in the various 
authorities in the hierarchy. All that cannot be obliterated by sweeping 
observations and directions unmin dful of the anarchy which it may 
create in ensuring an effective supervision and control and running of 
administration merely on certain assumed notions of orderliness 
expected from the authorities affecting transfers. Even as the position 
stands, avenues are open for being availed of by anyone aggrieved, 
with the concerned authorities, the Courts and Tribunals, as the case 
may be, to seek relief even in relation to an order of transfer or 
appointment or promotion or any order passed in disciplinary 
proceed ings on certain well -settled and recognized grounds or 
reasons, when properly approached and sought to be vindicated in the 
manner known to and in accordance with law. No such generalised 
directions as have been given by the High Court could ever be given 
leaving room for an inevitable impression that the Courts are 
attempting to take over the reigns of executive administration. 
Attempting to undertake an exercise of the nature could even be 
assailed as an onslaught and encroachment on the respective fields  or 
areas of jurisdiction earmarked for the various other limbs of the State. 
Giving room for such an impression should be avoided with utmost 
care and seriously and zealously Courts endeavour to safeguard the 
rights of parties.ó 

 

15.  In case the submissions of the petitioner are tested on the 
touchstone of exposition of law laid down by the Honõble Supreme Court in the 
aforesaid decisions, then the petitioner has nothing much to say, since the 
matters of posting and transfer are matter s of administrative policy, where the 
courts should be loathe to interfere.  The courts and tribunals, as warned by the 
Honõble Supreme Court, are not appellate forums to decide on the question of 
transfers and postings and therefore the writ petition is t otally misconceived.  The 
petitioner would have been well advised to approach the  higher authorities  rather 
than rushing to this court.  

16.  For all the reasons aforesaid, there is no merit in this petition and 
the same is accordingly dismissed.  

         

***********************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, CJ & HONõBLE MR. 

JUSTICE TARLOK SINGH CHAUHAN, JUDGE.  

Smt. Sukanya Devi  éé Appellant. 

  Vs. 

Smt. Karmi Devi &ors.   é.. Respondents 
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LPA No. 384 of 2012.  

Judgement reserved on:  8.9.2014.  

Date of decision: 24.9.2014.  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 -  Petitioners and one ôKõ appeared 

before the Interview Board for the post of Anganwari worker - ôKõ was given 

appointment - Petitioner filed an appeal before the Deputy Commissioner who held 

that neither the petitioner nor ôKõ was eligible for appointment and directed to 

conduct fresh interviews - An appeal was preferred before the Deputy 

Commissioner and the post was given to one ôSõ- Petitioner preferred a writ 

petition - The matter was remanded to the Deputy Commissioner who called for 

the report of the Naib Tehsildar and rejected the appeal filed by the petitioner - 

Further appeal preferred before the Deputy Commissioner was also rejected - The 

petitioner filed a writ pet ition before the Honõble High Court, which was allowed 

and the selection was quashed - ôSõ filed an LPA against the order of the Honõble 

High Court - Held that Petitioner had not even laid any claim to the post before the 

Sub - Divisional Magistrate and she h ad staked her claim to the post before the 

Honõble High Court for the first time- the fact that the petitioner had not laid any 

claim to the post earlier would show that she had abandoned her right and she 

could not have raised the claim for the first time  in the writ petition.  (Para- 8 to 

11) 

 Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 -The High Court has jurisdiction to 

quash the decision or orders of Tribunals and statutory authorities passed in 

violation of the principles of natural justice - The High Court  cannot convert itself 

into a court of appeal and cannot examine the correctness of the decisions and 

decide what is the proper view to be taken or order to be made - it cannot 

substitute its order in place of the order of the tribunal or authority, unless the 

order is shown to be passed on no evidence.      (Para-13) 

 

Cases Referred:  

 Ravi Kant  vs. Bhupender Kumar AIR 2008 HIMACHAL PRADESH 31  

Gowardhandas Rathi v. Corporation of Calcutta and another, AIR 1970 Calcutta 

539  

M.P. Shreevastava v. Mrs. Veena, AI R 1967 SC 1193  

Shanbhagakannu Bhattar v. Muthu Bhattar and another, 1972(4) SCC 685  

Chevalier I.I. lyyappan and another v. The Dharmodayam Co., Trichur, AIR 1966 

SC 1017  

Karpagathachi and others v. Nagarathinathachi, AIR 1965 SC 1752  

Mohammed Seraj v. Adib ar Rahaman Sheikh and others, AIR 1968 Calcutta 550  

Velayudhan Gopala Panickan v. Velumpi Kunji, 2nd Plaintiff, AIR 1958 Kerala 178  

The Sales Tax Officer, Banaras and others v. Kanhaiya Lal Makund Lal Saraf, AIR 

1959 SC 135  
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For the appellant       : Mr. D ilip Sharma, Senior Advocate  with Ms. 

Nishi Goel, Advocate.  

For the respondents    : Mr. Vinod Thakur, Advocate, for respondent 

No.1.  

 

  Mr. Romesh Verma and Mr. V.S. Chauhan, 

Additional Advocate Generals, with Mr. J.K. 

Verma and Mr. Kush Sharma, Deputy  Advocate 

Generals, for respondents No. 2 to 6.  

 

        The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

Tarlok Singh Chauhan, Judge.    

 

 The respondent is the writ petitioner, who had filed the writ petition 

claiming therein the following reliefs: - 

 (a) That a writ in the nature of certiorari may kindly be issued for 

quashing Annexure P -6 dated 4.3.2011, Annexure P -7 dated 

29.03.2011 & Annexure P -8 dated 11.08.2011 passed/issued 

by the respondents no. 6,3 & 2 respectively keeping in view 

the facts and  circumstances of the present case, particularly 

contents of para 8(iii) to (vi), in the interest of law and justice.  

b)  That a writ in the nature of Mandamus may also be issued 

directing the Respondents No. 1 to 5 to appoint  the present 

petitioner as A nganwari worker in Anganwari Centre Bajwa 

Tehsil Bhoranj Distt. Hamirpur with all consequential benefits 

including back wages and seniority and further to treat the 

petitioner as having been in the service throughout from the 

date of judgment dated 11.2.20 08 passed by the respondent 

No. 3.ó  

       

17.  The official respondents conducted interview for the post of 
Anganwari Workers for Anganwari Centre, Bajwa, Tehsil Bhoranj, District 
Hamirpur, wherein the writ petitioner, appellant and one Smt. Kamla Devi wife o f 
Karan Singh appeared on 7.8.2007.  Appellant was selected and given 
appointment.  The writ petitioner filed an appeal before the Deputy Commissioner, 
who vide his order dated 17.8.2008 held that neither the writ petitioner nor the 
appellant nor Smt. Kaml a Devi were eligible for appointment and directed the 
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respondent No. 4 to hold fresh interviews by 31.3.2008.  The appellant  aggrieved 
by the aforesaid order filed an appeal before the Divisional Commissioner, Mandi, 
who vide his order dated 25.6.2008 acc epted the appeal and set -aside the order of 
Deputy Commissioner and the appellant, who had been selected for the post of 
Anganwari Worker was permitted to continue.   

18.  Against this order, the writ petitioner preferred CWP No. 1844 of 
2008, which came to be allowed by this court and the matter was remanded back 
to the Deputy Commissioner. The Deputy Commissioner while deciding the case 
called for the report of Naib Tehsildar, who held an inquiry and thereafter based 
on this report he vide his order dated 29.3 .2011 rejected the appeal preferred by 
the writ petitioner.  The writ petitioner thereafter again approached the Divisional 
Commissioner by filing an appeal, who rejected the same vide his order dated 
11.8.2011.  

19.  The writ petitioner thereafter filed CWP No . 11699 of 2011 -J  before 
this court and the learned single Judge vide judgement dated 20.7.2012 was 
pleased to partly allow the writ petition by upholding the income certificate issued 
in favour of the appellant, but at the same time held her selection to  be illegal and 
invalid and consequently the selection of the appellant was quashed and set -aside 
and the official respondents were directed to initiate the process afresh for filling 
up the post strictly as per the guidelines and also the law laid down by  this court 
in CWP No. 925 of 2010 titled Smt. Jasbir Kaur vs. State of Himachal Pradesh and 
others and CWP No. 1096 of 2010 titled Raksha Devi vs. State of H.P.  

20.  The learned single Judge for arriving at such conclusion had 
accorded the following reasons:  

ò22.  No doubt, as held hereinabove, the income certificate 

produced by the 5 th  respondent is genuine and otherwise also she is 

eligible for being considered for appointment as Anganwari Worker. 

However, the act on the part of the Selection Committee in n ot 

awarding any marks to the  petitioner for personal interview is 

neither legally or factually  sustainable for the reasons recorded 

hereinabove. In my considered opinion, as already observed, had the 

requisite document(s) been not produced by the petitio ner alongwith 

the application, her candidature should have been cancelled and not 

called for interview. However, when interviewed, she is legally 

entitled to the award of marks on account of personal interview. The 

selection of the 5 th  respondent in such a  situation cannot be said to 

be legal and valid and the Appellate Authority should have quashed 

and set aside the same. Her selection, however, has been upheld 

only on the ground that the income certificate produced by her is 

genuine. Grievance of the peti tioner against not awarding marks to 

her for interview is erroneously brushed aside and not entertained at 

all. In such a situation, I find the present a fit case where the 

appointment of the 5 th  respondent deserves to be quashed and set 

aside, on this sco re and the process to fill up the post in question 

should be initiated afresh.  
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23.  In view of all the reasons hereinabove, the report Annexure P -

6 submitted by the 6 th  respondent being in accordance with factual 

position is absolutely legal and as such de serves to be upheld. The 

orders Annexures P -7 & P -8 to the extent of the same are based 

upon the report are also legal and valid, however to the extent of not 

contain any discussion or findings qua the grievance of the petitioner 

that is, not awarding any marks to her for personal interview are bad 

in law and as such deserves to be quashed and set aside.  

24.  Consequently, this writ petition partly succeeds and  the same 

is accordingly allowed. Since due to non -award of  marks to the 

petitioner for persona l interview, the entire selection process is 

vitiated, therefore, the appointment of the 5 th  respondent as 

Anganwari Worker in Anganwari Centre, Bajwa, Tehsil Bhoranj, 

Distt. Hamirpur is hereby quashed and set aside, however, with a 

direction to respondent s No. 1 to 4 to initiate the process afresh for 

filling up the said post strictly as per guidelines and also the law laid 

down by this Court in CWP No. 925 of 2010 titled Smt. Jasbir Kaur 

vs. State of Himachal Pradesh and others & CWP No. 1096 of 2010, 

tit led Raksha Devi Vs. State of H.P. cited supra by inviting fresh 

applications from the desirous candidates including the petitioner 

and the 5 th  respondent within two weeks from the date of production 

of a copy of this judgment by the petitioner before them and make 

selection within two months thereafter. Till then the 5 th  respondent 

shall continue as Anganwari Worker at Anganwari Centre, Bajwa.ó  

21.  Aggrieved by the orders passed by the learned single Judge, the 
appellant has approached this court by way of the present appeal and has 
challenged the orders on various grounds set out in the memo. We need not delve  
in detail on those grounds in view of the legal submissions made by the appellant 
to the effect as to whether it was open to the writ petitioner to have challenged the 
orders passed by the two authorities below by contending that they have not taken 
into account her eligibility and suitability  to the post which ground  in fact had 
not been taken or agitated either before the Deputy Commissioner or the 
Divisional Commissioner and had been abandoned.      

22.  The writ petitioner has placed on record, copies of appeal preferred 
by her after the case h ad initially been remanded by the Divisional Commissioner 
vide order dated 25.6.2008.  Now in case the appeal filed before the Sub Divisional 

Magistrate, Bhoranj is perused, nowhere has the writ petitioner made mention of 
her eligibility and as a matter of  fact she did not even lay her claim for the post in 
question.  After setting out the case history, the appeal preferred before the Sub 
Divisional Magistrate only contains the following averments: - 

 ò3. That the A.C. IInd Grade Bhoranj has not properly inq uired 

about the income certificate nor tender the documents on record and 
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sent a false report to D.C. Hamirpur in result of this the petition of the 

appellant was dismissed by the D.C. Hamirpur.  

 4. That the respondent falsely obtained a income certificat e and 

shown her income Rs.11,500/ - per annum which is not correct.  In fact 

at the time of obtaining the income certificate the respondent concealed 

the actual facts before the concerned authority and only shown the 

income of her property, whereas, the hus band of respondent is 

working as a contractor in HPPWD and I&PH Departments and also 

licence holder to carry on the business of seed dealer and also doing 

the work of Doctor at place Tikkar Khatrian for the last 10 years and 

the husband of respondent also installed a P.C.O. from where his 

income during the year 2006 -2007 is  215.75/ - per month and in the 

year 2007 -08 his income is Rs.212.16/ - per month which comes 

Rs.2848/ - in 2006 -07 and Rs.2031/ - in 2007 -08 and the total income 

stands Rs. 13581/ - per annu m, and the income of the respondent 

exceeds to Rs.12000/ - per annum.  All documents in this regard are 

enclosed herewith for the kind perusal of this Honõble court.  

 5. That the lower court has wrongly taken into consideration the 

case and not cancelled t he income certificate of the respondent, hence 

the order of lower court is not sustainable in the eyes of law.  

 

 6. That more submissions will be submitted before this Honõble 

Court at the time of final arguments.  

 7. That the lower court has passed the impugned order on dated 

8.3.2011 and the appellant applied for the copy of order on 5.4.2011 

which supplied to him on 8.4.2011, hence the appeal of the appellant 

is within the period of limitation.  

   It is, therefore, respectfully prayed that keeping in view the 

submissions made above the after hearing the parties and calling for 

the record of the case the appeal of the appellant may kindly be 

accepted and the income certificate obtained by the respondent 

fraudulently by concealing the actual income may k indly be cancelled 

and justice be done.ó 

 

23.  Even in the appeal filed thereafter before the Divisional 
Commissioner, the writ petitioner did not lay claim to the post in question nor did 
she even make a whisper regarding her eligibility.  The appeal contains the 
following averments: -  

 ò4. That the appellant filed an application before D.C. Hamirpur for 

the rejectment of appointment of respondent No. 1 on the ground that 
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at the time of selection of respondent No.1 she produce a false income 

certificate before the respondent No. 2 and has got the job on the basis 

of false income certificate.  

 5. That the respondent No. 1 has shown her income Rs.11,500/ - 

per annum in her income certificate, whereas her income is more than 

Rs.12000/ - per annum, hence the income s hown by the respondent 

No. 1 is wrong and obtained the certificate on false statement and 

concealed the actual income.  

 6. That in fact the husband of the respondent No. 1 is working as 

contractor in HPPWD and I&PH Departments.  He is licence holder of 

seed trader and also working as Doctor at place Tikkar Khatrian and 

also installed a P.C.O. on his name.  The copies of documents are 

attached for the kind perusal of this learned Court.  

 7. That the documents clearly shows the P.C.O. on the name of 

husband  of the respondent No. 1 and he earned Rs.215 -75/ - and 

Rs.212.16 in the year 2006 -07 and 2007 -08 and the total income of 

the respondent is Rs.2848/ - and 2031 per annum from the P.C.O. in 

the abovementioned years except the contractorship and Doctor work 

but if this income calculated Rs.11550/ - from landed property and 

Rs.2031/ - from P.C.O. then it becomes Rs.13581/ - per annum which 

is exceeds the criteria of income i.e. Rs.12000/ - per annum for the 

selection of Anganwari worker and the respondent does not f all in the 

criteria of income for the selection of Anganwari worker as lay down 

by the Child Development Department.  

 8. That at the inquiry even the Naib Tehsildar not properly 

calculated the income of respondent No.1 nor the Deputy 

Commissioner, Hamirpur  tender this document on record and reached 

on wrong conclusion, hence this appeal.  

 9. That more submissions will be made at the time of final 

arguments before the Honõble Court.  

 10.  That the lower Court decided the case on 29.3.2011 and the 

copy of imp ugned order supplied to the appellant on 8.4.2011, hence 

the appeal is well within the period of limitation.  

   It is, therefore, respectfully prayed that keeping in view the 

submissions made above after calling for the record and hearing the 

parties and a dmitting the documents on record submitted by the 

appellant, properly assess the income of respondent No.1 which 

exceed Rs.12000/ - per annum and cancel the income certificate of 

respondent and also the appointment of respondent No.1 be cancelled 
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and the ap peal of the appellant may kindly be accepted in the interest 

of justice and justice be done for which the appellant shall ever pray.ó 

 

24.  However, when the writ petition was filed, the writ petitioner staked 
her claim to the post in question, which hitherto b efore had never been claimed by 
her as the writ petitioner only kept on questioning the income certificate issued in 
favour of the appellant.   

25.  A point having been abandoned in pleadings and inviting a 
judgement on the strength of the record as it is befor e the two authorities below 
cannot be allowed to be re -agitated for the first time in writ petition.  A similar 
issue came up before this court in Ravi Kant  vs. Bhupender Kumar AIR 2008 
HIMACHAL PRADESH 31 wherein it was held as follows: - 

  ò12.  The matter can be considered from another angle. A point 
having been abandoned in pleadings and inviting a judgment on the 
strength of the record as it is before the trial Court cannot be allowed 
to be re -agitated in appeal.  

13.  In Shaikh Tufail Ahmad v.  Mt. Umme Khatoon and others, AIR 

1938 Allahabad 145, the High Court of Allahabad has held:  

 "It is argued on behalf of the defendant that the plea of 

Marz -ul -maut which was entertained and given effect to by the 

learned District Judge had not been raised in the pleadings or 

at any stage before the trial Court. It is also argued that the 

learned Judge has taken an erroneous view of what Marz -ul -

maut is according to Mahomedan law. It is quite correct to say 

that the point was taken for the first time in appe al. It involves 

a question of fact and the defendant must have been prejudiced 

by the plea being take at a late stage. The judgment of the trial 

Court does not show that this aspect of the case was discussed 

before it. The plaintiffs themselves produced no  evidence to 

show that the lady was suffering from Marz -ul -maut ................. 

We think that the plea should not have been entertained at that 

stage. " 

 

  14.  To similar effect, in Gowardhandas Rathi v. Corporation of 

Calcutta and another, AIR 1970 Calcu tta 539, the Hon'ble High Court of 

Calcutta held :  

 "21............ In support of that assumption, however, there are no 

materials on the present record and no such contention appears 

to have been raised in the court below, either in the pleading or 

in the argument there ................."  
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  15.   The Hon'ble Supreme Court in M.P. Shreevastava v. Mrs. 

Veena, AIR 1967 SC 1193, has held that a plea abandoned before the 

Courts below, cannot be allowed to be raised in appeal before this 

Court. It was held : - 

 "4. It was never argued on behalf of the appellant in the 

Court of First Instance and the High Court that attempts proved 

to have been made by the respondent to resume conjugal 

relations could not in law amount to satisfaction of the decree, 

and we do not th ink we would be justified at this stage in 

allowing that question to be raised for the first time in this 

Court."  

  16.   Similarly, in Shanbhagakannu Bhattar v. Muthu Bhattar and 

another, 1972(4) SCC 685, it is held: - 

 "4. The matter was taken in second ap peal to the High 

Court. Kailasam J. has stated in unequivocal terms in his 

judgment that the only question that was argued before him on 

behalf of the plaintiff was that the will and the gift were invalid 

because pooja rights and inam rights were inalienab le except to 

the immediate heir and that too without consideration. As by 

the gift the properties were not given to the immediate heir the 

gift was not valid. The learned Judge discussed mainly the 

various decisions of the Madras High Court and upheld the 

decision of the first appellate Court that the gift deed was valid. 

An appeal was filed under clause 15 of the letters Patent to a 

Division Bench by the plaintiff. Before the Division Bench the 

plaintiffs counsel sought to raise a new point that the aliena tion 

relied upon, though termed as a deed of gift, was in fact an 

alienation for consideration and therefore invalid within the 

well established principles. This point was permitted to be 

raised because it was considered that the determination of the 

quest ion did not depend upon the decision as to, facts which 

were in dispute.................... The bench came to the conclusion 

that by reason of the discharge of the encumbrance the donee 

relieved from the encumbrance properties other than those 

which were t he subject -matter of the gift. It was consequently 

held that the alienation evidenced by ext. B -9 which purported 

to be a deed of gift was for consideration. The real question on 

which the litigation had been fought in all the courts was 

decided because of  the above conclusion."  
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   "5.  We are wholly unable to appreciate how on any principle 

or authority the Division Bench had, in an appeal under the 

Letters Patent, allowed a point which involved not only law but 

also facts to be agitated when that point had never been taken 

even in the plaint or before the trial Court, the first appellate 

Court and the High Court in second appeal. It had not been 

raised even in the memorandum of appeal at any 

stage ...................... It was never pleaded, asserted or c laimed 

by the plaintiff that any consideration had passed for the 

properties which were the subject matter of the gift by 

Parvathiammal in favour of Duraiswami. In such a situation it 

was not open to the Division Bench of the High Court to allow 

the questi on of consideration to be raised for the first time and 

that also without any amendment of the pleadings being 

allowed and without the defendants having a proper 

opportunity to meet the case . 

    (Emphasis supplied)  

  17.  In Chevalier I.I. lyyappan and a nother v. The 

Dharmodayam Co., Trichur, AIR 1966 SC 1017, the Hon'ble Supreme 

Court has held:  

 "8. The appellant in this Court has mainly relied on the 

plea that he had been granted a licence and acting upon the 

license he had executed a work of a permanen t character and 

incurred expenses in the execution thereof and therefore under 

Section 60(b) of the Indian Easements, Act, 1882 (5 of 1882), 

hereinafter referred to as the 'Act'), which was applicable to the 

area where the property is situate and therefore  the license 

was irrevocable. Now in the trial Court no plea of license or its 

irrevocability was raised but what was pleaded was the 

validity of the trust tin Exhibit X. In the judgment of the trial 

Court no such question was discussed. In the grounds of 

appeal in his appeal.......................Now it is not open to a party 

to change his case at the appellant stage because at the most 

the case of the appellant in he trial Court was what was 

contained in paragraph 11 of the Written Statement where the 

question of estoppel was raised and the plea taken was that 

the respondent company was estopped from claiming any right 

to the building after accepting the offer of the appellant 

pursuant to which the appellant had expended a large amount 

of money."  
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  18.  In  Karpagathachi and others v. Nagarathinathachi, AIR 

1965 SC 1752, the Hon'ble Supreme Court has held : - 

 "4. The second contention of Mr. Viswanatha Sastry 

must also be rejected. A partition may be effected orally. By an 

oral partition, the two widows cold  adjust their diverse rights in 

the entire estate, and as part of this arrangement, each could 

orally agree to relinquish her right of surviorship to the portion 

allotted to the other. In the trial Court, the suit was tried on the 

footing that the partitio n was oral, and that the two partition 

lists were merely pieces of evidence of the oral partition, and no 

objection was raised with regard to their admissibility in 

evidence. In the High Court, the appellants raised the 

contention for the first time that t he two partition lists were 

required to be registered. The point cold not be decided without 

further investigation into questions of fact, and in the 

circumstances, the High Court rightly ruled that this new 

contention could not be raised for the first tim e in appeal. We 

think that the appellants ought not to be allowed to raise this 

new contention."  

  19.  The principle of abandonment of an issue has been considered 

in Mohammed Seraj v. Adibar Rahaman Sheikh and others, AIR 1968 

Calcutta 550, where the Hig h Court of Calcutta held that once an 

issue is not pressed before the trial Court, it is not open to the party to 

agitate it before the appellate Court. It has been held :  

"16................ Now, once an issue is not pressed before 

the trial Court, it is not open to the party doing so, to 

agitate it over again the court of appeal ....................."  

(Emphasis supplied)  

  20.   A Full Bench of Kerala High Court considered the matter in 

Velayudhan Gopala Panickan v. Velumpi Kunji, 2nd Plaintiff, AIR 

1958 Kerala 178, holding that:  

 "8. The next aspect to be considered is whether the 

appellants who had given up their objections to the 

maintainability of the suit when it came up for hearing, are 

entitled to agitate the matter again in the appellate Court . The 

lower appellate Court answered the question in favour of the 

appellants. The two reasons which weighed with that court for 

tak ing up such a stand are: (1) that the contentions raised by 

defendants 63 and 64 related to a question of law, and (2) that 

their counsel had no authority to give up that contention.  
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 These reasons do not appeal to us. No abstract question 

of law is involv ed in the objection to the maintainability of the 

suit. As we have already explained the Court was bound to go 

into the question of the maintainability of the suit only if the 

contesting defendants persisted in their objection to the 

plaintiffs' claim for compulsory partition. It was perfectly open 

to these defendants to agree to the plaintiffs getting their 

shares and going out of the tarwad in case they succeeded in 

making out their claim as members of the common tarwad.  

 At the stage of the hearing of th e suit, the contesting 

defendants chose to adopt such a course, as is obvious from 

paragraph 57 of the trial Court judgment. There it is stated that 

the objection that the suit is not maintainable under the Ezhava 

Act was not pressed at the time of argumen ts. It has to be 

presumed that the defendants' counsel gave up that contention 

as per instructions from them. There is nothing to show that the 

counsel acted on his own responsibility in that matter. No such 

complaint appears to have been raised before the  lower 

appellate Court by defendants 63 and 64 while preferring their 

appeal against the trial Court's decree. ..............."  

  21.  Lastly, the decision of the Hon'ble Supreme Court in The Sales 

Tax Officer, Banaras and others v. Kanhaiya Lal Makund Lal Saraf, 

AIR 1959 SC 135, may be noticed. In this case, the Hon'ble Supreme 

Court was seized of an appeal against the judgment and order of the 

High Court. The points sought to be urged in support of the appeal 

had been abandoned before the High Court. In these circumstances, 

the Hon'ble Supreme Court held that they could not be raised or 

agitated in appeal . 

  22.  The record of the trial Court shows a clear and 

unequivocal abandonment of the issue available to the defendant -

appellant. No foundation having been laid in the amended written 

statement which was filed after the death of defendant No. 2, no right 

claimed on behalf of the defendant, nor any foundation laid for the 

proposition that the suit was bad for non -joinder of necessary parties, 

maintainabil ity of the suit and that it must fail and that decree 

passed would be a nullity because of insufficient representation of the 

estate of the deceased; no evidence having been led on this point, the 

appellant cannot now be allowed to raise this point. ó 

 

26.  We have referred to the pleadings of writ petitioner before the 
learned authorities below only to show that petitioner at no point of time had laid 
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claim to the post  in -question and had thereby abandoned  her right.  Therefore, 
having abandoned her claim, the  writ petitioner could not have raised the same 
for the first time in the writ petition.  

27.  Now, in case the findings as contained in paras -22 to 24 recorded by 
the learned writ court are perused, it would be seen that selection of the appellant 
has been quas hed and set -aside only on the ground that writ petition had not 
been awarded marks for personal interview.  But, then this was not even the 
ground raised by her in the appeal preferred by her initially before the Sub 
Divisional Magistrate and thereafter be fore the Divisional Commissioner and the 
same was only an afterthought and surreptitiously introduced for the first time in 
the writ petition.  

28.  Under Article 226 of the Constitution, the High has jurisdiction to 
quash the decision or orders of subordinate Tribunals and statutory authorities 
entrusted with precise judicial functions, if they act without jurisdiction or in 
excess of it or in violation of the principles of natural justice or if there is an error 
apparent on the face of the record.  The jurisdi ction of the High Court is though 
wide, yet it is limited as it exercises supervisory jurisdiction over the subordinate 
tribunals, courts or authorities and it does not exercise appellate jurisdiction.  
However, extensive the jurisdiction may be it is not so wide or large as to enable 
the High Court to convert itself into a court of appeal and examine for itself the 
correctness of the decisions impugned and decide what is the proper view to be 
taken or order to be made.  The court cannot substitute its own opinion for that of 
the subordinate tribunal or authority, unless the order is shown to be passed on 
no evidence or if the findings are arbitrary and so capricious  that no reasonable 
person can come to those findings.  

29.  Indisputably while adjudicating upon the writ petition the writ court 
was exercising the powers of judicial review, the scope of which in the given facts 
and circumstances was extremely narrow and was required to be determined on 
the basis of the pleadings and evidence led before the learned authorities below.  
In no event could the pleas which had been abandoned before the authorities 
below be permitted to be raised for the first time in the writ petition.  Once the 
writ petitioner had not laid any claim based on her eligibility  before the 
authorities below, their orders could not have been interfered with on this score.  
The writ court could have tested the correctness of the decision rendered by the 
authorities below only on the basis of the plea set up and the material placed 
before these authorities. Not only this, nothing extraneous that too without leave 
of the court could have been introduced in the writ petition. In fact the ground of 
eligibility of the writ petitioner was impermissible and could not have been raised 
by her since she h ad already forsaken this claim.  

30.  Since the income certificate issued in favour of the writ petitioner 
has been found to be in order even by the learned single Judge, and writ petitioner 
had never set up a claim regarding her eligibility before the two auth orities below, 
therefore, the findings recorded by the learned single judge upholding the claim of 
the writ petitioner are not sustainable and are accordingly set -aside. Resultantly, 
the appeal is allowed, leaving the parties to bear their own costs.  

    ******************************   
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BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE TARLOK SINGH CHAUHAN, J. 

 

Sunil Kumar Negi    é..Petitioner.  

 Vs. 

State of H.P. & ors.   é.  Respondents. 

CWP No.  9053 of 2012.  

Date of decision: 24.9.2014.  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - The Petitioner applied for the job 

under the policy of project affected area - No job was offered to him, consequently 

he filed a writ petition - The petition was disposed of with the direction to the 

Deputy Commissioner to look into the representation made by the petitioner - The 

petitioner was called by the Deputy Commissioner and representatives of the 

company were asked to look into the matter, however, the claim of the petitioner 

was rejected on the ground that he was offered the post of Supervisor a nd he 

absented - held, that as per the attendance register the petitioner was appointed as 

Supervisor - However, the petitioner absented giving rise to an inference of 

voluntarily abandonment of service - Petition dismissed.    (Para- 9 to 13)  

Cases Referred:  
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Buckingham and Carnatic Co. Ltd. v. Venkatiah & Anr., AIR 1964 SC 1272  

G.T. Lad & Ors. v. Chemicals and Fibres India Ltd., AIR 1979 SC 582  

Syndicate Bank v. General Secretary, Syndicate Bank Staff Association & Anr., 

AIR 2000 S C 2198  

Aligarh Muslim University & Ors. v. Mansoor Ali Khan, AIR 2000 SC 2783  

V.C. Banaras Hindu University & Ors. v. Shrikant, AIR 2006 SC 2304  

 Chief Engineer (Construction) v. Keshava Rao (dead) by Lrs., (2005) 11 SCC 229  

 Regional Manager, Bank of Baro da v. Anita Nandrajog, (2009) 9 SCC 462  

 

For the petitioner            :   Mr. A.K.Gupta, Advocate.  
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For the respondents    :   Ms. Meenakshi Sharma, Additional Advocate 

General with Ms. Parul Negi, Dy. Advocate 

General, for respondents No. 1 & 2.  

 Mr. Anand Sharma, Advocate for respondent 

No.3.  

                The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

Tarlok Singh Chauhan, Judge (Oral):    

 The petitioner has approached this court for grant of the following 

relief: - 

That the order Annexure P -2 p assed by respondent No.2 may be 

quashed and respondent No. 2 may further be ordered to verify the 

facts and further he may be ordered that the petitioner may be 

appointed in the Company against the suitable vacancy with 

immediate effect.  

2.  According to the p etitioner he belongs to an area which was affected 
by setting up of Hydro Project by Jaiprakash Power Ventures Limited (earlier 
known as Jaypee Karcham Hydro Corporation Ltd.).  He applied for job under the 
policy of òProject Affected Areaó, as many of the similarly situated persons have 
been granted job by the company.  The company did not offer him job despite his 
repeated requests, which constrained him to approach this court by way of CWP 
No. 6274 of 2011, which was disposed of on 9.8.2011 with a direct ion to the 
Deputy Commissioner to look into the representation already made by the 
petitioner.   

3.  The petitioner claims that he was called by the Deputy 
Commissioner, Kinnaur and the representatives of the company were also asked 
to look into the matter and  as per order dated 30.11.2011, the claim of the 
petitioner had been rejected on the ground that he was offered post of Supervisor 
and he absented.  The petitioner has disputed the stand of the respondent -
company and claims that they misled the Deputy Comm issioner in passing the 
said order.  It was also claimed that Deputy Commissioner did not hold an inquiry 
into the matter and believed the version of the company.  The petitioner was never 
appointed as Supervisor and the respondents should be put to strict  proof in this 
behalf. The petitioner further claims that he can be appointed as teacher in some 
school owned by the company in the area and that recently the Jay Jyoti School 
owned by the company has been upgraded to plus two level, where the petitioner 
can conveniently be appointed.  

4.  The respondent -company filed its reply wherein it was averred that 
petitioner had not applied for a job under the policy of òProject Affected Areaó, but 
in fact had applied for the post of supervisor vide application dated 6. 8.2007.  It is 
further alleged that as the petitioner belonged to the project affected area/ village, 
he was immediately offered employment as a supervisor on daily wage basis with 
effect from 7.9.2007 as a special case.  The petitioner reported for duty o n 
7.9.2007, but then absented himself till 18.9.2007.  He again reported for duty on 
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19.9.2007 and worked for a very short duration and thereafter again absented 
himself and never came back.  Respondents in support of this submission have 
annexed the copy of attendance register.  

5.  In so far as the claim of the petitioner with respect to his claim 
regarding appointment in the school is concerned, the respondents have stated 
that though the petitioner had applied for the post of teacher/ clerk in the said 
scho ol vide his application dated 3.3.2008, but he was not found fit for the job 
due to the following reasons: - 

 (a) not eligible for the post of teacher because he did not hold 

B.Ed qualification  

 (b) no vacancy of clerk was available.  

6.  It is further averred that petitioner had applied for the post of 

teacher in the year 2008 while he passed B.Ed examination only in the year 2009.  
It was further averred by the respondents that father and brother of the petitioner 
have already been employ ed in the company.  

7.  The Deputy Commissioner, who has been arrayed as respondent No. 
2 in the petition, has filed a separate reply, wherein he has also categorically 
submitted that though the petitioner was appointed as supervisor on daily wage 
basis on 7.9 .2007 as a special case, but he absented himself till 18.9.2007.  He 
thereafter though did report for duty on 19.9.2007 for a very short duration, but 
thereafter he continuously absented himself and did not resume duty thereafter.   

8.  The petitioner has file d rejoinder to the reply of the respondents, 
wherein a common stand has been taken to the effect that he was never offered 
job of supervisor and had thereafter never abandoned the same.  

 I have heard the learned counsel for the parties and have gone 

throu gh the records of the case.  

9.  The petitioner though claims that he was never appointed as 
supervisor by the respondents, but the said fact is belied from the attendance 
register annexed with the reply of respondent No. 3, wherein it has been reflected 
that petitioner was in fact appointed as a supervisor with the respondent -
company.  At this stage, it may be noticed that in the attendance register it is not 
only that the name of the petitioner alone that has been reflected but there are 
number of employees w hose names find mentioned therein.  

10.  The learned counsel for the petitioner would then contend that 
respondent No. 3 should be put to strict proof in proving that petitioner in fact 

had abandoned the job and should place on record copy of notice if any serv ed 
upon him asking him to join back the duties.   

11.  I am afraid I cannot agree to such submission as the absence of the 
petitioner is for a very long period giving rise to an inference of voluntarily 
abandonment of service.  The abandonment and relinquishmen t of service is 
always a question of intention and in this case it is established on record that 
petitioner had voluntarily abandoned the service.  
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12.  In Vijay S. Sathaye  vs. Indian Airlines Limited and others 

(2013) 10 SCC 253, the Honõble Supreme Court has considered the entire aspects 
in the following terms: -  

  ò12.  It is a settled law that an employee cannot be termed as a 
slave, he has a right to abandon the service any time voluntarily by 
submitting his resignation and alternatively, not joining the duty and 
remaining absent for long. Absence from duty in the begin ning may be 
a misconduct but when absence is for a very long period, it may 
amount to voluntarily abandonment of service and in that eventuality, 
the bonds of service come to an end automatically without requiring 
any order to be passed by the employer . 

 

  13.   In M/s. Jeewanlal (1929) Ltd., Calcutta v. Its Workmen, AIR 

1961 SC 1567, this Court held as under:  

 

ò6.......there would be the class of cases where long 

unauthorised absence may reasonably give rise to an inference 

that such service is intended to  be abandoned by the 

employee.ó 

 

(See also: Shahoodul Haque v. The Registrar, Co -operative 

Societies, Bihar & Anr., AIR 1974 SC 1896).  

 

  14.   For the purpose of termination, there has to be positive action 

on the part of the employer while abandonment of service is a 

consequence of unilateral action on behalf of the employee and the 

employer has no role in it. Such an act cannot be termed as 

'retrenchment' from service.  

 (See: State of Haryana v. Om Prakash & Anr., (1998) 8 SCC 733).  

 

  15.   In Buckingham and Carnatic Co. Ltd. v. Venkatiah & Anr., AIR 

1964 SC 1272 while dealing with a similar case, this Court observed :  

 

ò5éé.Abandonment or relinquishment of service is always a 

question of intention, and normally, such an intention cannot be  

attributed to an employee without adequate evidence in that 

behalf.ó 
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A similar view has been reiterated in G.T. Lad & Ors. v. Chemicals 

and Fibres India Ltd., AIR 1979 SC 582.  

 

  16.  In Syndicate Bank v. General Secretary, Syndicate Bank Staff 

Association & Anr., AIR 2000 SC 2198; and Aligarh Muslim University 

& Ors. v. Mansoor Ali Khan, AIR 2000 SC 2783, this Court ruled that if 

a person is absent beyond the prescribed period for whic h leave of 

any kind can be granted, he should be treated to have resigned and 

ceases to be in service. In such a case, there is no need to hold an 

enquiry or to give any notice as it would amount to useless formalities.  

A similar view has been reiterated i n V.C. Banaras Hindu University & 

Ors. v. Shrikant, AIR 2006 SC 2304; Chief Engineer (Construction) v. 

Keshava Rao (dead) by Lrs., (2005) 11 SCC 229; and Regional 

Manager, Bank of Baroda v. Anita Nandrajog, (2009) 9 SCC 462.ó 

 

13.  Thus taking into consideratio n the aforesaid exposition of law 
coupled with the facts proved on record to the effect that petitioner after having 
joined as a supervisor with respondent No. 3 company on 7.9.2007 did not report 
for duty uptil 18.9.2007 and thereafter reported for duty o n 19.9.2007 for a very 
short duration and thereafter again absented himself and did not resume duty.  

14.  The cumulative effect of the aforesaid discussion is that there is no 
merit in this petition and the same is accordingly dismissed, leaving the parties to  
bear their own costs.  

 

**********************************************   

 
BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SANJAY KAROL, J. & HONõBLE MR. 

JUSTICE P.S. RANA, J.  

Suren Pal     ...Appellant.  

   Vs.  

State of H.P.           ...Respondent.  

 

    Criminal Appeal No.353 of 2008  

    Reserved on  : 12.8.2014  

    Date of Decision : 24.09.2014.      

  
Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 302 -  Deceased went towards the pond where 

accused were sitting - all the accused asked the deceased ô son how are youõ- 

deceased objected to the same as he was elder to them, on which accused abused 

and tried to assault the deceased - deceased was r escued by the persons present at 
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the spot - when the deceased tried to leave the pond the accused came and gave a 

blow with Khukri due to which he died - held, that accused had provoked the 

deceased without any reason -when the deceased had tried to leave the  pond, 

accused came from behind and gave a blow with the sharp edged weapon on the 

back of the deceased - accused was conscious of the weapon he was using and the 

part of the body where the blow was inflicted was vital - his conduct in running 

away from the spot revealed his intention - case falls within Section 300 and the 

accused was rightly convicted for the commission of offence punishable under 

Section 302 IPC.   (Para- 13 to 21)  

 

Cases referred:  

Surendra Singh alias Bittu Vs. State of Uttranchal, (2006) 9  SCC 531  

State of U.P. Vs. Hari Om,  (1998) 9 SCC 63  

Tholan Vs. State of T.N. , (1984) 2 SCC 133  

Subramani Vs. S.H.O. Odiyansali,  (2011) 14 SCC 454  

 

For the Appellant  :  Mr. Anup Chitkara & Ms Divya Sood,  

   Advocates.  

For the Respondent  :   Mr. B.S. Parma r, Additional Advocate General, Mr. 

Thakur & Mr. Puneet Rajta, Deputy Advocates General.

  

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sanjay Karol, Judge   

  Appellant -convict Suren Pal, hereinafter referred to as the 

accused, has assailed the judgment dated 30.4.2008, passed by the Presiding 

Officer, Fast Track Court, Hamirpur, Himachal Pradesh, in Sessions Trial No.12 of 

2007, titled as State of H.P. v. Suren  Pal and another,  whereby he stands convicted 

of the offence punishable under the provisions of Section 302 of the Indian Penal 

Code and sentenced to imprisonment for life and to pay fine of Rs.25,000/ - and in 

default thereof to further undergo rigorous im prisonment for two years.  

2.    It is the case of prosecution that on 20.12.2007 at about 7.30 

p.m., Pardeep Kumar (deceased) alongwith Suresh Kumar @ Bittu came to the 

shop of Pawan Kumar (PW -2), where Sanjay Kumar (PW -1) was sitting with his 

brother Bach hittar Singh.  After shaking hands with him, Suresh Kumar and 

Pardeep Kumar left the shop from the back door and went towards the pond, 

where, Sunil Kumar @ Sillu, Vikram Singh @ Mouni, Virender Kumar (PW -4) @ 

Dimpy and accused Suren Pal were sitting.  Dec eased shook hands with all, 

except for accused Suren Pal.  At that accused asked the deceased òson, how are 

youó.  Deceased objected to the manner in which he was addressed and advised to 

speak in a decent manner, as he was elder in age, at which accused a bused and 
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tried to physically assault the deceased.  Accused pounced upon the deceased and 

also scratched his body.  However, deceased was rescued by the persons present 

on the spot.  After some time deceased left the pond towards the shop of Pawan 

Kumar.  However, from behind, accused came and gave a blow with a Khukhri 

(Ex. P-7) on the vital part of the deceased.  Also, Pawan Kumar, Sanjay Kumar, 

Surinder (PW -3) and Virender (PW -4) saw the accused, after giving blow with a 

Khukhri, fleeing away from the s pot.  Leela Devi (PW -6), mother of the deceased, 

was informed.  With the help of persons present on the spot, she took the 

deceased in a vehicle, driven by Raj Kumar (PW -7), to the hospital, where he was 

declared having brought dead.   

3.    Police was info rmed about the incident and DD Entry (Ex.PW -

14/A) recorded.  Investigating Officer Guler Chand (PW -24) reached the spot, 

where he recorded statement (Ex.PW -1/A) of Sanjay Kumar (Pw -1), under the 

provisions of Section 154 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, which was carried by 

police official Vinod Kumar (PW -18), on the basis of which Fauza Singh (PW -19), 

recorded FIR No.312, dated 20.7.2007 (Ex. PW -19/A), under the provisions of 

Section 302 of the Indian Penal Code, at Police Station Hamirpur, District 

Hami rpur, Himachal Pradesh.  Postmortem of the dead body was got conducted 

from Dr. Rajiv Sood (PW -21), who issued postmortem report (Ex. PW -21/D) and 

opined the deceased to have died on account of lung injury leading to excessive 

haemorrhage and shock.  The o pinion was based on the report (Ex.PW -15/C) 

obtained from the Forensic Science Laboratory, Junga, issued by Dr. Gian Thakur 

(PW-20).  Disclosure statement made by the accused (Ex. PW -8/A), recorded in the 

presence of independent witnesses Desh Raj (PW -8) and Roshan Lal (PW -9), led to 

recovery of weapon of offence (Ex.P -7) from the truck of Roshan Lal, also an 

employer of the accused, in the presence of the Investigating Officer as also HC 

Charanjeet Singh (PW -13).  Investigation was conducted on the spot in  the 

presence of Sanjeevan Patial (PW -11), Shiv Prakash (PW -22).  Photographs of the 

spot of crime were taken by Shiv Prakash (PW -22).  Investigation also revealed that 

immediately after the incident, from the cell phone belonging to Kamal Kumar 

(PW-5), ac cused had telephonic conversation with one Sonu, admitting having 

stabbed the deceased.  With the completion of investigation, which revealed 

complicity of the accused in the alleged crime, challan was presented in the Court 

for trial.  

4.   Accused Suren P al and his co -accused Pankaj were charged 

for having committed an offence punishable under the provisions of Section 302 of 

the Indian Penal Code to which they did not plead guilty and claimed trial.  

5.    In order to establish its case, prosecution examin ed as many 

as 24 witnesses and statements of accused Suren Pal and his co -accused Pankaj, 

under the provisions of Section 313 of the Code of Criminal Procedure were also 

recorded, in which they took plea of false implication.  
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6.    Believing the testimonies  of eye-witnesses and the material on 

record, trial Court convicted accused Suren Pal (present appellant) of an offence 

punishable under the provisions of Section 302 of the Indian Penal Code and 

sentenced him as aforesaid.  Hence, the present appeal by ac cused Suren Pal.  

Accused Pankaj stands acquitted as is evident from order dated 30.4.2008, so 

passed by the trial Court.  

7 .  Assailing the judgment, Mr. Anup Chitkara, learned counsel 

for the accused, has made limited submission.  According to him, case for 

conviction falls under the provisions of Section 299, punishable under Section 304 

of the Indian Penal Code and not Section 300, punishable under Section 302 of 

the Indian Penal Code.  With this limited submission, so made at the Bar, we 

proceed to exa mine the prosecution case.  

8 .    Identity of the deceased is not in dispute.  Presence of the 

accused, deceased and the witnesses on the spot has not been disputed before us.  

That deceased died on account of blow given with a Khukhri (Ex. P -7), by accused , 

is also not disputed before us.  

9 .   Dr. Rajiv Sood (PW -21), who conducted the post -mortem and 

issued post -mortem report (Ex. PW -21/D), on physical examination, found 

following injuries on the body of the deceased:  

 òThere was 4 cm long and 0.5 cm superficial lacerated wound 

extending from left ear towards left cheek.  Another lacerated wound 

near left eye brow 2 cm and 0.5 cm deep irregular with everted edges 

with dark brown blood.  GTemperature of the body was equal to 

surroundings. Cadaveric lividity s een on the extensor surface of 

upper limbs and flexer surface of lower limbs.  Rigor mortis in the 

larger joints.  

 There was deep sharp incised wound measuring 4 cm long 

and 2 cm broad 8 cm below the C7 cervical spine towards right side 

3 cm lateral to the  spine.  It was examined with the help of 

magnifying glass, showing sharp clean edges with inversion of edges 

to inside showing entry point with clotted and semiclotted blood 

around the edges and blood had also accumulated on the table 

around 1 litre of bl ood dark brownish semiclotted blood on the table.  

On opening the chest cavity, the entry wound was becoming narrow 

and had cut mark on the 4 th  rip and had punctured the pleura and 

lung.  There was 2.5 cm long and 1.5 cm broad wound in the lung in 

the midd le segment which was 5 cm deep.  All muscles including 

skin showed sharp edges.ó 

 Pleural and chest cavity containing dark brownish blood 

semiclotted (quantity around 2.5 litres).  No foreign body seen.  Heart 
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and pericardian was normal.  It was injury in the pulmonary vessels.  

Left lung was normal.  

Cause of death is opined to be long injury leading to excessive haemorrhage and 

shock.  In the opinion of the doctor, weapon of offence, i.e. Khukhri (Ex. P -7) is 

dangerous and injury caused with the same was s ufficient to cause death in the 

ordinary course of nature.  The doctor opined the cut marks on the clothes (Ex.P -3 

and Ex. P -4) of the deceased to be corresponding with the injury sustained by the 

deceased.  According to the doctor, lungs are vital part.  Significantly, we find this 

witness not to have been cross -examined on vital points.  

10 .  Thus, according to the doctor, injury was on the vital part of 

the body, which was fatal and led to the death of the deceased.  

11 .   Virender Singh (PW -4), who witnes sed occurrence of the 

crime, has deposed that on 20.7.2007 at about 7.30 p.m., he alongwith accused 

Suren Pal, Sunil Kumar and Vikram Singh was sitting on the stairs of the pond, 

which is situated behind the shop of Pawan Kumar (PW -2), where deceased and 

Surinder Kumar (PW -3) came from the back door of the shop.  They shook hands 

with all, but however, accused did not shake hands with the deceased.  Accused 

asked the deceased òson, how are youó, at which, deceased told the accused to 

speak in a decent manne r, as he was elder to him.  Accused abused the deceased 

in a filthy language and pounced upon him and scratched his face.  Thereafter, 

both deceased and the accused caught each other from the neck but were 

separated by the persons sitting there.  After som e time, when Surinder Kumar 

started returning to the shop, accused again started quarrelling with the deceased 

and tried to catch hold of him, however, deceased managed to escape and cried 

òsave me save meó. Hearing the same Sanjay Kumar (PW-1), who was si tting in the 

shop came out.  Accused ran after the deceased and after giving blow with the 

weapon ran away.  When deceased was about to fall, Sanjay Kumar and Surinder 

Kumar caught him.  Mother of the deceased was informed.  She came and with the 

help of S urinder Kumar and Patwari took the deceased to the hospital.     

12 .  We find version of Virender Singh (PW -4) to have been 

materially corroborated by Sanjay Kumar (PW -1), who states that when Pradeep 

(deceased) reached near him, accused Suren Pal gave him  a blow from behind.  

This witness as also the other witnesses present on the spot, initially supported 

the deceased and ensured prompt medical treatment.  His testimony evidently 

reveals the criminal intent and conduct of the accused of having given a blo w, with 

a sharp -edged weapon, from behind, on a vital part of the body, and thereafter 

having run away from the spot.  Evidently, after the deceased returned from the 

pond, there was no provocation of any sort from his side.  These facts also stand 

corrobo rated by witnesses, namely Pawan Kumar (PW -2) as also Surinder Kumar 

(PW-3).  In fact Surinder Kumar further clarifies that accused uttered filthy 

language at the deceased.  He does state that an altercation took place between 
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the accused and the deceased,  but then clarifies by stating that òthereafter 

accused paunced (sic: pounced) upon the deceased and gave a scratch blow with 

hand on his face and the deceased received bruises/abrasions on his faceó. The 

witness clarifies that after giving blow from behin d, with a sharp -edged weapon, 

accused ran away from the spot.  

13 .  We are of the firm view that initially it was the accused, who 

provoked the deceased, without any sufficient cause.  It appears, he came 

prepared with a predetermined mind.  Thus, he said òson how are youó. Some 

altercation may have taken place between the parties, but nevertheless matter 

stood settled.  Only when deceased left the pond, accused came from behind, and 

without any provocation or sufficient cause, gave a blow with a sharp -edged 

weapon, on the back of the deceased.  This act and conduct of the accused, purely 

establishing his criminal intent, cannot be said to have been committed on the 

spur of the moment.  None of the witnesses have deposed about any provocation 

on the part of t he deceased.  Accused was conscious of the weapon he was using 

and the part of the body, which was vital, where he gave the blow.  He was 

conscious of the consequences of his action.  Not only that, his subsequent 

conduct of fleeing away from the spot only  reveals his intent of committing the 

crime, which he stands charged for.  

14 .   Further, from the testimony of Kamal Kumar (PW -5), it is 

evident that accused made a call and informed that he had stabbed someone.   

15 .  Mother of the deceased, Leela Devi (PW-6) has only 

corroborated the version of Surinder Kumar (PW -3) and the spot witnesses with 

regard to assault.  

16 .  Further, we find that accused also took away the weapon of 

offence from the spot of crime and hid it in the Truck owned by Roshan Lal (PW -9).  

Based on his disclose statement (Ex. PW -8/A), so witnessed by Desh Raj (PW -8), 

police effected recovery thereof, in the presence of the said witness as also the 

accused.  

17 .  We need not discuss testimonies of other police officials, in 

view of limite d submissions made on behalf of the accused, save and except, that 

the Investigating Officers (PW -23 and PW -24) have proved the prosecution case of 

having conducted the investigation on the spot, collected incriminating material 

during the course of invest igation and presented challan, evidencing guilt of the 

accused.  

18 .  Sections 299 & 300 of the Indian Penal Code, reads as under:  

 ò299. Culpable homicide. 

 Whoever causes death by doing an act with the intention of 

causing death, or with the intention of causing such bodily injury as 
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is likely to cause death, or with the knowledge that he is likely by 

such act to cause death, commits the offence of culpable homicide.  

Explanation 1. ñA person who causes bodily injury to another who is 

labouring under a disorder, disease or bodily infirmity, and thereby 

accelerates the death of that other, shall be deemed to have caused 

his death.  

Explanation 2. ñWhere death is caused by bodily injury, the person 

who causes such bodily injury shall be deemed to have caused  the 

death, although by resorting to proper remedies and skilful 

treatment the death might have been prevented.  

Explanation 3. ñThe causing of the death of child in the mother's 

womb is not homicide. But it may amount to culpable homicide to 

cause the death  of a living child, if any part of that child has been 

brought forth, though the child may not have breathed or been 

completely born. ó 

 ò300. Murder 

 Except in the cases hereinafter excepted, culpable homicide is 

murder, if the act by which the death is ca used is done with the 

intention of causing death, or - 

Secondly  

If it is done with the intention of causing such bodily injury as the 

offender knows to be likely to cause the death of the person to whom 

the harm is caused, or - 

Thirdly  

If it is done with t he intention of causing bodily injury to any person 

and the bodily injury intended to be inflicted is sufficient in the 

ordinary course of nature to cause death, or - 

Fourthly  

If the person committing the act knows that it is so imminently 

dangerous that i t must, in all probability, cause death or such bodily 

injury as is likely to cause death, and commits such act without any 

excuse for incurring the risk of causing death or such injury as 

aforesaid.  

Exception I -When culpable homicide is not murder -Culpabl e 

homicide is not murder if the offender, whilst deprived of the power 

of self -control by grave and sudden provocation, causes the death of 

the person who gave the provocation or causes the death of any other 

person by mistake or accident.  
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The above except ion is subject to the following provisos : --  

First -That the provocations not sought or voluntarily provoked by the 

offender as an excuse for killing or doing harm to any person.  

Secondly -That the provocation is not given by anything done in 

obedience to th e law, or by a public servant in the lawful exercise of 

the powers of such public servant.  

Thirdly -That the provocations not given by anything done in the 

lawful exercise of the right of private defence.  

Explanation -Whether the provocation was grave and sudden enough 

to prevent the offence from amounting to murder is a question of 

fact. ó 

We do not find the present case to fall under any one of the exceptions.  

19 .  To us, it is a case of preplanned and premeditated murder.  It 

is not the case of any of the parties that deceased had gone to the pond, carrying 

any weapon with himself, with an intent of picking up a quarrel or fight, with the 

accused or for that matter anyone else.  He went unarmed, shook hands with 

everyone.  On the other hand, accused misbehaved with him; abused him; fought 

with him; and attacked him with a sharp -edged weapon.  The fact that accused 

was carrying a weapon with himself is also reflective  of his criminal intent.  It has 

come on record that the weapon (Ex. P -7) of offence was 10.5 inches long.  Blow 

was given on the vital part of the body.   

20 .  Thus, the Court below rightly appreciated the evidence and 

the material so placed on record, wh ile holding the accused guilty of the charged 

offence and sentencing him to undergo imprisonment, in accordance with law.  

There is neither any illegality nor any perversity with the same. Thus, holistically 

viewing the entire circumstances, we are also of  the firm view, he rightly stands 

convicted for the charged offence and deserves no leniency.  

21 .  In the given facts and circumstances, we find that prosecution 

has been able to establish, beyond reasonable doubt, the guilt of the accused, in 

relation to the charged offence.  Contention so raised on behalf of the accused that 

case does not fall under any of the clauses of Section 300 of the Indian Penal 

Code, is untenable on facts and law.  The intent, act and conduct of the accused is 

evidently clear.  To  contend that accused was not aware of the vital part of the 

body or the consequences of the blow which he had given, considering the age and 

the background from which he comes, cannot be accepted.  Clearly, intention was 

to cause death, with full preparat ion and the act cannot be said to have been 

performed on the spur of the moment.  

22 .  To contend that accused was not prevented by either of the 

persons present on the spot, to say the least is misconceived, for it is case of all 
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the witnesses that after t he deceased had left the pond, without any provocation, 

accused came and gave a blow from behind with a sharp -edged weapon.  

23 .  Our attention is invited to the decisions rendered by the apex 

Court in Surendra Singh alias Bittu v. State of Uttranchal, (20 06) 9 SCC 

531, State of U.P. v. Hari Om,  (1998) 9 SCC 63; Tholan v. State of T.N. , 

(1984) 2 SCC 133; and Subramani v. S.H.O. Odiyansali,  (2011) 14 SCC 454 . 

24 .  It is a settled principle of law that each case has to be 

considered on the given fact and circ umstances.  Facts of Tholan (supra) , are 

squarely distinguishable, unlike the instant facts, where accused had no quarrel 

or dispute with the deceased.  It was an incident, which took place on the spur of 

the moment. Thus, in the given facts and circumstan ces, considering the accused 

to have given a single blow, the judgment of conviction and sentence was modified 

to that of culpable homicide not amounting to murder.   

25 .  Similarly in Surendra Singh (supra ), the apex Court was 

dealing with a case where tw o accused persons stood acquitted and the blow was 

given by the convict at the spur of the moment.  Also it has come on record that 

scuffle took place on the spot between the parties.  

26 .  In Hari Om (supra) , the Court was of the view that the situs of 

inj ury could not have been fixed by the accused so as to infer conclusively of his 

intent to cause injury which had actually been caused.  Also, there was some 

property dispute between the parties.   

27 .  Decision in Subramani (supra) is not relevant in the given facts 

and circumstance, as the accused was charged and convicted for homicide not 

amounting to murder.  

28 .  In our considered view, prosecution has been able to establish 

the guilt of the accused, beyond reasonable doubt, by  leading clear, cogent, 

convincing and reliable piece of evidence, not only ocular but also corroborative, in 

the shape of recovery of weapon of offence.  

29 .  For all the aforesaid reasons, we find no reason to interfere 

with the well reasoned judgment passed by the trial Court.  T he Court has fully 

appreciated the evidence placed on record by the parties.  There is no illegality, 

irregularity, perversity in correct and/or in complete appreciation of the material 

so placed on record by the parties.  Hence, the appeal is dismissed. Appeal stands 

disposed of, so also pending application(s), if any.  

 

 *************************************  
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BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. & HONõBLE 

MR. JUSTICE TARLOK SINGH CHAUHAN, J.  

 

Varinder Singh     éAppellant      

Vs. 

State of HP & ors  éRespondents.  

LPA No. 201 of 2011  

Reserved on 10.9.2014  

Decided on: 24.9.2014  

 

 Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - The Petitioner, a postgraduate in 

Hindi, was appointed as Lecturer in a private College - The State Government 

decided to tak e over the College - The services of the petitioner were taken over as 

Lecturer School cadre, while the petitioner claimed that his services should have 

been taken over as Lecturer College cadre - Held that as per the notification the 

services of only those qualified teachers could have been taken over who had been 

appointed one year prior to the issuance of notification - Since, the petitioner had 

put in five months of service; therefore, his services could not have been taken 

over in terms of notification -petition dismissed.   (Para- 5 & 6)  

Constitution of India, 1950 -Article 14 - cannot be used for perpetuating any 

illegality as it does not envisage negative equality - it can only be used when 

equals similarly circumstanced are discriminated without any ration al basis.  

        (Para- 10) 

Cases Referred:  

Sneh Prabha etc. Vs. State of U.P & anr, AIR 1996 SC 540  

Yogesh Kumar & ors Vs. Government of NCT Delhi & ors, AIR 2003 SC 1241  

 State of West Bengal Vs. Debasish Mukherjee,  AIR 2011 SC 3667  

Priya Gupta Vs. State of Chhattisgarh and & ors (2012) 7 SCC 433   

 

For the Appellant     :   Mr. B.C. Negi, Advocate.  

For the Respondents :  Mr.Shrawan Dogra, Advocate General, with Mr. 

Romesh Verma and Mr. V.S. Chauhan, Addl.AGs and 

Mr. J.K. Verma & Mr. Kush Sharma, Dy. AGs .  

          The following judgment of the Court was delivered:    
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Tarlok Singh Chauhan, Judge:  

  This Letters Patent Appeal is directed against the judgment passed 

by the learned Single Judge in CWP No. 1581 of 2010, whereby the writ petition 

filed b y the petitioner -appellant has been ordered to be dismissed.  

2.   The facts, in brief, may be noticed. The petitioner is a Post Graduate 

in Hindi having obtained 58.75 % marks. He also qualified M.Phil in the year 2004 

and came to be appointed as a Lecture r on 3.7.2006 in the subject of Hindi in 

Chander Dhar Guler College, Haripur (Guler), which at that time was a private 

college. The State Government took a decision to take over this college vide 

notification dated 20.4.2007 and the services of the petitio ner was also taken over 

as a lecturer ôschool cadreõ. His grievance before the writ court was that his 

services ought to have been taken over as a Lecturer, ôcollege cadreõ on contract 

basis as per the notification dated 3.4.2010.  

3.   The appellant had onl y served the college with effect from 3.7.2006 

to November, 2006 i.e. about five months only. The appointment letter was not 

available in the office record and even his joining report was neither available nor 

supplied to the Departmental Committee.  

4.   The terms and conditions for taking over privately managed colleges 

are governed by the notification dated 25.8.1994 and it would be apt to re -produce 

clause 7 thereof which reads as under:  

   

"The services of only qualified teaching and  non teaching staff  

appointed one year earlier who fulfill prescribed departmental 

recruitment and promotion rules, conditions prevalent at the 

time of taking over will  

be considered for taking over subject to the approval of  

the State Public Service Commission or Department al Screening 

Committee from the date of taking over. The services of the 

Principal will be taken over only as Senior most Lecturer in the 

college concerned subject to the above mentioned proviso. The 

Government scales in respect of the respective categorie s shall 

be permissible to them after the take over.ó 

5.  It is evident from a bare perusal of clause -7 that services of only 

those qualified teachers could have been taken over who had been appointed ôone 

year earlierõ to the issuance of notice of taking over. In the present case, as 

observed earlier, appellant had barely put in five months of service, therefore, in 

terms of clause 7 of the notification dated 25.8.1994, services of the appellant 

could not have been taken over.  
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6.   Indisputably, the appoin tment of the appellant is to be reckoned 

from the date when he actually came to be appointed i.e. 3.7.2006 and cannot be 

reckoned from the academic session i.e. April/May, 2006 and, therefore, his 

appointment has rightly not been approved by the H.P. Unive rsity.  

7.   The appellant then claims that one Smt. Kavita Sharma, lecturer, 

Commerce was engaged by the erstwhile private college on 7.6.2003. However, her 

services were terminated on 1.12.2006 and then she was re -appointed on 

27.3.2007 and yet her servic es were taken over and therefore, the petitioner being 

similarly situate like Ms. Kavita Sharma, his services too were required to be 

taken over on the same analogy.  

8.   No doubt, Ms. Kavita Sharma was appointed on 7.6.2003 and 

terminated on 1.12.2006 and  thereafter re -appointed on 27.3.2007, but then she 

had been regularly appointed on 7.6.2003 and her appointment had also been 

approved by the H.P University. Her services were though terminated w.e.f. 

1.12.2006, but the same were restored vide order dated  27.3.2007 with the 

remarks òto be considered as a regular lecturer from the date of initial 

appointment,  i.e. 7.6.2003ó. 

9.   The DPC, while recommending the case of Ms. Kavita Sharma, had 

placed a rider that in case the record of service establishes that her services were 

actually restored before 20.4.2007, then her case could be considered for taking 

over her service. A definit e finding of fact has been recorded by the learned Single 

Judge that Ms.Kavita Sharma had established on record that her services were 

restored before 20.4.2007 and, therefore, in these circumstances, her services 

were taken over as a lecturer (college cad re).  

10.   Even for argument sake, if it is assumed that Ms.Kavita Sharma was 

not eligible, even then the moot question would be as to whether the appellant 

could have filed the case basing his claim on negative equality. Article 14 of the 

Constitution doe s not envisage negative equality and it cannot be used for  

perpetuating any illegality. The doctrine of discrimination based upon the 

existence of an enforceable right under Article 14 would hence apply,  only when 

invidious discrimination is meted out to  equals similarly circumstanced without 

any rationale basis or to relationship that would warrant such discrimination 

(refer Smt. Sneh Prabha etc. Vs. State of U.P & anr, AIR 1996 SC 540, Yogesh 

Kumar & ors Vs. Government of NCT Delhi & ors, AIR 2003 SC 12 41, State of West 

Bengal Vs. Debasish Mukherjee,  AIR 2011 SC 3667 and Priya Gupta Vs. State of 

Chhattisgarh and & ors (2012) 7 SCC 433).  

11.   The cumulative effect of the discussion made here -in -above is that 

there is no merit in the appeal, the same is accordingly dismissed.  

**************************************  
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BEFORE THE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SURESHWAR THAKUR, J. 

Sh. Mohit Saini   é..Petitioner.  

        Vs.  

State of Himachal Pradesh   é..Respondent. 

        Cr. MP(M) No. 966 of 2014  

        Decided on  25.09.2014  

 

  

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section   438 -   An FIR was registered for the 

commission of offences punishable under Section 376, 504 and 506 of I.P.C. - 

some recoveries were to be effected, the report from FSL was awaited but other 

inves tigation was complete - Held, that Prosecutrix was aged 35 years and as per 

the allegations the accused had sexual relations with her for 1 -1 ½ years - This 

shows that the Prosecutrix was a consenting party - No complaint was ever made 

by her to any relative,  hence prima facie the allegations against the accused did 

not constitute any offence - Bail granted .    (Para- 4, 5)  

 

For the petitioner   :  Mr.  Arvind Sharma, Advocate.  

  For the respondent :        Mr. Tarun Pathak and Mr. Vivek Singh   

      Attri, Deputy Advocate Generals.  

The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

Sureshwar Thakur, J.  (Oral):  

      The instant bail application has been filed under Section 438, Cr. 

P.C. by the bail applicant. He apprehends his arrest for his having allegedly 

committed offences under Sections 376, 504 and 506 of I.P.C., in pursuance to 

the lodging of FIR bearing No. 98/14 of  17.08.2014 at Police Station Sadar 

Nahan, District Sirmaur, H.P.  

2.   Previously numerous opportunities were afforded to the In vestigating 

Officer to complete the investigation. Today, the Investigating Officer has disclosed 

to this Court that certain recoveries, inasmuch as, a cheque, an affidavit, besides 

three mobile phones remain unrecovered at the instance of the bail applica nt. The 

lack of effectuation of recoveries aforesaid, if any, at the instance of the bail 

applicant, would not deter this Court to proceed to adjudicate this bail application 

as in the event of the bail applicant/accused misutilising any of the aforesaid 

items,  it is open to  the complainant to launch separate criminal proceedings 

against the bail applicant.  
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3.   At this stage, the Investigating Officer, SI Vivek Sharma, Police 

Station  Sadar Nahan, has apprised this Court that except the receipt of the re port 

of the FSL, the entire investigation into the offences allegedly committed by the 

bail applicant stands  concluded. However, at this stage, while prima facie, 

imputing credibility to the allegations leveled by the prosecutrix against the bail 

applican t and theirõs divulging the fact of the bail applicant/accused having 

subjected the prosecutrix to forcible sexual intercourse, hence this Court does not 

deem it fit, that awaiting the report of the FSL, a  decision by  this Court on the 

bail application, be deferred.  

4.   Now, the preeminent fact which necessitates adjudication is whether 

as alleged by the prosecutrix, the bail applicant/accused subjected her to forcible 

sexual intercourse or not. The fact of the prosecutrix being a widow aged 35 years 

and   having a child aged 14 years, as also when portrayed to be running the 

business of a  Beauty  Parlour  acquire significance in testing whether the alleged 

forcible sexual intercourse perpetrated on her person by the bail applicant was 

consensual or compu lsive or whether as a matter of fact, the victim prosecutrix, 

as alleged by her succumbed to the sexual overtures of the bail applicant under a 

false pretext or a false promise to marry her, or also whether such coaxing or 

allurements meted by the bail app licant to  her to make her succumb to his 

sexual overtures, hence constitute an offence. The duration of the sexual 

intercourse inter se the bail applicant/accused and the victim is also significant, 

inasmuch as, both the bail applicant and the victim pros ecutrix  had for an 

inordinately prolonged duration stretching over a period of 1 and ½ years 

continued to indulge in repeated sexual intercourses, besides both have been 

divulged by the Investigating Officer to have had sexual intercourse both at the 

hous e of the victim prosecutrix as well as, elsewhere. Cumulatively given the fact 

of the sexual intercourses inter se the bail applicant and the victim prosecutrix 

stretching over a period of more than 1 and ½ years., prior to which the victim 

prosecutrix omi tted to complain either to her relatives or to the police qua the 

factum of the accused bail applicant subjecting her to forcible sexual intercourse, 

both significantly and overwhelmingly unbare the factum of the alleged pretextual 

sexual intercourse perpe trated upon the person of the victim by the bail 

applicant/accused, of its vestment of compulsiveness and pretextuality, as also, 

strips off the effect of  the falsity of the initial promise of marriage meted by the 

bail applicant to the victim and its beg etting capitulation of the victim. In other 

words, the duration of the sexual intercourse inter se both, also deprive the 

factum of the initial promise of marriage, if any, meted by the bail 

applicant/accused to the victim/prosecutrix which purportedly sed uced or allured 

her to succumb to the purported sexual intercourses perpetrated on her person by 

the bail applicant/accused, from acquiring any tinge of pretextuality, rather the 

effect of any pretextuality or allurement meted by the bail applicant to the  victim 

for subjugating her to his sexual desires   gets waned, smothered as well as 
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condoned, by the subsequent repeated succumbing of the victim prosecutrix, to 

the sexual overtures of the bail applicant, both at her house and elsewhere.   

5.   In other w ords, assuming that the initially perpetrated sexual 

intercourse inter se the bail applicant/accused and the victim was under an 

allurement meted by the accused/bail applicant to marry her, from which he 

ultimately reneged, yet the further factum of the vi ctim aged 35 years and also 

disclosed to be running the business of a Beauty  Parlour at Nahan, hence 

empowered with concomitant intelligibility to fathom at the initial stage the 

falseness of the pretext or of the  allurement of marriage meted by the bail  

applicant to her, she having continued to prolong her sexual intercourse with the 

accused as also  having continued to succumb to the sexual overtures of the 

accused,  renders  open no other inference  than that of the initial sexual 

intercourse though, m ay be under a false pretext, its effect having come to be 

overcome as well as waned. Consequently, prima facie, at this stage, this Court is 

of the view that these allegations do not constitute any offence.    

6.   Accordingly, the petition is   allowed and  the order of  20.08.2014, 

rendered by this Court is made absolute, subject to the compliance by the 

applicant with the following conditions:  

(i) that the bail applicant shall join the investigation as and when 
required by the Investigating Agency;  

(ii)  that the ba il applicant shall nor directly or indirectly advance 
any threat, inducement or promise to any person acquainted 
with the facts of the case and shall not tamper with the 
prosecution evidence; and  

(iii)  that the bail applicant shall not leave India without prior 
approval of this Court and is also directed to deposit his 
passport, if any, with the Station House Officer concerned.  

7.   In view of the above, the petition stands disposed of. However, it is 

made clear that the findings recorded hereinabove shall not ha ve any bearing on 

the merits of the case.  

*******************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR.JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, CJ AND HONõBLE 

MR.JUSTICE DHARAM CHAND CHAUDHARY , J.  

 

Nirmla and others    ééé.Review Petitioners/appellants.  
         Vs.   
Financial  Commissioner (Appeals) and Ors.  ééé..Respondents. 
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 RP No.4100 of 2013  

 Reserved on: 18.09.2014.  

   Pronounced on: September  25, 2014.  

____________________________________________________________________ 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Section 115 - Review-  power of review is to be 

exercised sparingly on the ground of error apparent on the face of the record - the 

error should be such as can be unveiled on mere looking at the record, without 

entering into the long drawn process of reasoning - held, that there was no error 

apparent on the face of the record - the plea that order is illegal can be taken by 

way of filing appeal before the Appellate Court and not by filing the review petition.         

(Para- 9 and 10)  

Cases referred:  

Khushi Ram and others vs. State of H.P. and others, 1997(2) Sim.L.C. 215 Mehar 

Chand and others vs. Rakesh and others, 2007(1) Shim.L.C. 64  

Woodland Society, Andretta vs. Smt.Pinki Devi and others, Latest HLJ 2010 (HP) 

1404  

 Kanta Devi vs. Durga Singh, Latest HLJ 2012 (HP) 886  

N.An antha Reddy vs. Anshu Kathuria and others, 2014 (1) Shim.L.C. 367  

Inderchand Jain (deceased by L.Rs.) vs. Motilal (deceased by L.Rs.), 2009 AIR 

SCW 5364  

Haryana State Industrial Development Corporation Ltd. vs. Mawasi & Ors. Etc. 

Etc., 2012 AIR SCW 4222  

Moran Mar Basselios Catholicos v. Most Rev. Mar Poulose Athanasius AIR 1954 

SC 526  

Thungabhadra Industries Ltd. v. Govt. of A.P. (1964) 5 SCR 174  

Aribam Tuleshwar Sharma v. Aibam Pishak Sharma (1979) 4 SCC 389  

Meera Bhanja v. Nirmala Kumari Choudhury (1995) 1 SCC 170  

Parsion Devi v. Sumitri Devi (1997) 8 SCC 715  

Lily Thomas v. Union of India (2000) 6 SCC 224  

Haridas Das v. Usha Rani Banik (2006) 4 SCC 78  

State of West Bengal v. Kamal Sengupta (2008) 8 SCC 612  

Akhilesh Yadav v. Vishwanath Chaturvedi & Ors., 20 13 AIR SCW 1316  

 

For the Petitioners:           Mr.G.D. Verma, Senior Advocate, with Mr.B.C. Verma, 

Advocate.  

For the Respondents:    Mr.Shrawan Dogra, Advocate General,  

  with Mr.V.S. Chauhan, Addl.A.Gs., Mr.J.K.     

  Verma and  Mr.Kush Sharma, Dy.A.Gs. for     

   respondent No.1.  

   Mr.Bhupender Gupta, Senior Advocate,  
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   with Mr.Janesh Gupta and Ms.Charu  

   Gupta, Advocates, for respondents No.2 to  

   6.  

   Nemo for respondent No.7.  

   Respondent No.8 ex -parte.  

The following judgment of the Court was delifered : 

Mansoor Ahmad Mir, C.J.  

 

  By the medium of this Review Petition, the petitioners 

have sought review of the judgment and order, dated 6 th  September, 2013, passed 

by a Division Bench of this Court, whereby Letters Patent Appeal No.114  of 2013 

came to be dismissed.   

2.   Respondents filed objections and resisted the same.   

3.   We have heard the learned counsel for the parties and 

have gone through the relevant record.  

4.   it is averred by the review petitioners that respondents 

No.2 to 7 in the Writ Petition i.e. CWP No.1312 of 2007, out of which LPA No.114 

of 2013 had arisen, filed a revision petition before the Financial Commissioner 

(Appeals), Himachal Pradesh, after 27 years from the date of passing of the order 

in the said revision petition.  The Financial Commissioner (Appeals) condoned the 

delay in filing the revision petition and set aside the order passed by the Assistant 

Collector o n 30 th  November, 1979 and the matter was remanded to the Land 

Reforms Office, Shimla for conducting inquiry into the matter.   Feeling aggrieved,  

the petitioners questioned the said order of the Financial Commissioner by way of 

Writ Petition, being CWP No .1312 of 2007, was dismissed, vide judgment and 

order, dated 3 rd  January, 2013.  The writ petitioners thereafter questioned the 

same by way of Letters Patent Appeal (LPA No.114 of 2013), was also dismissed, 

vide order, dated 6 th  September, 2013.  

5.   Mr.G. D. Verma, learned Senior Counsel for the review 

petitioners, argued that the Writ Court i.e. the learned Single Judge as well as the 

Division Bench have fallen in error in dismissing the writ petition and the Letters 

Patent Appeal for the reason that the c ivil courts i.e. the court of the Sub Judge Ist 

Class and the Additional District Judge have already determined the issue. Thus, 

the order of remand passed by the Financial Commissioner was bad in law.   

 6.   The learned Senior Counsel for the review petitioners 

tried to carve out a case on the ground that the judgments made by the civil 

courts i.e. by the Sub Judge Ist Class and by the Appellate Court have not been 
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discussed.  The learned Senior Counsel for th e review petitioners was asked to 

show whether any mistake is apparent on the face of record, which can be 

detected without making long drawn discussions.  Instead, the learned Senior 

Counsel argued that the Financial Commissioner had wrongly condoned the delay 

after a gap of 27 years and the order of remand is also illegal.   The Writ Court in 

the writ petition and the Appellant Court in the Letters Patent Appeal have also 

not disturbed the said findings of the Financial Commissioner, thus, the order 

passed by the Writ Court as well as by the Appellate Court are illegal.  It was 

further submitted that the findings of the Civil Court are in favour of the review 

petitioners.  

7.   During the course of hearing, the learned Senior 

Counsel for the review petitione rs has relied upon the decisions in Khushi Ram 

and others vs. State of H.P. and others, 1997(2) Sim.L.C. 215,   Mehar Chand 

and others vs. Rakesh and others, 2007(1) Shim.L.C. 64, Woodland Society, 

Andretta vs. Smt.Pinki Devi and others, Latest HLJ 2010 (H P) 1404, and 

Kanta Devi vs. Durga Singh, Latest HLJ 2012 (HP) 886,  

 8.   On the other hand, Mr.Bhupender Gupta, learned 

Senior Counsel for respondents No.2 to 6, while supporting the judgment under 

review, has relied upon the judgment in N.Anantha Reddy vs . Anshu Kathuria 

and others, 2014 (1) Shim.L.C. 367, wherein it was held that the review 

jurisdiction is very limited and unless there is mistake apparent on the face of 

record, the order/judgment does not call for review.  He, therefore, prayed that the 

Review Petition may be dismissed.  

9.   It is beaten law of the land that the power of review has 

to be exercised sparingly and as per the mandate of Section 114 read with Order 

47 Rule 1 CPC.  A reference may be made to Section 114 CPC and Order 47 Rule 1 

CPC hereunder:  

 ò114. Review. - Subject as aforesaid, any person considering himself 

aggrieved, ñ 

 

(a) by a decree or order from which an appeal is allowed by this Code, but 

from which no appeal has been preferred,  

 

(b) by a decree or order from which no app eal is allowed by this Court, or  

 

(c) by a decision on a reference from a Court of Small Causes, may apply for 

a review of judgment to the Court which passed the decree or made the 

order, and the Court may make such order thereon as it thinks fit.ó 
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òORDER XLVII  

REVIEW  

1. Application for review of judgment. ð (1) Any person considering 

himself aggrieved ñ 

 

(a) by a decree or order from which an appeal is allowed, but from 

which no appeal has been preferred,  

(b) by a decree or order from which no appeal is allowed, or  

(c) by a decision on a reference from a Court of Small Causes,  

and who, from the discovery of new and important matter or 

evidence which, after the exercise of due diligence was not within 

his knowledge or could not be produced by him at the t ime when 

the decree was passed or order made, or on account of some 

mistake or error apparent on the face of the record, or for any 

other sufficient reason, desires to obtain a review of the decree 

passed or order made against him, may apply for a review o f 

judgment to the Court which passed the decree or made the 

order.  

(2) A party who is not appealing from a decree on order may apply for 

a review of judgment notwithstanding the pendency of an appeal by 

some other party except where the ground of  

such app eal is common to the applicant and the appellant, or when, 

being respondent, he can present to the Appellate Court the case on 

which he applies for the review.  

Explanation ñThe fact that the decision on a question of law on 

which the judgment of the Court i s based has been reversed or 

modified by the subsequent decision of a superior Court in any other 

case, shall not be a ground for the review of such judgment.ó 

 

 

10.   I, as a Judge of the Jammu and Kashmir High Court, 

while sitting in Division Bench, authored a judgment in case titled Muzamil Afzal 

Reshi vs. State of J&K & Ors., Review (LPA) No.16/2009, decided on 

29.3.2013, in which it was laid down that power of revie w is to be exercised in 

limited circumstances and, that too, as per the mandate of Section 114 read with 

Order 47 CPC.  It was further held that the review petition can be entertained only 
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on the ground of error apparent on the face of the record.  The err or apparent on 

the face of record must be such which can be unveiled on mere looking at the 

record, without entering into the long drawn process of reasoning.    

11.   The Division Bench of this Court has also laid down the 

similar principle in Review Peti tion No.4084 of 2013 , titled  M/s Harvel Agua 

India Private Limited vs. State of H.P. & Ors., decided on 9 th  July, 2014 , and 

observed that for review of a judgment, error must be apparent on the face of the 

record; not which has to be explored and that it should not amount to rehearing of 

the case.  It is apt to reproduce paragraph 11 of the judgment herein:   

ò11. The error contemplated under the rule is that the same should 

not require any long -drawn process of reasoning. The wrong decision 

can be subject to appeal to a higher form but a review is not 

permissible on the ground that court proceeded on wrong 

proposition of law. It is not permissible for erroneous decision to be 

òre-heard and corrected.ó There is clear distinction between an 

erroneous decision  and an error apparent on the face of the record. 

While the former can be corrected only by a higher form, the latter 

can be corrected by exercise of review jurisdiction. A review of 

judgement is not maintainable if the only ground for review is that 

point  is not dealt in correct perspective so long the point has been 

dealt with and answered. A review of a judgement is a serious step 

and reluctant resort to it is proper only where a glaring omission or 

patent mistake or like grave error has crept in earlier  by judicial 

fallibility. A mere repetition of old and overruled arguments cannot 

create a ground for review. The present stage is not a virgin ground 

but review of an earlier order, which has the normal feature of 

finality.ó 

 

12.   The Apex Court in case Inderchand Jain (deceased by 

L.Rs.) vs. Motilal (deceased by L.Rs.), 2009 AIR SCW 5364, has observed that 

the Court, in a review petition, does not sit in appeal over its own order and 

rehearing of the matter is impermissible in law.  It is apt to reproduce  paragraph 

10 of the said decision hereunder:  

ò10. It is beyond any doubt or dispute that the review court does not 

sit in appeal over its own order. A re -hearing of the matter is 

impermissible in law. It constitutes an exception to the general rule 

that o nce a judgment is signed or pronounced, it should not be 

altered. It is also trite that exercise of inherent jurisdiction is not 

invoked for reviewing any order. Review is not appeal in disguise. In 

Lily Thomas v. Union of India [AIR 2000 SC 1650], this Co urt held:  
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"56. It follows, therefore, that the power of review can be 

exercised for correction of a mistake and not to substitute a 

view. Such powers can be exercised within the limits of the 

statute dealing with the exercise of power. The review cannot 

be treated an appeal in disguise."ó 

 

13.   The Apex Court in case Haryana State Industrial 

Development Corporation Ltd. vs. Mawasi & Ors. Etc. Etc., 2012 AIR SCW 

4222,  has discussed the law, on the subject in hand, right from beginning till the 

pronounceme nt of the judgment and laid down the principles how the power of 

review can be exercised.  It is apt to reproduce paragraphs 9 to 18 of the said 

judgment hereunder:  

ò9. At this stage it will be apposite to observe that the power of 

review is a creature of the statute and no Court or quasi -judicial 

body or administrative authority can review its judgment or order or 

decision unless it is legally empowered to do so. Article 137 

empowers this Court to review its judgments subject to the 

provisions of any law m ade by Parliament or any rules made under 

Article 145 of the Constitution. The Rules framed by this Court 

under that Article lay down that in civil cases, review lies on any of 

the grounds specified in Order 47 Rule 1 of the Code of Civil 

Procedure, 1908 w hich reads as under:  

  òOrder 47, Rule 1 : 

  1. Application for review of judgment. - 

 (1) Any person considering himself aggrieved - 

(a) by a decree or order from which an appeal is allowed, but 

from which no appeal has been preferred,  

(b) by a decree or order from which no appeal is allowed, or  

(c) by a decision on a reference from a Court of Small Causes,  

and who, from the discovery of new and important matter or 

evidence which, after the exercise of due diligence was not 

within his knowledge or could no t be produced by him at the 

time when the decree was passed or order made, or on 

account of some mistake or error apparent on the face of the 

record, or for any other sufficient reason, desires to obtain a 

review of the decree passed or order made against him, may 

apply for a review of judgment to the court which passed the 

decree or made the order.  
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(2) A party who is not appealing from a decree or order may 

apply for a review of judgment notwithstanding the pendency 

of an appeal by some other party except where the ground of 

such appeal is common to the applicant and the appellant, or 

when, being respondent, he can present to the Appellate 

Court the case of which he applies for the review.  

Explanation - The fact that the decision on a question of law 

on whic h the judgment of the Court is based has been 

reversed or modified by the subsequent decision of a superior 

Court in any other case, shall not be a ground for the review 

of such judgment.ó 

 

10. The aforesaid provisions have been interpreted in several cases. 

We shall notice some of them. In S. Nagaraj v. State of Karnataka 

1993 Supp (4) SCC 595, this Court referred to the judgments in Raja 

Prithwi Chand Lal Choudhury v. Sukhraj Rai AIR 1941 F C 1 and 

Rajunder Narain Rae v. Bijai Govind Singh (1836) 1 Moo PC 117 and 

observed:  

 

òReview literally and even judicially means re-examination or 

re- consideration. Basic philosophy inherent in it is the 

universal acceptance of human fallibility. Yet in the realm of 

law the courts and even the statutes lean strongly in favour of 

finality of decision legally and properly made. Exceptions both 

statutorily and judicially have been carved out to correct 

accidental mistakes or miscarriage of justice. Even when  there 

was no statutory provision and no rules were framed by the 

highest court indicating the circumstances in which it could 

rectify its order the courts culled out such power to avoid 

abuse of process or miscarriage of justice. In Raja Prithwi 

Chand Lal  Choudhury v. Sukhraj Rai the Court observed that 

even though no rules had been framed permitting the highest 

Court to review its order yet it was available on the limited 

and narrow ground developed by the Privy Council and the 

House of Lords. The Court a pproved the principle laid down 

by the Privy Council in Rajunder Narain Rae v. Bijai Govind 

Singh that an order made by the Court was final and could 

not be altered:  

ò... nevertheless, if by misprision in embodying the judgments, 

by errors have been intro duced, these Courts possess, by 
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Common law, the same power which the Courts of record and 

statute have of rectifying the mistakes which have crept in .... 

The House of Lords exercises a similar power of rectifying 

mistakes made in drawing up its own judgme nts, and this 

Court must possess the same authority. The Lords have 

however gone a step further, and have corrected mistakes 

introduced through inadvertence in the details of judgments; 

or have supplied manifest defects in order to enable the 

decrees to be  enforced, or have added explanatory matter, or 

have reconciled inconsistencies.ó  

Basis for exercise of the power was stated in the same 

decision as under:  

òIt is impossible to doubt that the indulgence extended in 

such cases is mainly owing to the natur al desire prevailing to 

prevent irremediable injustice being done by a Court of last 

resort, where by some accident, without any blame, the party 

has not been heard and an order has been inadvertently made 

as if the party had been heard.ó  

Rectification of  an order thus stems from the fundamental 

principle that justice is above all. It is exercised to remove the 

error and not for disturbing finality. When the Constitution 

was framed the substantive power to rectify or recall the order 

passed by this Court w as specifically provided by Article 137 

of the Constitution. Our Constitution -makers who had the 

practical wisdom to visualise the efficacy of such provision 

expressly conferred the substantive power to review any 

judgment or order by Article 137 of the Co nstitution. And 

clause (c) of Article 145 permitted this Court to frame rules as 

to the conditions subject to which any judgment or order may 

be reviewed. In exercise of this power Order XL had been 

framed empowering this Court to review an order in civil 

proceedings on grounds analogous to Order XLVII Rule 1 of 

the Civil Procedure Code. The expression, 'for any other 

sufficient reason' in the clause has been given an expanded 

meaning and a decree or order passed under misapprehension 

of true state of circu mstances has been held to be sufficient 

ground to exercise the power. Apart from Order XL Rule 1 of 

the Supreme Court Rules this Court has the inherent power to 

make such orders as may be necessary in the interest of 

justice or to prevent the abuse of proc ess of Court. The Court 

is thus not precluded from recalling or reviewing its own order 

if it is satisfied that it is necessary to do so for sake of justice.ó  
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11. In Moran Mar Basselios Catholicos v. Most Rev. Mar Poulose 

Athanasius AIR 1954 SC 526, the t hree -Judge Bench referred to the 

provisions of the Travancore Code of Civil Procedure, which was 

similar to Order 47 Rule 1 CPC and observed:  

òIt is needless to emphasise that the scope of an application 

for review is much more restricted than that of an appeal. 

Under the provisions in the Travancore Code of Civil 

Procedure which is similar in terms to Order 47 Rule 1 of our 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, the court of review has only a 

limited jurisdiction circumscribed by the definitive limits fixed 

by th e language used therein.  

      It may allow a review on three specified grounds, namely, (i) 

discovery of new and important matter or evidence which, after the 

exercise of due diligence, was not within the applicant's knowledge or 

could not be produced by him at the time when the decree was 

passed, (ii) mistake or error apparent on the face of the record, and 

(iii) for any other sufficient reason.  

      It has been held by the Judicial Committee that the words òany 

other sufficient reasonó must mean òa reason sufficient on grounds, 

at least analogous to those specified in the ruleó. See Chhajju Ram v. 

Neki AIR 1922 PC 12 (D). This conclusion was reiterated by the 

Judicial Committee in Bisheshwar Pratap Sahi v. Parath Nath AIR 

1934 PC 213 (E) and was adopted by on Federal Court in H ari 

Shankar Pal v. Anath Nath Mitter AIR 1949 FC 106 at pp. 110, 111 

(F). Learned counsel appearing in support of this appeal recognises 

the aforesaid limitations and submits that his case comes within the 

ground of òmistake or error apparent on the face of the recordó or 

some ground analogous thereto.ó 

12. In Thungabhadra Industries Ltd. v. Govt. of A.P. (1964) 5 SCR 174, 

another three -Judge Bench reiterated that the power of review is not 

analogous to the appellate power and observed (Para 11):  

òA review is by no means an appeal in disguise whereby an 

erroneous decision is reheard and corrected, but lies only for patent 

error. We do not consider that this furnishes a suitable occasion for 

dealing with this difference exhaustively or in any great detail, bu t it 

would suffice for us to say that where without any elaborate 

argument one could point to the error and say here is a substantial 

point of law which stares one in the face, and there could reasonably 

be no two opinions, entertained about it, a clear ca se of error 

apparent on the face of the record would be made out.ó 
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13. In Aribam Tuleshwar Sharma v. Aibam Pishak Sharma (1979) 4 SCC 

389, this Court answered in affirmative the question whether the High 

Court can review an order passed under Article 226 o f the Constitution and 

proceeded to observe (Para 3):  

òBut, there are definitive limits to the exercise of the power of review. 

The power of review may be exercised on the discovery of new and 

important matter or evidence which, after the exercise of due 

diligence was not within the knowledge of the person seeking the 

review or could not be produced by him at the time when the order 

was made; it may be exercised where some mistake or error apparent 

on the face of the record is found; it may also be exercis ed on any 

analogous ground. But, it may not be exercised on the ground that 

the decision was erroneous on merits. That would be the province of 

a court of appeal. A power of review is not to be confused with 

appellate powers which may enable an appellate c ourt to correct all 

manner of errors committed by the subordinate court.ó 

14. In Meera Bhanja v. Nirmala Kumari Choudhury (1995) 1 SCC 170, the 

Court considered as to what can be characterised as an error apparent on 

the fact of the record and observed (Pa ra 8):  

òéé.it has to be kept in view that an error apparent on the face of 

record must be such an error which must strike one on mere looking 

at the record and would not require any long -drawn process of 

reasoning on points where there may conceivably be two opinions. 

We may usefully refer to the observations of this Court in the case of 

Satyanarayan Laxminarayan Hegde v. Mallikarjun Bhavanappa 

Tirumale AIR 1960 SC 137 wherein, K.C. Das Gupta, J., speaking for 

the Court has made the following observations in connection with an 

error apparent on the face of the record:  

        òAn error which has to be established by a long-drawn process 

of reasoning on points where there may conceivably be two opinions 

can hardly be said to be an error apparent on the face  of the record. 

Where an alleged error is far from self -evident and if it can be 

established, it has to be established, by lengthy and complicated 

arguments, such an error cannot be cured by a writ of certiorari 

according to the rule governing the powers o f the superior court to 

issue such a writ.ó 

15. In Parsion Devi v. Sumitri Devi (1997) 8 SCC 715, the Court observed:  

òAn error which is not self-evident and has to be detected by a 

process of reasoning, can hardly be said to be an error apparent on 

the f ace of the record justifying the Court to exercise its power of 
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review under Order 47 Rule 1 CPCéé.. A review petition, it must be 

remembered has a limited purpose and cannot be allowed to be òan 

appeal in disguiseó.ó 

16. In Lily Thomas v. Union of India ( 2000) 6 SCC 224, R.P. Sethi, J., who 

concurred with S. Saghir Ahmad, J., summarised the scope of the power of 

review in the following words (Para 15):  

òSuch powers can be exercised within the limits of the statute 

dealing with the exercise of power. The r eview cannot be treated like 

an appeal in disguise. The mere possibility of two views on the 

subject is not a ground for review. Once a review petition is 

dismissed no further petition of review can be entertained. The rule 

of law of following the practice  of the binding nature of the larger 

Benches and not taking different views by the Benches of 

coordinated jurisdiction of equal strength has to be followed and 

practised.ó 

17. In Haridas Das v. Usha Rani Banik (2006) 4 SCC 78, the Court 

observed (Para 13):   

òThe parameters are prescribed in Order 47 CPC and for the 

purposes of this lis, permit the defendant to press for a rehearing òon 

account of some mistake or error apparent on the face of the records 

or for any other sufficient reasonó. The former part of the rule deals 

with a situation attributable to the applicant, and the latter to a jural 

action which is manifestly incorrect or on which two conclusions are 

not possible. Neither of them postulate a rehearing of the dispute 

because a party had not high lighted all the aspects of the case or 

could perhaps have argued them more forcefully and/or cited 

binding precedents to the court and thereby enjoyed a favourable 

verdict.ó 

18. In State of West Bengal v. Kamal Sengupta (2008) 8 SCC 612, the Court 

consider ed the question whether a Tribunal established under the 

Administrative Tribunals Act, 1985 can review its decision, referred to 

Section 22(3) of that Act, some of the judicial precedents and observed 

(Para 14):  

òAt this stage it is apposite to observe that where a review is sought 

on the ground of discovery of new matter or evidence, such matter or 

evidence must be relevant and must be of such a character that if 

the same had been produced, it might have altered the judgment. In 

other words, mere discover y of new or important matter or evidence 

is not sufficient ground for review ex debito justitiae. Not only this, 

the party seeking review has also to show that such additional 
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matter or evidence was not within its knowledge and even after the 

exercise of d ue diligence, the same could not be produced before the 

court earlier.  

       The term òmistake or error apparentó by its very connotation 

signifies an error which is evident per se from the record of the case 

and does not require detailed examination, sc rutiny and elucidation 

either of the facts or the legal position. If an error is not self -evident 

and detection thereof requires long debate and process of reasoning, 

it cannot be treated as an error apparent on the face of the record for 

the purpose of Or der 47 Rule 1 CPC or Section 22(3)(f) of the Act. To 

put it differently an order or decision or judgment cannot be 

corrected merely because it is erroneous in law or on the ground that 

a different view could have been taken by the court/tribunal on a 

point  of fact or law. In any case, while exercising the power of review, 

the court/tribunal concerned cannot sit in appeal over its judgment 

/ decision.óó 

 

14.   The Apex Court in a recent judgment in case Akhilesh 

Yadav v. Vishwanath Chaturvedi & Ors., 2013 AIR  SCW 1316 , has held that 

scope of review petition is very limited and submissions made on questions of fact 

cannot be a ground to review the order.  It was further observed that review of an 

order is permissible only if some mistake or error is apparent on  the face of the 

record, which has to be decided on the facts of each and every case. Further held 

that an erroneous decision, by itself, does not warrant review of each decision.  It 

is apt to reproduce paragraph 1 of the said judgment hereunder:  

òCertain questions of fact and law were raised on behalf of the parties when 
the review petitions were heard. Review petitions are ordinarily restricted to 
the confines of the principles enunciated in Order 47 of the Code of Civil 
Procedure, but in this case, we g ave counsel for the parties ample 
opportunity to satisfy us that the judgment and order under review suffered 
from any error apparent on the face of the record and that permitting the 
order to stand would occasion a failure of justice or that the judgment 
suffered from some material irregularity which required correction in 
review. The scope of a review petition is very limited and the submissions 
advanced were made mainly on questions of fact. As has been repeatedly 

indicated by this Court, review of a jud gment on account of some mistake 
or error apparent on the face of the record is permissible, but an error 
apparent on the face of the record has to be decided on the facts of each 
case as an erroneous decision by itself does not warrant a review of each 
decision. In order to appreciate the decision rendered on the several review 
petitions which were taken up together for consideration, it is necessary to 
give a background in which the judgment and order under review came to 
be rendered.ó 
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15.   We have gone through the judgment made by the 

learned Single Judge and the judgment under review. The Financial Commissioner 

made the order of remand.  The question whether the Financial Commissioner had 

the power to condone the delay or otherwise, was discussed by the  Writ Court and 

the writ petition was dismissed.  The Appellate Court also held that the issue 

pertains to land laws, therefore, the question raised can be determined and 

answered by the Tenancy Authority.   

16.   Thus, applying the tests to the instant ca se, there is no 

mistake/error apparent on the face of record.  The ground that the order is illegal 

can be taken by way of filing appeal before the Appellate Court and not before the 

Review Court.  

17.   Having said so, the review petition merits to be 

dism issed and the same is dismissed.  

***********************     

 

 

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. & HONõBLE 

MR. JUSTICE DHARAM CHAND CHAUDHARY, J.  

 

Pawan Kumar and others      .......Petitioners.  

                     Vs.  

State of HP and another     é.éRespondents. 

 

CWP(T) No.15584 of 2008.  

Judgment reserved on 11 th  September, 2014.  

                Decided on:  25 th  September, 2014.  

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - The Petitioners working as Fishermen 

had challenged the order of the State Government providing Matriculation as 

minimum qualification for promotion to the post of Fisheries Field Assistants - 

According to the petitioners there was no qualifica tion in the un -amended 1986 

Rules for promotion - Nature of duty of Field Assistants and Fishermen were 

similar, and the order of the State Government providing for Matriculation as 

qualification was wrong, arbitrary - Held that framing of Rules prescribing the 

mode of selection including the qualification for a particular post is within the 

domain of the Executive/ Rule making authority - Courts and Tribunals cannot 

prescribe the qualification nor can they interfere with the qualification prescribed 

by the em ployer - Courts cannot direct the authority to make appointment by 
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relaxing the rules - Since the petitioners are not eligible as per the rules therefore, 

the petition is not maintainable.      (Para- 14 & 15)  

Cases Referred:  

P.U. Joshi and others  vs. Account ant General, Ahmedabad and others,  (2003) 2 

SCC 632  

State of J&K v. Shiv Ram Sharma and others, (1999) 3 SCC 653  

V.K. Sood  v. Secretary, Civil and Aviation and others, 1993 Supp (3) SCC 9  

Chandigarh Administration through the Director Public Instructions (Colleges), 

Chandigarh  v. Usha Kheterpal Waie and others, (2011) 9 SCC 645  

State of Gujarat and others  v. Arvind Kumar T. Tiwari and another (2012) 9 SCC 

545  

For the petitioners   :  Ms. Ranjana Parmar, Advocate.  

For the respondents  :  Mr. Shrawan Dogra, A dvocate General 

 with   Mr. Romesh Verma, V.S. Chauhan, 

 Additional Advocates General, Mr. J.K. 

 Verma and Mr. Kush Sharma, Deputy 

 Advocates General.  

              The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

Dharam Chand Chaudhary, J.  

   Petitione rs working as Fishermen in the Department of 

Fisheries, Government of Himachal Pradesh, aggrieved by providing 

matriculation as minimum qualification for promotion to the post of 

Fisheries Field Assistants in Recruitment and Promotion Rules 

Annexure A -2 fr om their category have initially filed this petition in 

the erstwhile HP State Administrative Tribunal and on its abolition 

stands transferred to this Court.  

2.  By means of this petition, the petitioners have claimed 
the following relief:  

òThat the impugned Rules Annexure A -2, promotion 

order dated 3.7.2007 Annexure A -5 and order dated 

8.7.2007 rejecting the representation of the applicants 

may be quashed and set aside and respondents may be 

permitted to promote the applicants from the date their 

juniors were  promoted with all consequential benefits 

in the interest of justice and fair playó. 

 

3.  Annexure A -2, which has been sought to be quashed 
and set aside, is the Recruitment and Promotion Rules meant for 
filling up the posts of Fisheries Field Assistants. These rules have 
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repealed the Himachal Pradesh Fisheries Departmentõs Fisheries 
Field Assi stant Class -IV (Non -Gazetted) Recruitment and Promotion 
Rules, 1986. The Rules Annexure A -2, called as the Himachal 
Pradesh Fisheries Department, Fisheries Field Assistant Class -IV 
(Non-Gazetted), Recruitment and Promotion Rules, 2006, came into 
force from  the date of its publication in HP Rajpatra, i.e., 30 th  
December, 2006. The post of Fisheries Field Assistant is Class -IV 
and non -selection. As per these Rules, the appointment to the 
service can be made from two different sources,  
i.e. 66 2/ 3% by direct r ecruitment and 33 1/ 3% by promotion from 
amongst the Fishermen having matriculation as qualification.  

4.  As noticed at the outset, the petitioners are aggrieved 
by making provision of matriculation as qualification for 
appointment to the post of Fisheries Fiel d Assistant by way of 

promotion from their category, therefore, it is deemed appropriate to 
make reference to the relevant provisions in the Rules which govern 
the procedure to be followed for appointment to the post of Fisheries 
Field Assistant by way of promotion. Rule 11 reads as follows:  

11. In case 

of 

recruitment 

by 

promotion, 

deputation, 

transfer, 

grade from 

which 

promotion/ 

deputation 

transfer is to 

be made  

By promotion from amongst 

the Fishermen who are 

matriculate and also possess 

5 years regular s ervice or 

regular combined with 

continuous ad hoc service 

rendered, if any, in the grade.  

       For filling up the posts, 

following roster shall be 

followed:  

    1st post: By promotion 

from Fisherman, 2 nd  post: By 

Direct recruitment. 3 rd  post: 

by direct recruitment.  

     The roster will be rotated 

after every 3 rd  post till the 

representation to all the 

categories is achieved by the 

given percentage and 

thereafter, vacancy is to be 

filled up amongst the 

categories which vacate the 

post.  

(1) In all cases o f promotion, 

the continuous adhoc 

Provided further that where a 

person becomes ineligible to 

be considered for promotion 

on account of the 

requirement of the preceding 

provi so, the person(s) junior 

to him shall also be deemed 

to be ineligible for 

consideration for such 

promotion.  

EXPLANATION; - The last 

proviso shall not render the 

junior incumbents ineligible 

for consideration for 

promotion if the senior 

ineligible person ha ppened to 

be ex-servicemen recruited 

under the provisions of Rule -

3 of Demobilized Armed 

Forces Personnel 

(Reservations of vacancies in 

Himachal State Non -

Technical Services) Rules, 

1972 and having been given 

the benefit of seniority 

thereunder or recruite d 
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vacancies in Himachal State 

Technical Services)Rules, 

1985 and having been given 

the benefit of seniority 

thereunder  

(2) Similarly in all cases of 

confirmation continuous 

adhoc service rendered in the 

feeder post, if any, prior to 

the regular appointment 

against such posts shall be 

taken into account towards 

the length of service, if the 

adhoc 

appointment/promotion had 

been made after proper 

selection in accordance with 

the R&P rules.  

Provided that inter -se 

seniority as a r esult of 

confirmation after taking into 

account adhoc service 

rendered as referred to above 

shall remain unchanged.  

 

under the provision of Rule -3 

of Ex -servicemen 

(Reservations of Contract 

appointee so selected under 

these Rules will not have any 

right to claim regularization 

or permanent absorption in 

Govt. job.  

(II) EMOLUMENT PAYABLE: 

The Fisheries Field Assistant 

appointed on contract basis 

will be paid consolidated 

contractual amount @ Rs. 

4230/ - (initial of pay scale + 

dearness pay) per month.  An 

amount of Rs. 100/ - as per 

amount increase in 

emoluments for the second 

and third years respectively 

will be allowed i f contract is 

extended beyond one year.  

(III) 

APPOINTING/DISCIPLINARY 

AUTHORITY: Director -cum -

Warden of Fisheries, H.P. will 

be the appointing and 

disciplinary authority.  

(IV) SELECTION PROCESS: 

Selection for appointment to 

the post in the case of 

Contract  Appointment 

recruitment will be made on 

the basis of viva -voce test or 

if considered necessary or 

expedient by a written test or 

practical test the 

standard/syllabus etc. of 

which will be determined by 

the Selection Committee 

prescribed under these 

Rules.  
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(V) COMMITTEE FOR 

SELECTION OF 

CONTRACTUAL 

APPOINTMENTS: As may be 

constituted by the 

Government from time to 

timeé. 

 

5.  The grouse of the petitioners in a nutshell is that in the 
un -amended 1986 Rules no qualification was prescribed for making 
appointment to the post of Fisheries Field Assistant from amongst 
Class -IV employees on the establishment of the Department. They 
have pressed into service office order dated 27.9.2004 Annexure A -9 
in order to draw support qua this part of their case. As per their 
fur ther case, the information Annexure A -8 (Colly.) was received 
under the Right to Information Act, wherein it is revealed that the 
nature of duty of Field Assistant/ Fisherman is identical. Therefore, 
according to them, when the Fishermen and Fisheries Fiel d 
Assistants are discharging the same and similar duties, prescribing 
matriculation as minimum qualification for promotion to the post of 
Fisheries Field Assistant is arbitrary and violative of Article 14 of the 
Constitution of India.  

6.  Challenge is also to the order dated 3.7.2007 (Annexure 
A-5), whereby persons junior to them in the cadre of fishermen have 
been promoted as Fisheries Field Assistants by following the 
amended Rules (Annexure A -2). They further canvassed that 
rejection of representations Annex ures A -3, A -4 and A -6, which were 
made by one of them, i.e. Parkash Chand, petitioner No.2, vide order 
dated 31.7.2007 (Annexure A -7), on the ground that matriculation is 
essential qualification and the representationist being not 
matriculate could have no t been promoted, is also illegal.  

7.  In response to the case set out by the petitioners in the 
petition, the stand of the respondent -State is that the posts of 
Fisheries Field Assistants and fishermen are in different pay scale, 
i.e., the post of Fisheries Fi eld Assistant carries the pay scale of 
`2800 -4400, whereas  that of fishermen `2700 -4260. In 1986 Rules, 
the feeder category for promotion to the post of Fisheries Field 

Assistant class -IV officials working as Peon, Chowkidar, Cleaner, 
Chowkidar -cum -Helper , Sweeper and Field -man on the 
establishment of the Department. The category of fisherman was not 
the feeder category for promotion to the post of Fisheries Field 
Assistant. Further, that in the amended Rules (Annexure A -2) the 
category of fisherman has be en included in the feeder category for 
promotion to the post of Fisheries Field Assistant to the extent of 
33 1/ 3% from amongst matriculate fisherman having five years service 
in the cadre. Matriculation is said to be prescribed as qualification 




